
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
644099 / 643513 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  MeetingContact 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Gwener, 5 Ebrill 2024 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 1 Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy  
Siambr y Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau  
Microsoft ar Dydd Iau, 11 Ebrill 2024 am 10:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    

 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   5 - 24 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 26/05/23, 11/09/23, 12/10/23 a 
18/01/24. 
 

4.  Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (2022-2032)   25 - 274 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


  
Gwahoddwyr: 
 
Cynghorydd Huw David - Arweinydd y Cyngor 
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell – Aelod Cabinet Addysg 
 
Lindsay Harvey - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Nicola Echanis - Pennaeth Addysg a Chefnogaeth i Deuluoedd 
 
Michelle Hatcher - Rheolwr Grŵp Cymorth i Ddysgwyr 
Becca Avci - Cydlynydd Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg 
 
Meurig Jones, Prifathro Ysgol Gyfun Llangynwyd 
Sarah Gwen Richards, PrifathroYsgol Cynwyd Sant  
Neil Davies, Prifathro Ysgol Gynradd Mynydd Cynfig 
 

5.  Adroddiad Craffu Blynyddol Awdurdodau Lleol Consortiwm Canolbarth y De 
2022-23   

275 - 366 

  
Gwahoddwyr: 
 
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell – Aelod Cabinet Addysg 
 
Lindsay Harvey - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Nicola Echanis - Pennaeth Addysg a Chefnogaeth i Deuluoedd 
Susan Roberts - Rheolwr Grŵp (Cymorth i Ysgolion) 
 
Clara Seery - Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr - Consortiwm Canolbarth y De 
Andrew Williams – Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol - Consortiwm Canolbarth y De 
Darren Jones – Prif Bartner Gwella - Consortiwm Canolbarth y De 
Natalie Gould - Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol ar gyfer Cwricwlwm a Dysgu Proffesiynol       
 
Meurig Jones, Prifathro Ysgol Gyfun Llangynwyd 
Sarah Gwen Richards, PrifathroYsgol Cynwyd Sant  
Neil Davies, Prifathro Ysgol Gynradd Mynydd Cynfig 
 

6.  Casgliadau ac Argymhellion  
 

 

7.  Adroddiad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi - Dysgu Oedolion yn y Gymuned  
 

367 - 378 

8.  Adroddiad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi - Perfformiad Chwarter 3 2023-24  
 

379 - 424 

9.  Diweddariad ar Raglen Waith  
 

425 - 460 

10.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 



 
Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
RJ Collins 
M J Evans 
H Griffiths 
D M Hughes 

M Jones 
J Llewellyn-Hopkins 
I M Spiller 
T Thomas 

JH Tildesley MBE 
A Williams 
AJ Williams 
E D Winstanley 

 
Cynrychiolwyr Cofrestredig  
 
Angela Clarke - Cynrychiolydd yr Eglwys yng Nghymru 
Samantha Lambert-Worgan - Ysgol Arbennig Rhiant Lywodraethwyr  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD GWENER, 26 MAI 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD O BWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 1 A 
GYNHALIWYD AR FFURF HYBRID YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, 
STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB, DYDD GWENER, 26 MAI 2023, 
AM 11:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd A Williams – Cadeirydd  

 
RJ Collins M J Evans D M Hughes J Llewellyn-Hopkins 
I M Spiller T Thomas AJ Williams E D Winstanley 
 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
M Jones 
 
Cynrychiolwyr Cofrestredig 
 
Dim 

 
Swyddogion: 
 
Lucy Beard Swyddog Craffu 
Rachel Keepins Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Michael Pitman Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau 
 
Gwahoddedigion: 
 
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell 
 
Lindsay Harvey 
 
Susan Roberts 
Michelle Hatcher 
 
Gaynor Thomas 

Aelod Cabinet Addysg 
 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a 
Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Rheolwr Grŵp Gwella Ysgolion 
Rheolwr Grŵp Cynhwysiant a Gwella 
Ysgolion 
Rheolwr Rhaglen Ysgolion 

Robin Davies 
 
Mark Lewis 
 
David Wright 
 
 
Clara Seery 

Rheolwr Grŵp Strategaeth Fusnes a 
Pherfformiad 
Rheolwr Grŵp Gwaith Integredig a Chymorth 
i Deuluoedd 
Rheolwr Grŵp Cefnogaeth Grwpiau Agored I 
Niwed 

 
Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr - Consortiwm 
Canolbarth y De 

Darren Jones 
 
Natalie Gould 
 
 
Nicole Goggin-Jones 

Prif Bartner Gwella - Consortiwm Canolbarth 
y De 
Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol ar gyfer 
Cwricwlwm a Dysgu Proffesiynol       
 
Prifathro – Ysgol Gynradd Nantyffyllon 

Mike Street Prifathro – Ysgol Gynradd yr Eglwys yng 
Nghymru Pen-y-Fai 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD GWENER, 26 MAI 2023 

 
 

16. CYMERADWYO’R COFNODION 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod Cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 

Testun 1 a gynhaliwyd ar 10 Hydref 2022 yn cael eu 
cymeradwyo fel cofnod gwir a chywir. 

 
17. CYNLLUN STRATEGOL Y GYFARWYDDIAETH ADDYSG A CHYMORTH I 

DEULUOEDD 2023-2026 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd yr adroddiad, 
a’i ddiben oedd  rhoi cyfle i’r Pwyllgor weld a chynnig sylwadau ynghylch y fersiwn drafft 
o Gynllun Strategol 2023-2026 y Gyfarwyddiaeth Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
a’r Gwahoddedigion a thrafododd yr Aelodau’r canlynol: 
 

 Y 15 thema strategol a nodwyd sy’n sail i’r cynllun strategol tair blynedd, gan drafod:  
 

- Naratifau'r themâu hynny 
- Y dangosyddion llwyddiant: sut y cawsant eu mesur yn gywir, a safoni prosesau 

ar gyfer ysgolion 
- Y manylion yn y cynllun a sut y cyflawnwyd themâu, a'r cymorth a gynyddwyd 
- Dealltwriaeth o’r cwricwlwm newydd  
- Data wedi’u cydgrynhoi er mwyn cymharu  
- Hyfforddi Swyddogion  

 

 Presenoldeb disgyblion, lefelau absenoldeb, perchnogaeth presenoldeb a 
chyfrifoldeb. 
 

 Modiwlau hyfforddi statudol ar gyfer Llywodraethwyr Ysgolion a hyfforddiant 
ychwanegol sydd ar gael a pha un ai a ddylai mwy o hyfforddiant fod yn orfodol.  

 

 Ôl-groniad o waith cynnal a chadw mewn rhai adeiladau ysgol hŷn, cynnydd mewn 
biliau cyfleustodau a pha gymorth oedd ar gael.  

 

 Cynnydd o ran hyfedredd yn y Gymraeg ymhlith pobl iau ac oedolion, ystyried 
cyflwyno dalgylchoedd cyfrwng Cymraeg, dyhead yr Awdurdod Lleol i gynyddu nifer 
y dysgwyr yn eu hysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg a darpariaeth cludiant o’r cartref i’r 
ysgol.   

 

 Canllawiau hunanwerthuso CAMG a sut y gallai statws pob thema wella dros gyfnod 
y cynllun strategol. 

 

 Y galw am wasanaethau cwnsela i blant a rhieni a’r amseroedd aros, cymorth 
arbenigol i’r dysgwyr hyn a’r dadansoddiad mapio a chanfod bylchau a gynhaliwyd i 
weld pa gymorth a oedd ar gael ac i nodi unrhyw fylchau. 

 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd rhagor o gwestiynau gwahoddedigion i'r 
Gwahoddedigion, diolchodd i'r Gwahoddedigion am fod yn bresennol a dywedodd y 
gallent adael y cyfarfod 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Ar ôl ystyried yn fanwl a thrafod ag Aelodau’r Cabinet a 

Swyddogion, cynigiodd y Pwyllgor yr Argymhellion a 
ganlyn:  

Page 6



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD GWENER, 26 MAI 2023 

 
 

1. Mynegodd yr aelodau bryder ynghylch cadw staff ysgolion a'u llesiant. Fe 
wnaethant drafod pwysigrwydd y cymorth a gâi disgyblion ar gyfer eu llesiant ac 
roeddent yn credu y dylai llesiant staff fod yn flaenoriaeth gyfartal. Argymhellodd 
yr aelodau y dylid cryfhau'r naratif ynghylch y cymorth ar gyfer staff yn T1 Lles 
disgyblion a staff i adlewyrchu hyn.  
 

2. Yn ystod trafodaethau ynghylch presenoldeb disgyblion a lefelau absenoldeb, 
gofynnodd yr Aelodau am ddadansoddiad o'r rhesymau dros absenoldeb a nifer 
yr absenoldebau ac fe wnaethant argymell y dylid cynnyws y rhain yn y Cynllun.  
 

3. Fe wnaeth yr aelodau ystyried y dangosyddion llwyddiant yn ymwneud â T2 
Cymorth ar gyfer ymddygiad, presenoldeb a gwaharddiadau disgyblion a 
phwysleisiwyd na fyddai asesu cynnydd tuag at gyflawni'r amcan 'gostyngiad 
mewn gwaharddiadau cyfnod penodol a pharhaol' yn ystyrlon oni byddai pob 
ysgol yn cadw at y Polisi Presenoldeb Ysgolion i sicrhau cysondeb. 
Argymhellodd yr Aelodau y dylid cyfeirio at Bolisi safonol ynghylch 
Gwaharddiadau yn y Cynllun i gynnig sicrwydd o ran y data a ddarperid a sicrhau 
y gellid mesur y gwelliannau yn gywir.  
 

4. Argymhellodd yr aelodau y dylid cynnws mwy o fanylion penodol yn y Cynllun 
ynghylch sut y gellid mynd ati’n flynyddol i fesur yr uchelgais ar gyfer cwblhau’r 
modiwlau hyfforddi statudol gan Lywodraethwyr Ysgol a darparu gwaelodlin yn y 
Cynllun i amlygu’r targed i’w gyflawni. 
 

5. Nododd yr aelodau'r cynllun i gynyddu'r gefnogaeth i rieni sydd â phlant bregus o 
dan T3 Cymorth i blant a phobl ifanc bregus ac argymhellwyd y dylid 
cynnwys rhagor o fanylion yn y Cynllun ynghylch sut i gyflawni hyn, sut y gellid 
mesur y cymorth presennol a sut i sicrhau bod y cymorth yn cynyddu yn y 
dyfodol.   
 

6. Trafododd yr Aelodau sut oedd fideo a gynhyrchwyd gan Ysgol Gyfun Brynteg 
mewn perthynas â T5 Y Cwricwlwm i Gymru ac asesu yn cynnig dealltwriaeth 
well o'r cwricwlwm newydd ac fe wnaethant argymell y dylai fod gael i ysgolion 
eraill ac i'r Aelodau eu hunain.  
 

7. Trafododd yr aelodau bwysigrwydd y modiwl hyfforddiant diogelu ar gyfer 
Llywodraethwyr Ysgolion ac fe wnaethant gynnig argymhelliad i gynorthwyo’r 
Gyfarwyddiaeth i annog Llywodraeth Cymru i ystyried ei wneud yn ofyniad 
statudol.   
 

8. Mynegodd yr aelodau bryder ynghylch cynnydd posibl mewn biliau cyfleustodau 
a'r effaith ar ddisgyblion, oherwydd cyfleusterau hen ffasiwn mewn ysgolion hŷn 
presennol. Er bod yr Aelodau'n nodi bod adnewyddu a chynnal a chadw 
ysgolion hŷn o fewn cylch gorchwyl y Tîm Eiddo ac nid y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Addysg a Gwasanaethau i Deuluoedd, argymhellwyd y dylid parhau i gyfeirio at 
hyn yn y Cynllun.  
 

9. Trafododd yr aelodau T14 Cynllun Strategol Effeithiol  ynghylch y Cymraeg 
mewn Addysg i hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg ac addysg Gymraeg ac roeddent yn 
credu ei bod yn ymddangos bod yr amcan wedi'i deilwra ar gyfer dysgwyr iau ac 
i wella siaradwyr Cymraeg ac argymhellwyd y dylid ehangu'r amcan gan 
gynnwys yr hyn sy'n cael ei wneud i hyrwyddo a gwella’r defnydd o’r Gymraeg 
mewn ysgolion uwchradd.  
 

Page 7



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD GWENER, 26 MAI 2023 

 
10. Mynegodd yr aelodau bryder y byddai, heb ddiffiniadau o’r tair rhan wedi’u rhifo 

ym mhob cam o’r statws CAMG ((Coch (anfoddhaol), Ambr (digonol), Melyn (da) 
a Gwyrdd (ardderchog)), yn anodd deall y meini prawf ar gyfer y sgorau uchaf, 
canol ac isaf ym mhob statws CAMG. Argymhellodd yr aelodau y dylid 
ailystyried y canllawiau hunanwerthuso CAMG ac y dylid cynnal trafodaeth â 
phartneriaid i sicrhau bod y targedau a osodwyd yn gyflawnadwy, er enghraifft, 
uchelgais i gyflawni sgôr o 8 erbyn Awst 2026 gan gychwyn â sgôr cyfredol o 4 
yn T2 Cymorth ar gyfer ymddygiad, presenoldeb a gwaharddiadau 
disgyblion a 9 erbyn Awst 2026 gan gychwyn â sgôr cyfredol o 6 yn T5 Y 
Cwricwlwm i Gymru ac asesu ac enghreifftiau eraill yn y Cynllun.  

 
Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am y canlynol: 
 

11. Dadansoddiad manwl o'r grantiau unigol pan fyddai’r holl grantiau wedi'u 
cyfuno ac ar gael, ac fe wnaeth y Swyddogion gynnig gwneud hynny, gan 
ymateb i gwestiynau'r Aelodau ynghylch goblygiadau ariannol yr 
adroddiad yn cynnwys y grantiau allanol a chyllid cyfalaf a ddisgwylid ar 
gyfer 2023-24. 
 

12. Y data dienw ar gyfer y Rhaglen Bwyd am Hwyl a gasglwyd o’r flwyddyn 
flaenorol a’r data a oedd ar gael o’r flwyddyn, pan fyddent ar gael, i alluogi 
Aelodau’r Pwyllgor eu cymharu, ac fe wnaeth y Swyddogion gynnig darparu 
hynny i Aelodau mewn ymateb i gwestiynau’r Aelodau ynghylch pa un ai a oedd 
cofnodion wedi’u cadw ynghylch cyfranogwyr y rhaglen Bwyd a Hwyl o dan 
'Llwyddiannau hyd yn hyn' ac 'Amcanion Gwella' T1 Llesiant Disgyblion a 
Staff, a beth oedd y cynlluniau at y dyfodol.   
 

13. Ffigurau a data ynghylch hyd amseroedd aros i weld cwnselwyr mewn ysgolion, 
ac fe wnaeth Swyddogion gynnig darparu hynny mewn ymateb i bryderon 
Aelodau ynghylch hyd amseroedd rhestrau aros i weld cwnselwyr mewn 
ysgolion, er nad oedd Swyddogion yn ymwybodol bod y rhestrau aros yn rhai 
sylweddol.  
 

14. Data diweddar o’r monitro blynyddol a wnaed gan y Gwasanaeth Seicoleg 
Addysg, ac fe wnaeth y Swyddogion gynnig darparu hynny mewn ymateb i 
sylwadau’r Aelodau ynghylch T1 Llesiant disgyblion a staff yn yr adroddiad a 
oedd yn amlinellu’r cymorth a oedd wedi’i sefydlu ers tro gan y Gwasanaeth 
Seicoleg Addysg ac yn amlygu rôl cymorth â llesiant emosiynol a chymdeithasol 
y Cynorthwywyr Cymorth Dysgu a’u hyfforddiant parhaus, gan ofyn a oedd y 
rolau’n cael eu cyflawni gan staff penodedig a pha un ai a oedd staff o’r fath ym 
mhob ysgol.  

 
15. Cysylltiadau gan Gonsortiwm Canolbarth y De ynghylch y gwasanaeth 

llesiant staff a ariennir gan Lywodraeth Cymru.   
 

16. Mwy o wybodaeth ynghylch pryd roedd Swyddogion yn disgwyl cyflawni’r 
amcan yn T4 Cymorth i blant a phobl ifanc ag anghenion dysgu 
ychwanegol a oedd yn nodi y byddai 60 o Gydlynwyr Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol yn cael hyfforddiant pwrpasol i ddiwallu anghenion 
disgyblion.  
 

17. Mewn perthynas â T11 Cynnig gofal plant a blynyddoedd cynnar 
effeithiol, manylion amserlen mewn perthynas â sefydlu Dechrau’n Deg 

Page 8



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD GWENER, 26 MAI 2023 

 

a pha ddarparwyr gofal plant a oedd wedi’u cynnwys ledled y Fwrdeistref 
Sirol.  
 

18. Diweddariad ynghylch recriwtio staff i weithio mewn clybiau brecwast a 
cheginau ysgolion.  

 
Cynigion ynghylch Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol 
Gofynnodd yr aelodau am gael cynnwys y canlynol yn Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol ac y 
dylid ystyried eu hamserlenni.  
 

- Diweddariad ynghylch proses y diwygiadau Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol ar ôl 

cynnal y gwerthusiad. 

- Diweddariad ynghylch uwchraddio adeiladau ysgolion presennol - rhestr o 

opsiynau a fyddai’n cael ei llunio ar ôl cwblhau adolygiadau ardal i'w hadrodd i'r 

Bwrdd Strategol Moderneiddio Ysgolion a'u hasesu. 

- Adroddiad ynghylch T13 Cynnig dysgu oedolion yn y gymuned ystyrlon - gan 

nodi y dylai’r Pwyllgor archwilio’r adroddiad yn fanylach ac archwilio adroddiad y 

Bartneriaeth Dysgu Oedolion yn y Gymuned a fyddai ar gael, yn dilyn arolygiad, 

ym Mehefin 2023.   

- Byddai adroddiadau arolygu rheoleiddio a adroddid i'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac 

Archwilio yn cael eu hadrodd i'r Pwyllgor Craffu priodol chwe mis yn 

ddiweddarach er mwyn monitro gweithredu’r argymhellion o'r adroddiadau a 

chynnydd y cynlluniau gweithredu dilynol.  

Adroddiad gwybodaeth 
Mynegodd yr aelodau bryder ynghylch y cymorth o ran llesiant plant ac roeddent yn 
credu y byddai’n gyfrifol ac yn rhagweithiol sicrhau bod gwasanaethau yn eu lle a’u bod 
ar gael yn ddi-oed i'r plant a'r rhieni yr oedd arnynt eu hangen.  Dywedodd swyddogion 
fod ystod eang o gymorth ar gael ac fe wnaethant drafod y Dull Ysgol Gyfan o ymdrin ag 
iechyd a llesiant emosiynol yr oeddent wedi’i dreialu ar y cyd â’r Bwrdd Iechyd Byddai ail 
flwyddyn y prosiect yn cychwyn yn fuan, felly byddai dadansoddiad yn cael ei gynnal o 
ddata yn deillio o’r cynllun peilot pe bai’r Pwyllgor yn dymuno cael adroddiad 
gwybodaeth i’w ystyried, pe bai angen hynny, fel un o eitemau Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol. 
 

18. ENWEBU HYRWYDDWR RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL 
 
Fe wnaeth y Swyddog Craffu gyflwyno’r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn i'r Pwyllgor enwebu 
un Aelod yn Hyrwyddwr Rhianta Corfforaethol i gynrychioli'r Pwyllgor fel gwahoddai yng 
nghyfarfodydd Pwyllgor Rhianta Corfforaethol y Cabinet. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd am enwebiadau, ac yna, 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Y dylid enwebu’r Cynghorydd Richard Collins i gynrychioli 

Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc 1 fel Gwahoddai yng 
nghyfarfodydd Pwyllgor Rhianta Corfforaethol y Cabinet. 

 
19. EITEMAU BRYS 

 
Dim. 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 14:43.  
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 11 MEDI 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD O BWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 1 A 
GYNHALIWYD AR FFURF HYBRID YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, 
STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB, DYDD LLUN, 11 MEDI 2023, AM 
11:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd A Williams – Cadeirydd  

 
RJ Collins M J Evans H Griffiths D M Hughes 
M Jones J Llewellyn-Hopkins I M Spiller T Thomas 
AJ Williams E D Winstanley   
 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorwyr Martyn Jones a Tim Thomas y byddai angen iddynt adael y cyfarfod 
yn gynnar.  
 
Gwahoddedigion: 
 
Mark Lewis, Rheolwr Grŵp Cymorth i Deuluoedd a Catherine Evans, Rheolwr Gweithredol, 
Gwasanaethau Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid. 
 
Cynrychiolydd Cofrestredig: 
 
Lynsey Morris. 

 
Swyddogion: 
 
Lucy Beard Swyddog Craffu 
Rachel Keepins Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Michael Pitman Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau 
 
Gwahoddedigion: 
 
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell 
 
Lindsay Harvey 
 
Nicola Echanis 

Aelod Cabinet Addysg 
 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a 
Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Pennaeth Addysg a Chymorth Cynnar 

Christa Bonham - Griffiths Rheolwr Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid 
Kevin Reeves Rheolwr Gweithredol, Gwasanaethau 

Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid 
 

22. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 
Datganodd y canlynol fuddiant personol yn Eitem 4 ar yr Agenda, Gwasanaeth 
Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid a Chynllun Gweithredol: 
 
y Cynghorydd Martyn Jones fel Ustus presennol yn Llys Ynadon Caerdydd;  
Cynghorydd Johanna Llewellyn-Hopkins fel Aelod o Banel Trosedd De Cymru. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 11 MEDI 2023 

 
23. CYMERADWYO’R COFNODION 

 
PENDERFYNWYD:  Cymeradwyo Cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 

Chraffu Pwnc 1 dyddiedig 13 Mawrth 2023 fel cofnod gwir 
a chywir. 

 
24. GWASANAETH CYFIAWNDER IEUENCTID A CHYNLLUN GWEITHREDOL 

 
Cyflwynodd Rheolwr Strategol y Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid yr adroddiad, a’i 
ddiben oedd rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor am y cynnydd a wnaed o ran yr 
argymhellion, y camau gweithredu a’r datblygiadau cyfunol a amlinellwyd yn ei Gynllun 
Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid ar gyfer 2022-2023 a’r blaenoriaethau a nodwyd yng Nghynllun 
Blynyddol Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid 2023-2024 Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r Rheolwr Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid Strategol a’r 
Gwahoddedigion a thrafododd yr Aelodau’r canlynol: 
 

 Manylion yn yr adroddiad yn ymwneud â gwelliannau i gysylltiadau iechyd meddwl 

a’r data a aseswyd, gan gynnwys:  

- Roedd gan y Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl Plant a'r Glasoed gynrychiolaeth ar 

y Bwrdd Rheoli. 

- Problemau datrys atgyfeiriadau a chau achosion. 

- Y Rheolwr Datrys Problemau Gweithredol yn ei le. 

- Un pwynt mynediad mwy hygyrch i gael gafael ar y ddarpariaeth. 

- Byddai swydd Ymgynghorydd Gweithredol Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl Plant 

a'r Glasoed (CAMHS) yn cael ei llenwi a fyddai'n gweithio'n uniongyrchol gyda'r 

Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid.   

 Sicrwydd ynghylch y gwelliannau sylweddol a wnaed ers yr Argymhellion a wnaed yn 

yr adroddiad arolygu ym mis Chwefror 2022. 

 Dadansoddiadau o’r wybodaeth ariannol a staffio sy’n ymwneud â Gwasanaeth 

Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, darpariaeth o gyllidebau partneriaid 

amlasiantaethol a rhwymedigaethau ariannol ar gyfer partneriaid sydd â chyfrifoldeb 

statudol i gyflawni’r cynllun  

 Cynrychiolaeth yr Heddlu, Addysg, y Gwasanaeth Prawf, Iechyd a Gofal 

Cymdeithasol Plant ar y Bwrdd Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid fel rhwymedigaeth 

gyfreithiol o dan Ddeddf Trosedd ac Anhrefn 1998, ac yn benodol, yr angen am fwy 

o gefnogaeth gan y gwasanaeth prawf o ganlyniad i’r galw ar y gwasanaeth.  

 Ystadegau holiadur Fy Llais, yn arbennig y 64% o’r 25 o ddisgyblion oedd yn 

mynychu’r ysgol nad oedd yn ei mwynhau, a nodwyd y byddai wedi bod yn dda 

clywed safbwyntiau’r ysgol ynglŷn â sut yr oeddent yn cefnogi’r unigolion hynny.  

 Materion yn ymwneud â recriwtio ar draws y Sir a’r gronfa fechan o weithwyr 

proffesiynol ar gyfer rhai rolau a allai fod yn achosi oedi ac anawsterau o ran 

recriwtio, a sicrwydd bod tîm pwrpasol i sicrhau bod ymateb cyflym i blant o ran 

asesu a chynllunio, yn ogystal â defnydd y gwasanaeth ehangach.  

 Cyflwyno’r offeryn sgrinio trawma ar gyfer pob plentyn sy’n dod i mewn i’r 

gwasanaeth, y sgrinio i’w gyflawni, sut y caiff ei adolygu a’r adnodd i adolygu’r 

prosesau.  

 Y Dangosyddion Perfformiad Allweddol cenedlaethol presennol a’r rhai 

ychwanegol a osodwyd ym mis Ebrill 2023 a’r diffyg mesurau neu dargedau 

yn eu herbyn, sut bydd y data a’r wybodaeth yn cael eu monitro yn y dyfodol i 

sicrhau bod y Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid yn perfformio.  

Page 12



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 11 MEDI 2023 

 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau pellach i'r Gwahoddedigion, 
diolchodd i'r Gwahoddedigion am fod yn bresennol a dywedodd y gallent adael y 
cyfarfod. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:  Yn dilyn ystyriaeth fanwl a thrafodaethau ag Aelodau’r Cabinet a 

Swyddogion, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr Argymhellion a ganlyn:  
 

1. Bod y naratif yn cael ei gynnwys mewn adroddiadau i'r Pwyllgor Craffu yn y 
dyfodol yn egluro pam nad oedd y tabl cyllideb gyda dadansoddiad o'r 
wybodaeth ariannol a staffio yn y Cynllun Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid yn 
dangos cefnogaeth ariannol gan y Gwasanaeth Prawf a/neu Iechyd.  

 
2. Bod y Pwyllgor yn ysgrifennu llythyr at y Gwasanaeth Prawf yn tynnu sylw 

at y cynnydd yn y galw ar y Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid (GCI) ac yn 
gofyn am fwy o gefnogaeth o ystyried y ddyletswydd statudol ar y GCI i 
gael isafswm o gynrychiolwyr o'r Heddlu, Addysg, y Gwasanaeth Prawf, 
Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant.  
 

3. Bod mwy o ymgysylltu a chydgysylltu rhwng ysgolion a'r Heddlu a 
chanolbwyntio ar atal.  
 

4. Bod person ifanc 18+ oed ond o dan 25 oed sydd wedi mynd drwy'r GCI 
yn cael ei wahodd i eistedd ar Fwrdd Rheoli GCI Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr i roi 
ei ddealltwriaeth o’i brofiad o'r GCI a gwelliannau posibl.  
 

5. O ystyried bod problemau recriwtio ar draws y sefydliad cyfan ond yn 
cydnabod bod angen cael staff arbenigol digonol i gynnal rhywfaint o’r 
sgrinio trawma, argymhellwyd yn gryf eu bod yn edrych i weld a oedd yr 
hyn oedd ganddynt ar hyn o bryd yn ddigonol, er mwyn gallu cyrraedd eu 
targedau perfformiad a sicrhau bod pobl ifanc yn cael eu diogelu.   

 

Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am y canlynol:  
 

6. Dolen i ymatebion yr Arolygiad ar y Cyd a wnaed gan Arolygiaeth Gofal 
Cymru. 
 

7. Mwy o wybodaeth am y rhesymau pam nad oedd 45% o blant yn 
mynychu'r ysgol fel yr adroddwyd yn holiaduron Fy Llais.  
 

Page 13



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 11 MEDI 2023 

 

8. Data ynghylch y Dangosyddion Perfformiad Allweddol cenedlaethol i'w 
ddosbarthu i'r aelodau i weld y dyheadau ar gyfer pob rhan o'r 
gwasanaeth, ac ar gyfer mesur a monitro perfformiad y Gwasanaeth 
Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid.  
 

Mwy o ddata ar faint o sgrinio trawma gan ddefnyddio’r Model Adfer Trawma oedd heb 
ei gyflawni eto, pa mor aml y byddai’n cael ei adolygu a sut y byddai’r gwasanaeth yn 
rheoli’r adnoddau staffio i’w gyflawni. 
 

25. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y FLAENRAGLEN WAITH 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn trafod y Flaenraglen Waith. 
 
Nododd y Pwyllgor y byddai'n fuddiol gwahodd cynrychiolwyr ysgolion – penaethiaid 
ysgolion a chynrychiolwyr Byrddau Iechyd i graffu ar adroddiadau yn y dyfodol ar y 
gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid. 
 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:   Bod y Pwyllgor yn cymeradwyo’r Flaenraglen Waith yn       
                                   Atodiad A, yn amodol ar y sylw uchod, yn nodi’r  
                                   Taflen Monitro Gweithredu Argymhellion yn  
                                   Atodiad Bac yn nodi fod Taflen Monitro Gweithredu  
                                   Argymhellion y Flaenraglen Waith, ac unrhyw  
                                   ddiweddariadau gan y Pwyllgor yn cael eu hadrodd i  
                                   gyfarfod nesaf Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc.     
 

26. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim. 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 13:45.  
 

Page 14



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 12 HYDREF 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD O BWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 1 A 
GYNHALIWYD AR FFURF HYBRID YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, 
STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB, DYDD IAU, 12 HYDREF 2023, AM 
11:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd A Williams – Cadeirydd  

 
RJ Collins M J Evans H Griffiths D M Hughes 
M Jones J Llewellyn-Hopkins T Thomas JH Tildesley MBE 
AJ Williams E D Winstanley   

 
Cynrychiolwyr Cofrestredig 
 
Ms Angela Clarke  
Ms Samantha Rachel Lambert-
Worgan 

Cynrychiolydd yr Eglwys yng Nghymru 
Cynrychiolydd Rhiant Lywodraethwyr Ysgol 
Arbennig  

   
Swyddogion: 
 
Lucy Beard Swyddog Craffu 
  
Gwahoddedigion: 
 
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell 
 
Lindsay Harvey 
 
Mark Lewis 
 
Susan Roberts 
Neil Arbery 
 
Kathryn Morgan 

 
Aelod Cabinet Addysg 
 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a 
Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Rheolwr Grŵp Gwaith Integredig a Chymorth 
i Deuluoedd 
Rheolwr Grŵp (Cymorth i Ysgolion) 
Swyddog Arweiniol, Datblygu Strategol 
(Sector Cynradd) 
Prif Seicolegydd Addysg 

 
Joanne Bendon 
 
Christina Morgan 
Michelle Joyner 
 
Helen Jones 
Mike Stephens 
Sara Johns 
Carmen Beveridge 
Ashley Howells 
 
 

 
Cydlynydd Dull Ysgol Gyfan o Ymdrin ag 
Iechyd a Lles 
CAMHS Uwch Nyrs 
Head, Y Bont Darpariaeth Amgen 
 
Prifathro, Ysgol Maesteg 
Prifathro, Ysgol Gyfun Porthcawl 
Prifathro, Babanod Cefn Glas 

Prifathro, St Robert’s 
Prifathro, Ysgol Uwchradd Gatholig 
Archesgob McGrath 
 

28. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 
Cynghorydd Ian Spiller 
 
Gwahoddedigion: 
Emma Davies, Rheolwr Ardal Ymyrraeth Gynnar 
Stuart Farrow, Pennaeth Cynorthwyol, Archesgob McGrath 
 

Page 15



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 12 HYDREF 2023 

 
 
 

29. DATGANIADAU BUDDIANNAU 
 
Y Cynghorydd Amanda Williams – Personol – ei phlant wedi mynychu Ysgol Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, Llywodraethwr Awdurdod Addysg Lleol (AALl) 
mewn dwy ysgol.  
Y Cynghorydd Heather Griffiths – Personol – Cadeirydd Llywodraethwyr Coleg 
Cymunedol Y Dderwen a'i hwyres yn mynychu Ysgol Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr.  
Y Cynghorydd Johanna Llewellyn-Hopkins – Personol – Llywodraethwr yn Ysgol Gyfun 
Cynffig, athrawes a’i phlentyn yn mynychu Ysgol Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr.  
Y Cynghorydd Melanie Evans – Personol – Plentyn yn mynychu Ysgol Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, Llywodraethwr yn Ysgol Gynradd Croesty ac 
Ysgol Gyfun Pencoed.  
Y Cynghorydd Tim Thomas – Personol – Llywodraethwr yng Ngholeg Cymunedol Y 
Dderwen ac Ysgol Gynradd Brynmenyn a phlant yn mynychu Ysgolion Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  
Samantha Lambert-Worgan – Personol – Llywodraethwr Ysgol Heronsbridge a phlant yn 
mynychu Ysgolion Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 
 

30. DULL GWEITHREDU YSGOL GYFAN O YMDRIN Â LLES EMOSIYNOL A 
MEDDYLIOL 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cydlynydd Dull Gweithredu Ysgol Gyfan o ymdrin ag Iechyd a Lles yr 
adroddiad, a'i ddiben oedd diweddaru'r Pwyllgor ar y cynnydd ar y dull gweithredu ysgol 
gyfan o ymdrin â lles emosiynol a meddyliol a rhoi gwybodaeth gefndir ar ddogfen 
ganllaw statudol Llywodraeth Cymru a sut yr oedd hyn wedi cael ei weithredu gydag 
ysgolion Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr fel dull gweithredu ysgol gyfan.  
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Swyddog a thrafododd y Gwahoddedigion a’r Aelodau y 
canlynol: 
 

 Y sefyllfa bresennol ar recriwtio a chadw Llywodraethwyr Ysgol ac archwilio'r hyn y 

gellid ei roi ar waith i gefnogi recriwtio a chadw Llywodraethwyr Ysgol er mwyn 

denu'r ymgeiswyr gorau yn y cymunedau i gefnogi ysgolion.  

 Canllawiau Llywodraeth Cymru a'r cymorth sydd ar gael, y cyfeirir ato yn yr 

adroddiad, yr angen am sicrwydd bod gan bob corff llywodraethu y sgiliau a'r gallu i 

allu monitro perfformiad ysgolion o ran gwella iechyd emosiynol a lles meddyliol 

disgyblion a staff, a Chymdeithas Llywodraethwyr Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a oedd wedi 

ailgychwyn ac wedi rhoi cyfle i bob Corff Llywodraethu ddod at ei gilydd, cymryd rhan 

a chael yr hyfforddiant sydd ei angen.  

 Pryder am golli staff cymorth ysgolion i swyddi sy'n talu'n uwch a allai gynnig 

amgylchedd gwaith mwy cyfunol, a ellid gwneud llwybrau cyflogaeth yn fwy deniadol, 

a sut roedd y mater yn cael ei godi gyda'r Gweinidog ac roedd Llywodraeth Cymru 

yn edrych ar y ffordd y gellid newid hyn a sut y gellid recriwtio athrawon.  

 Roedd y dadansoddiad cychwynnol o ganfyddiadau'r broses hunanwerthuso yn 

ymwneud â lles emosiynol a meddyliol plant a phobl ifanc ar draws y fwrdeistref sirol, 

y gwerthusiad cenedlaethol a oedd wedi dangos bod arweinyddiaeth ac ymrwymiad 

yn flaenoriaeth, y ffocws ar hyfforddiant lles staff ac effaith morâl isel ar ddysgwyr.  

 Pryder ynghylch y pwysau ar athrawon a allai arwain at absenoldeb oherwydd straen 

a gorbryder a pha gymorth pellach oedd ei angen gan yr Awdurdod Lleol i gefnogi 

athrawon a sicrhau eu lles.  

Page 16



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 12 HYDREF 2023 

 

 Yn ymarferol, mae ysgolion yn mabwysiadu'r gweithdrefnau absenoldeb oherwydd 

salwch yn gyson a phwysigrwydd cydnabod a gwerthfawrogi addysg fel gwasanaeth 

cyhoeddus.  

 Roedd diffyg cyfleusterau clwb brecwast mewn rhai ysgolion, a olygai ar adegau nad 

oedd rhai o'r rhai mwyaf anghenus yn cael brecwast ac o ystyried yr argyfwng costau 

byw a dyfodiad y Gaeaf, roedd yn hanfodol i blant gael brecwast.  

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau pellach i'r Gwahoddedigion, 
diolchodd i'r Gwahoddedigion am eu presenoldeb a dywedodd y gallent adael y cyfarfod. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Yn dilyn ystyriaeth fanwl a thrafodaethau gydag Aelodau Cabinet 

a Swyddogion, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr Argymhellion canlynol:  
 
1. Bod archwiliad ysgolion yn cael ei gynnal i nodi'r lefel sylweddol o swyddi gwag ar 

gyfer Llywodraethwyr Ysgol ynghyd ag archwiliad o sgiliau Llywodraethwyr Ysgol i 
gynorthwyo Aelodau i ddeall beth y gellir ei wneud i ddenu mwy o bobl â'r sgiliau 
cywir i ddod yn Lywodraethwyr Ysgolion Cymunedol, a bod canlyniad yr archwiliadau 
ar gael i'r Pwyllgor er gwybodaeth yn y lle cyntaf. 
 

2. Gofyn i Gymdeithas Llywodraethwyr Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr egluro bod holl Gyrff 
Llywodraethu’r Ysgolion yn cael eu cynnwys ar restrau dosbarthu ar gyfer eu 
cyfarfodydd i ddod a bod pob Awdurdod Lleol a Llywodraethwr Cymunedol yn cael 
eu dosbarthu wrth hyrwyddo eu sesiynau hyfforddi sydd i ddod.   
 

3. Bod y Pwyllgor yn ysgrifennu llythyr at Lywodraeth Cymru yn gofyn bod mwy yn cael 
ei wneud ar lefel genedlaethol i godi proffil / cymell recriwtio a chadw staff cymorth 
ysgolion, gan fod y rolau pwysig hyn yn arwyddocaol wrth gyflawni gofynion a 
sicrhau bod lles yn flaenllaw, ond mae staff cymorth yn gadael i weithio mewn 
swyddi y tu allan i'r sector. 
 

4. Bod yr arfer amhrisiadwy o ofyn i Wahoddedigion sy’n Benaethiaid i fod yn bresennol 
ar gyfer yr adroddiadau sy'n cael eu hystyried gan y Pwyllgor hwn, yn parhau. 

 
Y wybodaeth y gofynnwyd amdani: 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaethau, gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am y canlynol:  

 
5. Bod y ddogfen sy'n cael ei chreu gan Dîm Iechyd y Cyhoedd Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

yn dadansoddi'r Rhaglen Perfformio a Thyfu sy'n gysylltiedig â'u hadnodd 
hunanwerthuso, er mwyn i Aelodau gael dealltwriaeth o les meddwl ar draws y 
fwrdeistref sirol. 
 

6. Dadansoddiad o’r canlynol gan Lywodraeth Cymru: Y Dull Gweithredu Ysgol Gyfan o 
ran y Grant Lles Emosiynol a Meddyliol a dderbyniwyd gan yr Awdurdod Lleol y 
cyfeirir ato yn yr adroddiad, i gynnwys:  
 

a. Y rhesymau dros y cynnydd mewn cyllid Gweithgareddau yn ystod 2022-
23 a'r gostyngiad yn 2023-24. 

b. Yr hyn y mae'r cyllid yn ei ddarparu, gan gynnwys faint o sesiynau 
cwnsela ac a yw hyn yn ddigonol. 

c. A oes unrhyw ffrydiau cyllido amgen ar gyfer y Gweithgareddau a restrir 

yn y tablau ac a ydynt wedi'u hariannu'n ddigonol.  

d. Cyfraniad y Cyngor tuag at y Gweithgareddau a restrir yn y tablau.  
 

 

Page 17



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 12 HYDREF 2023 

 
7. Canlyniadau a gwerthusiad o'r adolygiad o'r fframwaith y cyfeiriwyd ato yn yr 

adroddiad y bwriadwyd iddo sicrhau ei fod yn addas at y diben yn ystod diwedd 
2022. 
 

8. Gwybodaeth am fecanweithiau cymorth a'r gweithdrefnau absenoldeb oherwydd 
salwch ar gyfer staff a phenaethiaid a'u rôl yn cefnogi recriwtio a chadw staff. 
 
 

9. Diweddariad ar yr ysgolion hynny nad oedd ganddynt glybiau brecwast a'r cynllun i’r 
dyfodol ar gyfer eu darparu i sicrhau bod pob dysgwr yn gallu cael brecwast, yn 
enwedig o ystyried costau byw a'r tywydd oerach. 
 

10. Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am amserlen cyhoeddi 
adolygiad Cludiant rhwng y Cartref a’r Ysgol Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 

Copi o Ganllawiau a chrynodeb Llywodraeth Cymru a gyhoeddwyd yn ddiweddar yn 
ymwneud ag Addysg Ddewisol yn y Cartref, sy'n nodi'r gofynion a sut mae'r cydgysylltu 
ag awdurdodau lleol a rhieni yn y maes hwn yn gweithio. 
 

31. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y FLAENRAGLEN WAITH 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaethau manwl, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr argymhellion canlynol: 
 

 Bod y Prydau Ysgol Am Ddim i Holl Blant Ysgolion Cynradd a Materion 
Gweithredol yn adroddiadau'r Gwasanaethau Arlwyo yn cael eu dwyn ymlaen 
i gyfarfod 4 Rhagfyr gyda'r adroddiad darpariaeth Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol (ADY) yn cael ei symud i'r Gwanwyn.  

 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyodd y Pwyllgor y Flaenraglen Waith yn Atodiad A,  
                                 yn amodol ar yr uchod, nododd  y Daflen Weithredu  
                                 Monitro Argymhellion yn Atodiad B a nododd y byddai’r                      
                                 Flaenraglen Waith, y Daflen Weithredu Monitro Argymhellion  
                                 ac unrhyw ddiweddariadau gan y Pwyllgor  
                                 yn cael eu hadrodd i gyfarfod nesaf PTCC. 
 

32. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim. 
 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 14:20.  
 

Page 18



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 18 IONAWR 2024 

 

COFNODION CYFARFOD O BWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 1 A GYNHALIWYD YN HYBRID YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR -  
SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB, DDYDD IAU, 18 IONAWR 2024 AM 11AM 
 
 

Yn Bresennol 
 

Y Cynghorydd A Williams - Cadeirydd 
 
H Griffiths D M Hughes I M Spiller JH Tildesley MBE 
AJ Williams E D Winstanley   

 
 

Yn bresennol o bell 
 

RJ Collins M Jones T Thomas  
 
 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
M J Evans a J Llewellyn-Hopkins 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Mark Shepard 
Carys Lord 
Kelly Watson  
Lindsay Harvey  
 
Nicola Echanis 
Deborah Exton   
Victoria Adams 
 
Rachel Keepins  
Lucy Beard  

Prif Weithredwr  
Prif Swyddog, Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd  
 
Pennaeth Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd  
Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid  
Rheolwr Cyllid, Rheoli Cyllideb: Cymunedau, Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
 
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd  
Swyddog Craffu  
 

Aelodau’r Cabinet  
 
Y Cynghorydd Huw David  

 
 
Arweinydd y Cyngor  

P
age 19



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 18 IONAWR 2024 

 

Y Cynghorydd Jane Gebbie 
Y Cynghorydd Hywel Williams   
Y Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell  

Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd  
Aelod Cabinet dros Gyllid, Adnoddau a Materion Cyfreithiol  
Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg 

  
  
Gwahoddedigion / Cynrychiolwyr Cofrestredig 
 
Hannah Castle     Cadeirydd y Fforwm Cyllid Ysgolion  
Jonathan Lewis                Is-Gadeirydd y Fforwm Cyllid Ysgolion  
Ms Angela Clarke  
Ms Samantha Rachel Lambert-Worgan 

Cynrychiolydd Cofrestredig yr Eglwys yng Nghymru 
Cynrychiolydd Arbennig Rhiant Lywodraethwyr Ysgol  
 

 

 

 
Datganiadau o Fuddiant 
 
Y Cynghorydd Amanda Williams – Personol – Cadeirydd Llywodraethwyr Ysgol Gynradd Coety  
 
 

37. Cymeradwyo’r Cofnodion 
 

 

Penderfyniad a Wnaed 
 

Penderfynwyd: Bod Cofnodion cyfarfod  Pwyllgor 1 Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc, dyddiedig 4 Rhagfyr 2023, 
yn cael eu cymeradwyo fel cofnod gwir a chywir.  

Dyddiad y Gwnaed y 
Penderfyniad 
 

18 Ionawr 2024 

 
 
 
 

38. Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig 2024-25 i 2027-28 
 

 

Penderfyniad a Wnaed 
 

Penderfynwyd:  Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth fanwl gydag Aelodau Cabinet perthnasol a’r Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr argymhellion a’r sylwadau a ganlyn:  
 

1. ATODLEN 1 
Mewn perthynas â’r gostyngiad arfaethedig mewn perthynas â Chyllidebau Dirprwyedig 
Ysgolion o 5% yn 2024-2025, mynegodd yr Aelodau bryderon cryf ynghylch maint yr arbediad 

P
age 20



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 18 IONAWR 2024 

 

ar gyfer y flwyddyn i ddod, a’r effaith bosibl y byddai hyn yn ei chael ar gyllidebau ysgolion, 
gydag adroddiadau’n nodi ei fod yn anghynaliadwy ac y byddai'n arwain at dros 80% o 
ysgolion yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol yn mynd i ddiffyg.  
 
Amlygodd tystiolaeth a ddarparwyd gan gynrychiolwyr y Fforwm Cyllid Ysgolion, y cynnydd 
sylweddol yn ddiweddar mewn dysgwyr agored i niwed sydd wedi'i weld gan bob ysgol ers y 
pandemig, ac yn fwy nag a welwyd erioed o’r blaen.  Dywedwyd y gallai effaith y gostyngiad 
arfaethedig o 5% i gyllidebau ysgolion, ynghyd â'r gostyngiadau arfaethedig pellach mewn 
gwasanaethau cymorth, effeithio'n ddifrifol ar ddysgwyr sy'n agored i niwed.   
 

a Er mwyn lleihau’r effaith cymaint â phosibl a rhoi mwy o amser i ysgolion gynllunio a pharatoi, 
mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod yr arbediad arfaethedig o 5% yn cael ei leihau a’i wasgaru ar 
draws blynyddoedd 2, 3 a 4, gan ddechrau gyda gostyngiad o 2% yn unig ar gyfer 2024-25, ac 
yn cael ei ddilyn gan 2% ar gyfer pob blwyddyn 2-4, gan ddal i gyflawni yr 8% cyffredinol sydd 
ei angen. 
 

b  I lenwi’r bwlch hwn yn y gyllideb, mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod y Cabinet yn ystyried 
defnyddio unrhyw gyllid posibl y gallai’r Awdurdod ei gael gan y Llywodraeth Ganolog mewn 
perthynas â phensiynau athrawon yn ogystal ag ailedrych ar y pwysau cyllidebol arfaethedig o 
£11,856 miliwn ac ystyried beth y gellid ei ohirio ar gyfer 2024-2025. 

 
2. Gwasanaethau Cymorth Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd (EFS) 12, 13 ac 14 a Disgyblion 
ag Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol 
 

Tynnodd y Pwyllgor sylw at yr effaith negyddol y byddai’r gostyngiadau arfaethedig i EFS, 12, 
13 ac 14 yn ei chael ar ddisgyblion ag Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol (ADY) fel y’u nodwyd 
gan gynrychiolwyr Penaethiaid yn y cyfarfod.  Roedd yr Aelodau'n arbennig o bryderus 
ynghylch y ffaith y gallai'r gostyngiadau hyn olygu na fyddai'r Awdurdod yn diwallu ei 
ddyletswyddau statudol i'r plant a'r bobl ifanc hyn o ran bodloni'r amserlenni ar gyfer 
asesiadau.  Roedd y Pwyllgor yn cytuno’n gryf mor bwysig yw’r asesiadau hyn ar gyfer 
disgyblion ag ADY, y mae gan lawer ohonynt anghenion cymhleth, ac felly angen asesiad 
cyflym er mwyn gallu cael y gwasanaethau cymorth sydd eu hangen arnynt.   
O ganlyniad i'r pryderon hyn a rhwymedigaeth gyfreithiol yr Awdurdod i'r disgyblion hyn, mae'r 
Pwyllgor yn argymell bod EFS 13 ac 14 yn cael eu dileu o'r cynigion i leihau'r gyllideb a bod y 

P
age 21



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 18 IONAWR 2024 

 

cyllidebau cysylltiedig hyn yn cael eu neilltuo yn erbyn gostyngiadau yn y dyfodol.  Cynigiodd 
yr Aelodau y gellid dod o hyd i'r arbediad hwn o £67,000 o bosibl o fewn y twf arfaethedig o 
£500,000 o dan EFS4, a gofynnwyd am eglurhad i'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol, 
o'r hyn yr oedd y £500,000 hwn yn ei gynnwys, i'w ystyried gan yr Aelodau yn y cyfarfod 
gyllideb derfynol ar 30 Ionawr. 

 
3.Gwasanaethau a Dyletswyddau Statudol 
 

Gan adeiladu ar yr argymhelliad uchod, mynegodd y pwyllgor bryder cryf ynghylch yr holl 
ostyngiadau arfaethedig sy'n amlygu effaith bosibl ar gyflawni dyletswyddau statudol yr 
Awdurdod. Tynnodd yr Aelodau sylw at y goblygiadau sylweddol y gallai hyn eu cael i'r 
Awdurdod Lleol ac argymhellwyd bod y Cabinet yn gwarchod rhag hyn fel blaenoriaeth, gan 
ailedrych ar y cynigion hynny sy'n peryglu cyflawni dyletswyddau statudol. 

 
4.Cynllun Ariannol i Ysgolion 
 

Gan werthfawrogi y gall Fforwm Cyllid Ysgolion godi a thrafod newidiadau arfaethedig i'r 
fformiwla gyllido ysgolion (ac eithrio'r rhai sydd wedi'u rhwymo gan ddeddfwriaeth), tynnodd yr 
Aelodau sylw at y ffaith, gan fod amgylchiadau wedi newid cymaint ers pandemig COVID-19, 
a'r pwysau ariannu nawr sy'n wynebu ysgolion, roedd angen i'r Awdurdod Lleol gychwyn 
adolygiad o'r cynllun ariannol ar gyfer ysgolion.  Mynegodd y Pwyllgor bryder hefyd ynghylch 
adroddiadau nad oedd cyrff llywodraethu ysgolion cynradd efallai wedi cymryd rhan mewn 
adolygiadau a newidiadau blaenorol i'r fformiwla ariannu ac ni ymgynghorwyd â hwy ynghylch 
y rhain.   
Mae’r Pwyllgor felly’n argymell y dylid cynnal adolygiad llawn o’r cynllun ariannol a’r fformiwla 
ariannu ar gyfer ysgolion, gyda chyfranogiad llawn cyrff llywodraethu cynradd ac uwchradd 
wedi’u cefnogi gan ddarpariaeth hyfforddiant ar y pwnc hwn fel bod llywodraethwyr, sydd, 
wedi’r cyfan, yn wirfoddolwyr, yn cael gwybodaeth addas i gymryd rhan lawn yn yr adolygiad. 

 
Sylwadau 
 

 Roedd y Pwyllgor yn cefnogi'r farn bod angen newid trawsnewidiol aruthrol ar 
draws yr Awdurdod Lleol er mwyn diwallu darpariaeth gwasanaeth yn y dyfodol o fewn 
cyllidebau anodd.  Fodd bynnag, amlygwyd bod angen bod yn ofalus lle mae 

P
age 22



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 18 IONAWR 2024 

 

gostyngiadau yn y gyllideb yn cael effaith ychwanegol ar wasanaethau eraill, megis 
ysgolion, ac ni ddylid rhoi gormod o faich ar y gwasanaethau hynny, ar ben eu 
gostyngiadau eu hunain. 

 
Gwybodaeth ychwanegol 
 
Er mwyn i'r Aelodau gael darlun llawn o'r gostyngiadau staffio a’u heffaith ar yr Awdurdod Lleol 
wrth symud ymlaen, gofynnwyd iddynt gael golwg ar yr holl ailstrwythuro staffio sylfaenol, gan 
nodi bod angen gofal er mwyn peidio â nodi aelodau unigol o staff.  Gofynnodd y pwyllgor a allai'r 
wybodaeth hon ddangos y sefyllfa cyn ac ar ôl unrhyw ailstrwythuro arfaethedig er mwyn gweld y 
goblygiadau llawn. 
 
Blaenraglen Waith Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc 1 
 
 Cludiant rhwng y Cartref a’r Ysgol 
Gwnaeth y Pwyllgor sylwadau cadarnhaol ar y cynnig i gychwyn adolygiad o ddarpariaeth 
Cludiant o'r Cartref i'r Ysgol yr Awdurdod yn hytrach nag aros nes bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi 
cwblhau eu hadolygiad eu hunain, o ystyried y sefyllfa gyllidebol anodd y mae'r Awdurdod yn ei 
hwynebu nawr.  Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor i wybodaeth gael ei darparu ar y canlynol pan gyflwynir 
adroddiad i’r pwyllgor craffu mewn cyfarfod yn y dyfodol: 
Faint o blant sy'n cael cludiant rhwng y cartref a'r ysgol oherwydd diffyg llwybrau diogel i'r ysgol; 
Yr effaith y gallai unrhyw ostyngiad ei chael ar ddarpariaeth addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg, gan 
gynnwys sut i atal y disgyblion hyn rhag cael eu heffeithio’n andwyol. 

 
Llythyr i Lywodraeth Cymru 
Gan gydnabod y cynnydd arfaethedig o 3% yn y gyllideb gan Lywodraeth Cymru fel rhan o’i 
setliad drafft, mynegodd y Pwyllgor bryderon difrifol ynghylch y pwysau cynyddol ar wasanaethau 
lleol gan gynnwys ysgolion a gwasanaethau cymdeithasol, a’r ffaith nad oedd y setliad yn ddigon i 
fynd i’r afael â phwysau o’r fath.  Mae'r Pwyllgor yn gwerthfawrogi bod pob Awdurdod Lleol yn yr 
un sefyllfa, fodd bynnag, o ystyried adroddiadau a dderbyniwyd bod y Gweinidog yn dymuno 
diogelu cyllidebau ysgolion, dywedodd yr Aelodau fod angen i Lywodraeth Cymru wneud mwy i 
gefnogi ac ariannu Awdurdodau Lleol yn briodol.  Felly cytunodd y Pwyllgor i ysgrifennu at 
Lywodraeth Cymru i dynnu sylw at y materion hyn ac i gefnogi’r Cabinet i roi pwysau ychwanegol 
ar Weinidogion i fynd i’r afael â’r sefyllfa gyllido ar gyfer Awdurdodau Lleol. 

P
age 23



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD IAU, 18 IONAWR 2024 

 

 
Yn ogystal â hyn, gofynnodd y Pwyllgor i'r llythyr hwn at Lywodraeth Cymru hefyd dynnu sylw at 
yr angen i Awdurdodau Lleol gael eglurhad cynharach ar unrhyw ddyraniad cyllideb allanol neu 
ganolog.  Mae hyn o ganlyniad i'r ansicrwydd parhaus a brofir ar hyn o bryd mewn perthynas â 
phensiynau athrawon ac a fydd y rhain yn cael eu hariannu'n ganolog.  Heb wybodaeth o'r fath, 
mae'n anodd iawn i Awdurdodau Lleol gynllunio a chynhyrchu cyllideb gytbwys gywir a gwybodus 
yn effeithiol, ac yn bwysicach fyth ymgynghori arni. 
 

Dyddiad y Gwnaed y 
Penderfyniad 
 

18 Ionawr 2024 

 
 
 
 

39. Eitemau Brys 
 

 

Penderfyniad a Wnaed 
 

Dim un  

Dyddiad y Gwnaed y 
Penderfyniad 
 

18 Ionawr 2024 

 
 
I arsylwi dadl bellach a gynhaliwyd ar yr eitemau uchod, cliciwch ar y ddolen hon ar gyfer Rhan Un a'r ddolen hon ar gyfer Rhan Dau. 
  
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 15:00.  
 

P
age 24

https://youtu.be/i7JakPjdPbI
https://youtu.be/mgn5ej8RrcQ


 
 

 
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
11 April 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN 

(2022-2032) 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND FAMILY 

SUPPORT 

Responsible 
Officer:  

GAIL BIGGS 
INTERIM GROUP MANAGER LEARNER SUPPORT 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

THERE IS NO EFFECT UPON THE POLICY FRAMEWORK 
OR PROCEDURE RULES. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

THIS REPORT PROVIDES THE SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 WITH AN UPDATE ON THE 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE WELSH IN EDUCATION 

STRATEGIC PLAN (WESP) 2022-2032. 
 

THE REPORT PROVIDES BACKGROUND INFORMATION, 
OUTLINING THE STRATEGIC RESPONSIBILITIES AND 

PROGRESS TO DATE. 
 

THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE FIRST YEAR OF THE 
WESP WAS REPORTED TO WELSH GOVERNMENT IN JULY 

2023. 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 

(SOSC1) on the implementation and the progress of Bridgend County Borough 
Council’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2022-2032. 

2. Background  
 
2.1 Section 84 of The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 (‘the 2013 

Act’) requires a local authority to prepare a WESP and outlines that a plan must 
contain:  

 
a. A local authority’s proposals on how it will carry out its education functions to: 
 

i. improve the planning of the provision of education through the medium of 
Welsh (Welsh-medium education) in its area; and 
 

ii. improve the standards of Welsh-medium education and of the teaching of 
Welsh in its area.  

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



 
 

b. The local authority’s targets for improving the planning of the provision of 
Welsh-medium education in its area and for improving the standards of that 
education and of the teaching of Welsh in its area. 
 

c. Report on the progress made to meet the targets contained in the                             
previous WESP. 

 
2.2 Cabinet first approved Bridgend County Borough Council’s (BCBC’s) WESP in 

March 2014 and it was subsequently approved by Welsh Government’s Department 
for Education and Skills (DfES) in June 2014.  BCBC’s WESP has been reviewed 
and updated annually prior to seeking approval from Welsh Government. 

 
2.3 Following the rapid review commissioned by Welsh Government, the timescales for 

publication of the WESP documents have been reviewed, as reported in the 
Cabinet report dated 5 September 2017. 

 
2.4 The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans and Assessing the Demand (Wales) 

Regulations 2013 (‘the 2013 regulations’), were the first regulations made under the 
section 87 powers. The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 
2019 (‘the 2019 Regulations’) replace those regulations and make provision for a 
local authority to prepare a ten-year WESP, the first to have effect from 1 
September 2022, subject to the Welsh Minister’s approval.  

 
2.5 The purpose of these regulations is to improve opportunities for local authorities to 

 plan Welsh-medium education provision to support the current and future 
expectation for growth in Welsh-medium education. Improving the planning of 
Welsh-medium education will also support Welsh Government’s long-term national 
ambition for the Welsh language as set out in Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050: 
A Million Welsh speakers’ strategy, your strategy for promoting the Welsh language 
in accordance with the Promotion Standards under the Welsh Language Standards 
(No. 1) Regulations 2015 and the introduction of a new curriculum for Wales. 

2.6  In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, amendments were made to the 2019 
Regulations, which made changes to the start date of the next WESP cycle being 
moved from 1 September 2021 to a year later (to September 2022). The plan was 
required to be submitted to Welsh Government for approval by 31 January 2022. 

 
2.7 The first ten-year plan commenced on 1 September 2022 and expires on 31 August 

2032. Each further plan will commence on 1 September in the year during which the 
previous ten-year plan will come to an end (that is, 1 September 2032 to 31 August 
2042). The Plan must include a target outlining the expected increase in the number 
of Year 1 learners taught through the medium of Welsh in the local authority area 
during the lifespan of the plan. 

.  
To support Cymraeg 2050: A million Welsh speakers’ strategy, Welsh Government has 
set Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) a target to increase the percentage of 
learners taught through the medium of Welsh from approximately 8% to between 14% 
and 18% by 2032 (based on pupil level annual school census (PLASC) data of Year 1 
learners 2019-2020) 

         

Page 26



 
 

2.8 On 14 September 2021, Cabinet gave permission to consult upon the draft WESP. 
A consultation exercise with stakeholders on the draft WESP was undertaken 
between 27 September and 19 December 2021. 

 
2.9  The outcome of the consultation process for the draft WESP (2023-2032) was 

reported to Cabinet on 18 January 2022. Cabinet gave approval for the WESP to be 
submitted to Welsh Government. 

 
2.10  BCBC’s WESP (2022-2032) was submitted to Welsh Government by the stipulated 

deadline of 31 January 2022 (see Appendix 1).  
 

2.11 Following the submission of the WESP, Welsh Government requested that the local 
authority submit a five-year WESP. The WESP five-year plan was presented to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 on 1 December 2022. 

 
2.12 BCBC’s five-year WESP was submitted to Welsh Government by the stipulated 

deadline of 16 December 2022 (see Appendix 2).  
 
2.13  The WESP Annual Review Report for 2022-2023 was submitted to Welsh 

Government by the stipulated deadline of 31 July 2023 (see Appendix 3). 
 
2.14 The WESP (2022-2032) was presented to Cabinet on 19 September 2023 for 

review. (see Appendix 4) 
 
2.15 Bridgend’s Local Government Education Services (LGES) were inspected by Estyn 

in March 2019. Recommendation 4 of the Estyn report refers to the need to 
strengthen the role of the Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) to ensure timely 
progress in delivering the priorities identified in the WESP.  
 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 The WESP is a BCBC Corporate Priority and features within the Education and 

Family Support Directorate Strategic Plan. The Corporate Director (Education and 
Family Support) provides regular updates in respect of the WESP’s progress to the 
Corporate Management Board. 

 
3.2 The WESP aligns with local and national priorities. BCBC’s Welsh Language 

Promotion Strategy 2021-2026 and the WESP outline how they will raise the profile 
of the Welsh language and culture. The WESP is referred to within this strategy and 
the lead for the strategy within BCBC is a member of WEF. 

 
3.3 The Welsh Government’s Welsh Language Act 1993 and the WESP share the 

principle, so far as is appropriate in the circumstances and reasonably practicable, 
that the Welsh and English languages should be treated equally in the conduct of 
public business. The Head of Welsh in Welsh Government’s Education Planning 
Branch is a member of Bridgend’s WEF. 

 
3.4  Central South Consortium’s Welsh-medium Education Policy aligns with BCBC’s 

WESP in the drive for learners to become increasingly bilingual and for the 
workforce to be upskilled with their Welsh language skills. The Strategic Lead for 
Welsh at Central South Consortium is a member of Bridgend’s WEF. 

 

Page 27



 
 

3.5  BCBC’s WEF membership and its terms of reference have been agreed. Each 
member of the WEF is appointed on a biennial basis (that is, in the first instance, for 
the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2024). Members may be re-appointed at 
the end of their term of office. The WEF’s terms of reference will be reviewed on a 
biennial (that is, every two years) basis (see Appendix 2).  

 
3.6 The first meeting of BCBC’s WEF under the ten-year WESP was held on 24 

November 2022. The WEF meet three times a year, once each school term.  
Arrangement of sub-group meetings can more flexible. However, where possible, 
meetings should align with the termly WEF. 

 
3.7  The WEF has established several sub-groups to support the delivery of the WESP. 

All sub-groups will be reviewed and agreed at the meeting of the WEF in autumn 
term 2022. Any sub-group established through the WEF will be supported by its 
own, individual terms of reference.  

 
3.8 During autumn term 2022, five sub-groups have been established, chairs 

appointed, and terms of reference adopted. The sub-groups are as follows: 
 

• Outcome 1 - More Nursery children/three-year-olds receive their education 
through the medium of Welsh. 
 

• Outcome 2 - More Reception class children/five-year-olds receive their 
education through the medium of Welsh. 
 

• Outcomes 3, 4 and 5 - More children continue to improve their Welsh language 
skills when transferring from one stage of their statutory education to another.  
More learners study for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a subject) and 
subjects through the medium of Welsh.  More opportunities for learners to use 
Welsh in different contexts in school. 
 

• Outcomes 6 and 7 - An increase in the provision of Welsh-medium education for 
pupils with additional learning needs in accordance with the duties imposed by 
the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018, 
Increase the number of teaching staff able to teach Welsh (as a subject) and 
teach through the medium of Welsh. 
 

• Promotion, marketing, and celebration. 

 

3.9 Sub-group workshops were held in order for members to contribute to the five-year 
WESP in the autumn term 2022.  

 
3.10  Each sub-group has an annual sub-group development plan which focuses the 

work of the group to meet the targets set within the WESP. Sub-groups continue to 
meet on a termly basis where the annual sub-group development plan is monitored, 
updated, and rated using red, amber, yellow, or green (RAYG) following the 
directorate self-evaluation process.  

 
3.11  The WESP Co-ordinator reports to Cabinet on progress in the termly Welsh in 

Education Forum (WEF). 
 

Page 28



 
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty, and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services, and functions. This is an information report. Therefore, it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 
impacts as a result of this report.  

 

 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The report contributes to the following goals within the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
  

• a prosperous Wales; 

• a resilient Wales; 

• a Wales of cohesive communities; and 

• a globally responsive Wales. 
 

Long term  Supports the statutory duty to provide sufficient pupil places and 
support the Welsh language. 

 
Prevention  The Council has a statutory duty to promote the Welsh 

language.  The plan will ensure that children and young people 
will be able to follow a Welsh-medium education. 

 
Integration  The plan supports the promotion of Welsh education in the 

communities in which the children and young people live. 
 

Collaboration  The local authority will continue to work in collaboration to 
ensure that it achieves its vision as set out in the WESP (2022-
2032). 

 
Involvement Key stakeholders are involved in implementing and monitoring 

the progress of the WESP (2022-2032).  
 

5.2  The report also aligns with the Corporate Well-being objectives by: 
 

• expanding Welsh-medium education opportunities; 

• modernising our school buildings; and 

• supporting and encouraging lifelong learning. 

 
 

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this information report.   
 

Page 29



 
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report.   
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 The local authority is expected to work with Central South Consortium (its regional 

school improvement partner) to demonstrate how the Education Improvement Grant 
administered by Central South Consortium will support the implementation of the 
WESP. 

 
8.2     The secondment for the WESP Co-ordinator began on 1 September 2022 for a period 

of 18 months until 31 March 2024 and is funded by an established earmarked reserve 
until 31 March 2025. There is no identified finance for the WESP Co-ordinator beyond 
this period of time.  

 
8.3 The Education and Family Support Directorate continue to seek alternative funding 

mechanisms to continue with the co-ordinator post past 31 March 2025. 
 
8.4 With the exception of staff time from existing budgets, there is no other financial 

impact.    
 
8.5 Welsh Government awarded the local authority grant funding (September 2022 to 

March 2025) of £252,395 to support late immersion provision. 
 
9. Recommendation(s) 

 
9.1 It is recommended that SOSC1: 

   

• notes the progress made; and  

• provides any feedback as necessary. 

Background documents 
 
Appendix 1 WESP 2023-2032 
Appendix 2 Five-year WESP 
Appendix 3 Annual Review Report Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2022-2023 
Appendix 4 Cabinet report (19 September 2023) 
 

Page 30



Appendix 1  

 
 

WELSH IN 
EDUCATION 
STRATEGIC 

PLAN 

 
 
 
 

Name of local authority 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Period of this plan 

2022-2032 

 
 
 

This Welsh in Education Strategic Plan is made under section 84 of The 
School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the content 
complies with the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 
20191-2.  We have given due regard to the statutory guidance issued by Welsh 
Ministers when setting our targets.   
 

Signed:     Date:  

 
(This plan needs to be signed by the Chief Education Officer within your local authority)  

 
1 The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 2019  
2 The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) (Amendment) (Coronavirus) Regulations 2020  

Page 31

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2019/1489/regulation/4/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2020/1194/contents/made


 

 

Our ten-year vision for increasing and improving the 

planning of the provision of Welsh-medium education in 

our area 

 
Bridgend County Borough Council’s Vision 

 
Bridgend County Borough Council’s vision aligns with Cymraeg 2050: A million 
Welsh speakers (Welsh Government, 2017). As a local authority, we want the 
Welsh language to thrive, and that it is used in every aspect of life. Among those 
who do not speak Welsh, there is goodwill and a sense of ownership towards the 
language and a recognition by all its contribution to the culture, society and 
economy of Wales. 
 
Our vision is to secure favourable circumstances throughout the local authority that 
support language acquisition and use of Welsh language skills. We want to see an 
increase in language transmission in the family, early introduction of Welsh to 
every child, an education system that provides Welsh language skills for all, and 
greater appreciation of Welsh language skills in the workplace. At the same time, 
we are committed to supporting people to use Welsh socially, at work, and when 
accessing services. 
 
The Council’s vision for provision of Welsh-medium education and support for the 
teaching of the Welsh language should: 

 

• deliver the key principles of equality, choice and opportunity for all; 

• respect, promote and embody the linguistic and cultural diversity of Bridgend 
and Wales; 

• recognise a common Welsh heritage; 

• reflect the social, economic and cultural needs of Wales in the 21st century; 

• provide opportunity to reflect on and develop personal identity and a sense of 
place and community; 

• be guided by the Welsh Government’s Welsh Language Strategy to reach a 
million Welsh speakers by 2050, as set out in Cymraeg 2050: A million Welsh 
speakers (2017); and 

• align with other relevant Welsh Government strategies. 
 
 To make this vision a reality, our aim is to ensure that the Council and  
 its partners within the county borough undertake the following: 
 

• understand their respective roles within the Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) 
Strategic Plan in relation to formulating and monitoring the progress of the 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP);  

• promote the language to create/ stimulate demand; 

• ensure that Welsh-medium provision is available to all children of pre-school 
age and above whose parents/carers wish them to receive their 
care/education through the medium of Welsh, and this within reasonable 
travelling distance from children's homes; 

Page 32



 

 

• ensure a developing continuum from Welsh-medium primary education 
through to Welsh-medium secondary education, so that pupils who begin their 
primary education through the medium of Welsh will transfer to a Welsh-
medium secondary school and progress accordingly into further and higher 
education and training; 

• ensure all schools and settings respond proactively and with enthusiasm to 
new the Curriculum for Wales in relation to the languages, literacy and 
communication Area of Learning and Experience, so that our learners 
continue to gain meaningful skills and knowledge in Welsh; 

• ensure that children and young people with additional learning needs (ALN) 
receive linguistic equality of opportunity in terms of Welsh-medium education, 
in line with the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal Act Wales 
(2018) and the Code of Practice for Wales; 

• work in partnership with all schools in order to ensure the highest standard of 
teaching and learning Welsh and; 

• promote the wider development of pupils' Welsh language skills through 
specific activities and projects, in association with a wide range of local, 
regional, and national partners. 

 
Our ten-year target  
 
To support Cymraeg 2050: A million Welsh speakers’ strategy, Welsh Government 
has set Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) a target to increase the 
percentage of learners taught through the medium of Welsh from c.8% to between 
14% - 18% by 2032 (based on PLASC data of Year 1 learners 2019-2020). This is 
in accordance with the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 
2019. 
 
There are currently four Welsh-medium primary schools and one Welsh-medium 
secondary school in the local authority. Two of the four Welsh-medium 
primary schools are in the north of the county borough, one in the west and one in 
the south. The Welsh-medium secondary school is based in the north of the County 
Borough. 
 
BCBC aspires to significantly increase Welsh-medium provision in Bridgend. The 

target percentage increases which have been prescribed by Welsh Government 

and the local authority’s forecast of the pupil population over the next ten years 

have been considered.  

Currently, in our Welsh-medium schools there are 162 pupil places available for 

Reception-age learners. The local authority has set a target of 300 Reception 

places being available for Welsh-medium learners by the end of the plan period, 

which is an additional 138 additional pupil places. The 300 Reception places 

equate to ten forms of entry, and the aim is to ensure those places are filled. 

This WESP sets out BCBC’s plan over the next ten years to increase and improve 

the planning of Welsh-medium education. It will build on progress made during our 

previous WESP (2017-2022) and set out the actions we will take to achieve our 

targets.  

Page 33



 

 

These include: 

• increasing Welsh-medium sessional childcare places (creating potential for 

176 additional sessional sessions) by establishing four new Welsh-medium 

childcare hubs through the childcare offer capital grant; 

• increasing the number of Welsh-medium Nursery school places, through 

the Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme by expanding two 

of our Welsh-medium schools during the first five years of the plan; 

• taking forward commitments made in Cabinet to establish a one-form-entry 

Welsh-medium provision in Porthcawl and a one-form-entry provision in 

Bridgend South-East which would be subject to Cabinet approval. 

• scoping/exploring options to relocate and expand YGG Llangynwyd to a 3-

19 school; 

• developing a clear and robust programme for delivering Welsh-medium 

latecomer provision, so that learners entering the Welsh-medium sector at 

a later stage (Key Stage 2 or Key Stage 3) are able to follow a course of 

intensive immersion learning before continuing on their education journey 

in a Welsh-medium school; and 

• continuing to work collaboratively with our WEF and relevant sub-groups to 

continually review and improve how we provide our parents and guardians 

with information about Welsh-medium education and the opportunities it 

brings to becoming bilingual.  

 

How we will work with others to achieve our vision 

 
There is an established and effective WEF in Bridgend. 
 
To prepare the ten-year WESP, a planning day with WEF members was held in 
summer term 2021. All WEF members were invited to contribute to the plan and 
each outcome was led by a WEF member. Templates were provided for members 
and their respective organisations to submit any further comments for the WESP by 
a given deadline in summer term 2021. 
 
Monitoring will take place termly at each WEF. The membership of the WEF has 
been updated and is contained within the draft terms of reference to be adopted in 
conjunction with the WESP ten-year plan. The membership (subject to ratification) 
is as follows: 
 
BCBC officers 
 

• Group Manager - Learner Support (Chair) 

• Corporate Director - Education and Family Support 

• Cabinet Member (Education) 

• Finance Officer 

• Principal Advisor Employee Relations  

• Schools Programme Manager  

• Group Manager - Business Support 

• Group Manager - School Support 

Page 34



 

 

• Early Years and Childcare Manager  

• Family Information Service and Childcare Development Officer  

• Consultation Engagement and Equalities Manager  

• WESP Coordinator 
 

BCBC schools 

• Welsh-medium headteacher representatives x 2 

• English-medium headteacher representatives x 2 

• Welsh-medium chair of governors representative x 1 

• English-medium chair of governors representative x 1 

• Welsh-medium teacher representative x 1 

• English-medium teacher representative x 1 
 
Partners 
 

• Welsh for Adults (Glamorgan) representative x 1 

• Menter Bro Ogwr representative x 1 

• Mudiad Meithrin Cymru representative x 1 

• Central South Consortium representative x 1 

• Rhieni dros Addysg Gymraeg (RhAG) representative x 1 

• Urdd Gobaith Cymru representative x 1 

• Further education representative x 1 

• Higher education representative x 1 

• Welsh Government representative x 1 
 
The WEF has agreed to establish several sub-groups to support the delivery of the 
WESP.  The promotion of Welsh-medium education, and how demand can be 
stimulated to achieve the targets outlined in the WESP, as well as the Council’s 
Welsh Language Strategy 2021-2026 will be key considerations.  
 
Any sub-group established through the WEF will be supported by its own, 
individual terms of reference. The chair of each sub-group will be agreed by the  
WEF and will be expected to provide regular updates at each WEF meeting. 

 
 

  

Page 35



 

 

Outcome 1 

More nursery children/three-year-olds receive their education  

through the medium of Welsh 

The Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (CSA) offers Bridgend a clear evaluation of the spread and 
availability of childcare within Bridgend County. As part of the CSA, an action plan is developed. 
The action plan reflects demand and considers local factors such as suitable accommodation 
opportunities within the identified community areas with potential gaps. 

Childcare availability reflects demand with availability for childcare being denser in areas of higher 
employment (that is, the towns within Bridgend County such as Maesteg, Porthcawl and Bridgend 
Town itself). This more intense availability reflects the demand and therefore impacts on 
sustainability when considering new development.  

The current plan to develop Welsh-medium childcare recognises gap areas with the planned 
development to be offered in the Ogmore Valley, the Garw Valley, Bridgend east and Porthcawl.  

Within Bridgend provision is outlined in the table below. 

 Day nurseries 21 

Sessional childcare 

providers 
9 

Flying Start 10 

Childcare minders 53 

Cylch Meithrin providers 

6 (7 if you include Cylch 

Meithrin Blaenllynfi which 

is Dechrau’n Deg only). 

Out-of-school providers 17 

  

The number of places in each setting differs according to the ages of the children attending on any 
one day. However, there are approximately 2,372 English-medium childcare places and 
approximately 160 Welsh-medium childcare places. 

BCBC successfully received an approved bid for funding through the Welsh Government childcare 
grant to develop four Welsh-medium childcare hubs. For reference the local authority has decided to 
call these Cymraeg 2050 childcare hubs. The Cymraeg 2050 hubs are progressing well. The project 
at Betws is scheduled for completion in September 2022, with the Ogmore Valley scheme 
completing by November 2022. There are a further two Welsh-medium childcare projects planned 
for the county borough.   
 

The aim of the Cymraeg 2050 childcare hub programme is to provide 16 sessional Welsh-medium 
childcare places, together with six places for 0 to 2 provision and wrap-around/out-of-school 
provision, which would operate for 52 weeks of the year at each of the four settings.  
 
This will offer the local authority a potential for an additional 176 Welsh-medium places available.  
 

Page 36



 

 

Collaboration with key partners and stakeholders such as Mudiad Meithrin, RhAG, Urdd, Bridgend 
College and Menter Bro Ogwr are key to the long-term success of these new childcare provisions.  
The post-pandemic instability of the childcare sector continues to be of concern. Support will be on-
going from the Bridgend Childcare Team, with partnership with key stakeholders forming an 
important role in the development of the new settings.  
 

There are plans to offer additional Welsh-medium childcare places at the Flying Start Brackla setting 
via a pilot of Welsh-medium provision provided in a separate session.  The Flying Start team are 
working closely with colleagues in Mudiad Meithrin who are supporting staff to undertake Welsh 
language training, together with a member of Mudiad Meithrin staff supporting the setting on a 
fortnightly basis attending session and modelling the use of the Welsh language.     
 

Information contained in the school admissions policy for the relevant year and in the annual starting 
school’s booklet, highlight the choices available to parents regarding Welsh-medium schools and 
the criteria for over-subscription in line with the local authority’s statutory duty. Schools are 
categorised as Welsh-medium in the annual admissions policy. 

In the case of Welsh-medium education, the local authority offers any pupil who is unable to be 
accommodated at their local Welsh-medium school, a place in the next nearest Welsh-medium 
school in Bridgend, if that is requested. This includes the provision of free home-to-school transport 
where the walking distance from home to school is greater than two miles for primary school 
children and greater than three miles for secondary school pupils.  

 

 

 

 

Page 37



 

 

The local authority will identify the advantages and disadvantages of Welsh-medium catchment 
areas. The local authority will, following the review, determine the inclusion of Welsh-medium 
catchment areas for future school admission rounds. 

To further support information already available the local authority has developed information for 
parents entitled “Pam Dewis Cymraeg - Why Choose Welsh”. More specific setting information is 
also available online and via the Family Information Service. This information is available 
electronically. However, the local authority ensures this information is made available at each place 
that parents and expecting parents receive services. Within their induction to the programme Flying 
Start Health Visitors receive information to share with parents regarding the benefits of Welsh-
medium childcare and education.  

Within Bridgend, expectant parents have information attached to the ante-natal ‘red book’ which is 
sponsored by Gymraeg Cymraeg i Blant. The local authority uses all opportunities to maximise 
information available and ensures this information is then easily available to parents and carers. 

Bridgend is fully compliant with the Welsh-language measure, all information available to parents is 
available in both Welsh and English.  A clear focus on the absolute benefits of the immersion 
approach and the clear benefits that a full Welsh-medium education and experience can offer are 
very clear within the document.  

The commitment to the WESP and its ambitions for Bridgend runs across the Early Years’ Service. 
Team members are encouraged to be knowledgeable, to enable parents to receive correct and 
effective accurate information. The staff who provide this information are informed but are also able 
to seek wider support as required. Staff can always benefit from enhanced information. However, 
the early years’ service is confident that parents can effectively access correct and timely 
information. The early years’ service has a team member who can discuss this matter with parents 
via the medium of Welsh. 

Family Information Services are delivered via the Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) 
Customer Service Team, if this team feels more in-depth information regarding Welsh-medium 
provision is required, the service will signpost parents and carers to the relevant service. 

Data shows that the numbers of children transitioning from Welsh-medium early years to Welsh-
medium nursery provision has increased from 50% to 66%. Transition rates vary from cylch-to-
cylch. We will continue to work with Mudiad Meithrin to ensure transition rates continue to improve 
and address any areas of concern.  

Transition data: Cylch Meithrin to schools, 2018 – 2019  
(All data provided by Mudiad Meithrin) 
 

Name 
Number 
transferred to 
school 

Number 
transferred to 
Welsh-
medium 
schools 

Number 
transferred to 
English-
medium 
schools 

% Transferred 
to Welsh-
medium 
education 

Cynwyd Sant 13 12 1 92.31%  
Lon y Parc 9 8 1 88.89% 

Page 38



 

 

Gwdihŵ 9 2 7 22.22%* 

Pencoed 39 18 21 46.15%* 

Plant Bach 
Sarn 

25 13 12 52.00% 

Porthcawl 23 2 21 8.70%* 

Tabernacl 8 3 5 37.50%* 

Y Diwlith 18 17 1 94.44% 

Y Sgêr  18 11 7 61.11% 

 
Transition data: Cylch Meithrin to schools, 2019 – 2020 
(all data provided by Mudiad Meithrin) 
 

Name 
Number 
transferred to 
school 

Number 
transferred to 
Welsh-medium 
schools 

Number 
transferred to 
English-
medium 
schools 

% Transferred 
to Welsh-
medium 
education 

Betws Closed -     

Cynwyd 
Sant 

9 9 0 100.00% 

Dechrau’n 
Deg Lon y 
Parc 

6 5 1 83.33%* 

Gwdihŵ 10 1 9 10.00%* 

Pencoed 36 19 17 52.78% 

Plant Bach 
Sarn 

37 20 17 54.05%* 

Porthcawl Closed -     

Tabernacl Closed -     

Y Diwlith 17 16 1 94.12%* 

Y Sgêr 27 20 7 74.07% 

 
Transition data: Cylch Meithrin to Schools, 2020 – 2021 
(all data provided by Mudiad Meithrin) 
 

Page 39



 

 

Name 
Number 
transferred to 
school 

Number 
transferred to 
Welsh-medium 
schools 

Number 
transferred to 
English-
medium 
schools 

% Transferred 
to Welsh-
medium 
education 

Cynwyd 
Sant 

18 18 0 100.00% 

Dechrau’n 
Deg Lon y 
Parc 

8 6 2 75.00% 

Gwdihŵ 8 1 7 12.50%* 

Pencoed 29 13 16 44.83% 

Plant Bach 
Sarn 

20 12 8 60.00% 

Y Diwlith 12 11 1 91.67% 

Y Sgêr 16 11 5 68.75% 

 
The reasons why children do not always transition into Welsh-medium education from Welsh-
medium childcare are complex with no clear trend. A review undertaken previously identified some 
potential reasons such as, uncertainty over nursery place availability at Welsh-medium schools, lack 
of nursery places within their community within a reasonable distance from the home, travel 
distances and arrangements. 
 
The local authority remains committed to improving transition rates, with the commitment shared 
with all key stakeholders in the sector. The Welsh-medium schools and Welsh-medium childcare 
provisions will work together to achieve this improvement. 
 

There are 312 English-medium places available within the Flying Start programme. 

There are 77 Welsh-medium places available within the Flying Start programme. 

19% of the Flying Start places are available via the medium of Welsh. 

In summer term 2021 for Flying Start, seven children attended Cylch Meithrin Sgêr, five attended 

Cylch Meithrin Plant Bach and two attended Cylch Meithrin Cynwyd Sant. 

The following are the Flying Start budgeted places: 

 

Cylch Meithrin Y Sgêr 16 

Cylch Meithrin Cynwyd 

Sant 

                     8 

Cylch Meithrin Plant Bach 12 

Dechrau’n Deg Blaenllynfi 12 

Page 40



 

 

 
Parents within the Flying Start eligible areas are provided with comprehensive information regarding 
the opportunity and benefits of receiving their Flying Start provision via the medium of Welsh. 
Communities where take up of the Welsh-medium offer is highest is the community where the 
Welsh-medium primary school is based. 
 
The following table details the Welsh-medium provision available in each Flying Start area: 
 

Flying Start area 
Welsh-medium 

provision 

Afon y Felin Cylch Meithrin Sgêr 

Bettws 

New Cymraeg 2050 

provision opening 

September 2022 

Blackmill and Lewistown 

New Cymraeg 2050 

provision opening 

October 2022 

Brackla 

Welsh-medium afternoon 

session/50% (16 places) 

of provision through the 

medium of Welsh from 

January 2023 

Caerau  Flying Start Blaenllynfi 

Cefn Glas 

Planned Cymraeg 2050 

provision in Bridgend 

Town 

Garth 
Cylch Meithrin Cynwyd 

Sant 

Plasnewydd 
Cylch Meithrin Cynwyd 

Sant 

Sarn Plant Bach Sarn 

Wildmill 

Planned Cymraeg 2050 

provision in Bridgend 

Town 

 

This will bring the percentage of places available via the medium of Welsh to 24%. 

Following the announcement of the expansion of the Flying Start programme the local early years’ 
team, colleagues are developing a strategic plan on the delivery of this vision. Areas initially 
identified for the expansion are Pyle and Maesteg West.  Welsh-medium provision and places are 

Page 41



 

 

available within both identified areas with a Cylch Meithrin at North Cornelly already offering Flying 
Start provision and two Cylch Meithrin at Maesteg one of whom is already a Flying Start setting. 

The Cylch Meithrin in North Cornelly is committed to accommodating children from the expansion 
area and will employ additional staff to increase the number of Welsh-medium places in the setting.  
The local authority is confident parents in the expansion area will be able and encouraged to access 
Welsh-medium Flying Start provision. 

Recruitment to Welsh-medium childcare posts in Bridgend is complex and despite focussed efforts 
on addressing, the issue remains an area for development. The Early Years’ Team continues to 
work closely with colleagues at Bridgend College who offer a high-quality early year’s training 
programme. Students from Bridgend College are supported to access practical placement 
opportunities in the Welsh-medium settings. All early years staffing within Bridgend receive 
focussed training and continuous development opportunities to increase confidence around the use 
of the Welsh language. 

Bridgend has in place a focus on the assessment of childcare practitioner’s skills and confidence 
regarding their use of the Welsh language and can support training to raise standards and skills 
based on the findings of the assessment tool used.  

The Childcare Team has re-introduced a training bursary for all settings to apply.  This can include 
Welsh development as a whole provision, or individuals. This development will be particularly 
encouraged to support the development of the Welsh language across all settings.  This can also be 
utilised for individual staff members within the Cylchoedd who require more advance learning, 
supporting full immersion.   

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan and how we propose to get 
there? 

• At the end of the first five years of the plan, additional provision for three-year-olds will be 

available at Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr (90 places), Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr (60 places) and once 

the seedling school has received Cabinet approval this would create an additional 30 places in 

Porthcawl. 

• Increase Flying Start Welsh-medium childcare provision by purchasing places at the proposed 

four Cymraeg 2050 hubs. 

• In January 2022, a Cylch Meithrin in the middle of Bridgend Town was to open with Mudiad 
Meithrin working with a company called “Flourish.” This is anticipated to come to fruition. 

• The project at Betws is scheduled for completion in September 2022, with the Ogmore Valley 

scheme completing by November 2022. There are a further two Welsh-medium childcare 

projects planned for the county borough.   

• The timeline for the remaining Welsh-medium childcare project planned for Porthcawl will be 

determined following the feasibility stage of the project.   

• We will make the Welsh-medium offer an offer for all parents – ensuring that all early years’ 

staff and local Flying Start teams are familiar with the Cymraeg 2050 strategy and are confident 

in sharing local information with all their parenting groups.  

• Recruitment to Welsh-medium childcare posts will be an area for development. We will continue 

to work with our partners in Bridgend College and Mudiad Meithrin to identify gaps and respond 

accordingly. 

• We will promote the Welsh-medium offer alongside other Council events/promotions, namely 

childcare offers, fun days at local community centres or hubs. 

Page 42



 

 

• The local authority will review its Welsh-medium catchment areas. The local authority will, 

following the review, determine the inclusion of Welsh-medium catchment areas for future 

school admission rounds. 

• Increased engagement of parents/carers will be a focus with the commencement of the ten-year 

WESP. Early years’ services regularly seek parents’ views and are focussed on ensuring that 

parents views and concerns are responded to effectively and on an ongoing basis. This 

information will be analysed and feed into any developments. 

• Effective support for parents focussed on supporting decisions regarding a Welsh-medium 

education for their child will include homework clubs and Welsh language classes for non-

Welsh speaking parents.   

• Work will continue in the development of the early years pages on the BCBC website, focusing 

on the Family Information Service (FIS) aspect. This work is a priority for the first two years of 

the ten-year WESP.  

• There are planned developments to the Flying Start webpage on the BCBC website, which will 

include information regarding Welsh-medium settings available as part of the Flying Start offer 

for 2022-2023 where school admissions deadlines and information will be included.   

• The local authority will monitor the use of Welsh Government marketing campaigns. A working 

group has been designed to identify potential improvements to the school admission process. 

The process is being reviewed to ensure that all parents can access this process effectively 

including parents who are seeking Welsh-medium provision. The information developed to 

support parents includes a section regarding myth busting. There is also a focus to ensure that 

the information is clear and easy to find. The development of a video will also be considered. 

This work will feed into the WEF. 

• Share key bilingual messages on Council social media channels/mailshots to coincide with 

application for nursery/school places.  

• The local authority will develop a strategic process and protocol in partnership with Welsh-

medium school head teachers, Cylch Meithrin staff, Mudiad Meithrin and colleagues from the 

sector to set out clear principles to support and improve the transition from early years childcare 

provision into early years education places. 

• The local authority will develop an action plan where all partners involved in transition are clear 

regarding responsibilities and actions that will increase and support strong transition practices 

and outcomes to improve the current rate of transition. Transition rates will continue to be 

analysed. 

• Plans to improve transition will include actions such as open days/visits to Welsh-medium 

settings, literature for parents, and a visit to the school.  The school team could meet with 

parents and address fears and concerns namely, letters to parents and support with homework. 

• The partnership with Mudiad Meithrin will be further strengthened to encourage more effective 

planning and ensure actions within the ten-year WESP can be delivered. 

• Recent developments to continue to support the childcare sector is the development of three 

new Flying Start funded Ti a Fi settings in collaboration with three of the four Welsh-medium 

primary schools and Mudiad Meithrin. 

• Childcare in Bridgend reflects the community it serves. Welsh speaker numbers and the 

number of childcare places available are undoubtedly linked. The focus for Flying Start and 

wider early years services is to increase this level of provision. 

Page 43



 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten-year plan? 

 

The ambition to increase the percentage of learners taught through the medium of Welsh to 14-18% 

is effective. 

 

We aim to establish: 

 

• a one-form-entry school at Bridgend South-East, subject to formal Cabinet approval which 

could create an additional 30 Welsh-medium places for three-year-olds; and 

• a one-form-entry school at Porthcawl which could create an additional 30 places for three-

year-olds. 

Key data   

 
The following annual projections have been calculated using the base data provided by Welsh 
Government (that is, 2019-2020) and incrementally increased in line with anticipated uptake in 
Welsh-medium education and the planned additional pupil places being available during the period 
of the ten-year plan, as programmed. 
 
The 2031-2032 target of 275 full-time nursery learners aged 3 to 4 (that is, 17.57%) sits between the 
lower and upper range target (that is, 14%-18%). The number of part-time learners aged 2 to 3 
fluctuate annually as the number of places available depends on the take-up of full-time places. 
Therefore, those learners have been excluded from the calculation. The target is ambitious. 
However, it is considered achievable, should all the deliverables within the plan come to fruition. 
 
Numbers and percentages of three-year-olds receiving their education through the medium 
of Welsh 
 

 
2022-
2023 

 

2023-
2024 

2024-
2025 

2025-
2026 

2026-
2027 

2027-
2028 

2028-
2029 

2029-
2030 

2030-
2031 

2031-
2032 

 
150 

9.58% 
 

160 
10.22% 

170 
10.86% 

190 
12.14% 

200 
12.78% 

205 
13.10% 

235 
15.02% 

250 
15.97% 

265 
16.93% 

275 
17.57% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

 

Outcome 2 

More reception class children/five-year-olds receive their education  

through the medium of Welsh 

 
Currently in our Welsh-medium schools, there are 162 pupil places available for Reception age 

learners (2020-2021 data). The local authority has set a target of 300 Reception places being 

available for Welsh-medium learners by the end of the plan period. The 300 reception places 

equate to a total of 10 forms of entry, and the aim is to ensure those places are filled. The 300-

place target is applicable to each primary year group. This is essential to ensure continuity in 

education. By increasing the number of reception places from 162 to 300, it is reasonable to 

assume that most of those learners will transition into Year 1 and therefore, the target for both 

year groups must correspond. 

 

The Welsh-medium targets have been calculated as per Welsh Government’s methodology which 

sets out how local authorities should comply with the provisions in relation to their Welsh in 

Education Strategic Plans. The targets are based on incrementally growing the number of year 1 

pupils taught through the medium of Welsh from the 2019-2020 baseline. 

 

Bridgend’s lower range target (provided by Welsh Government) for 2030-3031 is 215 learners 

(14%) and the upper range is 275 learners (18%). 

 

The following table sets out the total take up of the available school places for reception aged 

learners from January 2018–2021: 

 

January 

2018 

January 

2019 

January 

2020 

January 

2021 

129 121 122 140 

 

On average, over the period of the last plan, 79% of the 162 Welsh-medium Reception pupil 

places available were filled. 

 

Demand for Welsh-medium places has been more prevalent in the south-east area of the county 

borough, which has made meeting the current as well as growing demand for Welsh-medium 

provision in this area challenging. Cabinet commitment is already in place to deliver Welsh-

medium provision for this area with the proposed replacement (and enlarged) YG Bro Ogwr which 

will create additional capacity. To meet the current demand for school places at Ysgol Bro Ogwr, 

the local authority successfully obtained in principle funding during 2021-2022 through the Welsh 

Government to provide additional temporary classroom accommodation on the school’s current 

site. This work is currently in progress. 

 

However, the demand for Welsh-medium places in the south-east of the county borough is 

recognised and as such we will seek formal Cabinet approval to establish an additional one-form-

entry Welsh-medium primary school in Bridgend South-East. 

 

Page 45



 

 

Further housing developments identified in the Local Development Plan (LDP), will likely lead to 

increased demand. The local authority has recently undertaken consultation on the new LDP. The 

Plan will be submitted to the Welsh Government in 2022. In due course, the plan will be subject to 

public examination prior to adoption. It is anticipated that the process will conclude March/April 

2023. 

 

Cabinet commitment has already been received to create a one-form-entry Welsh-medium school 

in the Porthcawl area (linked to the Porthcawl Regeneration Scheme). Following a successful bid 

for funding through Welsh Government’s Welsh-medium capital funding grant, we will be looking 

to establish the seedling school provision in Porthcawl within the first five years of the plan. This 

scheme would inherently connect to a longer-term proposal to create a new one form entry school 

in Porthcawl (linked to wider housing development schemes). 

 

The delivery dates for these schools are both linked to wider housing developments coming 

online, and both development sites (Porthcawl and Bridgend South-East) are proposals which are 

in the process of being considered for Bridgend’s new LDP. 

 

In addition, the local authority is currently undertaking an options appraisal identifying potential 

candidate sites in respect of relocating Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd to a more central 

location within the County Borough. the proposal includes developing the school into an all-

through 3 to 19 school, with a one-form-entry primary provision under consideration. The outcome 

of the options appraisal will be reported to Cabinet in due course and a decision taken regarding 

the way forward will be subject to Cabinet approval and funding through the Welsh Government’s 

Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme (Band C). 

 

At this point in time, Band C schemes are at a very early stage in the process and would be 

subject to statutory school organisation code consultation and Welsh Government business case 

processes. Currently, it is not possible to provide an accurate timescale for delivery of the 

schools. However, it is anticipated that they will be delivered within Band C of the local authority’s 

School Modernisation Programme. The local authority will continue to seek grant funding 

opportunities from the Welsh Government for capital build projects. Business cases will be robust 

and will clearly demonstrate the need for investment in Welsh-medium education. 

 

As a local authority, we understand that not all learners will follow the same journey into Welsh-

medium education, with some learners introduced to Welsh-medium education at a later entry 

point. Learners coming into Welsh-medium education before the age of seven can, in principle, be 

accommodated within the mainstream school setting, being immersed in the Welsh language as 

all other children attending a Welsh-medium school. However, from the age of seven onwards, 

this can be more challenging and learners wishing to attend Welsh-medium education at this time 

would normally require late immersion support. 

 

Currently Welsh-medium primary schools and the Welsh-medium secondary school within the 

local authority manage their own latecomer learners. Each school provides information and 

guidance for parents and carers upon request. However, to provide learners with the support they 

need to continue their education in a Welsh-medium school setting, we recognise the benefit of 

having an established late-immersion unit to serve our own learners within the local authority 

area. 

Page 46



 

 

 

During 2021-2022, Bridgend was successful in obtaining grant funding from the Welsh 

Government to review and plan a way forward in this important area. In conjunction with the Vale 

of Glamorgan Council, we commissioned a review report seeking options to develop joint 

provision with our neighbouring local authority as well as exploring standalone Welsh-medium 

primary and secondary immersion provision within Bridgend. Further funding to support 

development in this area has been recently announced by the Welsh Government and we will be 

looking to build on the work undertaken during 2021-2022. 

 

We want to ensure that a high-quality Welsh late immersion service is available for late comers so 

that learners can become fluent in Welsh and attend mainstream Welsh-medium schools. 

Consideration will be given to the requirements establishing the unit within the period of the plan, 

and in the short-term, alternative interim measures will be put in place (that is, funding schools for 

additional late comer support and/or collaboration with other authorities where immersion units 

have already been established). 

 

The local authority will develop an overarching late comers’ policy document which will aid 

schools, parents, and carers. The document will detail the opportunities for late comers, provide 

guidelines, procedures, responsibility, and accountability. The policy document will be drafted and 

adopted within the first year of the plan period. 

 

In the case of Welsh-medium education, the local authority offers free home-to-school transport 

where the walking distance from home to school for primary aged children is greater than two 

miles or more and for secondary pupils three miles or more. 

 

If any pupil who is unable to be accommodated at their local Welsh-medium school, a place in the 

next nearest Welsh-medium school in Bridgend is provided, if that is requested. This includes the 

provision of free home-to-school transport subject to the aforementioned distance thresholds. 

 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan  
and how we propose to get there? 

 

During the first five years of the plan, the local authority, with support from the Welsh 

Government’s Sustainable Communities for Learning capital funding programme, commits to: 

• Providing a new build and enlarge Ysgol y Ferch O’r Sgêr from its existing PAN of 30 to 60 
to serve the West of the County Borough. The proposal has already been subject to a 
consultation process under the School Organisation Code and Cabinet approval has been 
received. The new school is programmed to open in September 2024. 

• Enlarge and relocate Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr to an alternative nearby site to meet the 

current and future demand for Welsh-medium education in the Valleys Gateway, Bridgend 

and Pencoed areas of the county borough. The new school is scheduled to open in 

September 2025 with an increased Pupil Admissions Number (PAN) of 75 (that is, 2.5 

forms of entry). The current PAN is 54. 

• Secure temporary additional classroom provision for Ysgol Bro Ogwr in the interim period 

between 2022-2025 following approval of funding through the Welsh-medium capital grant. 

Page 47



 

 

• Establish seedling school provision in Porthcawl by 2024. 

• Complete site options appraisal for YGG Llangynwyd by 2022-2023 with a site feasibility 

study completed by 2023-2024. 

• Scope options to progress Porthcawl and Bridgend South-East Welsh-medium primary 

provision linked to the soon to be consulted on LDP. 

The above projects will result in the total number of pupil places for Welsh-medium reception 

learners increasing from 162 pupil places to 210 (that is, 7 forms of entry) by the end of the first 

five years of implementation of the plan. 

In addition to these school organisation proposals, we will also: 

• Work with our WEF to develop a promotion and communications plan within the first year of 
the WESP which considers and addresses the barriers to choosing a Welsh-medium 
education, accessibility; and proximity of provision. 

• Within the first year of the WESP, we will consider the recommendations from the review 
undertaken with regards to developing a local late immersion provision and utilise the 
immersion grant to support the developments. 

• The local authority in partnership with Central South Consortium (CSC) will provide 
professional learning and resources for teachers in Welsh-medium schools on how best to 
support latecomers. CSC will facilitate the sharing of good practice across the region in this 
area in collaboration with the current Welsh Immersion Unit in Cardiff and any other emerging 
provision going forward. 

• Review the information regarding a Welsh-medium education which is detailed on the local 
authority’s website to ensure that parents applying for places can easily navigate to the 
correct pages and locate relevant information. 

• continue to maximise grant funding opportunities from Welsh Government to support the 

targeted increase in Welsh-medium primary provision. 

• continue to explore potential opportunities for delivering schemes wholly or partly via section 
106 agreements, as a contribution for education places to serve new housing developments, 
where applicable. 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten-year plan? 

Subject to funding and the proposals detailed in the outcome coming to fruition, at the end of the 

ten-year plan period we would expect: 

• There will be a total of 10 forms of entry at primary school level, thereby increasing the 

number of places for reception age learners from 162 to 300. 

• 300 places across the county borough would be available for 5-year-olds by the end of the 

plan period. However, it is expected that not all places would be filled, hence the target of 

265. 

• Following the result of an options appraisal undertaken in the first five years of the plan 

identifying potential candidate sites in respect of relocating Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 

Llangynwyd to a more central location within the County Borough. the proposal includes 

developing the school into an all through 3 to 19 school, with a one-form-entry primary 

provision under consideration. The outcome of the options appraisal would have been 

reported to Cabinet in the first five years and a decision taken regarding the way forward 

would have been subject to Cabinet approval and funding through the Welsh 

Government’s Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme (Band C). 

Page 48



 

 

• The local authority will have an established local late immersion facility. 

Key data 

 
The following annual projections have been calculated using the base data provided by Welsh 
Government (that is, 2019-2020) and incrementally increased in line with anticipated uptake in 
Welsh-medium education and the planned additional pupil places being available during the 
period of the ten-year plan, as programmed. 
 
The 2031-2032 target of 265 reception pupils (that is, 16.93%) sits between the lower and upper 
range target (that is, 14%-18%). Should all the planned 300 pupil places fill, this would result in 
19.16% of reception age pupils would be in receipt of a Welsh-medium education. The 16.93% 
mid-point target is ambitious. However, it is considered achievable, should all the deliverables 
within the plan come to fruition. 
 
 

Numbers and percentages of five-year olds receiving their education through the 

medium of Welsh 

2022 – 2023 2023 – 2024 2024 – 2025 2025 – 2026 2026 – 2027 

140 8.94% 150 9.58% 160 10.22% 170 10.86% 190 12.14% 

2027 – 2028 2028 – 2029 2029 – 2030 2030 – 2031 2031 – 2032 

200 12.78% 205 13.10% 235 15.02% 250 15.97% 265 16.93% 

 

 

Page 49



 

 

 

Outcome 3 

More children continue to improve their Welsh language skills when transferring  

from one stage of their statutory education to another 

 

The data table below tracks the numbers of pupils transferring from one year in Year 6 into Year 7 the following year.  Although it 

shows a decrease in numbers from Year 6 to Year 7 each year, it is encouraging that the ‘leakage’ has reduced since 2017. The 

local authority regularly analyses the data to look for patterns and specific reasons for the ‘leakage’. There isn’t one contributing 

factor as to why this occurs. 

  
 

Welsh-medium 

primary schools  

Year 6 pupils 

YGG Llangynwyd  

Year 7 pupils 
Percentage 

increase/decrease 

   

PLASC 2016 PLASC 2017  

122 110 - 9.84% 

   

PLASC 2017 PLASC 2018  

119 114 -4.2% 

   

PLASC 2018 PLASC 2019  

110 106 -3.64% 

   

PLASC 2019 PLASC 2020  

131 125 -4.58% 

   

PLASC 2020 PLASC 2021  

113 112 -0.88%   

 

P
age 50



 

 

   
 

 
It is pleasing to note the growth observed in numbers after the opening of the new school YGG Calon y Cymoedd (opened 

January 2019) (formerly YGG Cwm Garw). Please see table below. 

PLASC Data All Pupils YGG Cwm Garw/YGG Calon y Cymoedd  
(opened January 2019*)   

           

  Nursery Reception 
Year 

1 
Year 

2 
Year 

3 
Year 

4 
Year 

5 
Year  

6 
 Total  

2015 31 13 23 21 17 18 18 13 154  

2016 23 31 15 21 20 17 17 18 162 5% 

2017 20 21 29 14 21 17 15 17 154 -5% 

2018 31 20 18 26 13 20 16 12 156 1% 

2019* 27 28 21 20 28 14 20 15 173 11% 

2020 35 23 29 23 21 30 13 20 194 12% 

2021 35 30 25 30 28 22 29 14 213 9.7% 

 

Welsh-medium proportion of the whole cohort for Year 3 

YEAR 3 PUPILS (age 7-8) *excluding special schools and excluding dual registrations 

PLASC Year 
(January) 

Ysgol  
Bro Ogwr 

 

Ysgol Cwm 
Garw/Ysgol 

Calon y 
Cymoedd 
(opened in 

January 
2019) 

Ysgol 
Cynwyd 

Sant 

Ysgol y 
Ferch o’r 

Sgêr 

Total 
Welsh-

medium  
Year 3 
cohort 

Year 3 
cohort for all 

schools* 
 

Percentage 
of Year 3 
pupils in 
Welsh-

medium 
education 

2016 65 20 37 27 149 1631 9.14% 

2017 41 21 37 25 124 1593 7.78% 

2018 55 13 41 29 138 1694 8.15% 

2019** 64 28 ** 41 29 162 1780 9.10% 

P
age 51



 

 

2020 53 21 38 24 136 1713 7.94% 

 

 Given the small numbers involved, any difference year-on-year needs to be interpreted cautiously because a small 

change can impact on the proportions (for example, one family move in/out of the area or a new school opens). The 

figures above show a similar pattern over the years with little variation. As part of our aspiration to meet ambitious 

targets set by Welsh Government, there has been a significant amount of promotional work designed to encourage 

more families to consider Welsh-medium education for their child/ren.  Given that these are pitched at 

mothers/fathers/carers from the birth of their child/ren, we anticipate that the increase in numbers should begin to feed 

through to Year 3 in approximately five years’ time. 

While the actual number has decreased from 2019-2020, this is reflective of the smaller cohort.  The proportion of the 

cohort learning through the medium of Welsh has remained like previous years, although 2019 showed a slightly 

higher figure – potentially related to the opening of YGG Calon y Cymoedd in January 2019.  
 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan and how we propose to get there? 

 
• The analysis of data, target setting, monitoring and evaluation of transfer rates from each phase of statutory 

education will be a priority within the first five years of the WESP.  
 

• The increase in numbers should begin to feed through to Year 3 within the first five years of WESP. 

• Promotion of strategies for the effective use of Welsh in formal and informal situations across all sectors and 

age ranges will continue to be developed and monitored by WEF. 

• The local authority will work closely with CSC and targeted schools where transition rates may be a cause of 

concern and publish resources to support and reassure parents/carers regarding transition between phases. 

 

• Facilitate collaboration between primary and secondary schools to produce resource that promote linguistic 

progression to parents/carers; 

 

• Provide opportunities for Welsh-medium schools to engage in initiatives to monitor linguistic progression (for 

example, comparative judgement). 

P
age 52



 

 

 

• Advice, professional learning and resources will be provided to support schools to implement Welsh across the 
curriculum thus increasing the amount of learning provision offered. The sharing of good practice across the 
region in a variety of ways (for example, webinars, podcasts, blogs and learning walks). 

 

  
 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten-year Plan? 

 

• This WESP sets out BCBC’s plan over the next ten years to increase and improve the planning of Welsh-medium 
education.  

• It is the local authority’s expectation that we would not lose children at critical transition points and increase the rates of 
transfer. 

 

YGG Llangynwyd           

Projections January 2021-2029 - including WESP target  

             

    97% 98% 96% 99% 57% 
74
% 

Total     

Year/ 
Age 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13   
Total new  Total new 

Total 
new Revised total 

 11-
12 

12-13 
13-
14 

14-15 15-16 16-17 
17-
18 

  build pupils 11 - 16  
pupils 

postl-16 
11-18 

2015 114 80 108 98 84 65 58 607         

2016 108 114 77 109 99 55 55 617         

2017 110 106 110 75 105 69 42 617         

2018 114 107 106 104 75 65 53 624         

2019 106 108 102 102 102 45 49 614         

2020 125 106 106 99 101 53 32 622         

2021 112 123 107 103 98 66 48 657 449 6 1 665 

P
age 53



 

 

2022 120 109 121 103 102 56 49 660 269 4 1 672 

2023 141 116 106 116 102 58 41 680 153 2 0 695 

2024 122 137 114 102 115 58 43 691 60 1 0 707 

2025 112 118 134 110 101 65 43 683 64 1 0 700 

2026 107 109 134 129 108 58 48 693 60 1 0 711 

2027 111 104 116 129 127 62 43 692 45 1 0 710 

2028 127 108 106 111 127 73 46 698 0 0 0 716 

2029 140 123 102 102 110 73 54 704 0 0 0 722 

             

         

 
   

  

      

Percentage of YGG Llangynwyd vs overall school population 
(secondary school projections 2021-2029) 

        

                

 Yr 10 (age 14-15) Year 11 (age 15-16) Year 12 (age 16-17) Year 13 (age 17-18) 
All Years 10 - 13 (ages 14-

18) 

 Llangynwyd All % Llangynwyd All % Llangynwyd All % 
Llangynwy

d 
All % Llangynwyd All % 

2015 98 1499 7% 84 1632 5% 65 1030 6% 58 806 7% 305 4967 6% 

2016 109 1601 7% 99 1477 7% 55 954 6% 55 784 7% 318 4816 7% 

2017 75 1445 5% 105 1564 7% 69 893 8% 42 710 6% 291 4612 6% 

2018 104 1474 7% 75 1378 5% 65 897 7% 53 670 8% 297 4419 7% 

2019 102 1498 7% 102 1455 7% 45 770 6% 49 723 7% 298 4446 7% 

2020 99 1597 6% 101 1413 7% 53 808 7% 32 617 5% 285 4435 6% 

2021 103 1515 7% 98 1555 6% 66 779 8% 48 727 7% 315 4576 7% 

2022 103 1635 6% 102 1463 7% 56 857 7% 49 611 8% 309 4566 7% 

2023 116 1636 7% 102 1579 6% 58 800 7% 41 673 6% 317 4688 7% 

2024 102 1606 6% 115 1581 7% 58 879 7% 43 625 7% 318 4691 7% 

2025 110 1626 7% 101 1551 7% 65 879 7% 43 691 6% 319 4747 7% 

2026 129 1685 8% 108 1570 7% 58 855 7% 48 689 7% 343 4799 7% 

2027 129 1647 8% 127 1628 8% 62 871 7% 43 677 6% 361 4823 7% 

P
age 54



 

 

2028 111 1618 7% 127 1584 8% 73 889 8% 46 689 7% 357 4779 7% 

2029 102 1529 7% 110 1563 7% 73 882 8% 54 694 8% 339 4667 7% 
 

P
age 55



 

 

Outcome 4 

More learners study for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a 

subject) and subjects through the medium of Welsh 

   

 

The table below shows that the number of 14- to 16-year-old students 

studying Welsh as a first language (through the medium of Welsh) has 

remained stable at around 100 pupils per year.  These numbers match 

the cohort size of the only Welsh-medium secondary school in the 

borough. 

We have also included the numbers of students who have been entered 

for examinations in Welsh as a second language and the impact of the 

Welsh second language full course becoming compulsory in 2017. 

  
   

*In September 2017, full course GCSE Welsh second language became 
compulsory. 
  

  The table below shows that the number of 16-to 19-year-old students 
studying Welsh as a first and second language declined in the year 
2020. However, numbers increased again in 2021. Data is from WJEC 
files. 

  

  

Welsh First 

Language 

Welsh Second 

Language 

2016 9 22 

2017 10 29 

2018 10 14 

2019 9 16 

2020 2 9 

2021 9 19 

  

  YGG Llangynwyd Year 12/13 population figures from PLASC 2016-2021 

show there was a decrease in the numbers continuing to study through 

   
Welsh First 

Language 

Welsh Second 

Language (Full) 

Welsh Second 

Language 

(Short) 

2016 98 585 784 

2017 99 877 769 

2018 77 1185 * 

2019 99 1094 * 

2020 100 1122 * 

2021 99 1189 * 

Page 56



 

 

  the medium of Welsh, although this may be attributed in part to the 

smaller cohort size.  The numbers have increased in 2021.  

  
                 PLASC figures for YGG Llangynwyd 
  

January Year 12 Year 13 

2016 55 55 

2017 69 42 

2018 65 53 

2019 45 49 

2020 53 32 

2021 66 48 

  
                   

January Year 11 

% moving from 

Year 11 to Year 

12 

 
(2014-2015) 

84 (1 alternative 

provision) 

 

2016 

(2015-2016) 

99 (2 alternative 

provision) 

66.3% 

2017 
(2016-2017) 

105 
71.1% 

2018 
(2017-2018) 

74 
61.9% 

2019 
(2018-2019) 

101 
60.8% 

2020 
(2019-2020) 

101 
52.5% 

2021 

(2020-21) 

101 (3 on 

alternative 

provision) 

65.4% 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Within Key Stage 4, learners are supported by YGG Llangynwyd to access 
the ‘Junior Apprenticeship’ scheme, with courses such as Hair and Beauty 
and Construction delivered bilingually (support and wellbeing elements). 
  
At Post-16, YGG Llangynwyd is working alongside Bridgend College to 
enable learners to continue to access Welsh-medium Education post-16 
whilst also accessing a wide range of courses, such as Criminology, 
through the College.  The local authority is currently working with Bridgend 
College to investigate opportunities for increased Welsh-medium 
provision at Post-16. 

Page 57



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
YGG Llangynwyd work in collaboration with Mudiad Meithrin to offer the 
Level 3 Diploma in Child Care. This has been an effective way of 
increasing the number of education support staff/nursery staff who could 
work in the Welsh-medium sector which is beneficial in terms of increasing 
capacity in the county. This collaboration has been very successful with 
learners returning to school and working in the primary sectors within the 
local authority. 

There are strong collaboration arrangements already in place between 
Bridgend and Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT). There is also some 
collaboration with Bridgend College at Post-16.  Further education 
institutes (FEIs) are working to investigate demand for Welsh-medium 
provision for younger pupils (Year 10 and up) and to look at their 
capacity to deliver courses through the medium of Welsh. 
  
Collaboration has been in place between YGG Llangynwyd and Ysgol 
Llanhari in RCT since the sixth form was established in 2013. 
Collaboration affords learners the opportunity to study A/S and A-level 
qualification(s) that they are not able to do in their ‘Home School.’   
  
There is a list of courses that are offered collaboratively across both 
schools so that learners can have access to a wider choice of 
qualifications through the medium of Welsh. The following are offered 
annually: 
  
Delivered at YGG Llangynwyd: 
 

• BTEC Sport  

• BTEC Public Services 

• Business (Vocational) 

• Design and Technology 

• ICT 

• Physics 

• Physical Education 

• Drama 
  
Delivered at Ysgol Llanhari: 
 

• Sociology 

• Health and Social Care 
  
The delivery of Music is shared across both schools. 
 
In addition to these subjects, which form a part of the curriculum offer each 
year, representatives from both schools attend open evenings, provide 
videos etc. There is an annual review of the qualifications needed by both 
schools so that courses with limited numbers can still be made available. 
Examples of these in the past have been History and Geography. 

Page 58



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
    
   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
    

Collaboration has been successful for example, to alleviate short term 
staffing issues.  
 
31 learners (Year 12 and 13) across both schools benefited from the 
collaboration during 2021/22. 
 

• (16.2% of YGG Llangynwyd cohort access a collaborative 
courses). 

• (22.5% of Ysgol Llanhari cohort access at least one collaborative 
course). 

• (19.8% across both schools access at least one collaborative 
course). 

• (12.7% of YGG Llangynwyd cohort access a collaborative 
courses). 

• (16.7% of Ysgol Llanhari’s cohort access a collaborative course). 

• (13.9% both schools access at least one collaborative course). 
  
Curriculum leads for both schools have a very close working relationship 
and are both ‘Quality Nominees’ for the vocational provision. Following the 
need for distance learning in 2020-2021, the provision is now hybrid – with 
half the lessons face-to-face with learners travelling to the other school 
and half provided through distance learning.  
 
Secondary schools are supported to take steps to increase the number 
of qualifications that learners can study through the medium of Welsh 
through collaboration. The local authority funds transport costs for 
collaborative courses offered. 
 
Welsh language is offered as A-level subject in schools, and schools are 
supported to maintain smaller class sizes through collaboration between 
schools to create a viable class size. Transport costs are provided by the 
local authority.  

    
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Below is a table listing the collaboration courses currently available as of 
September 2021. 
  

Option X Option Y Twilight 

Economics 

Brynteg 

Physics  

Bryntirion Law 

French 

Bryntirion 

Welsh  

Bryntirion Criminology 

Physics  

Brynteg 

H&SC  

Cynffig E-Sports 

Computer 

Science 

Bryntirion 

Music 

Porthcawl/Brynteg Dance 

Drama 

Porthcawl 

Drama  

Pencoed Film studies 

Page 59



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  

CSC offers a wide range of professional learning and networking 
opportunities across all English-medium schools that include Welsh 
language development for practitioners, whole-school leadership of 
Welsh, support, and networking opportunities for post sabbatical 
practitioners.    

Electronics 

Porthcawl 

Textiles 

Porthcawl  
PE  

Porthcawl   

Further Maths 

Porthcawl   

 
  

 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan and how we 
propose to get there? 

  
  

• There will be annual monitoring of transfer rates and actions identified and 
reported to WEF. 
 

• Improved retention and transition rates may impact on this outcome during 
the first five years of this plan. This will be monitored closely by local 
authority officers and the WESP co-ordinator. 
 

• Increase the number of learners remaining in Post-16.  
  

• Evaluate blended/remote learning approaches within the first year of the 
WESP. There may need to be a greater emphasis on blended/remote 
learning approaches in the first instance to ensure that pupils are able to 
access a wider range of courses (where there is not capacity to teach 
certain specialist subjects through the medium of Welsh now).  
 

• Raise awareness of the additional resources have been created by CSC 
specifically for Welsh speakers within the first year of the WESP. Schools 
could draw on as part of their blended/remote learning offer if schools are 
required to deliver through this medium.   

  

• The local authority will work with secondary schools to coordinate the 
provision of Welsh as a subject in all settings. In Post-16, this is achieved 
via collaborations as most schools do not have viable numbers for a class. 
There could be a possibility that there is some virtual collaboration at Key 
Stage 4. 

  
  

Page 60



 

 

Working in collaboration with CSC the following areas will be addressed: 
  

• ensuring high-quality teaching and learning in all Welsh-medium schools; 

• increase in the number of pupils transferring from primary to secondary- 
ensuring high transition rates from all primary feeder schools;  

• promote the benefits of Welsh-medium education with parents/carers and 
how parents/carers can support even if they don’t speak Welsh at home; 

• consider use of digital technology to increase qualification offer through 
the medium of Welsh for example explore e-sgol; 

• develop collaboration with the Welsh-medium secondary sector to provide 
subject specific professional learning particularly in areas of Welsh-
medium practitioner shortage;  

• develop and implement a strategic marketing strategy to promote Welsh 
as an A-level subject (use of social media, past pupil/parent experiences, 
promote advantages); 

• work with external providers and Welsh Government on any national 
initiatives to promote Welsh as an A-level subject; and 

• consider use of digital technology to increase the qualification offer 
through the medium of Welsh. 

   

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten-year plan? 

 

• This target will depend on current cohort numbers in the system. This 
outcome will be impacted by the extensive work that has been undertaken to 
attract early years into Welsh-medium provision. This will take time to come 
to fruition but should have been realised at the end of the ten-year plan. 

 

• We would expect various pieces of work which would have been embedded 
such as: 

 

• introduction of immersion for latecomers; 

• opening of the new early years’ settings should be embedded; 

• supporting parents to support their children. 

• training for education staff to learn Welsh; and 

• improve the Welsh language for teaching (for example, the Welsh 
Government sabbatical scheme). 

 

• Collaboration between YGG Llangynwyd and Ysgol Llanhari will have proven 
successful. Through the ‘hybrid’ form of collaboration, YGG Llangynwyd 
would have explored the possibility to negotiate collaboration with schools in 
other local authorities. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



 

 

Outcome 5 

More opportunities for learners to use Welsh  

in different contexts in school 

 
Since launching the Siarter Iaith in our Welsh- medium schools and the Siarter 
Iaith Cymraeg Campus in our English-medium schools, innovative work has 
been undertaken by the schools to increase the social use of Welsh within the 
whole school community. 
 
 Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus (English-medium) 

 

 Bronze Silver Gold 

Number of 
schools 

12 3 2 

 
 Siarter Iaith (Welsh-medium) 

 

 

 Bronze Silver Gold 

Number of 
schools 

4 4  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ysgol Bryn Castell Special School and Maesteg School are currently 
involved in the Cymraeg Campus pilot for secondary schools. 
 
CSC is in the process of reviewing both its business planning objectives 
and is undertaking a self-evaluation review. As part of both these 
activities, an evaluation of the project is taking place. CSC shares 
effective practice using a variety of sources including, twitter, CSC 
website and various communications.  
 

 There are various activities for children and young people to become 
engaged with to ensure that they can experience Welsh as a living 
language and within their communities. They are as follows: 
 

• links with the Urdd (sporting, Eisteddfod, Glan Llyn, Llangrannog;  

• visits into schools and regular sessions with Post-16, Cymraeg 
Bob Dydd); 

• links with Menter Iaith Bro Ogwr, mostly with Post-16. 

• school Eisteddfodau; 

• Diwrnod Shwmae/Dydd Miwsig Cymru; 

• trips – Tafwyl; 

• visits/performances from Mr Phormula, Candela, Tudur Clocsio; 

• Welsh assemblies; 

• encouragement and training for staff to use Welsh in their lessons 
as much as possible; 

Page 62



 

 

• awards given by the pupils to one member of staff per half-term 
for the most use of Welsh in lessons; 

• extra merits for pupils for use of Welsh; 

• use of Welsh Swogs who consult with the Welsh department on 
content of learning and then deliver a section of this to their form 
classes; 

• Criw Cymraeg; 

• use of social media to encourage parents to use some Welsh too; 
and the 

• use of the “Athrawes Fro” 
 

 In 2021, BCBC used the Welsh Government Hwb Infrastructure Grant, to 
ensure all pupils attending Welsh-medium schools in Bridgend benefited 
from a one-to-one, pupil/device ratio.  
 
In June 2021, Welsh-medium schools in Bridgend received the following 
number of Chromebook devices: 
 

School  
Number of 
Chromebook devices 

Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd  

544 

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr 128 

Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr 160 

Ysgol Cynwyd Sant 192 

Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg 
Calon y Cymoedd 

96 

 
The Welsh Government Hwb Infrastructure Programme has also been 
completed at all the above schools, so they are benefitting from new 
Aruba switches and improved WiFi access points. 
 

 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan  
and how we propose to get there? 

 

• We will work with English and Welsh-medium schools to analyse how much 
time is allocated to Welsh in school, this will be completed in the first year of 
the WESP. 
 

• We will use the results of the Workforce linguistic skills audit to analyse and 
strengthen contact time learners receive Welsh in English-medium schools. 
 

• A sub-group of the WESP will be established to drive this area of work 
forward. Monitoring school development plans (SDPs) will be at the core of 
this activity. 
 

Page 63



 

 

• The Curriculum for Wales (Welsh Government, December 2021) guidance 
will play an important part of the development of this work. 
 

• Mapping of what is available from, for example Urdd, Menter Iaith and ensure 
that there is good publicity is important. Youth workers and the Youth Council 
will be involved in this area of work to ensure that the local authority has the 
voice of children and young people at the core of this development. An 
important aspect of this work will be to explore opportunities within 
communities. 

• Develop an early engagement model of support for non-maintained settings 
in targeted areas to enhance children’s early linguistic experiences. 

• Professional learning and support for Welsh Language Immersion will be 
developed as well as resources to support the new curriculum. 

• Language Charter data will be shared with the WEF for discussion.  

• We will promote the resources which are on the Welsh Government website. 

• All schools will be provided with a designated CSC lead officer to support 
Language Charter and Cymraeg Campus progress. Promote, support, 
challenge and accredit all schools to make progress with the Language 
Charter and Cymraeg Campus Awards. Evaluate and share best practice. 

• The local authority and CSC will support English-medium primary and 
secondary schools to increase provision in Welsh by utilising the Cymraeg 
Campus Programme.  

• Encourage the language development and engagement with parents. The 
local authority will continue to work collaboratively with RhAG as members of 
the WEF. 

 

Page 64



 

 

• Consider the support that YGG Llangynwyd could provide for English-medium 
schools. Also consider the peer-to-peer support from the Welsh-medium 
primary schools (for example Bore Coffi). 

• Explore the development of the digital space for children and young people 
and an incentive to engage with the language (for example, Minecraft and 
Roblox). 

• The local authority will ensure alignment with the Council’s Five-Year Welsh 
Language Promotion Strategy 2021-2026. The lead officer is a member of the 
WEF thus ensuring partnership working and the compatibility of both 
strategies. 

• Advice, professional learning, and resources will be provided to support 
schools to implement Welsh Across the Curriculum thus increasing the 
amount of learning provision offered. The sharing of good practice across the 
region in a variety of ways (for example, webinars, podcasts, blogs and 
learning walks). 

• Provide advice, professional learning and resources to specific English-
medium schools identified to increase the percentage of the curriculum taught 
through the medium of Welsh. 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten-year plan? 

 

• All schools within Bridgend County Borough Council would have achieved 
the Gold status of Siarter Iaith and Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus. 

 
 

 

 
  

Page 65



 

 

Outcome 6 

An increase in the provision of Welsh-medium education for pupils 

with additional learning needs (ALN) in accordance with the duties 

imposed by the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal 

(Wales) Act 2018 

 
 BCBC has been fully involved and compliant with the preparation for the 

implementation of the Additional Learning Needs and Educational Tribunal 
Act (ALNET) (Wales) 2018 for September 2021. The Council will ensure that 
all necessary steps are taken to continue to comply with the ALNET Act in 
providing a bilingual system of ALN provision and support the 0 to 25 age 
range in line with the ALNET Act. 

 
  The Additional Learning Needs Code for Wales 2021 places a duty upon a 

local authority to keep additional learning provision (ALP) under review. The 
Council will consider the extent to which these arrangements are sufficient to 
meet the ALN of children and young people for whom we are responsible. 

  
 BCBC has taken a proactive approach to reviewing their current position to 

respond to changes in demand and to make services fit for purpose in terms 
of addressing the current and future needs of children and young people 
with ALN. Following a procurement exercise, Peopletoo were commissioned 
in March 2020 by BCBC to undertake the Additional Learning Needs 
Strategic Planning Provision Review. 
 

 The review sought to: 
 

• identify the current ALN needs of the school population and current 
ALN provision in Bridgend’s 59 schools and pupil referral unit (PRU); 

• project the likely future ALN need (demand) and future provision to 
meet those needs (supply); 

• identify any gaps in provision; 

• explore the need for a BCBC ALN pupil database; 

• (if applicable) propose alternative models to meet the likely future ALN 
demand; and 

• identify the required budget for possible options identified from the ALN 
provision review. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The review concluded in autumn term 2020.The local authority recognises its 
statutory responsibility in continually analysing demand and planning for 
appropriate provision to meet the needs of all learners with an ALN.  
 
One of the recommendations from the review was improving the breadth of and 
responsiveness of provision. In relation to Welsh-medium, the recommendation is 
to review and revise the model of Welsh-medium moderate learning difficulties 

Page 66



 

 

(MLD) provision to ensure that the approach is equitable to English-medium 
provision.  
 
A report was submitted to Cabinet in December 2021 for permission to consult 
with the proposal to open a MLD learning resource centre (LRC) at Ysgol 
Cynwyd Sant in autumn term 2022. The outcome of the consultation was 
reported to Cabinet on 14 June 2022 and approval was given to proceed to a 
Public Notice. 
 

 LRCs were opened at Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon Y Cymoedd in 2019 and 
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd in 2018 for pupils with a diagnosis of autistic 
spectrum disorder (ASD). This means that if a pupil has a diagnosis of ASD and 
speaks Welsh, then that pupil can continue education through the medium of 
Welsh. This meets the demand for places. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
               

There is currently a sensory review being undertaken across CSC to consult 
upon establishing a regional sensory service. The local authority is committed to 
consider any provision with neighbouring local authorities. 
 
The opening of an observation and assessment class is proposed to open in 
conjunction with the school modernisation programme and plans for Ysgol 
Gymraeg Bro Ogwr. 
 
There are local authority officers who work with and support children and young 
people through the medium of Welsh. There are, for example, specialist teachers, 
educational psychologists, learning support officers (LSOs) and special needs 
support assistants (SNSAs) who speak Welsh.  
 

 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan  
and how we propose to get there? 

 

• The ALN Strategic Planning Review Board will conclude its work by April 
2023. 

• Subject to the outcome of the Public Notice the MLD LRC at Ysgol 
Cynwyd Sant will open within the first year of the WESP. 

• The observation and assessment class at Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr will 
open in conjunction with the proposal through the School Modernisation 
Programme. 

• Secondary Welsh MLD provision and recommendation taken forward 
following the review. 

• The sufficiency of the ALP in Welsh and the size and capability of the 
workforce which also involves consideration of the Welsh-medium 
workforce. 

• We will analyse demand, utilising data to develop and plan for ALN 
provision in during the first five years of the WESP.  

• There will be regular analysis of data, setting of targets and annual WESP 
monitoring reported to WEF. 

Page 67



 

 

• We will ensure all reasonable steps are taken for all learners with ALN or 
emerging needs to access support from the local authority’s mainstream 
schools, special schools and advisory services through the medium of 
Welsh to ensure that there is full compliance with the ALNET Act 2018 
and a bilingual system for pupils with ALN. 

• There will be an analysis undertaken during the first year of the WESP of 
ALN staffing and any gaps identified utilising SWAC data. 

• During the first year of the WESP options will be considered to build 
specialist experience and knowledge amongst our Welsh-medium 
Workforce in partnership with our special schools. Secondment 
opportunities for Welsh secondary teachers to Special Schools will be 
considered. 

• During the first year of the WESP consideration will be given to seconding 
Welsh secondary teachers to Special Schools within Bridgend. 

• A strategic overview of workforce linguistic skills across all schools will be 
in place. 

• Recruit and develop specialist staff to meet the growth and change in 
provision which will include early years and childcare.  

• In collaboration with CSC, curriculum provision and resources will be 
appropriate for any pupil with ALN in both Welsh-medium and English-
medium schools. 

• Work in partnership with the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate 
and Bridgend College to ensure appropriate additional learning provision 
and essential workforce. 

• Ensure that parents and carers are fully engaged through the various 
forums and consultation meetings which are in the local authority. 
Appropriate, accurate and timely information is on the Council website.  

 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten-year plan? 

 
It is the local authority’s commitment that any child or young person who speaks Welsh 
and has an ALN requiring an ALP, will be able to continue their education through the 
medium of Welsh. 

 

Page 68



 

 

 

Outcome 7 

Increase the number of teaching staff able to teach Welsh (as a subject) and teach through the medium of 

Welsh 

 
In Bridgend,144 teachers work in Welsh-medium schools (10.9%) and a further 80 teachers can work in a Welsh-medium school 
(6%).  There are also 352 teachers working in English-medium schools teaching Welsh (26%).  A total of 43% of teachers, either work 
or able to work and teach Welsh in schools in Bridgend. The % of teachers in Welsh-medium schools as a % of all teachers in 
Bridgend is 8.17%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

P
age 69



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 70



 

 

CSC offers a significant professional learning offer to teaching and support staff across Bridgend. There is no cap on the 
numbers attending from each school. It is for schools, through their own evaluation and improvement activities to decide on 
how many staff should attend. All schools are encouraging student placements in their schools which will also be a way of 
possibly recruiting those staff.  Welsh-medium headteachers are proactively seeking students in colleges as they are 
finishing their courses.  
  
Linking with the Council’s Welsh Language Standards Five-Year Strategy to maintain the number of Welsh speakers in 
Bridgend, the Welsh Language Standards Five-Year Strategy has been reviewed on an annual basis. The latest review 
shows the range of actions that have been taken to raise awareness and promote the use of Welsh language across the 
county borough. For example, there are a range of learning and development opportunities available to all employees, to 
improve language skills as well as raise their awareness of the language, including e-learning and courses to improve 
Welsh language skills.  A new five-year plan has been in place since September 2021. In recruiting to Welsh posts, adverts 
are also signposted on Menter Bro Ogwr's website.  
 
There has been an impact on workforce planning and development because of the pandemic. Since August 2020, all 
training has been delivered remotely. The numbers who have accepted remote training will be analysed to ascertain if this 
would be a preferred method of training or if a blended approach would be beneficial.  
  
In relation to Welsh Language courses, the local authority continues to offer Cwrs Mynediad Year 1 qualification through 
the University of South Wales and the Welsh Language Meet and Greet courses to all local authority staff twice a year. The 
local authority has also offered Work Welsh for the first time in 2020-2021 (as an initial pilot) delivered by the National 
Centre for Learning Welsh. This will be evaluated, and the outcomes incorporated into future planning. We also continue to 
support employees to access Welsh courses in the community under the Welsh Language Protocol. Therefore, take up this 
year for Welsh Language is very similar to last year’s figures in terms of qualifications offered. 
 
A number of our English-medium schools have benefited from the Welsh language sabbaticals. Since 2019, 13 primary 
school teachers have been supported to undertake the Welsh in a Year, entry level and intermediate level courses. They 
are: 

P
age 71



 

 

 

Welsh in a Year - September 2019 – August 2020 
 
•   Garth Primary School 
•   St Mary’s and St Patrick’s Catholic Primary School  
•   Nottage Primary School x 2 
•   Llangynwyd Primary School  
 
Welsh in a Year - September 2020 – August 2021 
 
•    Newton Primary School  
•    Betws Primary School 
 

Entry - January 2020 
 
•     Pencoed Primary School x 5 
•     St Mary’s and St Patrick’s Catholic Primary School  
 
Some other schools applied for the intermediate course during summer term 2020 but due to the pandemic, this had to be 
deferred until Summer 2021. The intermediate course is new to the sabbatical course package and is aimed at teachers 
who have already undertaken one of the sabbatical courses in the past, but who may have lost confidence due to lack of 
opportunity to use their skills. 
 
The following schools applied: 
 
•    Trelales Primary School  
•    Betws Primary School  
•    Pencoed Primary School  

P
age 72



 

 

 

The format of the sabbatical changes each year depending on Welsh Government funding and priorities. Teachers and 
support staff have access to sabbaticals at various points and by various models, for example for a full year, term and 
blended learning. Currently the sabbatical is for a whole year for teachers. 
 

The Welsh Government published in May 2022 its 10-year plan to increase the number of school staff who can teach 
through the medium of Welsh. The plan includes several actions, including to: 

• support Welsh-speaking graduates studying in England to return to Wales to prepare to teach; 
• expand the range of secondary subjects available for people who are in employment and want to train to teach; 
• provide support for undergraduates to have experience of being in a classroom, as a pathway into teaching; 
• pilot a bursary scheme to retain Welsh-medium teachers in secondary schools; 
• pilot gap-year teaching assistant placements for school-leavers. 

We understand that In order to achieve the targets for increasing the number of learners in Welsh-medium education, we 
need a partnership approach to planning the workforce Needs. We commit to using the data sources available to us to 
understand trends in the demand for Welsh-medium teachers. This will require projecting annual transition rates of learners 
from primary to secondary education and looking at trends in terms of number of teachers moving into leadership roles, 
moving schools or leaving / retiring from the profession.  Additional staff would be required to support all the new school 
commitments in the 10-year plan. This would need to be prepared for in advance. 

 
 
 
 

 

  
 

  

P
age 73



 

 

 
  

 
 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan and how we propose to get there? 

 
The following activity will be undertaken by the local authority, CSC, and partners and in partnership with the Welsh Government to 
identify and support the development of the workforce. 
 

• There will be regular analysis of data, monitoring and target setting to inform planning. There will be annual monitoring of the 
WESP.  

• We will establish a training and apprenticeship sub-group of WESP, using the relevant data, will write a detailed plan in 
relation to upskilling staff  

• Monitor those schoolteachers who can teach through the medium of Welsh and look at the reasons why teachers leave 
Welsh-medium schools and introduce a questionnaire/exit interview. Monitor and evaluate trends in both teaching and 
support staff retention. 

• Bridgend will work closely with other local authorities in CSC in planning and supporting school staff across all sectors to 
further improve their Welsh language Skills through professional learning opportunities, resources, the sharing of good 
practice, and bespoke support to individual or groups of schools across the region. 

• Consider the aims and objectives of the WESP when regarding the Welsh-medium education standards of its schools. 

• The local authority will be in a better position to identify and respond to our Welsh-medium workforce needs by:  

• Using school workforce census data on an annual basis to support workforce planning. 

• use local knowledge and information gathered from CSC’s Improvement Partner to supplement census data. 

• undertake an analysis to understand trends in vacancies and the vacancies that are required. 

• consider the training and succession planning of learning support assistants (LSAs). 

P
age 74



 

 

• ensure that staff from Welsh-medium schools are applying for relevant national leadership development programmes 
including the Aspiring Headteacher Programme leading to National Professional Qualification Headteachers (NPQH) 
qualification.  

• monitor the number of Welsh-medium applicants on the national leadership programmes including destination reports for 
NPQH candidates. 

• continue to work closely with initial teacher education (ITE) partnerships to support student teachers and to ensure that 
Welsh-medium schools are identified as lead, training, or placement schools. 

• analysis of the Language Framework data as a baseline for improvement required will be undertaken. 

• continue to work with external partners to promote initiatives on routes into teaching and share any relevant information with 
schools. 

• professional learning and support to newly qualified teachers (NQT) teachers will be provided particularly through the role of 
regional induction mentors. 

• Welsh Language Development professional learning at various levels will be provided; 

• provide post-sabbatical support for practitioners engaged with sabbatical programmes; and 

• provide advice, support, and guidance to schools on how to accurately reflect the Welsh language skills of staff. 

• support local, regional, and national programmes for Welsh Language development by providing advice, professional 
learning, and support to practitioners to acquire and improve their Welsh Language skills. This will increase the capacity of 
teachers and support staff able to teach Welsh and through the medium of Welsh across all sectors. 

 

  

P
age 75



 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten-year plan? 

• The local authority has set a target of 300 reception places being available for Welsh-medium learners by the end of the plan 

period, which is an additional 138 additional pupil places.  

• The 300 reception places equate to 10 forms of entry, and the aim is to ensure those places are filled. By continually keeping 

our Welsh-medium Workforce needs under review, the local authority will be in a better position prepare for the additional staff 

required over the to the 10-year period. 

P
age 76



Appendix 2  

 

Bridgend County Borough Council 
Five-Year Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
 
Bridgend County Borough Council’s (BCBC’s), ten-year Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) was approved by Welsh 

Government in July 2022 and has been implemented since 1 September 2022.  The WESP clearly shows Bridgend’s commitment 

 

 

 

Bridgend County Borough Council  

 

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 

  

Five-Year Plan (2022-2027) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 77



to increase the Welsh-medium education offer along with the opportunities to use the Welsh language with confidence as part of 

every-day life for all. 

The Council’s vision aligns with Cymraeg 2050: A million Welsh speakers (Welsh Government, 2017). As a local authority, we want 
the Welsh language to thrive, and that it is used in every aspect of life. Among those who do not speak Welsh, there is goodwill and 
a sense of ownership towards the language and a recognition by all its contribution to the culture, society, and economy of Wales. 
 
We want to see an increase in language transmission in the family, early introduction of Welsh to every child, an education system 
that provides Welsh language skills for all, and greater appreciation of Welsh language skills in the workplace. At the same time, we 
are committed to supporting people to use Welsh socially, at work, and when accessing services. 
  
The WESP sets out BCBC’s plan over the next ten years to increase and improve the planning of Welsh-medium education and 
sets out the actions we will take to achieve our targets. The local authority has set a target of 300 Reception places being available 
for Welsh-medium learners by the end of the plan period, which is an additional 138 additional pupil places. The 300 Reception 
places equate to ten forms of entry, and the aim is to ensure those places are filled.  
 
The five-year WESP has been written in partnership with the Welsh in Education Forum (WEF). The priorities set out in the first 
year of the five-year WESP are as follows: 
 

• opening childcare hubs in Betws and Blackmill with a further two opening on the sites on two new build Welsh-medium 
schools; 

• increasing the number of ‘Ti a Fi’ groups; 

• planning for a seedling school in Porthcawl; 

• increasing numbers on roll and provide a new builds for Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr and Ysgol y Ferch o’r Sgêr; 

• undertaking site options appraisals for Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd; 

• establishing late immersion provision; 

• establishing a learning resource centre (LRC) for pupils with moderate learning difficulties (MLD) at Ysgol Cynwyd Sant; 

• auditing staff language skills and using the Welsh language competency framework for accurate data; and 

• undertaking an audit of number of staff that can deliver their service through the medium of Welsh. 
 
There are further key actions within the five-year WESP which include: 
 

• developing the website with the aim to navigate up-to-date information quickly and easily; 

• strengthening the transition process from early years childcare to Welsh-medium education; 

• improving retention rates for Post-16; 

• exploring the use of blended learning and digital learning alongside promoting of the benefits of studying Welsh; 

• providing opportunities for learners to use the Welsh language in informal situations by working with partners to map and 
create further opportunities; 

P
age 78



• increasing the amount of Welsh used in English-medium schools and ensuring schools move along the Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg Campus continuum; 

• establishing a Welsh-medium observation and assessment class; 

• strengthening partnerships between Welsh-medium schools and special schools with the aim of offering secondment 
opportunities to build capacity within our workforce; and 

• creating a plan to upskill the Welsh-medium workforce and working with partners to promote and create opportunities for 
professional development. 

 

The golden thread throughout the five-year WESP (2022-2027) is BCBC’s commitment to promote, market and celebrate progress, 

opportunities, and our dedication to increase our Welsh-medium offer across a variety of platforms using a dedicated sub-group to 

drive this forward. Activities and actions align with BCBC’s Welsh Language Strategy 2021-2026. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 79



 
Outcome 1: More nursery children/three-year-olds receive their education through the medium of Welsh  
 

 
Childcare in Bridgend reflects the community it serves. Welsh speaker numbers and the number of childcare places available are undoubtedly linked. The focus 
for Flying Start and wider early years services is to increase this level of provision.   
 

 

Strategic Lead: 

WESP Co-ordinator: 

Chair/Vice Chair of Outcome 1 Sub-group: 

 

 

Michelle Hatcher 

Becca Avci 

Stephanie Thomas/Bethan Davies 

        

Target 

1.1 

 
At the end of the first five years of the WESP 10-year plan (2022-2032), additional provision for three-year-olds will be available at Ysgol 

Gymraeg Bro Ogwr (90 places), Ysgol Y Ferch o’r Sgêr (60 places) and once the seedling school has received Cabinet approval this 
would create an additional 30 places in Porthcawl 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 
2024 – 
2025 

Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Porthcawl 
Welsh-
medium 
Seedling 
School and 
co-located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

 

Seek 
Council 
approval for 
inclusion of 
the scheme 

 Porthcawl 
Welsh-
medium 
Seedling 
School and 
co-located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

Seek 
planning 
consent 

Conclude 
design and 

 Porthcawl 
Welsh-
medium 
Seedling 
School and 
co-located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

Complete 
construction 
and open 
for pupils - 
January 
2025 

 Porthcawl 
Welsh-
medium 
Seedling 
School and 
co-located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

 
Defects 
liability 
period ends 
 

 

 Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 
and co-
located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

 
Defects 
liability 
period ends 
 

 

P
age 80



in the capital 
programme 

Seek 
Cabinet 
approval to 
consult on 
the proposal 

Undertake 
consultation 
and report 
the outcome 
back to 
Cabinet 

Commence 
design 

 

Ysgol y 
Ferch o’r 
Sgȇr 

 

Complete 
stage 1 and 
submit 
report to 
Welsh 
Government 
for approval 

 

Complete 
outline 
business 
case and 
seek Welsh 
Government 
approval 

 

Subject to 
Welsh 
Government 
approval, 

tender the 
scheme 

Submit 
business 
justification 
case to 
Welsh 
Government 
and seek 
approval 

Commence 
construction 

 

 

 

 

Ysgol y 
Ferch o’r 
Sgȇr 

 

Complete 
stage 2 and 
seek Welsh 
Government 
approval 
 
Full 
business 
case 
submission 
to Welsh 
Government 
and 
approval 
sought 
 
Commence 
construction 
(subject to 
Welsh 

 
Defects 
liability 
period ends 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ysgol y 
Ferch o’r 
Sgȇr 

 

Complete 
construction 

 
Decant into 
the new 
school 
 
School 
opens for 
pupils 
 
Demolition 
of existing 
buildings 
and 
complete 
external 
works 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 81



Commence 
stage 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 
and co-
located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

 

Report the 
outcome of 
the statutory 
process 
(School 
Organisatio
n Code, 
2018) to 
Cabinet and 
seek 
approval to 
proceed. 

Commence 
the design 
process. 

 

Government 
approvals 
and 
obtaining 
planning 
consent) 
 
Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 
 

Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 
and co-
located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

 

Conclude 
the design 
process. 

 

Submit a 
planning 
application 
for the 
replacement 
school. 

 

Undertake a 
tender 
process for 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 
and co-
located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

 

Continue 
with the 
construction 
of the 
replacement 
school 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
additional 
spaces and 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 
and co-
located 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision 

 

Conclude 
construction 

 

Decant the 
existing 
school into 
the 
replacement 
school 

 

Replaceme
nt school 
opens for 
pupils 

P
age 82



‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet live 
online 

Print copies 
of leaflet 
and 
distribute to 
Flying Start 
workers.  

Comms 
Team to 
promote 
once a week 
on different 
platforms 
(10 Jan 
2023) 

 

Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
provide 
training 
session with 
health 
visitors, 
midwife 
teams and 
childcare 
teams to 
promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet – 
explore the 
possibility of 
including 
booklet to 
new parents 
in hospital.  

the 
construction 
of the 
replacement 
school via 
the 
SEWSCAP 
Framework 
Agreement 

 

Submit the 
Full 
Business 
Case to 
Welsh 
Government 
for approval 

Appoint the 
successful 
bidder to 
undertake 
construction 

 

Commence 
construction 

 
Childcare 
Team to 
liaise with 
Health 
visiting team 
to scope 
possibility of 
generic 
health 
visitors 
sharing 
admissions 
information 
with parents 
in non-

new 
building 

 

 

 

 
 
Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
additional 
spaces and 
new 
building 

 
 

P
age 83



Flying Start 
areas 
 

Action 
holders 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Childcare Team Manager 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Childcare Team Manager 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Childcare Team Manager 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Childcare Team Manager 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Childcare Team Manager 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

Target 

1.2 

 
Increase Flying Start Welsh-medium childcare provision by purchasing places at the proposed four Cymraeg 2050 hubs 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Bettws 
Hub:  
 

Open days 
in 
November 
2022 

Offer of five 
years free 
rent with 
incremental 
service 
charge.  

Offer grants 
as 
incentives in 
start-up 
phase 

 Bettws and 
Blackmill: 
 

Both 
settings 
open. 16 
sessional 
spaces for 
Flying Start 
children 

 

The timeline 
for the 
remaining 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
project 

 Aim for 
eight 
sessional 
Flying Start 
places to be 
purchased 
at Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 
and the 
Porthcawl 
setting 

 

Promote the 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
hubs that 
are opening 

 Childcare 
Hub based 
at Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr to 
open in 
September 
2025 

 

Continued 
purchase of 
Flying Start 
places in 
line with 
local 
demand 

 

 Continued 
purchase of 
Flying Start 
places in 
line with 
local 
demand 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the hubs 
across 
various 
platforms 

 

P
age 84



Send 
procurement 
forms and 
interviews 
with 
interested 
providers 

Confirm 
provider at 
end of 
December 
2022 

 

Plan to open 
in  
summer 
term (May-
July 2023) 
 

Blackmill 
Hub:  

Open days 
in January 
2023.  

 

Offer of five 
years free 
rent with 
incremental 
service 
charge.  

 

Offer grants 
as 
incentives in 
start-up 
phase. 

 

Audit to see 
what has 

planned for 
Porthcawl 
will be 
determined 
following the 
feasibility 
stage of the 
project 

 

Explore the 
possibility of 
creating an 
app for new 
parents in 
Bridgend 
County 
Borough 
Council 
(BCBC) 

and those at 
Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 
and 
Porthcawl 
seedling 
school 

 

Porthcawl 
seedling 
school: 
Planned to 
open the 
new 
building in 
January 
2025 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the hubs 
across 
various 
platforms 

P
age 85



been 
promoted, 
marketed, 
and 
celebrated 

 

Create an 
action plan 
from the 
audit 
findings and 
implement 

Action 
holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Schools Programme 
Manager  

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 86



Target 

1.3 

 
Open a Cylch Meithrin in the middle of Bridgend Town in January 2023 with Mudiad Meithrin working with a company called ‘Flourish’ 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Establish a 
Ti a Fi to 
feed into the 
Cylch 
Meithrin 

 

Discussions 
with Mudiad 
and 
Childcare 
Team with 
regards to 
start up 
grants. 

 

Open Cylch 
Meithrin in 
January 
2023 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate Ti 
a Fi and the 
Cylch 
Meithrin on 
various 
platforms 

A Ti a Fi  
opened in 
January 
2022 and is 
well 
attended, 
the children 
attending 
were not of 
Cylch 
Meithrin 
age.  
 
Therefore, 
plan is to 
open in 
January 
2023  

Promote, 
market and 
celebrate Ti 
a Fi and the 
Cylch 
Meithrin on 
various 
platforms 

 

Monitor 
numbers 
attending 
and 
transferring 
to a Welsh-
medium 
school 

 Promote Ti 
a Fi and the 
Cylch 
Meithrin on 
various 
platforms 

 

Monitor 
numbers 
attending 
and 
transferring 
to a Welsh-
medium 
school 

 Promote Ti 
a Fi and the 
Cylch 
Meithrin on 
various 
platforms 

 

Monitor 
numbers 
attending 
and 
transferring 
to a Welsh-
medium 
school 

 Promote Ti 
a Fi and the 
Cylch 
Meithrin on 
various 
platforms 

 

Monitor 
numbers 
attending 
and 
transferring 
to a Welsh-
medium 
school 

 

Action 
holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Mudiad Meithrin 

P
age 87



Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

  

P
age 88



Target 

1.4 

 
We will make the Welsh-medium offer an offer for all parents – ensuring that all early years’ staff and local Flying Start teams are 

familiar with the Cymraeg 2050 strategy and are confident in sharing local information with all their parenting groups 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
provide 
training 
sessions 
with health 
visitors, 
midwife 
teams and 
childcare 
teams to 
promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet 

 Explore 
training 
opportunitie
s to promote 
the Welsh 
language 
offer – 
starting at 
birth, 
Health, Ti a 
Fi, 
Cylchoedd 
Meithrin 
 
Collect 
information 
on 
parenting 
group within 
Bridgend 
with the aim 
to promote 
the Welsh-
medium 
offer 
 

Create an 
action plan 
of 
information 
to share 
and when 

 Create a 
road map 
(visual) of 
opportunitie
s/ deadlines 
for childcare 

 
Explore the 
possibility of 
a video to 
explain the 
positives of 
bilingualism   
 

Ensure that 
staff newly 
recruited to 
Flying Start 
health 
visiting, 
midwifery 
and 
childcare 
services 
receive a 
briefing on 
the 
Cymraeg 
2050. 

 

 Ensure that 
staff newly 
recruited to 
Flying Start 
health 
visiting, 
midwifery 
and 
childcare 
services 
receive a 
briefing on 
the 
Cymraeg 
2050 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the visual 
road map 
with parent 
groups, 
settings and 
various 
platforms 

 

Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
provide 
training on a 

 Ensure that 
staff newly 
recruited to 
Flying Start 
health 
visiting, 
midwifery 
and 
childcare 
services 
receive a 
briefing on 
the 
Cymraeg 
2050 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the visual 
road map 
with parent 
groups, 
settings and 
various 
platforms 

 

Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
provide 
training on a 

 

P
age 89



which will 
include 
exploring 
into how 
parents 
reach 
information 

 

Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
provide 
training on a 
rolling 
programme, 
each six 
months to 
capture all 
new starters 

 

Promote the 
Welsh-
medium 
offer on 
various 
platforms 
leading to 
admission 
deadlines. 

Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
provide 
training on a 
rolling 
programme, 
each six 
months to 
capture all 
new starters 

 

Promote the 
Welsh-
medium 
offer on 
various 
platforms 
leading to 
admission 
deadlines. 

rolling 
programme, 
each six 
months to 
capture all 
new starters 

 

Promote the 
Welsh-
medium 
offer on 
various 
platforms 
leading to 
admission 
deadlines. 

 

rolling 
programme, 
each six 
months to 
capture all 
new starters 

 

Promote the 
Welsh-
medium 
offer on 
various 
platforms 
leading to 
admission 
deadlines. 

Action  

holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

  

P
age 90



Target 

1.5 

  
Recruitment to Welsh-medium childcare posts 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

  Audit of the 
Welsh 
language 
and 
refresher 
provision 
available  

 

Promote 
and market 
the courses 
available on 
various 
platforms 
and within 
settings 

 

Audit 
recruitment 
and training 
opportunitie
s 

Link in with 
Childcare 
Sufficiency 
Assessment 
(CSA) 

 

Promotion 
of routes 
into 

 Audit of 
childcare 
staffing in 
Mudiad 
Meithrin and 
other 
settings for 
early years 
to map and 
gap. 
(Mudiad to 
share 
template of 
their audit) 

 

Childcare 
Team and 
Mudiad 
Meithrin 
presence at 
career fairs 
and events 
– schools, 
colleagues, 
and 
universities 

 

 

Promotion 
of childcare 
as a career 
with 

 Following 
the audit, 
create 
action plan 
of 
recruitment 
and training 
opportunitie
s 

 

Action Plan 
will inform 
strategy in 
subsequent 
years, but 
will be likely 
to include 
exploring 
the 
possibility of 
including a 
Welsh-
medium 
module on 
all childcare 
courses 

 

Explore 
advertising 
childcare 
roles on 
social media  

 Sub-group 
to create a 
task and 
finish group 
to 
implement 
actions form 
action plan 

 

Monitor 
gaps in 
recruitment 
by working 
with Further 
Education, 
Mudiad 
Meithrin and 
other 
childcare 
providers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Promotion 
of childcare 
as a career 
with 
genuine 

 

P
age 91



childcare 
roles 

Central 
South 
Consortium 
(CSC) 
teaching 
assistant 
learning 
pathway 
(TALP) and 
Mudiad 
Meithrin’s 
Cam wrth 
Gam course 

genuine 
opportunitie
s for 
progression  

 

Promotion 
of routes 
into 
childcare 
roles TALP, 
Cam wrth 
Gam and 
any other 
courses that 
are found in 
the audit 

 

Promotion 
of childcare 
as a career 
with 
genuine 
opportunitie
s for 
progression  

 

Promotion 
of routes 
into 
childcare 
roles 

 

 

opportunitie
s for 
progression  

 

Promotion 
of routes 
into 
childcare 
roles 

Action 
holders 

 Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Team Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

  

P
age 92



Target 

1.6 

 
Promote the Welsh-medium offer alongside other Council events/promotions, namely childcare offers, fun days at local community 

centres or hubs 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Promote 
Welsh-
medium 
offer on 
various 
platforms 
leading to 
admission 
deadlines 

 

. 

 

 

 Audit 
current 
communicat
ion and 
collect 
information 
on parenting 
group within 
Bridgend 
with the aim 
to promote 
the Welsh-
medium 
offer 
 

Staff 
promoting 
Welsh-
medium 
education 
across 
sectors to 
receive 
training 
Mudiad 
Meithrin on 
the positives 
of being bi-
lingual for 
staff to feel 
confident to 
when 

  Create a 
calendar of 
events and 
attend to 
promote 
Welsh-
medium 
education 
such as 
Gwyl Ogwr 
Ogi Ogi Ogi 
and 
Eisteddfoda
u 

 

FIS to 
promote 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
and careers 
within 
childcare 
(as a Welsh 
language 
practitioner) 

 

Link in with 
CSA action 
plan 

 

 Attend 
events of 
the calendar 
to promote 
the Welsh-
medium 
offer  

 

Continue 
and improve 
actions from 
previous 
years  

 

Promote 
Welsh-
medium 
offer on 
various 
platforms 
leading to 
admission 
deadlines 

 

 Attend 
events of 
the calendar 
to promote 
the Welsh-
medium 
offer  

 

Promote 
Welsh-
medium 
offer on 
various 
platforms 
leading to 
admission 
deadlines 

 

 

P
age 93



speaking to 
parents 
about 
choosing 
Welsh-
medium 
education  

Promote, 
market and 
celebrate 
Welsh-
medium 
provision via 
continual 
FIS on 
various 
platforms 

 

Review 
possibility of 
reinstating 
FIS 
Fundays 
(funds 
allowing) 

 

Attend 
events of 
the calendar 
to promote 
the Welsh-
medium 
offer  

 

Promote 
Welsh-
medium 
offer on 
various 
platforms 
leading to 
admission 
deadlines 

Action 
Holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Early 
Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

 

 

P
age 94



Target 

1.7 

 
The local authority will review its Welsh-medium catchment areas. The local authority will, following the review, determine the inclusion 

of Welsh-medium catchment areas for future school admission rounds. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Paper to 
Cabinet / 
Corporate 
Managemen
t Board 
(CCMB) to 
review 
school 
catchments 
and to 
progress the 
creation of 
Welsh-
medium 
catchment 
areas. 
Welsh-
medium 
catchment 
areas are 
already in 
draft form 
but do not 
influence 
admission 
arrangemen
ts  

Requires 
Cabinet 
decision to 
agree public 
consultation 

October 
2022 CCMB 
agreed to 
review and 
progress 
Welsh-
medium 
catchment 
areas 

Draft 

catchment 

areas for 

Welsh-

medium 

schools 

presented to 

Welsh in 

Education 

Forum 

(WEF) for 

comment 

and 

recommend

ation 

 

Cabinet to 

determine 

whether to 

progress 

public 

consultation 

 

12-week 

public 

consultation 

following 

Cabinet 

approval 

 Determinati
on of 
whether 
agreed 
admission 
policy for 
2024-2025 
can be 
amended to 
incorporate 
catchment 
areas 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new 
catchment 
areas if 
applicable 

 The earliest 
catchment 
areas for 
Welsh-
medium 
schools 
naturally in 
place 
depending 
on Cabinet 
decision to 
be made in 
2023-2024 

   

P
age 95



(Quarter 4 
2022/2023) 
and 
approval of 
catchments.  
The earliest 
this could 
inform a 
policy 
change will 
be the 
2025-2026 
Admissions 
Policy      

 

WEF 
outcome 
sub-groups 
one and two 
to consider 
the merits of 
Welsh-
medium 
catchment 
areas 

 

Cabinet 

determines 

whether to 

progress 

implementat

ion of 

catchment 

areas for 

Welsh-

medium 

schools. 

Action 
holders 

Group Manager Business 
Support 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Outcome 2 sub-group  

 

Group Manager Business 
Support 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Outcome 2 sub-group  

 

Group Manager Business 
Support 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Business 
Support 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Outcome 2 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 96



Target 

1.8 

 
Increased engagement of parents/carers.  Early years’ services regularly seek parents’ views and are focussed on ensuring that 

parents views and concerns are responded to effectively and on an ongoing basis. This information will be analysed and feed into any 
developments. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Compile a 
list of the 
various 
forums to 
engage 
parents and 
carers 

 Childcare 
team to link 
with schools 
and 
Cylchoedd 
Meithrin to 
create a 
survey 

 

Share 
survey with 
parental 
groups and 
on website 

 

Analyse 
survey 
findings 

 

Explore the 
possibility of 
developing 
a FIS app 
where these 
surveys can 
be 
accessed  

 

 Review 
survey 
analysis and 
create 
action plan 
to ensure 
that parental 
views and 
concerns 
are 
responded 
to effectively 

 

Complete 
CSA 
reviews 
annually to 
review 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
demand.  

 

Link in with 
Health to 
engage with 
parents/care
r pre-birth 

 

 Continue 
and 
enhance 
engagement 
with 
parent/carer 
to seek 
views 

 

Parental 
consultation 
surveys for 
all parents 
for 
quantitative 
engagement
.   

Create 
focus 
groups with 
targeted 
parents for 
qualitative 
data  

 

Link in with 
all schools 
to support 
the focus 
groups and 

 Continue 
and 
enhance 
engagement 
with 
parent/carer 
to seek 
views 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 97



Link in 
strategic 
and 
operational 
actions to 
CSA action 
plan.   

send out 
links to all 
parents on 
our behalf 
for the 
surveys. 

 

Work with 
partners to 
engage with 
those 
parents/care
rs who are 
harder to 
reach, 
ensure that 
their voice is 
heard.   

 

Action 
holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome sub-group 1 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

 

 

Target 

1.9 

 
Effective support for parents focussed on supporting decisions regarding a Welsh-medium education for their child will include 

homework clubs and Welsh language classes for non-Welsh speaking parents. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions Welsh-
medium 

 Collate 
information 

 Audit 
support 

 Review 
information 

 Promote, 
market, and 

 

P
age 98



schools to 
upload a 
copy of 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg? 
to their 
website 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet / 
myth 
busting 
across 
various 
platform 

 

 
 

regarding 
Welsh 
language 
and 
refresher 
classes for 
parents and 
promote 
courses 
available 
within all 
areas of the 
community 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet / 
myth 
busting 
across 
various 
platform 

 

Collate 
information 
about open 
days at 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
settings and 
schools and 
promote 
across 
various 
platforms 
 

available for 
parents 
such as 
homework 
clubs. Share 
this 
information 
with parents 
via schools 
and various 
platforms 

 

Maintain the 
language 
course 
audit.  

Promote 
and market 
Welsh 
language 
courses and 
refresher 
courses on 
various 
platforms 
and share 
with schools 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet / 
myth 
busting 
across 
various 
platform 

 

on Welsh-
medium 
schools’ 
websites 
and suggest 
ways to 
improve 
support for 
parents 

 

Explore the 
support that 
parents feel 
that they 
would like to 
seek to 
work with 
partners 
and 
agencies to 
fill the gap 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet / 
myth 
busting 
across 
various 
platform 

 

Promote 
Welsh 
classes and 
courses 
available 

 

celebrate 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet/myt
h busting 
across 
various 
platform 

 

Promote 
Welsh 
classes and 
courses 
available  

 

Collate 
information 
about open 
days at 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
settings and 
schools and 
promote 
across 
various 
platforms 
 

Promote 
CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource: 

Primary 

Secondary 

P
age 99

https://express.adobe.com/page/C3kjLlS9GnMhn/
https://express.adobe.com/page/v15DUD7V8Kto2/


Promote 
CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource: 

Primary 

Secondary 

 

Collate 
information 
about open 
days at 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
settings and 
schools and 
promote 
across 
various 
platforms 
 

Promote 
CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource: 

Primary 

Secondary 

Collate 
information 
about open 
days at 
Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
settings and 
schools and 
promote 
across 
various 
platforms  

 

Promote 
CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource: 

Primary 

Secondary 

 

Action 
holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Headteachers 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

  

P
age 100

https://express.adobe.com/page/C3kjLlS9GnMhn/
https://express.adobe.com/page/v15DUD7V8Kto2/
https://express.adobe.com/page/C3kjLlS9GnMhn/
https://express.adobe.com/page/v15DUD7V8Kto2/
https://express.adobe.com/page/C3kjLlS9GnMhn/
https://express.adobe.com/page/v15DUD7V8Kto2/


Target 

1.10 

 
Development the early years pages on the BCBC website, focusing on the Family Information Service (FIS) aspect. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Appoint FIS 
Officer and 
set up 
regular 
meeting 
with key 
WEF 
partners to 
inform the 
developmen
t of the FIS 
web pages 
in terms of 
providing 
good quality 
up-to-date 
information 
on Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
and 
education 
options 

 Review 
current 
information 
on website 
and suggest 
improvemen
ts to include 
links to 
Welsh 
learning and 
socialising 

 

Create an 
action plan 
with task 
and finish 
group with 
regards to 
the website. 

 

 

 Develop 
Flying Start 
webpage on 
the BCBC 
website, 
which will 
include 
information 
regarding 
Welsh-
medium 
settings 
available as 
part of the 
Flying Start 
offer where 
school 
admissions 
deadlines 
and 
information 
will be 
included 

 Regular 
cycle of 
meetings to 
continually 
inform the 
content of 
the FIS web 
pages 

 

 

Ensure 
pages 
reflect the 
most up-to-
date 
information, 
in line with 
Flying Start 
expansion 

 Regular 
cycle of 
meetings to 
continually 
inform the 
content of 
the FIS web 
pages 

 

Ensure 
pages 
reflect the 
most up-to-
date 
information, 
in line with 
Flying Start 
expansion 

 

Action 
holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

P
age 101



Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

  

P
age 102



Target 

1.11 

 
Monitor the use of Welsh Government marketing campaigns and promote the resources which are on the Welsh Government website.  

A working group has been designed to identify potential improvements to the school admission process. The process is being 
reviewed to ensure that all parents can access this process effectively including parents who are seeking Welsh-medium provision. 
The information developed to support parents includes a section regarding myth busting. There is also a focus to ensure that the 

information is clear and easy to find. The development of a video will also be considered. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Monitor the 
use of 
Welsh 
Government 
marketing 
campaigns 
and 
encourage 
residents 
within the 
borough to 
capitalise on 
the Welsh 
Language 
incentives 
offered (for 
example, 
free Welsh 
lessons for 
18 to 25-
year-
olds/teachin
g staff) 

 

Following 
analysis 
from the 
school 
admissions 

 

Monitor the 
use of 
Welsh 
Government 
marketing 
campaigns 

 

Implement 
any 
changes 
introduced 
by Welsh 
Government 

 

Once 
website 
changes 
have been 
made, 
ensure that 
any new 
information 
from Welsh 
Government 
is updated 

 

Monitor 
resources 

 

Monitor the 
use of 
Welsh 
Government 
marketing 
campaigns 

 

Implement 
any 
changes 
introduced 
by Welsh 
Government 

 

Once 
website 
changes 
have been 
made, 
ensure that 
any new 
information 
from Welsh 
Government 
is updated 

 

Monitor 
resources 

 

Monitor the 
use of 
Welsh 
Government 
marketing 
campaigns 

 

Implement 
any 
changes 
introduced 
by Welsh 
Government 

 

Once 
website 
changes 
have been 
made, 
ensure that 
any new 
information 
from Welsh 
Government 
is updated 

 

Monitor 
resources 

 

Monitor the 
use of 
Welsh 
Government 
marketing 
campaigns 

 

Implement 
any 
changes 
introduced 
by Welsh 
Government 

 

Once 
website 
changes 
have been 
made, 
ensure that 
any new 
information 
from Welsh 
Government 
is updated 

 

Monitor 
resources 

 

P
age 103



activity, 
areas for 
celebration, 
marketing 
and 
promotion of 
Welsh-
medium 
education 
uptake will 
be 
undertaken 

 

Implement 
any 
changes 
introduced 
by Welsh 
Government 

 

Monitor 
resources 
on the 
Welsh 
Government 
website and 
promote 
with schools 
and 
partners 
using 
various 
platforms 

 

Where 
possible, 
reshare 
Welsh 
Government 
promotional 
activities on 

on the 
Welsh 
Government 
website and 
promote 
with schools 
and 
partners 
using 
various 
platforms 

 

on the 
Welsh 
Government 
website and 
promote 
with schools 
and 
partners 
using 
various 
platforms 

 

on the 
Welsh 
Government 
website and 
promote 
with schools 
and 
partners 
using 
various 
platforms 

 

on the 
Welsh 
Government 
website and 
promote 
with schools 
and 
partners 
using 
various 
platforms 

 

P
age 104



corporate 
social media 
accounts.  

Action 
holders 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

WESP Co-ordinator 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

WESP Co-ordinator 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

WESP Co-ordinator 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

WESP Co-ordinator 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

WESP Co-ordinator 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

  

P
age 105



Target 

1.12 

 
Develop a strategic process and protocol in partnership with Welsh-medium school head teachers, Cylch Meithrin staff, Mudiad 

Meithrin and colleagues from the sector to set out clear principles to support and improve the transition from early years childcare 
provision into early years education places. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

  Undertake 
an audit of 
transition 
from Welsh-
medium 
childcare 
provision to 
Welsh-
medium 
schools   

 

Analyse 
available 
information 
and set 
targets to 
improve. 

 

Strengthen 
existing 
partnership 
between 
Mudiad 
Meitthrin 
and the 
Childcare 
team by 
establishing 
regular 
strategic 

 Speak to 
families who 
choose not 
to continue 
the Welsh-
medium 
journey to 
better 
understand 
the barriers 

 

Early years 
integration 
project – 
Welsh-
medium 
representati
ves to be 
part of the 
project. 

 

 

 Develop an 
action plan / 
strategic 
process 
where all 
partners 
involved in 
transition 
are clear 
regarding 
responsibiliti
es and 
actions that 
will increase 
and support 
strong 
transition 
practices 
and 
outcomes to 
improve the 
current rate 
of transition.  

Transition 
action will 
include 
open days, 
literature to 
parents, 
visits to the 
schools 

 Strategic 
process is in 
place and 
all partners 
working 
together. 
Share good 
practice 
within 
relevant 
forums 

 

Joint action 
between all 
partners to 
address 
perceived 
barriers to 
parents 
choosing to 
continue 
Welsh-
medium 
education. 

 

Better/earlie
r access to 
information 

Open days 
in Welsh-

 

P
age 106



planning 
meetings 

 

Better/earlie
r access to 
information 

 

Promote 
open days 
in Welsh-
medium 
schools 

 

Welsh-
medium 
senior 
leaders 
visiting 
Cylchoedd 
Meithrin 

 

Analyse 
transition 
rates  

medium 
schools 

 

 

 

Welsh-
medium 
senior 
leaders 
visiting 
Cylchoedd 
Meithrin 

 

Analyse 
transition 
rates  

Promote 
open days 
in Welsh-
medium 
schools 

Action 
holders 

 Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Headteachers 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Headteachers 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Headteachers 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group  

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

  

P
age 107



Target 

1.13 

 
The partnership with Mudiad Meithrin will be further strengthened to encourage more effective planning and ensure actions within the 

ten-year WESP can be delivered. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Research 
into funding 
session 
costs for 
parents to 
send their 
children to 
Cylchoedd 
meithrin for 
three 
sessions to 
allow 
parents to 
try 
Cylchoedd 
meithrin 
before 
deciding 

 Establish 
regular 
strategic 
planning 
meetings 
between 
Mudiad 
Meithrin and 
the Early 
Years and 
Childcare 
Team. 

 

 

 Establish 
regular 
strategic 
planning 
meetings 
between 
Mudiad 
Meithrin and 
Welsh-
medium 
headteacher
s 

 

Effective 
planning 
and 
minuting 
means that 
meetings 
are 
productive 
and result in 
actions that 
create 
lasting 
change 

 Effective 
planning 
and 
minuting 
means that 
meetings 
are 
productive 
and result in 
actions that 
create 
lasting 
change 

 Effective 
planning 
and 
minuting 
means that 
meetings 
are 
productive 
and result in 
actions that 
create 
lasting 
change 

 

Action 
holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

P
age 108



Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Headteachers 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Headteachers 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Headteachers 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

 

 

  

P
age 109



Target 

1.14 

 
Develop three new Flying Start funded Ti a Fi settings in collaboration with three of the four Welsh-medium primary schools and 

Mudiad Meithrin. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Establish Ti 
a Fi in 
Bettws and 
Blaengarw, 
funded by 
Flying Start 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate Ti 
a Fi 
sessions on 
various 
platforms 

 Explore 
feasibility of 
Ti a Fi 
sessions at 
Ysgol y 
Ferch o’r 
Sgêr and/or 
the 
Integrated 
Childrens’ 
Centre 
(ICC). 
Establish 
during 
academic 
year. 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate Ti 
a Fi 
sessions on 
various 
platforms 

 Explore 
possibility of 
further Ti a 
Fi sessions, 
subject to 
funding and 
staffing. 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate Ti 
a Fi 
sessions on 
various 
platforms 

 Explore 
possibility of 
further Ti a 
Fi sessions, 
subject to 
funding and 
staffing. 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate Ti 
a Fi 
sessions on 
various 
platforms  

 Explore 
possibility of 
further Ti a 
Fi sessions, 
subject to 
funding and 
staffing. 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate Ti 
a Fi 
sessions on 
various 
platforms  

 

Action 
holders 

 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin  

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin  

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

P
age 110



Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Members of promotion, 
marketing and celebrating 
sub-group 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 1 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 111



 
Outcome 2: More reception class children/five-year-olds receive their education through the medium of Welsh 
 

 

Strategic Lead: 

WESP Co-ordinator: 

Chair of Outcome 2 Sub-group: 

 

 

Michelle Hatcher 

Becca Avci 

Gaynor Thomas 

        

Target 

2.1 

 
Provide a new build and enlarge Ysgol y Ferch o’r Sgêr from its existing PAN of 30 to 60 to serve the West of the County Borough. The 

proposal has already been subject to a consultation process under the School Organisation Code and Cabinet approval has been 
received. The new school is programmed to open in September 2024. 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 
2024 – 
2025 

Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Complete 
stage 1 and 
submit 
report to 
Welsh 
Government 
for approval 

 

Complete 
Outline 
Business 
Case and 
seek Welsh 
Government 
approval 

 

Subject to 
Welsh 
Government 
approval, 

 Complete 
stage 2 and 
seek Welsh 
Government 
approval 
 
Full 
Business 
Case 
submission 
to Welsh 
Government 
and 
approval 
sought 
 
Commence 
construction 
(subject to 
Welsh 
Government 
approvals 

 Complete 
construction 
 
Decant into 
the new 
school 
 
School 
opens for 
pupils 
 
Demolition 
of existing 
buildings 
and 
complete 
external 
works 
 
Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 

 Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 
 

 Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 
 

 

P
age 112



Commence 
stage 2 

 

and 
obtaining 
planning 
consent). 
 
Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 

new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 
 
 
 

Action 
holders 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group  
 
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 
  
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 2 sub-group  
 
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 2 sub-group  
 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

P
age 113



Target 

2.2 

 
 Enlarge and relocate Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr to an alternative nearby site to meet the current and future demand for Welsh-medium 

education in the Valleys Gateway, Bridgend and Pencoed areas of the county borough. The new school is scheduled to open in 
September 2025 with an increased Pupil Admissions Number (PAN) of 75 (that is, 2.5 forms of entry). The current PAN is 54. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Report the 
outcome of 
the statutory 
process 
(School 
Organisatio
n Code, 
2018) to 
Cabinet and 
seek 
approval to 
proceed 

 

Commence 
the design 
process 

 Conclude 
the design 
process 

 

Submit a 
planning 
application 
for the 
replacement 
school 

 

Undertake a 
tender 
process for 
the 
construction 
of the 
replacement 
school via 
the 
SEWSCAP 
Framework 
Agreement 

 

Submit the 
Full 
Business 
Case to 
Welsh 

 Continue 
with the 
construction 
of the 
replacement 
school 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 

 Conclude 
construction 

 

Decant the 
existing 
school into 
the 
replacement 
school 

 

Replaceme
nt school 
opens for 
pupils 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 

 Defects 
liability 
period ends 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 

 

P
age 114



 

Government 
for approval 

 

Appoint the 
successful 
bidder to 
undertake 
construction 

 

Commence 
construction  

Action 

holders 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group  
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group  
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 115



 

Target 

2.3 

 
Secure temporary additional classroom provision for Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr in the interim period between 2022-2025 following 

approval of funding through the Welsh-medium capital grant. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Obtain 
Welsh 
Government 
approval for 
the 
Business 
Justification 
Case 

 

Design  

 

Obtain 
planning 
permission 

 

Tender via 
Sell2Wales 

 
Constructio
n 
commences 

 Building 
ready for 
occupation 

 

 

 

  

       

Action 

holders 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

   

P
age 116



Target 

2.4 

 
Establish seedling school provision in Porthcawl by 2025 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Seek 
Council 
approval for 
inclusion of 
the scheme 
in the 
capital 
programme 

 

Seek 
Cabinet 
approval to 
consult on 
the proposal 

 

Undertake 
consultation 
and report 
the outcome 
back to 
Cabinet 

 

Commence 
design 

 

 

 Seek 
planning 
consent 

 

Conclude 
design and 
tender the 
scheme 

 

Submit 
Business 
Justification 
Case to 
Welsh 
Government 
and seek 
approval 

 

Commence 
construction 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new school 
across 
various 
platforms  

 Complete 
construction 
and open 
for pupils - 
January 
2025 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new school 
across 
various 
platforms 

  

 End of 
defects 
liability 
period 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new school 
across 
various 
platforms 

 Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new school 
across 
various 
platforms 

 

Action 

holders 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group  

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

 
 
Outcome 2 sub-group 

P
age 117



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

  
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

  
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

  
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group P

age 118



 

Target 

2.5 

 
 

Complete site options appraisal for Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd by 2022-2023 with a site feasibility study completed by 2023-
2024. 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Undertake 
education 
and site 
option 
appraisals 

 Continue 

with 

education 

and site 

option 

appraisals 

 

Feasibility 
study  

 Conclude 
feasibility 
study 

   When 
appropriate, 
promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new school 
across 
various 
platforms 

 

Action 

holders 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

 Outcome 2 sub-group  
 
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 119



 

Target 

2.6 

 
Scope options to progress Porthcawl and Bridgend South-East Welsh-medium primary provision linked to the on Local Development 

Plan (LDP). 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Undertake 
options 
appraisal 
(long list) 
 
Communica
tion with 
developers 
to promote 
Pencoed. 
Add 
advisory 
note to 
permissions 
 
 

 Continue 
with options 
appraisal 
(long list) 
and identify 
short list 
and 
preferred 
option 
 

Subject to 
land 
availability, 
undertake 
feasibility 

 Subject to 
land 
availability, 
continue 
with 
feasibility 

 

   When 
appropriate, 
promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
new school 
across 
various 
platforms 

 

Action 

holders 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

 

 Outcome 2 sub-group  
 
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 120



Target 

2.7 

 
Develop a promotion and communications plan within the first year of the WESP which considers and addresses the barriers to 

choosing a Welsh-medium education, accessibility; and proximity of provision. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Create a 
sub-group 
for 
promotion, 
marketing 
and 
celebrating 

 

Share 
Central 
South 
Consortium 
(CSC) 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use the 
Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource 
with 
parents. 
Publish on 
website. 
Primary 
Secondary 
 

 Research 
barriers to 
choosing 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

 

Research 
the most 
effective 
ways to 
communicat
e 
addressing 
barriers 

 

Undertake 
an audit of 
communicat
ions for 
choosing 
Welsh-
medium 
education 
as a 
baseline.  

Parents are 
aware of 
provision for 
Welsh-
medium 

 Create an 
action plan 
including 
dates to 
promote all 
new settings 
and 
implement 

 

Actions on 
the plan will 
include: 

Task and 
finish group 
to develop a 
pupil road 
map of 
opportunitie
s 

 

Promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet  

 

 

 Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
pupil road 
map to 
make 
parents and 
potential 
parents 
aware of 
opportunitie
s throughout 
the pupil’s 
educational 
career 

 

Promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet  

 

 

 Promote, 
market, and  

celebrate 
pupil road 
map to 
make 
parents and 
potential 
parents 
aware of 
opportunitie
s throughout 
the pupil’s 
educational 
career 

 

Promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet  

 

 

 

P
age 121

https://express.adobe.com/page/C3kjLlS9GnMhn/
https://express.adobe.com/page/v15DUD7V8Kto2/


 

 

 

through 
updated 
transition 
plans 
published 
on schools’ 
websites 

Action 

holders 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 
CSC 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 
 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 
 

P
age 122



Target 

2.8 

 
Within the first year of the WESP, consider the recommendations from the review undertaken with regards to developing a local late 

immersion provision and utilise the immersion grant to support the developments. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Apply for 
immersion 
grant 

 

Consider 
locations for 
the 
provision 

 

Appoint one 
teacher and 
one LSO 

Purchase 
resources 
for the 
immersion 
provision 

 

Visit other 
local 
authorities’ 
immersion 
units. 

 

Service 
Level 
Agreement 
(SLA) to join 
CSC 
Immersion 

£340k grant 
allocated. 
Teacher 
and learning 
support 
officer 
(LSO) in 
place 

10pupils 
supported 
across two 
schools. 
£2.5k order 
of 
resources. 
Staff 
travelling 
between 
schools as 
no suitable 
location 
available. 

Write an 
admissions 
policy/ 
strategy for 
secondary 
pupils (age) 

 

Advertise 
and employ 
two LSOs 
(total of 
three LSOs)   

Immersion 
teacher to 
an active 
member of 
CSC Late 
Immersion 
Provision 
network 

 

Monitor 
numbers 
attending 

Monitor 
levels and 
progress 
within the 
provision 
programme 

 Explore 
different 
strategies to 
promote 
transferring 
from 
English-
medium to 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

 

Advertise 
and employ 
two LSOs 
(total of five 
LSOs) 

Immersion 
teacher to 
an active 
member of 
CSC Late 
Immersion 
Provision 
network 

Monitor 
numbers 
attending 

 

Monitor 
levels and 

 Promote 
and market 
transferring 
from 
English-
medium to 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

 Promote 
and market 
transferring 
from 
English-
medium to 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

 

P
age 123



 

Provision 
network 

 

Monitor 
numbers 
attending 

 

Monitor 
levels and 
progress 
within the 
provision 
programme 

 

£5k to 
purchase 
resources 

 

Create an 
action plan 
to market 
the 
immersion 
provision 
across 
platforms 

 

£5k to 
purchase 
resources 

 

Consider 
permanent 
location for 
the late 
immersion 
provision 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the 
immersions 
provision 

progress 
within the 
provision 
programme 

 

£5k to 
purchase 
resources 

 

Consider 
permanent 
location for 
the late 
immersion 
provision 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the 
immersions 
provision 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

WESP Co-ordinator 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

WESP Co-ordinator 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

WESP Co-ordinator 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 124



Target 

2.9 

 
 In partnership with Central South Consortium (CSC) will provide professional learning and resources for teachers in Welsh-medium 

schools on how best to support latecomers. CSC will facilitate the sharing of good practice across the region in this area in 
collaboration with the current Welsh Immersion Unit in Cardiff and any other emerging provision going forward. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Share 
immersion 
resources 
and training 
available 
from CSC 
with Welsh-
medium 
headteacher
s 
 
Publish 
primary and 
secondary 
immersion 
resources to 
support 
learning and 
teaching. 
 
Deliver 
methodolog
y of 
teaching 
language 
professional 
learning 
linked to 
immersion 
resources. 
 

 Deliver 
methodology 
of teaching 
language 
professional 
learning 
linked to 
immersion 
resources. 

 

Share best 
practice for 
late 
immersion 
teaching in 
network 
meetings. 

 

Facilitate a 
regional 
network for 
language 
immersion 
teachers 
and 
teaching 
assistants to 
share best 
practice. 

 Deliver 
methodology 
of teaching 
language 
professional 
learning 
linked to 
immersion 
resources. 

 

Share best 
practice for 
late 
immersion 
teaching in 
network 
meetings. 

 

Facilitate a 
regional 
network for 
language 
immersion 
teachers 
and 
teaching 
assistants to 
share best 
practice. 

 Deliver 
methodology 
of teaching 
language 
professional 
learning 
linked to 
immersion 
resources. 

 

Share best 
practice for 
late 
immersion 
teaching in 
network 
meetings. 

 

Facilitate a 
regional 
network for 
language 
immersion 
teachers 
and 
teaching 
assistants to 
share best 
practice. 
 

 Deliver 
methodolog
y of teaching 
language 
professional 
learning 
linked to 
immersion 
resources. 

 

Share best 
practice for 
late 
immersion 
teaching in 
network 
meetings. 

 

Facilitate a 
regional 
network for 
language 
immersion 
teachers 
and 
teaching 
assistants to 
share best 
practice. 

 

P
age 125



 

Share best 
practice for 
late 
immersion 
teaching in 
network 
meetings. 
 
Facilitate a 
regional 
network for 
language 
immersion 
teachers 
and 
teaching 
assistants to 
share best 
practice. 

Action 

holders 

WESP co-ordinator  

Headteachers 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

WESP co-ordinator  

Headteachers 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

WESP co-ordinator  

Headteachers 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

WESP co-ordinator  

Headteachers 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

WESP co-ordinator  

Headteachers 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

P
age 126



Target 

2.10 

 
Review the information regarding a Welsh-medium education which is detailed on the local authority’s website to ensure that parents 

applying for places can easily navigate to the correct pages and locate relevant information. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Form a task 
and finish 
group within 
the 
promotion, 
marketing 
and 
celebrating 
sub-group 

 

Set 
objectives of 
the group 
and the 
most 
effective 
way of 
working 

 Audit the 
information 
on the 
website, the 
location, 
and the 
ease of use 

 

Work with 
officers to 
update and 
modify 
information. 

 

 

 Create an 
action plan 
for 

improvemen
t which 
could 
include an 
information 
page giving 
all 
information 
about the 
local area 
ensuring 
that there is 
increased 
signposting 
to Welsh-
medium 
education 
from 
multiple 
areas 

 

Present the 
action plan 

 Changes to 
website are 
made 

 

Task and 
finish group 
to re-audit 
the 
information 
on the 
website to 
ensure that 
the location 
of the 
information 
is correct, 
and it is 
easily 
navigated 

 Maintain 
updates on 
website 

 

Action 

holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

P
age 127



 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Members of promotion, 
marketing and celebrating 
sub-group 
 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Group Manager Business 
Support 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Group Manager Business 
Support 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities  

Group Manager Business 
Support Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Target 

2.11 

 
Maximise grant funding opportunities from Welsh Government to support the targeted increase in Welsh-medium primary provision 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Identify 
potential 
schemes at 
primary and 
secondary 
level to 
increase 
places, if 
required. 

 

Continue to 
maximise 
grant 
funding 
opportunitie
s throughout 
the ten-year 
WESP 
period 

 Identify 
potential 
schemes at 
primary and 
secondary 
level to 
increase 
places, if 
required. 

 

 Identify 
potential 
schemes at 
primary and 
secondary 
level to 
increase 
places, if 
required. 

 

 Identify 
potential 
schemes at 
primary and 
secondary 
level to 
increase 
places, if 
required. 

 

 Identify 
potential 
schemes at 
primary and 
secondary 
level to 
increase 
places, if 
required. 

 

 

Action 

holders 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

P
age 128



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Target 

2.12 

 
Explore potential opportunities for delivering schemes wholly or partly via section 106 agreements, as a contribution for education 

places to serve new housing developments, where applicable. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

The local 
authority will 
continue to 
maximise 
106 funding 
opportunitie
s throughout 
the ten-year 
WESP 
period to 
support the 
growth in 
Welsh-
medium 
education. 

 Revisit 
Supplement
ary Planning 
Guidance 
16 
(contribution 
to education 
provision) 

 Revisit 
Supplement
ary Planning 
Guidance 
16 
(contribution 
to education 
provision) 

 Revisit 
Supplement
ary Planning 
Guidance 
16 
(contribution 
to education 
provision) 

 Revisit 
Supplement
ary Planning 
Guidance 
16 
(contribution 
to education 
provision) 

 

Action 

holders 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

Schools Programme 
Manager 

Outcome 2 sub-group 

P
age 129



 
Outcome 3: More children continue to improve their Welsh language skills when transferring from one stage of their statutory education to another  

 
 

Strategic Lead: 

WESP Co-ordinator: 

Chair of Outcome 3 Sub-group: 

 

 

Michelle Hatcher 

Becca Avci 

Chris Newcombe 

        

Target 

3.1 

 
The analysis of data, target setting, monitoring, and evaluation of transfer rates from each phase of statutory education will be a 

priority within the first five years of the WESP. Work in partnership with CSC and targeted schools where transition rates may be a 
cause of concern and publish resources to support and reassure parents/carers regarding transition between phases 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024 – 2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Ensure that 
Welsh is 
referred to 
in transition 
plans and 
that it is 
published 
on the 
school 
websites 

 
Parents are 
aware of 
provision for 
Welsh-
medium 
through 
transition 
plans 
published 

 Outcome 
3,4 and 5 
sub-group 
to explore 
the data 
available 
and decide 
on which 
data is to be 
analysed 
and 
monitored.  

 

Analyse 
transfer 
data and 
provide a 
strategic 
overview 

 

 Analyse 
transfer 
data and 
provide a 
strategic 
overview 

 

Monitor and 
evaluate 
transfer 
data  

 

Review 
transfer 
target 

 

Audit 
additional 
learning 
needs 

 Analyse 
transfer 
data and 
provide a 
strategic 
overview 

 

Monitor and 
evaluate 
transfer 
data  

 

Monitor data 
to identify 
schools 
where 
transition 
rates are 
low  

 

 Analyse 
transfer 
data and 
provide a 
strategic 
overview 

 

Monitor and 
evaluate 
transfer 
data  

  

Parents are 
aware of 
provision for 
Welsh-
medium 
through 
transition 
plans 

 

P
age 130



on schools’ 
websites 
 

Set 
aspirational 
targets for 
2027 with 
milestones 
for each 
year 

 

Parents are 
aware of 
provision for 
Welsh-
medium 
through 
transition 
plans 
published 
on schools’ 
websites 
 

Schools to 
share CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use the 
Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource 
with 
parents. 
Publish on 
website 
Primary 
Secondary 
 

(ALN) 
Welsh-
medium 
support for 
transition.  

 

Use transfer 
data to 
identify 
schools 
where 
transition 
rates are 
low  

 

Work with 
Welsh-
medium 
headteacher
s to explore 
reasons 
why and 
provide 
support to 
schools and 
parents 
using 
information 
below 

 

Refer to 
Welsh in 
transition 
plans  

 

Parents are 
aware of 
provision for 
Welsh-
medium 
through 

Work with 
Welsh-
medium 
headteacher
s to explore 
reasons 
why and 
provide 
support to 
schools and 
parents 

 

Parents are 
aware of 
provision for 
Welsh-
medium 
through 
transition 
plans 
published 
on schools’ 
websites 

 

Schools to 
share CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use the 
Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource 
with 
parents. 

Publish on 
website 

Primary 

Secondary 

 

published 
on schools’ 
websites 

 

Schools to 
share CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use the 
Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource 
with 
parents. 

Publish on 
website. 

Primary 

Secondary 

 

 

BCBC, 
schools and 
Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
share ‘Pam 
dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet on 
websites 

P
age 131

https://express.adobe.com/page/C3kjLlS9GnMhn/
https://express.adobe.com/page/v15DUD7V8Kto2/


transition 
plans 
published 
on schools’ 
website 

 

Schools to 
share CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use the 
Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource 
with 
parents. 

Publish on 
website. 

Primary 

Secondary 

 

BCBC, 
schools and 
Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
share ‘Pam 
dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet on 
websites 

BCBC, 
schools and 
Mudiad 
Meithrin to 
share ‘Pam 
dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet on 
websites. 

Action 
holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group  

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

P
age 132



Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 133



 

Target 

3.2 

 
Monitor the increase in numbers which feed through to Year 3 within the first five years of WESP. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Monitor data 
for each 
year group 
to foresee 
the data for 
Year 3 

 

 Monitor data 
for each 
year group 
to foresee 
the data for 
Year 3 

 

Set targets 
for Year 3 
for three 
years to 
increase 
numbers 

 

 Monitor data 
for each 
year group 
to foresee 
the data for 
Year 3 
 

Review 
targets for 
Year 3 
 

Explore 
intervention 
strategies 
which would 
include 
working with 
the 
Promotion, 
marketing 
and 
celebrating 
sub-group 

 Monitor data 
annually for 
each year 
group. 

 

Review 
targets for 
Year 3 

 

Implement 
intervention 
strategies if 
required 

 Monitor data 
annually for 
each year 
group 

 

Review 
targets for 
Year 3 

 

Implement 
intervention 
strategies if 
required. 

 

Evaluate 
interventions 
implemente
d and 
number 
which feed 
through to 
Year 3 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support                  
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager School 
Support                  
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager School 
Support                   
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group                   
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support                    
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager School 
Support                  
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

P
age 134



Target 

3.3 

 
Promotion of strategies for the effective use of Welsh in formal and informal situations across all sectors and age ranges will continue 

to be developed and monitored by WEF. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Implement 
and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 
 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress 
with Siarter 
Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus. 
 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
termly 
Siarter Iaith 

 92% of 
English-
medium 
schools 
engaged in 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 

 

Schools 

achieve 

progressive 

levels of the 

Siarter Iaith 

Cymraeg 

Campus 

framework. 

 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress 
with Siarter 
Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus. 

 94% of 
English-
medium 
schools 
engaged in 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 

 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress 
with Siarter 
Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus. 

 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

 

 96% of 
English-
medium 
schools 
engaged in 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 

 

Schools 
achieve 
progressive 
levels of the 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 

 

All Welsh-
medium 
schools to 
receive the 
next award  

 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 

 100% of 
English-
medium 
schools 
engaged in 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 

 

Schools 
achieve 
progressive 
levels of the 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 

 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress 
with Siarter 
Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus. 

 

P
age 135



data that will 
be shared 
with the 
WEF for 
discussion. 

 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

 

Explore 
opportunitie
s to use 
Welsh 
informally 
with WEF 
partners.  

Promote 
map of 

opportunitie
s across 
various 

platforms  

 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
termly 
Siarter Iaith 
data that will 
be shared 
with the 
WEF for 
discussion. 

. 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

CSC to 
provide 
termly 
Siarter Iaith 
data that will 
be shared 
with the 
WEF for 
discussion. 

 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

make 
progress 
with Siarter 
Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus. 

 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
termly 
Siarter Iaith 
data that will 
be shared 
with the 
WEF for 
discussion. 

. 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 

 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
termly 
Siarter Iaith 
data that will 
be shared 
with the 
WEF for 
discussion. 

. 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

 

P
age 136



 

 

promote on 
various 
platforms 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 137



 

 

Target 

3.4 

 
Facilitate collaboration between primary and secondary schools to produce resource that promote linguistic progression to 

parents/carers 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Reference 
to Welsh- 
transition 
plans 
 
All schools 
to publish 
transition 
plans on 
their 
websites 

Transition 
plans 
published 
on websites 

Review 
transition 
plans 
annually 
and publish 
on website 

 

 

 Review 
transition 
plans 
annually 
and publish 
on website 

 Review 
transition 
plans 
annually 
and publish 
on website 

 Review 
transition 
plans 
annually 
and publish 
on website 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

P
age 138



Target 

3.5 

 
Provide opportunities for Welsh-medium schools to engage in initiatives to monitor linguistic progression (for example, comparative 

judgement). 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Develop, 

pilot, and 

publish a 

standardise

d reading 

test for 

Years 1-11 

in Welsh-

medium 

schools 

 

Facilitate No 
more 
marking / 
Comparativ
e Judgment 
programme 
for Welsh 
medium 
schools 

 

Facilitate 
Darllen Dros 
Gymru 
(Welsh-
medium first 
language 
book quiz) 

 

 Develop, 
pilot, and 
publish a 
standardise
d spelling 
test for 
Years 1-11 
in Welsh-
medium 
schools 

Review of 
number of 
schools 
using ‘No 
more 
marking’ 
programme 
and impact 

 

Facilitate 
Darllen Dros 
Gymru 
(book quiz) 

 

 

Promote 
Dwlu 
Darllen 
reading 
challenge 
(Welsh 

 All Welsh-
medium 
schools to 
use CSC’s 
standardise
d reading 
and spelling 
tests from 
Year 1-11 

 

Audit the 
numbers 
taking part 
in Darllen 
Dros Gymru 
(Welsh first 
language) 

 

Audit the 
number of 
schools 
taking part 
in Dwlu 
Darllen 
(Welsh 
second 
language) 

 

 All Welsh-
medium 
schools to 
use CSC’s 
standardise
d reading 
and spelling 
tests from 
Year 1-11 

 All Welsh-
medium 
schools to 
use CSC’s 
standardise
d reading 
and spelling 
tests from 
Year 1-11 

 

P
age 139



 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Darllen Dros 
Gymru on 
various 
platforms 

second 
language 
book quiz) 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group    

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group    

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

P
age 140



Target 

3.6 

 
Provide advice, professional learning, and resources to support schools to implement Welsh across the curriculum thus increasing the 

amount of learning provision offered. The sharing of good practice across the region in a variety of ways (for example, webinars, 
podcasts, blogs and learning walks). 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Asynchrono
us, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
professional 
learning.  
 
Sharing 
best 
practice via 
networks.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
resource 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 Liaise with 
CSC to 
identify and 
plan support 
for this year. 
 
Asynchrono
us, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
professional 
learning.  
 
Sharing 
best 
practice via 
networks.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
resource 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 Liaise with 
CSC to 
identify and 
plan support 
for this year. 
 
Asynchrono
us, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
professional 
learning.  
 
Sharing 
best 
practice via 
networks.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
resource 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 Liaise with 
CSC to 
identify and 
plan support 
for this year. 
 
Asynchrono
us, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
professional 
learning.  
 
Sharing 
best 
practice via 
networks.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
resource 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 Liaise with 
CSC to 
identify and 
plan support 
for this year. 
 
Asynchrono
us, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
professional 
learning.  
 
Sharing 
best 
practice via 
networks.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
resource 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 

P
age 141



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action 

holders 

CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Consultation Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC  

Group Manager School 
Support        Consultation 
Engagement and 
Equalities Manager 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC  

Group Manager School 
Support Consultation 
Engagement and 
Equalities Manager 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC  

Group Manager School 
Support        Consultation 
Engagement and 
Equalities Manager 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC  

Group Manager School 
Support Consultation 
Engagement and 
Equalities Manager 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 142



 
Outcome 4: More learners study for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a subject) and subjects through the medium of Welsh  
 

 

Strategic Lead: 

WESP Co-ordinator: 

Chair of Outcome 4 Sub-group: 

 

 

Michelle Hatcher 

Becca Avci 

Chris Newcombe 

        

Target 

4.1 

 
Annual monitoring of transfer rates and actions identified and reported to WEF. 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024 – 2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Support the 
collaboratio
n between 
Ysgol Gyfun 
Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd 
and Ysgol 
Gyfun 
Gymraeg 
Llanhari to 
enhance the 
developmen
t of learners 
continuing 
in a Welsh 
medium 
school 

 Analyse key 
Stage 4 and 
Key Stage 5 
transfer 
data and 
produce 
strategic 
overview 
report. 

 

Analyse the 
utilisation of 
a Blended 
learning 
approach at 
Post-16 
between 
Maesteg 
and 
Pencoed 

 

 Analyse Key 
Stage 4 and 
Key Stage 5 
transfer 
data and 
produce 
strategic 
overview 
report.  

 

Develop the 
blended 
learning 
approach to 
allow for 
any issues 
and 
problems 
that may 
have 
occurred.  

 Analyse Key 
Stage 4 and 
Key Stage 5 
transfer 
data and 
produce 
strategic 
overview 
report. 

 

Explore 
rolling out 
the blended 
learning 
approach 
across more 
schools to 
increase the 
number of 
learners 
studying 
Welsh as a 

 Analyse Key 
Stage 4 and 
Key Stage 5 
transfer 
data and 
produce 
strategic 
overview 
report.  

 

P
age 143



Analyse the 
retention of 
learners 
within the 
blended 
learning 
pilot. 

second 
language 

Action 
holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Teachers 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 144



Target 

4.2 

 
Improve retention and transition rates during the first five years of this plan. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Analyse and 
monitor 
retention 
and 
transition 
rates 

 

 Analyse and 
monitor 
retention 
and 
transition 
rates 

 

Set 
aspirational 
targets for 
retention 
and 
transition 
rates 

 

 Audit 
transition 
process 
between 
primary and 
secondary 

 

Review and 
monitor 
targets for 
retention 
and 
transition 
rates 

 

Increase in 
the number 
of pupils 
transferring 
from 
primary to 
secondary- 
ensuring 
high 
transition 
rates from 
all primary 
feeder 
schools.  

 Monitor 
improved 
retention 
and 
transition 
rates 

 

Review and 
monitor 
targets for 
retention 
and 
transition 
rates 

 

Create an 
action plan 
for a clear 
transition 
process 
between 
primary and 
secondary 
sectors 
which could 
include a 
transition 
calendar  

 

 Monitor 
improved 
retention 
and 
transition 
rates 

 

Review and 
monitor 
targets for 
retention 
and 
transition 
rates 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support                          

Group Manager School 
Support 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Headteachers 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Headteachers 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Headteachers 

P
age 145



 

 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

P
age 146



Target 

4.3 

 
Increase the number of learners remaining in Post-16. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Use 
blended 
learning to 
deliver 
subjects 
with lower 
numbers. 

 

Publish a 
resource to 
promote 
uptake of 
Welsh A-
level (use of 
social 
media, past 
pupil/parent 
experiences
, promote 
advantages) 

 

Work in 
partnership 
with 
Qualification
s Wales to 
ensure 
parity in the 
developmen
t of Key 
Stage 4 and 
Post-16 

 Audit of the 
courses 
available to 
Post-16 
learners 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh 

 

Analyse 
data for 
Post-16 
leaners. Set 
targets for 
following 
years 

 

Promote 
courses that 
are offered 
Post-16 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh on 
various 
platforms 

Publish a 
resource to 
promote 
uptake of 
Welsh A-
level. 

 Explore the 
possibility of 
increasing 
the offer of 
Post-16 
courses with 
schools and 
further 
education 

 

Monitor 
retention 
rates.  

 

Work with 
schools and 
further 
education to 
promote 
courses and 
benefits of 
Post-16 
education 

 

Publish a 
resource to 
promote 
uptake of 
Welsh A-
level. 

 

 Explore the 
possibility of 
creating a 
Post-16 
prospectus 
of courses 
available 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh 

 

Promote 
courses that 
are offered 
Post-16 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh on 
various 
platforms 

 

Publish a 
resource to 
promote 
uptake of 
Welsh A-
level. 

Use 
blended 
learning to 
deliver 
subjects 

 Publish a 
resource to 
promote 
uptake of 
Welsh A-
level. 

 

Use 
blended 
learning to 
deliver 
subjects 
with lower 
numbers. 

 

Promote 
resources 
created by 
Coleg 
Cymraeg 
Cenedlaeth
ol focussed 
on the 
benefits of 
studying A-
Level 
Welsh. 

 

Work in 
partnership 
with 
Qualification

 

P
age 147



qualification
s. 

 

 

 

 

Use 
blended 
learning to 
deliver 
subjects 
with lower 
numbers. 

 

Promote 
resources 
created by 
Coleg 
Cymraeg 
Cenedlaeth
ol focussed 
on the 
benefits of 
studying A-
Level 
Welsh. 

 

Work in 
partnership 
with 
Qualification
s Wales to 
ensure 
parity in the 
development 
of Key Stage 
4 and Post-
16 
qualification
s. 

 

Encourage 
staff to 
engage with 
qualifications 

Use 
blended 
learning to 
deliver 
subjects 
with lower 
numbers. 

 

Promote 
resources 
created by 
Coleg 
Cymraeg 
Cenedlaeth
ol focussed 
on the 
benefits of 
studying A-
Level 
Welsh. 

 

Work in 
partnership 
with 
Qualifications 
Wales to 
ensure parity 
in the 
development 
of Key Stage 
4 and Post-
16 
qualifications. 

 

Encourage 
staff to 
engage with 
qualifications 
reforms 
consultations. 

 

with lower 
numbers. 

 

Promote 
resources 
created by 
Coleg 
Cymraeg 
Cenedlaeth
ol focussed 
on the 
benefits of 
studying A-
Level 
Welsh. 

 

Work in 
partnership 
with 
Qualification
s Wales to 
ensure parity 
in the 
development 
of Key Stage 
4 and Post-
16 
qualifications
. 

 

Encourage 
staff to 
engage with 
qualification
s reforms 
consultation
s. 

 

Advise 
Qualification
s Wales of 

s Wales to 
ensure 
parity in the 
developmen
t of Key 
Stage 4 and 
Post-16 
qualification
s. 

 

Encourage 
staff to 
engage with 
qualification
s reforms 
consultation
s. 

 

Advise 
Qualification
s Wales of 
the need to 
develop a 
more 
relevant and 
modern 
content for 
Welsh 
GCSE 
within the 
Welsh 
qualification
s 

P
age 148



 

reforms 
consultations. 

 

Advise 
Qualifications 
Wales of the 
need to 
develop a 
more relevant 
and modern 
content for 
Welsh GCSE 
within the 
Welsh 
qualifications 

Advise 
Qualification
s Wales of 
the need to 
develop a 
more 
relevant and 
modern 
content for 
Welsh 
GCSE 
within the 
Welsh 
qualification
s 

the need to 
develop a 
more 
relevant and 
modern 
content for 
Welsh 
GCSE 
within the 
Welsh 
qualification
s 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 
CSC 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 
CSC 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 
CSC 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 
CSC 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 149



Target 

4.4 

 
Evaluate blended/remote learning approaches within the first year of the WESP. There may need to be a greater emphasis on 

blended/remote learning approaches in the first instance to ensure that pupils are able to access a wider range of courses 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Analyse 
uptake data 
of 
blended/rem
ote learning 
and the 
courses on 
offer  

 

Evaluate 
blended/rem
ote learning 

 

Consider 
use of 
digital 
technology 
to increase 
the 
qualification 
offer 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh. 

 Analyse 
uptake data. 

 

Promote 
and 
celebrate 
good 
practice  

 

Explore 
working with 
agencies to 
promote 
blended 
learning to 
deliver 
subjects 
with lower 
numbers. 

 

Explore 
delivering 
Welsh 
second 
language as 
a subject via 
blended / 
remote 
learning 
where 
there’s low 

 Analyse 
uptake data. 

 

Evaluate 
blended/ 
remote 
learning.  

 

Explore 
schools 
working 
together to 
support 
blended/rem
ote learning 
with 
subjects 
that have a 
low uptake 

 

Promote 
and 
celebrate 
good 
practice  

 

 

 Analyse 
uptake data. 

 

Evaluate 
blended/ 
remote 
learning.  

 

Support 
schools 
working 
together to 
provide 
blended/rem
ote learning  

 

Promote 
and 
celebrate 
good 
practice  

 

 Analyse 
uptake data. 

 

Evaluate 
blended/ 
remote 
learning.  

 

Support 
schools 
working 
together to 
provide 
blended/rem
ote learning  

 

Promote 
and 
celebrate 
good 
practice  

 

 

 

P
age 150



 

 

capacity to 
teach 
subject 
within 
English-
medium 
schools 

 

Evaluate 
blended/rem
ote learning.  

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Teachers 
Headteachers 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Teachers 
Headteachers 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Teachers 
Headteachers 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Teachers 
Headteachers 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 
Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Teachers 
Headteachers 
Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 151



Target 

4.5 

 
Raise awareness of the additional resources which have been created by CSC specifically for Welsh speakers within the first year of 

the WESP 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Encourage 
school staff 
to engage 
with CSC 
Hwb 
Communitie
s and to join 
Welsh 
networks 
 
Publish 
Welsh 
Special 
bulletin 
which 
includes 
reference to 
resources 
available to 
support 
learning and 
teaching of 
Welsh. 
 
Promote 
available 
resources 
through 
various CSC 
networks, 
social media, 
and online 
communities.  

 Continue to 
promote 
available 
resources 
through 
various 
CSC 
networks, 
social 
media, and 
online 
communitie
s.  
 
Continue to 
develop 
appropriate 
resources to 
meet the 
needs of 
Curriculum 
for Wales 
for example 
Llwyfan 
Llafar Key 
Stage 4 and 
secondary 
Welsh  
language 
immersion 
resources. 
 
 

 Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
appropriate 
resources to 
meet the 
needs of 
Curriculum 
for Wales 
for example 
Llwyfan 
Llafar Key 
Stage 4 and 
secondary 
Welsh  
language 
immersion 
resources. 
 
Continue to 
promote 
available 
resources 
through 
various CSC 
networks, 
social media, 
and online 
communities 
 

 Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
appropriate 
resources to 
meet the 
needs of 
Curriculum 
for Wales 
for example 
Llwyfan 
Llafar Key 
Stage 4 and 
secondary 
Welsh  
language 
immersion 
resources. 
 
Continue to 
promote 
available 
resources 
through 
various CSC 
networks, 
social media, 
and online 
communities 
 

 Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
appropriate 
resources to 
meet the 
needs of 
Curriculum 
for Wales 
for example 
Llwyfan 
Llafar Key 
Stage 4 and 
secondary 
Welsh  
language 
immersion 
resources. 
 
Continue to 
promote 
available 
resources 
through 
various CSC 
networks, 
social 
media, and 
online 
communities 
 

 

P
age 152



 

 

 
Develop 
appropriate 
resources to 
meet the 
needs of 
Curriculum 
for Wales 
for example 
Llwyfan 
Llafar Key 
Stage 4 and 
secondary 
Welsh  
language 
immersion 
resources. 
 

Action 

holders 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 153



Target 

4.6 

 
Work with secondary schools to coordinate the provision of Welsh as a subject in all settings. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Professional 
discussion 
with school 
within the 
Curriculum 
Leaders 
Network 
Group to 
highlight 
each 
school’s 
current 
situation 
with schools 
delivering 
Welsh as a 
subject 

 Publish a 
resource to 
promote 
uptake of 
Welsh A-
level. 

  

Audit the 
current and 
potential 
future 
provision at 
Key Stage 4 
and Post-16 
in Welsh 
and English-
medium 
schools. 

 

 Undertake 
map and 
gap 
exercise 

  

Consider 
use of 
digital 
technology/
blended / 
remote 
learning to 
increase 
qualification 
offer 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh for 
example 
explore e-
sgol 
 

Promote the 
resource to 
increase 
uptake of 
Welsh A-
level.  

 Review 
provision  

 

Explore 
actions from 
map and 
gap 
exercise 
and create 
an action 
plan to 
support the 
provision of 
Welsh and 
as subject 

 

Develop 
collaboratio
n with the 
Welsh-
medium 
secondary 
sector to 
provide 
subject 
specific 
professional 
learning 
particularly 
in areas of 
Welsh-
medium 

 Review 
provision  

 

Implement 
actions from 
map and 
gap 
exercise 

 

P
age 154



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

practitioner 
shortage 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

P
age 155



 
Outcome 5:  More opportunities for learners to use Welsh in different contexts in school 

 
 

Strategic Lead: 

WESP Co-ordinator: 

Chair of Outcome 3 Sub-group: 

 

 

Michelle Hatcher 

Becca Avci 

Chris Newcombe 

        

Target 

5.1 

 
Work with English and Welsh-medium schools to analyse how much time is allocated to Welsh in school, this will be completed in the 

first year of the WESP. 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024 – 2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Undertake 
an audit on 
curriculum 
time 
allocated to 
Welsh in all 
schools as a 
baseline.  

 

Share 
findings with 
schools and 
create 
targets for 
future years. 

 

 Undertake a 
review audit 
curriculum 
time 
allocated to 
Welsh in all 
schools. 

  

Share 
findings with 
schools and 
create 
targets for 
future years. 

 

Liaise with 
schools to 
explore 
individual 
support 
needed to 

 Liaise with 
schools to 
explore 
individual 
support 
needed to 
deliver the 
Welsh 
language 
and to 
increase the 
amount of 
time 
allocated to 
Welsh 

 

Support 
schools with 
School 
developmen
t plans 
(SDPs) to 

 Undertake a 
review audit 
on 
curriculum 
time 
allocated to 
Welsh in all 
schools.  

 

Share 
findings with 
schools and 
create 
targets for 
future years. 

 

 Undertake a 
review audit 
on 
curriculum 
time 
allocated to 
Welsh in all 
schools.  

Share 
findings with 
schools and 
create 
targets for 
future years. 

 

 

 

P
age 156



deliver the 
Welsh 
language 
and to 
increase the 
amount of 
time 
allocated to 
Welsh 

 

Analyse 
data to 
ensure that 
target has 
been met. 

 

Welsh 
Language 
Developme
nt planning 
to be 
discussed in 
school 
improvemen
t 
conversatio
ns with 
Improvemen
t Partners. 

develop that 
use of 
Welsh  

 

Undertake a 
review audit 
on 
curriculum 
time 
allocated to 
Welsh in all 
schools.  

 

Share 
findings with 
schools and 
create 
targets for 
future years. 

 

Action 
holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

 

 

 

P
age 157



Target 

5.2 

 
Map opportunities available with partners and the community 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Discuss 
best 
practice of 
on-line 
careers 
event at 
Brynteg in 
2021.  
 
Plan for an 
annual 
online 
Careers 
event for 
English- 
Medium 
secondary 
schools that 
shows the 
importance 
of the Welsh 
language in 
various 
careers  
 

 

 Annual 
careers 
event. 
 
Compile 
learning and 
socialising 
opportunitie
s through 
the medium 
of Welsh 
available 
from 
partners 
and the 
community 
including 
libraries, 
community 
centres. 
 
Following 
the mapping 
of 
opportunitie
s with all 
partners, a 
calendar will 
be created 
and 
actioned/sh
ared 
accordingly. 

 Undertake 
audit to 
identify gaps 
in areas 
where more 
opportunitie
s are 
needed.  

Include 
youth 
workers and 
Youth 
Council to 
ensure that 
the voice of 
young 
people is at 
the core of 
this 
developmen
t 

 

Approach 
organisation
s and 
partners to 
increase 
opportunitie
s where 
there are 
gaps. 

  

 Review 
calendar of 
opportunitie
s and seek 
further 
opportunitie
s for young 
people to 
learn and 
socialise 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh.  

 

Approach 
organisation
s and 
partners to 
increase 
opportunitie
s where 
there are 
gaps. 

 

Share with 
school, 
further 
education 
and 
promoted 
on various 
platforms 

 Review 
calendar of 
opportunitie
s and seek 
further 
opportunitie
s for young 
people to 
learn and 
socialise 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh.  

 

Share with 
school, 
further 
education 
and 
promoted 
on various 
platforms 

 

P
age 158



 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the careers 
event 

 

Explore 
possibility of 
Welsh Art 
Council 
grants and 
share 
information 
with schools 

Share with 
schools, 
further 
education 
and 
promoted on 
various 
platforms 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the activities 
such as 
Urdd 
apprentices
hips with 
school staff 
and sixth-
form 
learners 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

WESP Coordinator 

Headteachers 

Teachers 

Group Manager School 
Support 

WESP Coordinator 

Urdd 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

WESP Coordinator 

Urdd 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

WESP Coordinator 

Urdd 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 159



Target 

5.3 

 
Develop an early engagement model of support for non-maintained settings in targeted areas to enhance children’s early linguistic 

experiences. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Collate a list 
of non-
maintained 
settings 
 
Undertake 
an audit of 
current 
provision 
and the 
settings’ 
needs as a 
baseline 
 

 Develop an 
early 
engagement 
model of 
support and 
set targets 
for 
engagement 
 
Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
our Welsh-
medium 
offer within 
childcare 
settings 

 Roll out the 
engagement 
model.  

 

45% of non-
maintained 
settings are 
engaged 
with support 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
our Welsh-
medium 
offer within 
childcare 
settings 

 60 % of 
non-
maintained 
settings are 
engaged 
with support 

 

Share good 
practice 
within 
relevant 
forum 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
our Welsh-
medium 
offer within 
childcare 
settings 

 70 % non-
maintained 
settings are 
engaged 
with support 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
our Welsh-
medium 
offer within 
childcare 
settings 

 

Action 

holders 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager  

Family Information Service 
and Childcare 
Development Officer 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

P
age 160



 

 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 161



Target 

5.4 

 
Professional learning and support for Welsh Language Immersion will be developed as well as resources to support the new 

curriculum. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Immersion 
staff to 
engage with 
the CSC’s 
network for 
Welsh 
Language 
Immersion 
teachers 
focused on 
sharing 
practice. 

 

Immersion 
staff to 
attend 
training on 
the 
methodolog
y of 
teaching 
language 

 

Promote 
primary 
Welsh 
immersion 
resources 
and 
professional 
learning  

 Training 
offered to all 
schools on 
the 
Immersion 
resources 

 

Immersion 
staff to 
engage with 
the CSC’s 
network for 
Welsh 
Language 
Immersion 
teachers 
focused on 
resources 

 

 

Deliver 
methodolog
y of 
teaching 
language 
professional 
learning. 

 

Facilitate a 
network for 
Welsh 

 Deliver 
methodolog
y of 
teaching 
language 
professional 
learning. 

 

Facilitate a 
network for 
Welsh 
Language 
Immersion 
teachers  

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Welsh 
immersion 
resources 
and 
professional 
learning on 
offer 

 

 Deliver 
methodolog
y of 
teaching 
language 
professional 
learning. 

 

Facilitate a 
network for 
Welsh 
Language 
Immersion 
teachers  

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Welsh 
immersion 
resources 
and 
professional 
learning on 
offer 

 

 Deliver 
methodolog
y of 
teaching 
language 
professional 
learning. 

 

Facilitate a 
network for 
Welsh 
Language 
Immersion 
teachers 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Welsh 
immersion 
resources 
and 
professional 
learning on 
offer 

 

 

P
age 162



 

 

Publish 
secondary 
Welsh 
language 
resources 
and 
associated 
professional 
learning. 

Language 
Immersion 
teachers 
focused on 
sharing 
practice. 

 

Action 

holders 

WESP Coordinator 

CSC 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

WESP Coordinator 

CSC 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

WESP Coordinator 

CSC 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

WESP Coordinator 

CSC 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

WESP Coordinator 

CSC 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 163



Target 

5.5 

 
CSC to promote, support, challenge and accredit all schools to make progress with the Language Charter and Cymraeg Campus 

Awards. Evaluate and share best practice. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Snap survey 
to all Welsh-
medium 
schools to 
ascertain 
where they 
are on their 
Siarter Iaith 
journey. 
Revise 
targets if 
needed 

 

Implement 
and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 
 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress 
with Siarter 
Iaith 
Cymraeg 

 Implement 
and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress with 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
 

 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 
Siarter Iaith 

 Implement 
and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 
 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress with 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus. 
 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 

 All Welsh-
medium 
schools to 
receive the 
next award  

 

Implement 
and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 

 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress 
with Siarter 
Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus. 
 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 

 Implement 
and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 
 

Produce 
resources 
and case 
studies to 
support 
schools to 
make 
progress with 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus. 
 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 

 

P
age 164



Campus. 
 

Facilitate 
networks for 
Siarter Iaith 
and 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
leads. 

 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Undertake 
verification 
visits. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

 

Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Undertake 
verification 
visits. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

 

Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Undertake 
verification 
visits. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

Campus 
leads. 

 

Encourage 
and support 
schools who 
have not 
started their 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Undertake 
verification 
visits. 

 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

 

Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
journey to 
do so. 

 

Undertake 
verification 
visits. 

Celebrate 
schools who 
have 
received 
awards and 
promote on 
various 
platforms 

 

Action 

holders 

CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

P
age 165



 

 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 166



Target 

5.6 

 
Increase informal use of Welsh within schools. The local authority and CSC will support English-medium primary and secondary 

schools to increase provision in Welsh by utilising the Cymraeg Campus Programme. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Undertake 
an audit on 
curriculum 
time 
allocated to 
Welsh in all 
schools as a 
baseline.  

 

Snap survey 
to all 
English-
medium 
schools to 
ascertain 
where they 
are on their 
Siarter Iaith 
journey. 
Revise 
targets if 
needed 

 

CSC to 
share termly 
data with 
the local 
authority 

 

Continue to 
implement 

 92% of 
English-
medium 
schools 
engaged in 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 

 

Continue to 
implement 
and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
awards at 
the end of 
every term 

 

 

 

 96% of 
English-
medium 
schools 
engaged in 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 

 

90% of all 
English-
medium 
primary 
schools that 
were 
engaged in 
2022-23 to 
have 
received the 
bronze 
award 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
awards at 

 100% of 
English-
medium 
schools 
engaged in 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
awards at 
the end of 
every term 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Continue to 
implement 
and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
awards at 
the end of 
every term 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 167



and develop 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
framework. 

 

Celebrate 
Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg 
Campus 
awards at 
the end of 
every term 

 

Increase the 
number of 
schools 
involved in 
Urdd 
activities by 
10% 

 

Urdd – Offer 
children and 
young 
people 
opportunitie
s to take 
part in 
Welsh 
language 
activities in 
school and 
outside of 
school 
hours. 

Increase the 
number of 
schools 
involved in 
Urdd 
activities by 
20% 

 

 

the end of 
every term 

 

Increase the 
number of 
schools 
involved in 
Urdd 
activities by 
30% 

 

 

Increase the 
number of 
schools 
involved in 
Urdd 
activities by 
40% 

 

 

Increase the 
number of 
schools 
involved in 
Urdd 
activities by 
60% 

 

Share 
resources 
created on 
use of 
incidental 
Welsh in 
English 
medium 
schools 

 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Urdd 
CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Urdd 
CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Urdd 
CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Urdd 
CSC 

Group Manager School 
Support 
Urdd 
CSC 

P
age 168



 

 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 
Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 
Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 
Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 
Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 
Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 169



Target 

5.7 

 
Encourage the language development and engagement with parents. The local authority will continue to work collaboratively with 

RhAG as members of the WEF. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Compile a 
list of the 
various 
forums to 
engage 
parents and 
carers 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Welsh 
language 
events 

 Attend 
Welsh 
language 
events to 
promote 
language 
courses and 
Welsh-
medium 
offer 
 

Explore and 
engage with 
parents on 
their 
language 
development 
needs and 
the best way 
to support 
them 
 

Explore the 
possibility of 
working with 
Menter Bro 
Ogwr to 
provide 
bespoke 
courses for 
parents 

 

 Promote 
and market 
Welsh 
language 
courses and 
refresher 
courses on 
various 
platforms 
and share 
with schools 

 

Attend 
Welsh 
language 
events to 
promote 
language 
courses and 
Welsh-
medium 
offer 

 

 

 Promote 
CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource: 

Primary 

Secondary 

 

Attend 
Welsh 
language 
events to 
promote 
language 
courses and 
Welsh-
medium 
offer 

 

Promote 
and market 
Welsh 
language 
courses and 
refresher 
courses on 
various 
platforms 

 Promote 
CSC 
‘Supporting 
your child to 
use Welsh 
language at 
home’ 
resource: 

Primary 

Secondary 

 

Attend 
Welsh 
language 
events to 
promote 
language 
courses and 
Welsh-
medium 
offer 

 

Promote 
and market 
Welsh 
language 
courses and 
refresher 
courses on 
various 
platforms 

 

P
age 170

https://express.adobe.com/page/C3kjLlS9GnMhn/
https://express.adobe.com/page/v15DUD7V8Kto2/
https://express.adobe.com/page/C3kjLlS9GnMhn/
https://express.adobe.com/page/v15DUD7V8Kto2/


 

Collate 
information 
regarding 
Welsh 
language 
and 
refresher 
classes for 
parents and 
promote 
courses 
available 
within all 
areas of the 
community 
 

Explore the 
possibility 
of working 
with 
Menter Bro 
Ogwr to 
provide 
bespoke 
courses for 
parents 

and share 
with schools 

 

and share 
with schools 

 

Action 

holders 

RhAG 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

RhAG 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

RhAG 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

RhAG 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

RhAG 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 171



Target 

5.8 

 
Consider the support that Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd could provide for English-medium schools. Also consider the peer-to-

peer support from the Welsh-medium primary schools (for example Bore Coffi). 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Discuss and 
plan a Bore 
Coffi 

 

Explore 
support 
from Menter 
Bro Ogwr 
and the 
Urdd  to 
support 
schools  

 A small 

group of 

Year 10/11 

pupils from 

Brynteg, 

Bryntirion 

and 

Pencoed 

Comprehens

ive Schools 

hold a half- 

termly Bore 

Coffi with a 

small group 

of pupils 

from 

Llangynwyd 

to support 

language 

development 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the bore 
coffi and the 
engagement 
of all 
schools 

 Explore the 
opportunitie
s available 
for both 
secondary 
and primary 
schools 
within 
cluster 
meetings 
and create 
an action 
plan 

 

Consider 
the use of 
funding 
available 
from CSC 
for peer-to-
peer 
support. 

 Review and 
implement 
action plan 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
activities 
from the 
action plan 
and the 
engagement 
of all 
schools 

 Review and 
implement 
action plan 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
activities 
from the 
action plan 
and the 
engagement 
of all 
schools 

 

P
age 172



 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Urdd 

Menter Bro Ogwr 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 
 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 173



 

 

Target 

5.9 

 
Explore the development of the digital space for children and young people and an incentive to engage with the language (for example, 

Minecraft and Roblox). 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

  Explore the 
use of 
digital 
learning 
with CSC 
area lead 
for digital 
learning as 
an incentive 
to engage 
with the 
Welsh 
language 

 

 

 Share 
opportunitie
s available 
with schools 

 Review and 
share 
opportunitie
s available 
with schools 

 Review and 
share 
opportunitie
s available 
with schools 

 

Action 

holders 

 Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Teachers 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

P
age 174



Target 

5.10 

 
Ensure alignment with the Council’s Five-Year Welsh Language Promotion Strategy 2021-2026. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Monitor and 
review the 
Council’s 
five- year 
Welsh 
Language 
Promotion 
Strategy in 
partnership 
with the 
lead officer 
in the 
Communica
tions Team. 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate a 
rolling 
calendar of 
events to 
celebrate 
Welsh 
language 
awareness 
days.  

 

Work with 
external 
partners to 
promote 
Welsh 
Language 

Review 
undertaken 
in 

November 
2022 

Review in 
November 
2023 

 

 Review in 
November 
2024 

 

 Review in 
November 
2025 

 

During this 
period, the 
five-year 
promotional 
strategy will 
be coming 
to an end. 
Therefore, 
consultation 
on a new 
strategy will 
be 
conducted. 
BCBC will 
collaborate 
with 
members of 
the WEF to 
ensure that 
a new plan 
is aligned to 
the WESP.   

 Review in 
November 
2026 

 

Implemented 
the new plan, 
building on 
the work 
completed in 
the previous 
five-year 
promotional 
strategy.  

 

P
age 175



events/activi
ties within 
the 
borough.  

 

Promote the 
Welsh- 
medium 
schools in 
the borough 
via 
corporate 
social media 
channels. 

 

Work with 
members of 
the WEF to 
develop a 
calendar of 
events, 
whereby 
corporate 
social media 
channels 
can promote 
Welsh 
Medium 
opportunitie
s.  

Work with 
members of 
the WEF to 
promote 
Welsh 
essential 
jobs within 
BCBC.  

 

Action 

holders 

WESP Co-ordinator  WESP Co-ordinator  WESP Co-ordinator  WESP Co-ordinator  WESP Co-ordinator  

P
age 176



 

 

Consultation, Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation, Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation, Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation, Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Consultation, Engagement 
and Equalities Manager 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 177



Target 

5.11 

 
Provide advice, professional learning, and resources will be provided to support schools to implement Welsh across the Curriculum 

thus increasing the amount of learning provision offered. The sharing of good practice across the region in a variety of ways (for 
example, webinars, podcasts, blogs and learning walks). 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Asynchrono
us, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
professional 
learning.  

 

Sharing 
best 
practice via 
networks.   
  
Continue to 
develop and 
promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
resource 
community 
on CSC 
website  
 

Promote, 
market, 
and 
celebrate 
resources 
available 

 Liaise with 
CSC to 
identify and 
plan support 
for this 
year.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
resources 
for Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
resources 
available 
from 
partners, 
namely 
Menter Bro 
Ogwr 

 Liaise with 
CSC to 
identify and 
plan support 
for this 
year.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
resources 
for Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
resources 
available 
from 
partners, 
namely 
Menter Bro 
Ogwr 

 Liaise with 
CSC to 
identify and 
plan support 
for this 
year.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
resources 
for Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
resources 
available 
from 
partners, 
namely 
Menter Bro 
Ogwr 

 

 

 Liaise with 
CSC to 
identify and 
plan support 
for this 
year.  

 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
resources 
for Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
resources 
available 
from 
partners, 
namely 
Menter Bro 
Ogwr 

 

P
age 178



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

from 
partners, 
namely 
Menter Bro 
Ogwr 
 

Continue to 
develop and 
promote 
resources 
for Welsh 
across the 
curriculum 
community 
on CSC 
website 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Outcome 3,4 and 5 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 179



 
Outcome 6:  An increase in the provision of Welsh-medium education for pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) in accordance with the duties 
imposed by the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 

 
 

Strategic Lead: 

WESP Co-ordinator: 

Chair of Outcome 6 Sub-group: 

 

 

Michelle Hatcher 

Becca Avci 

Nicola Williams 

        

Target 

6.1 

 
Developments from the Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Strategic Planning Review Board which will conclude its work by April 2023. 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024 – 2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Monitor the 
developmen
ts with 
regards to 
Welsh-
medium 
provision. 

 

April 2023 Monitor the 
implementat
ion of any 
recommend
ation with 
regards to 
Welsh-
medium 
provision. 

 Monitor, 
evaluate 
and review 
Welsh-
medium 
provision. 

 Monitor, 
evaluate 
and review 
Welsh-
medium 
provision. 

 Monitor, 
evaluate 
and review 
Welsh-
medium 
provision. 

 

Action 
holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

 

P
age 180



Target 

6.2 

 
 

Report on the outcome of the Public Notice for the Moderate Learning Difficulties (MLD) Learning Resource Centre (LRC) at Ysgol 
Cynwyd Sant during the first year of the WESP. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Establish 
MLD LRC at 
Ysgol 
Cynwyd 
Sant  

Create a 
marketing 
strategy for 
schools and 
information 
for parents. 

Ensure 
BCBC’s 
website has 
up-to-date 
relevant 
information.  

 

Cabinet 
approval to 
open in 
autumn 
term 2022. 

 

MLD LRC 
opened in 
autumn 
term 2022. 

 

 

Monitor 
progress of 
children 
attending 
MLD LRC 

Monitor data 
of children 
with MLD 
requiring a 
place in the 
LRC 

 

Devise a 
pupil road 
map to 
identify the 
journey from 
birth to 25 
and gaps 
within the 
journey.  

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the pupil 
road map 
with key 
stakeholders 

 

 Monitor 
progress 
and 
numbers 

 

Review the 
road map 

 

Implement 
marketing 
strategy for 
schools and 
information 
for parents. 

 

Ensure 
BCBC’s 
website has 
up to date 
relevant 
information 

 

. 

 Monitor 
progress 
and 
numbers  

 

Share and 
promote the 
pupil road 
map with 
officers and 
school to 
share with 
parents. 

 

Implement 
marketing 
strategy for 
schools and 
information 
for parents. 

 

Ensure 
BCBC’s 
website has 
up to date 
relevant 
information. 

 Monitor 
progress 
and 
numbers  

 

Share and 
promote the 
pupil road 
map with 
BCBC 
officers and 
school to 
share with 
parents. 

 

Implement 
marketing 
strategy for 
schools and 
information 
for parents. 

 

Ensure 
BCBC’s 
website has 
up to date 
relevant 
information. 

 

P
age 181



 

Implement 
marketing 
strategy for 
schools and 
information 
for parents. 

 

Ensure 
BCBC’s 
website has 
up-to-date 
relevant 
information.  

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 182



Target 

6.3 

 
The observation and assessment class at Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr will open in conjunction with the proposal through the School 

Modernisation Programme. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

School 
Modernisati
on to 
include an 
observation
s and 
assessment 
class within 
the new 
build for 
Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 

 

Report the 
outcome of 
the statutory 
process 
(School 
Organisatio
n Code, 
2018) to 
Cabinet and 
seek 
approval to 
proceed. 

 

Commence 
the design 
process 
 

 Conclude 
the design 
process. 

 

Submit a 
planning 
application 
for the 
replacement 
school. 

 

Undertake a 
tender 
process for 
the 
construction 
of the 
replacement 
school via 
the 
SEWSCAP 
Framework 
Agreement 

 

Submit the 
Full 
Business 
Case to 
Welsh 
Government 
for approval 

 Continue 
with the 
construction 
of the 
replacement 
school 

 

Promote 
new build 
and 
expansion 
of school on 
various 
platforms 
 

Monitor 
numbers/dat
a/ 

pupils with 
ALN leaving 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

 

Create a 
marketing 
strategy for 
the 
observation 
and 
assessment 

 Conclude 
construction 

 

Decant the 
existing 
school into 
the 
replacement 
school 

 

Replaceme
nt school 
opens for 
pupils 
 
Monitor 
progress 
and 
numbers 
destination 
annually 

 

Monitor 
numbers/dat
a/ 

pupils with 
ALN leaving 
Welsh-
medium 
education 
Monitor 

 Defects 
liability 
period ends 
 

Monitor 
progress 
and 
numbers 
destination 
annually 

 

Monitor 
numbers/dat
a/pPupils 
with ALN 
leaving 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

 

Create a 
marketing 
strategy for 
the 
observation 
and 
assessment 
class for 
schools and 
information 
for parents. 

 

P
age 183



 

Monitor the 
progress of 
Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr in 
Outcome 2 
sub-group 

 

Monitor 
numbers/dat
a/pupils with 
ALN leaving 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

 

 

Appoint the 
successful 
bidder to 
undertake 
construction 

 

Commence 
construction 
 

Monitor 
numbers/dat
a/ 

pupils with 
ALN leaving 
Welsh-
medium 
education. 

class for 
schools and 
information 
for parents.  

Ensure 
BCBC’s 
website has 
up to date 
relevant 
information.  

 

numbers/dat
a/Pupils 
with ALN 
leaving 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the unit 
working in 
partnership 
with  

Ensure 
BCBC’s 
website has 
up to date 
relevant 
information.  

 

 

Action 

holders 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Schools Programme 

Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 184



 

Target 

6.4 

 
 

Report on the secondary Welsh-medium MLD provision from the ALN Strategic Planning Review Board. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Review 
current 
provision for 
secondary 
Welsh-
medium 
MLD 

 

 

 

 Implement 
recommend
ation. 

 

Monitor 
provision-
numbers/ 
data 

 

 Monitor 
provision-
numbers/ 
data 

 

Create a 
marketing 
strategy for 
schools and 
information 
for parents.  

 

Ensure 
BCBC’s 
website has 
up- to-date 
relevant 
information 

 Monitor 
provision-
numbers/ 
data 

 

 Monitor 
provision-
numbers/ 
data 

 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

P
age 185



Target 

6.5 

 
Consider the sufficiency of the Additional Learning Provision (ALP) in Welsh and the size and capability of the workforce which also 

involves consideration of the Welsh-medium workforce. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

An analysis 
undertaken 
during the 
first year of 
the WESP 
of ALN 
staffing and 
any gaps 
identified 
utilising 
SWAC data. 
 
Audit the 
number of 
staff that 
can deliver 
their service 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh 
 

 Analyse 
demand, 
utilising data 
to develop 
and plan for 
ALN 
provision  
 
Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Welsh 
language 
refresher 
courses  
 
Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
Welsh 
language 
courses  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Create an 
ALP menu 
and 
compare the 
offer of 
Welsh-
medium 
support to 
English-
medium 
support 

 

Monitor 
succession 
planning 

 

Explore 
training 
opportunitie
s for staff 
that can 
deliver 
provisions 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh to 
build 
capacity of 
ALP 

 Monitor 
succession 
planning 

 

Explore 
training 
opportunitie
s for staff 
that can 
deliver 
provisions 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh to 
build 
capacity of 
ALP 

 

Monitor the 
ALP menu 
and share 
with 
relevant 
staff and 
agencies/ 
partners 

 

 Monitor 
succession 
planning 

 

Explore 
training 
opportunitie
s for staff 
that can 
deliver 
provisions 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh to 
build 
capacity of 
ALP 

 

Monitor the 
ALP menu 
and share 
with 
relevant 
staff and 
agencies/ 
partners 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

P
age 186



 

 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Target 

6.6 

 
Ensure all reasonable steps are taken for all learners with ALN or emerging needs to access support from the local authority’s 

mainstream schools, special schools, and advisory services through the medium of Welsh to ensure that there is full compliance with 
the ALNET Act 2018 and a bilingual system for pupils with ALN. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Analyse 
needs 
through the 
Access to 
Education 
Panel 
referrals  

 

 

 

 Analyse 
needs 
through 
referrals to 
specialist 
teams and 
the 
educational 
psychology 
service 
(EPS) 

Monitor the 
referrals to 
Access to 
Education 
Panel 

 Analyse the 
Welsh offer 
in special 
schools and 
the PRU 

 

Monitor the 
referrals to 
Access to 
Education 
Panel 

 

 Analyse the 
graduated 
response  

 

Monitor the 
referrals to 
Access to 
Education 
Panel 

 

 

 Monitor the 
referrals to 
Access to 
Education 
Panel 

 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

P
age 187



Target 

6.7 

 
During the first year of the WESP options will be considered to build specialist experience and knowledge amongst our Welsh-medium 
Workforce in partnership with our special schools. Secondment opportunities for Welsh secondary teachers to special schools will be 

considered. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

A strategic 
overview of 
workforce 
linguistic 
skills across 
all schools 
using 
SWAC data 
that has 
been 
completed 
using the 
Language 
Competenc
y 
Framework 

 

Undertake a 
skills audit 
of staff that 
can deliver 
specialist 
provision 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh.  

 

Links 
between 
special 
schools and 

 Links 
between 
special 
schools and 
Welsh-
medium 
workforce 
strengthene
d 

 

Explore 
training and 
experience 
opportunitie
s following 
needs 
identified in 
the skills 
audit. 

 

Explore 
secondment 
opportunitie
s and Welsh 
speaking 
staff 
developing 
professional
ly within a 

 Strong links 
between 
special 
schools and 
Welsh-
medium 
workforce 
established 

 

Explore 
training and 
experience 
opportunitie
s following 
needs 
identified in 
the skills 
audit. 

 

Explore 
secondment 
opportunitie
s and Welsh 
speaking 
staff 
developing 
professional
ly within a 
Special 
school. 

 Strong links 
between 
special 
schools and 
Welsh-
medium 
workforce 
established 

 

Explore 
training and 
experience 
opportunitie
s following 
needs 
identified in 
the skills 
audit. 

 

Explore 
secondment 
opportunitie
s and Welsh 
speaking 
staff 
developing 
professional
ly within a 
Special 
school. 

 Strong links 
between 
special 
schools and 
Welsh-
medium 
workforce 
established 

 

Explore 
training and 
experience 
opportunitie
s following 
needs 
identified in 
the skills 
audit. 

 

Explore 
secondment 
opportunitie
s and Welsh 
speaking 
staff 
developing 
professional
ly within a 
Special 
school. 

 

P
age 188



 

Welsh-
medium 
workforce 
established.  

 

Special 
school. 

Secondmen
t using 
secondary 
staff to 
support ALN 

 

Secondmen
t using 
secondary 
staff to 
support ALN 

Secondmen
t using 
secondary 
staff to 
support ALN 

 

Secondmen
t using 
secondary 
staff to 
support ALN 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

 

P
age 189



Target 

6.8 

 
Recruit and develop specialist staff to meet the growth and change in provision which will include early years and childcare. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Human 
Resources 
to look at 
recruitment 
procedures 

 

Explore 
courses that 
are provided 
by Mudiad 
Meitrhin, 
higher 
education 
and further 
education 

 

 

 Links 
between 
special 
schools and 
Welsh-
medium 
workforce 
established 
with the aim 
of using 
special 
schools’ 
expertise to 
professional
ly develop 
specialist 
staff 

 

Succession 
planning: 
Analyse 
needs data 
and 
compare to 
staffing 
audit and 
ALP menu 
that can be 
delivered 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh. Plan 
to recruit 

 Create a 
training 
planner with 
special 
schools for 
Welsh-
medium 
schools and 
staff to 
develop 
professional
ly and build 
capacity 

 

Succession 
planning: 
Analyse 
needs data 
and 
compare to 
staffing 
audit and 
ALP menu 
that can be 
delivered 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh. Plan 
to recruit 
staff at 
different 
stages 

 

 Succession 
planning: 
Analyse 
needs data 
and 
compare to 
staffing 
audit and 
ALP menu 
that can be 
delivered 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh. Plan 
to recruit 
staff at 
different 
stages 

 

Investment 
in training 

 

Update 
special 
school’s 
training 
calendar to 
using their 
expertise to 
professional
ly develop 

 Succession 
planning: 
Analyse 
needs data 
and 
compare to 
staffing 
audit and 
ALP menu 
that can be 
delivered 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh. Plan 
to recruit 
staff at 
different 
stages 

 

Investment 
in training 

 

Update 
special 
school’s 
training 
calendar to 
using their 
expertise to 
professional
ly develop 

 

P
age 190



staff at 
different 
stages 

Audit of 
professional 
developmen
t courses 
with ALN 
and share 
with 
relevant 
staff and 
settings 

 

Audit of the 
Welsh 
language 
refresher 
provision 
available 

 

Share 
findings of 
audit with 
schools, 
supply 
agencies, 
further and 
higher 
education.  

 

Discuss 
good 
practice 
model for 
transition 

Investment 
in training 

 

Monitor 
professional 
developmen
t courses 
and share 
with 
relevant 
staff and 
settings 

specialist 
staff  

 

 

 

Monitor 
professional 
developmen
t courses 
and share 
with 
relevant 
staff and 
settings 

specialist 
staff  

 

 

 

Monitor 
professional 
developmen
t courses 
and share 
with 
relevant 
staff and 
settings 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Early Years and Childcare 
Manager 

P
age 191



 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

P
age 192



Target 

6.9 

 
In collaboration with CSC, curriculum provision and resources will be appropriate for any pupil with ALN in both Welsh-medium and 

English-medium schools. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

CSC to 
develop, 
pilot and 
publish a 
Standardise
d Welsh 
Reading 
Test for 
Years 1-11 
in Welsh 
medium 
schools. 

 

Audit 
resources 
available 
from CSC 

 CSC to 
develop, 
pilot and 
publish a 
Standardise
d Welsh 
Spelling 
Test for 
Years 1-11 
in Welsh 
medium 
schools 

 

Monitor the 
use of the 
reading test 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
resources 
available 
from CSC 

 Audit 
specialist 
teams 
assessment
s that are 
available 
through the 
medium of 
Welsh and 
identify the 
gaps in 
assessment
s 

 

 

 

 

 Explore the 
possibility 
supporting 
the 
developmen
t of 
assessment
s with 
partners / 
agencies 

 

Share 
resources 
available 
from CSC 

 

Monitor any 
new 
resources 
that are on 
the market 

 Share 
resources 
available 
from CSC 

Monitor any 
new 
resources 
that are on 
the market 

 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
resources 
available 
from CSC 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 193



 

 

Target 

6.10 

 
Work in partnership with the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate and Bridgend College to ensure appropriate additional learning 

provision (ALP) and essential workforce. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Review 
current ALN 
ALP 
available 
Post-16 

 

Analyse 
need using 
data 

 Analyse 
need using 
data 

 

Analyse 
workforce  

 

Monitor, 
review ALP 
available 
Post-16 

 

 Create map 
of learners’ 
journey 0-25 
with 
progression 
of ALP and 
opportunitie
s 

 

 

 Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the learners’ 
journey map 

 Monitor, 
review ALP 
available 
Post-16 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group, promotion, 
marketing and celebrating 
sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

P
age 194



Target 

6.11 

 
Ensure that parents and carers are fully engaged through the various forums and consultation meetings which are in the local 

authority. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
MLD LRC at 
Ysgol 
Cynwyd 
Sant 

 

Promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet 
across all 
platform and 
hard copies 
shared with 
Early Years 
Team and 
Health 

 

Audit 
consultation 
meetings 
and forums 
and 
promote/adv
ertise in a 
timely 
manner 

 

 Review 
SNAP 
Cymru 
information 
on the 
Council 
website 

 

Ensure 
appropriate, 
accurate 
and timely 
information 
is on the 
Council 
website. 

 

Promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg?’ 
booklet 
across all 
platform and 
hard copies 
shared with 
Early Years 
Team and 
Health 

 

 Ensure 
appropriate, 
accurate 
and timely 
information 
is on the 
Council 
website. 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the 
observation 
and 
assessment 
class at 
Ysgol 
Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr 

 

Promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg? 
booklet 
across all 
platform and 
hard copies 
shared with 
Early Years 

 Ensure 
appropriate, 
accurate 
and timely 
information 
is on the 
Council 
website. 

 

Promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg? 
booklet 
across all 
platform and 
hard copies 
shared with 
Early Years 
Team and 
Health 

 

Advertise 
/promote 
consultation 
meetings 
and forums 
in a timely 
manner 

 Ensure 
appropriate, 
accurate 
and timely 
information 
is on the 
Council 
website. 

 

Promote 
‘Pam dewis 
addysg 
Gymraeg? 
booklet 
across all 
platform and 
hard copies 
shared with 
Early Years 
Team and 
Health 

 

Advertise 
/promote 
consultation 
meetings 
and forums 
in a timely 
manner 

 

P
age 195



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appropriate, 
accurate 
and timely 
information 
is on the 
Council 
website. 

 

Review 
SNAP 
Cymru 
information 
on the 
website 

 

Advertise 
/promote 
consultation 
meetings 
and forums 
in a timely 
manner 

Team and 
Health 

 

Advertise 
/promote 
consultation 
meetings 
and forums 
in a timely 
manner 

 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager Learner 
Support 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 196



 
Outcome 7:  Increase the number of teaching staff able to teach Welsh (as a subject) and through the medium of Welsh. 

 
Support local, regional, and national programmes for Welsh Language development by providing advice, professional learning, and support to practitioners to 
acquire and improve their Welsh Language skills. This will increase the capacity of teachers and support staff able to teach Welsh and through the medium of 
Welsh across all sectors 

 

Strategic Lead: 

WESP Co-ordinator: 

Chair of Outcome 7 Sub-group: 

 

 

Michelle Hatcher 

Becca Avci 

Nicola Williams 

        

Target 

7.1 

 
Regular analysis of data, monitoring and target setting to inform planning. 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024 – 2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Schools to 
use CSC’s 
professional 
learning on 
how to 
assess their 
Welsh 
language 
ability using 
the Welsh 
language 
competency 
framework 
for SWAC 
data to be 
up to date. 

 

CSC to 
present the 

 Analyse 
SWAC Data 
(Spring 
term) 

 

Create 
monitoring 
collection 
form for 
collection of 
workforce 
data 
including 
Mudiad 
Meithrin 

 

Analyse 
data 
qualification

 Analyse 
SWAC Data 
(Spring 
term) 

 

Analyse 
data 
qualification
s audit from 
Mudiad 
Meithrin 

 
Use 
monitoring 
form for 
collection of 
workforce 
data 
 

 Analyse 
SWAC Data 
(Spring 
term) 

 

Analyse 
data 
qualification
s audit from 
Mudiad 
Meithrin 

 

Use 
monitoring 
form for 
collection of 
workforce 
data 

 Analyse 
SWAC Data 
(Spring 
term) 

 

Analyse 
data 
qualification
s audit from 
Mudiad 
Meithrin 

 

Use 
monitoring 
form for 
collection of 
workforce 
data 

 

P
age 197



professional 
learning for 
Welsh 
Language 
Framework 
to highlight 
the 
importance 
of inputting 
the correct 
data at 
Team 
Bridgend 

 

Analyse 
SWAC Data 
(spring 
term) 

s audit from 
Mudiad 
Meithrin 

 
Use 
monitoring 
form for 
collection of 
workforce 
data 

Action 
holders 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Mudiad Meithrin 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

 

 

P
age 198



Target 

7.2 

 
Establish training and apprenticeship as part of the sub-group, using the relevant data, a detailed plan in relation to upskilling staff will 

be written. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Create an 
audit and 
data 
collection 
(Welsh for 
Adults) 

 

Utilise the 
Welsh 
Competency 
Framework 
to establish 
skills 
baseline- 
CSC 

 

Promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
the Cynllun 
Ysgolion 

Cam wrth 
Gam 
apprentiship
s 
placements 
at Cylch 
Meithrin and 
the Cynllun 
Clebran. 

 Ensure CSC 
Teaching 
Assistant 
Learning 
Pathway 
(TALP) 
training 
offers LSOs 
effective 
training for 
all levels. 

Audit of 
partners 
offers of 
training and 
apprentices
hips 

 

Create a 
road map of 
opportunitie
s and 
education 
career for 
staff. 

 

Use the data 
from the 
Welsh 
Competency 
Framework 

 Evaluate all 
training 
offers 
against 
baseline. 
Impact and 
affect 
(trends) 

 

Create a 
plan in 
relation to 
upskilling 
staff 

 

Monitor, 
promote 
and 
celebrate 
training and 
apprentices
hips 
opportunitie
s that arise 
from the 
audit 

 

 Monitor, 
promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
training and 
apprentices
hips 
opportunitie
s that arise 
from the 
audit 

 

 Monitor, 
promote, 
market, and 
celebrate 
training and 
apprentices
hips 
opportunitie
s that arise 
from the 
audit 

 

 

 

P
age 199



 

–audit to 
establish 
ways 
forward 

 

Use the 
information 
from the 
training/appr
enticeship 
audit to 
establish 
gaps in 
training.  

 

Promote 
Welsh 
Immersion 
training/Sab
batical 
training 

 

Promote 
training and 
apprentices
hips 
opportunitie
s that arise 
from the 
audit 

Action 

holders 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 200



Target 

7.3 

 
Monitor those schoolteachers who can teach through the medium of Welsh and look at the reasons why teachers leave Welsh-medium 

schools and introduce a questionnaire/exit interview. Monitor and evaluate trends in both teaching and support staff retention. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Schools to 
use CSC 
professional 
learning on 
how to 
assess their 
Welsh 
language 
ability using 
the Welsh 
language 
competency 
framework 
for SWAC 
data to be 
up to date. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
Welsh 
sabbatical 
data  

 

Create exit 
interview 
questionnair
e 

 

Share 
interview 
questionnair

 Schools to 
use CSC 
professional 
learning on 
how to 
assess their 
Welsh 
language 
ability using 
the Welsh 
language 
competency 
framework 
for SWAC 
data to be 
up to date. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
Welsh 
sabbatical 
data  

 

Identify 
reasons for 
leaving and 
put a plan in 
place to 
reduce the 
number of 
leavers by 
1%. Monitor 

 Schools to 
use CSC 
professional 
learning on 
how to 
assess their 
Welsh 
language 
ability using 
the Welsh 
language 
competency 
framework 
for SWAC 
data to be 
up to date. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
Welsh 
sabbatical 
data  

 

Monitor and 
evaluate 
trends 

 

Amend and 
enhance 
plan to 
reflect the 

 Schools to 
use CSC 
professional 
learning on 
how to 
assess their 
Welsh 
language 
ability using 
the Welsh 
language 
competency 
framework 
for SWAC 
data to be 
up to date. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
Welsh 
sabbatical 
data  

 

Monitor and 
evaluate 
trends 

 

Evaluate 
current plan 
and reduce 

 Schools to 
use CSC 
professional 
learning on 
how to 
assess their 
Welsh 
language 
ability using 
the Welsh 
language 
competency 
framework 
for SWAC 
data to be 
up to date. 

 

CSC to 
provide 
Welsh 
sabbatical 
data  

 

Monitor and 
evaluate 
trends 

 

Evaluate the 
plan and 
reduce 

 

P
age 201



 

 

e with 
headteacher
s  

 

 

and 
evaluate 
trends 

current 
year’s data 
on reasons 
for leaving  

 

Reduce 
leavers by 
1% 

leavers by 
1%. 

leavers by 
1% 

Action 

holders 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

P
age 202



Target 

7.4 

 
Bridgend will work closely with other local authorities in CSC in planning and supporting school staff across all sectors to further 

improve their Welsh language skills through professional learning opportunities, resources, the sharing of good practice, and bespoke 
support to individual or groups of schools across the region. 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Deliver 
asynchronou
s, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
Language 
Development 
professional 
learning 
linked to the 
Welsh 
Language 
Competency 
Framework. 

 

NQTs to 
attend 
CSC’s 
Aspire 
programme 
and 
induction 

 

Promote the 
free Welsh 
language 
professional 
learning 
provided by 

 Review 
current offer 
of support 
through 
professional 
learning to 
determine 
needs. 

 

Create a 
road map of 
opportunitie
s available 

 

Analyse the 
Language 
Framework 
data as a 
baseline for 
improvement. 

 

Deliver 
asynchronou
s, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
Language 
Developmen
t 

 Consider 
bespoke 
training/supp
ort individual 
schools e.g. 
post Estyn 
inspections 

 

Re-establish 
SLA for 
Hwb training 
schools to 
share good 
practice 

 

Deliver 
asynchrono
us, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
Language 
Developme
nt 
professional 
learning 
linked to the 
Welsh 
Language 
Competenc

 Monitor 
impact of 
support 
through 
SWAC/Wels
h 
competency 
framework  

 

Deliver 
asynchronou
s, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
Language 
Development 
professional 
learning 
linked to the 
Welsh 
Language 
Competency 
Framework. 

 

Promote the 
free Welsh 
language 
professional 
learning 
provided by 

 Deliver 
asynchronou
s, face-to-
face, and 
bespoke 
Welsh 
Language 
Development 
professional 
learning 
linked to the 
Welsh 
Language 
Competency 
Framework. 

 

Promote the 
free Welsh 
language 
professional 
learning 
provided by 
Learn 
Welsh. 

 

 

P
age 203



 

 

Learn 
Welsh. 

professional 
learning 
linked to the 
Welsh 
Language 
Competency 
Framework. 

 

Promote the 
free Welsh 
language 
professional 
learning 
provided by 
Learn 
Welsh. 

 

y 
Framework. 

 

Promote the 
free Welsh 
language 
professional 
learning 
provided by 
Learn 
Welsh. 

 

Promote the 
roadmap 

 

 

Learn 
Welsh. 

 

Action 

holders 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

Principal Advisor 
Employee Relations 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

 

P
age 204



Target 

7.5 

 
Ensure that staff from Welsh-medium schools are applying for relevant national leadership development programmes including the 

Aspiring Headteacher Programme leading to National Professional Qualification Headteachers (NPQH) qualification. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

Monitor the 
number of 
Welsh-
medium 
applicants 
on the 
national 
leadership 
programme
s including 
destination 
reports for 
NPQH 
candidates. 

 

CSC to 
speak with 
Headteache
rs and 
improvemen
t partners 

 

Monitor 
success rate 
of NPQH 
qualification 
following the 
Aspiring 
Headteacher 
course 

 

No 
applicants 
from Welsh-
medium 
schools for 
the Aspiring 
Headteache
r 
programme 
for the last 
two years.  

 

Middle level 
managemen
t training for 
Welsh 
leaders 

 

Monitor the 
number of 
Welsh-
medium 
applicants 
on the 
national 
leadership 
programme
s including 
destination 
reports for 
NPQH 
candidates. 

 

CSC to 
speak with 
Headteacher
s and 
improvemen
t partners 

 

Monitor 
success rate 
of NPQH 

 Middle level 
managemen
t training for 
Welsh 
leaders 

 

Monitor the 
number of 
Welsh-
medium 
applicants 
on the 
national 
leadership 
programme
s including 
destination 
reports for 
NPQH 
candidates. 

 

CSC to 
speak with 
Headteache
rs and 
improvemen
t partners 

 

Monitor 
success rate 
of NPQH 

 Middle level 
managemen
t training for 
Welsh 
leaders 

 

Monitor the 
number of 
Welsh-
medium 
applicants 
on the 
national 
leadership 
programme
s including 
destination 
reports for 
NPQH 
candidates. 

 

CSC to 
speak with 
Headteache
rs and 
improvemen
t partners 

 

Monitor 
success rate 
of NPQH 

 Middle level 
managemen
t training for 
Welsh 
leaders 

 

Monitor the 
number of 
Welsh-
medium 
applicants 
on the 
national 
leadership 
programme
s including 
destination 
reports for 
NPQH 
candidates. 

 

CSC to 
speak with 
Headteache
rs and 
improvemen
t partners 

 

Monitor 
success rate 
of NPQH 

 

P
age 205



 

 

Undertake a 
succession 
planning 
audit to see 
how it looks 
in BCBC 
schools 

qualification 
following the 
Aspiring 
Headteacher 
course 

qualification 
following the 
Aspiring 
Headteacher 
course 

 

qualification 
following the 
Aspiring 
Headteacher 
course 

 

qualification 
following the 
Aspiring 
Headteache
r course 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Group Manager School 
Support  

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

P
age 206



Target 

7.6 

 
Work in partnership with initial teacher education (ITE) partnerships to support student teachers and to ensure that Welsh-medium 

schools are identified as lead, training, or placement schools. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

  Link in with 
Higher 
Education 
representati
ve and 
Headteache
rs with the 
aim of 
schools 
working in 
partnership 
with ITE 

 

Collect the 
routes into 
teaching 
available 
and 
promote  

 Strong links 
with higher 
education 
established.  

 

Two Welsh-
medium 
schools are 
placement 
school 

 

Work with 
external 
partners to 
promote 
initiatives on 
routes into 
teaching 
and share 
any relevant 
information 
with schools 
and various 
platforms. 

 

Evaluate 
initiatives 
and routes 
into 
teaching 

 Three 
Welsh-
medium 
schools are 
placement 
schools for 
ITE 

 

Explore 

developing 

a new route 

to QTS for 

Welsh 

medium 

applicants 

 

Strong links 
with higher 
education 
established. 

 

Promote 
routes into 
teaching 

 Four Welsh-
medium 
schools are 
placement 
schools for 
ITE 

 

Promote 
routes into 
teaching 

 

P
age 207



 

 

 

and plan a 
way forward 

Action 

holders 

 Higher Education 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Higher Education 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Higher Education 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Higher Education 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

P
age 208



 

 

Target 

7.7 

 
Professional learning and support to newly qualified teachers (NQT) teachers will be provided 

 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

NQTs to 
attend CSC 
Aspire 
programme 

 

Internal 
mentors to 
attend CSC 
training and 
support 
NQTs 
throughout 
the year 

 NQTs to 
attend CSC 
Aspire 
programme 

 

Internal 
mentors to 
attend CSC 
training and 
support 
NQTs 
throughout 
the year 

Monitor data 

 NQTs to 
attend CSC 
Aspire 
programme 

 

Internal 
mentors to 
attend CSC 
training and 
support 
NQTs 
throughout 
the year 

Monitor data 

 NQTs to 
attend CSC 
Aspire 
programme 

 

Internal 
mentors to 
attend CSC 
training and 
support 
NQTs 
throughout 
the year 

Monitor data 

 NQTs to 
attend CSC 
Aspire 
programme 

 

Internal 
mentors to 
attend CSC 
training and 
support 
NQTs 
throughout 
the year 

Monitor data 

 

Action 

holders 

CSC 

Headteachers  

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

CSC 

Headteachers 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

P
age 209



Target 

7.8 

 
Provide post-sabbatical support for practitioners engaged with sabbatical programmes; and provide advice, support, and guidance to 

schools on how to accurately reflect the Welsh language skills of staff. 
 

Year 2022-2023 Update 2023-2024 Update 2024-2025 Update 2025-2026 Update 2026-2027 Update 

Actions 

CSC to 
present the 
professional 
learning for 
Welsh 
Language 
Framework 
to highlight 
the 
importance 
of inputting 
the correct 
data at 
Team 
Bridgend. 

 

Promote 
effective use 
of Welsh 
Language 
Competency 
Framework 
to assess 
skills and 
plan 
appropriate 
professional 
learning. 

 

Provide post 
sabbatical 
support for 

 CSC to 
provide 
uptake 
information 
of 
sabbatical 
course – 
names and 
schools so 
that staff 
can be 
encouraged 
to continue 
to develop 
their Welsh 
language 
skills and be 
made aware 
of 
vacancies. 

 

Provide post 
sabbatical 
support for 
practitioners 
to include 
networking 
opportunities
, leadership 
of Welsh 
professional 
learning 

 CSC to 
provide 
uptake 
information 
of 
sabbatical 
course – 
names and 
schools so 
that staff 
can be 
encouraged 
to continue 
to develop 
their Welsh 
language 
skills and be 
made aware 
of 
vacancies. 

 

Promote 
effective use 
of Welsh 
Language 
Competency 
Framework to 
assess skills 
and plan 
appropriate 
professional 
learning. 

 Promote 
effective 
use of 
Welsh 
Language 
Competenc
y 
Framework 
to assess 
skills and 
plan 
appropriate 
professional 
learning. 

 

Provide post 
sabbatical 
support for 
practitioners 
to include 
networking 
opportunities
, leadership 
of Welsh 
professional 
learning 
along with 
bespoke 
support from 
CSC 
Development 
Officer. 

 Promote 
effective 
use of 
Welsh 
Language 
Competenc
y 
Framework 
to assess 
skills and 
plan 
appropriate 
professional 
learning. 

 

Provide post 
sabbatical 
support for 
practitioners 
to include 
networking 
opportunitie
s, leadership 
of Welsh 
professional 
learning 
along with 
bespoke 
support from 
CSC 
Developmen
t Officer. 

 

P
age 210



 

 

 

 

practitioners 
to include 
networking 
opportunitie
s, 
leadership 
of Welsh 
professional 
learning 
along with 
bespoke 
support 
from CSC 
Developme
nt Officer. 

along with 
bespoke 
support from 
CSC 
Developmen
t Officer. 

 

Share 
practice. 

 

CSC to 
present the 
professional 
learning for 
Welsh 
Language 
Framework 
to highlight 
the 
importance 
of inputting 
the correct 
data at 
Team 
Bridgend 

 

Share 
practice. 

 

CSC to 
present the 
professional 
learning for 
Welsh 
Language 
Framework 
to highlight 
the 
importance 
of inputting 
the correct 
data at 
Team 
Bridgend 

 

 

Share 
practice 

 

Share 
practice 

Action 

holders 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

Group Manager School 
Support 

Headteachers 

CSC 

Outcome 6 and 7 sub-
group 

Promotion, marketing and 
celebrating sub-group 

P
age 211



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3  

 
 

 

ANNUAL REVIEW 

REPORT WELSH IN 

EDUCATION STRATEGIC 

PLAN 

2022-2023 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Local Authority 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

 

 

 

Author: Group Manager (Learner Support)/WESP co-ordinator 

Approver: Corporate Director Education and Family Support 

Date 24 July 2023 

  

Page 213



Appendix 3  

 
 

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS / HIGHLIGHTS 

 

• The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) has been strengthened. Membership 

of the WEF has been reviewed and terms of reference adopted. Five sub-

groups for the seven outcomes have been established, with chairs from the 

WEF appointed and terms of reference adopted for each sub-group. 

• Late immersion provision has been established. The local authority has 

utilised the grant from Welsh Government and have employed one teacher 

and one Learning Support Officer (LSO). The model that has been introduced 

is one whereby the staff travel between schools to deliver late immersion 

provision. 

• Provision for pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) has increased. A 

Welsh-medium learning resource centre (LRC) for pupils with moderate 

learning difficulties (MLD) opened in autumn 2022 at Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg 

Cynwyd Sant with a capacity of 15 pupils. 

• To promote and celebrate Bridgend’s Welsh-medium education journey, a 

video has been developed with partners and will be launched in autumn 2023.  

 

 

 

OVERALL PLAN SUMMARY 

To support Cymraeg 2050: A million Welsh speakers’ strategy, Welsh Government 
has set Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) a target to increase the 
percentage of learners taught through the medium of Welsh from c.8% to between 
14% - 18% by 2032 (based on PLASC data of Year 1 learners 2019-2020). This is in 
accordance with the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 2019. 
 
There are currently four Welsh-medium primary schools and one Welsh-medium 
secondary school in the local authority. Two of the four Welsh-medium primary 
schools are in the north of the county borough, one in the west and one in the south. 
The Welsh-medium secondary school is based in the north of the County Borough. 
 
In 2021, Bridgend’s Welsh-medium schools had 162 pupil places available for 
Reception-age learners. The local authority has set a target of 300 Reception places 
being available for Welsh-medium learners by the end of the plan period, which is an 
additional 138 additional pupil places. The 300 Reception places equate to ten forms 
of entry, and the aim is to ensure those places are filled.  
 
The number of Reception age places would only increase once the new schools are 

open. 

 

Rating: Amber 

 

Page 214



Appendix 3  

 
 

FOREWARD LOOK MILESTONES 

 

Our key priorities for the coming year are:  

 

• Determine the future Welsh-medium investment priorities for the nine-year 

rolling programme. 

• Progress the Welsh-medium school and childcare schemes as per their 

programmes, for delivery in future years. 

• Conclude the options appraisal in respect of secondary provision. 

• Further develop the late immersion provision. 

 
 
There are further key actions within the five-year WESP for 2023-2024 which 
include: 
 

• Develop the local authority’s website with the aim that parent/carers can 
easily navigate up-to-date information regarding Welsh-medium education. 

• Strengthen the transition process from early years childcare to Welsh-medium 
education. 

• Improve retention rates for Post-16. 

• Explore the use of blended learning and digital learning alongside promoting 
of the benefits of studying Welsh. 

• Provide opportunities for learners to use the Welsh language in informal 
situations by working with partners to map and create further opportunities. 

• Increase the amount of Welsh used in English-medium schools and ensure 
schools move along the Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus continuum. 

• Establish a Welsh-medium observation and assessment class. 

• Strengthen partnerships between Welsh-medium schools and special schools 
with the aim of offering secondment opportunities to build capacity within our 
workforce; and 

• Create a plan to upskill the Welsh-medium workforce and working with 
partners to promote and create opportunities for professional development. 

 
The golden thread throughout the five-year WESP (2022-2027) is our commitment to 
promote, market and celebrate progress, opportunities, and our dedication to 
increase our Welsh-medium offer across a variety of platforms using a dedicated 
sub-group to drive this forward. Activities and actions align with the Welsh Language 
Strategy (2021-2026). 

 

  

Page 215



Appendix 3  

 
 

Outcome 1 

Outcome 1 

More nursery children/ three-year olds receive their education 

through the medium of Welsh 

KEY ANNUAL DATA  

The Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (CSA) offers Bridgend a clear evaluation of 
the spread and availability of childcare within Bridgend County. As part of the CSA, 
an action plan is developed. The action plan reflects demand and considers local 
factors such as suitable accommodation opportunities within the identified 
community areas with potential gaps.  

 
Within Bridgend provision is outlined in the table below.  
 

Day Nurseries 21 

Sessional Childcare Providers 7 

Flying Start 12 

Childminders 46 

Cylch Meithrin 6 (7 including Flying Start’s 
Blaenllynfi site) 

Out of school providers 15 

Total 108 

 
There have been some closures of provisions across the county, most notably 

in childminding. This is a national issue, and the sector of childcare that was 

perhaps most affected by COVID-19. The childcare team are working with 

colleagues in the Professional Association of Childcare and Early Years 

(PACEY) and Welsh Government to enhance the initiatives for childminders, 

and particularly those delivering in the medium of Welsh.   

The local authority’s childcare team continues to work with Mudiad Meithrin to 

increase the number of Cylchoedd Meithrin across the county borough.  There 

has been a closure of a Cylch Meithrin in the centre of Bridgend and both 

partners are working together to help restore provision here and increase in 

other areas in the local authority.  

Total Number of pupils as at PLASC  

Year Groups 
Welsh-

medium 
schools 

English-
medium 
schools   

% of pupils 
in Welsh-
medium 
schools 

Total number 
of pupils 

2021-2022 

N1 19 258 6.86 277 
N2 131 1295 9.19 1426 

2022-2023 

N1 17 244 6.51 261 

Page 216



Appendix 3  

 
 

N2 123 1296 8.67 1419 

• The projection for the number and percentage of three-year-olds receiving 

their education through the medium of Welsh for 2022-2023 was 150 pupils 

and 9.58%.  

• In 2022-2023, 123 children and 8.67% attended nursery classes in Welsh-

medium schools. A further 23 children and 9% received their education 

through the medium of Welsh in funded non-maintained Early Years settings. 

• In summer term 2023 for Flying Start, ten children attended Cylch Meithrin 

Sgêr, five attended Cylch Meithrin Plant Bach, one attended Cylch Meithrin 

Cynwyd Sant, one attended Cylch Meithrin Gwdihw and three attended Cylch 

Meithrin Pencoed. This represents 4.8% of all children accessing Flying Start 

Childcare in the summer term. 

 

Cylchoedd Meithrin (Mudiad Meithrin) 

 

Transition data:  
Cylchoedd Meithrin to Welsh-medium Schools 2021-2022 

2020-2021 

Name 

Number 
transferred 
to school 

Number 
transferred to 

Welsh-
medium 
schools 

Number 
transferred 
to English-

medium 
schools 

% 
Transferred 
to Welsh-
medium 

education 

% 
Transferred 
to Welsh-
medium 

education 

Cynwyd Sant 13 13 0 100.00% 100.00% 

Dechrau’n Deg 
Lon y Parc 

8 4 4 50.00% 75.00% 

Gwdihŵ 15 4 11 26.67% 12.50%* 

Pencoed 34 11 23 32.35% 44.83% 

Plant Bach 
Sarn 

30 19 11 63.33% 60.00% 

Y Diwlith 17 16 1 94.12% 91.67% 

Y Sgêr 14 12 2 85.71% 68.75% 

• In 2022-2023, the local authority funded 20 Flying Start childcare places 

compared to 10 places in 2021-2022.  

• There are currently 13 children accessing Welsh-medium childcare provision 

in the original Flying Start areas, which represents approximately 4% of the 

total number of children accessing the childcare provision. The percentage in 

the phase two expansion areas is higher at 7%, which represents seven 

children.   

• As part of the childcare entitlement in Flying Start, parents are offered the 

choice of Welsh and English-medium childcare provision. The team provides 

links to the ‘Why Choose Welsh-medium education?’ booklet when childcare 

options are discussed. There are Welsh and English-medium childcare 

provision available in all current Flying Start areas, and places are purchased 

on demand.  

• The reasons why children do not always transition into Welsh-medium 
education from Welsh-medium childcare are complex with no clear trend. A 
review undertaken previously identified some potential reasons such as, 

Page 217



Appendix 3  

 
 

uncertainty over nursery place availability at Welsh-medium schools, lack of 
nursery places within their community within a reasonable distance from the 
home, travel distances and arrangements.  

• The local authority remains committed to improving transition rates, with the 
commitment shared with all key stakeholders in the sector. The Welsh-
medium schools and Welsh-medium childcare provisions will work together to 
achieve this improvement. 
 

OUTCOME SUMMARY 

 

• The plan to increase the number of Welsh-medium Flying Start childcare 
places for the current expansion areas and for subsequent phases, includes 
implementing the model that has been developed in one of the existing Flying 
Start settings in Bridgend.  The two new Flying Start childcare settings in 
Ogmore Vale and Nantymoel will offer both Welsh and English-medium 
sessions. 
 

• The childcare team accesses free training through Camau and will work in 
collaboration with Mudiad Meithrin and Croesi’r Bont officers to develop the 
Welsh-medium offer. This will enable parents to choose Welsh or English-
medium provision at the same setting, which we hope, through partnership 
working with Welsh-medium primary headteachers, will increase the number 
of children who transition to Welsh-medium primary schools. This model has 
been submitted to Welsh Government and agreed as part of the expansion 
plan. 

 

• As referenced previously, our Flying Start childcare team at Brackla has 
partnered with Camau and Mudiad Meithrin to develop a model that has 
enabled them to deliver their afternoon sessions through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 

• The webpage on the local authority’s website is currently being updated.  The 
admissions team within the Education and Family Support Directorate are 
aware of the schools available. Information on Welsh-medium nursery 
education is available to all parents and carers on the local authority’s 
website detailing school admission arrangements and advice on schooling 
available. 
 

• The ‘Why choose Welsh-medium education?’ booklet and posters are in the 
process of being distributed. Information on the booklets has been shared 
with Flying Start Health Visitors. There is now Family Information Service 
Officer in post. However, there was an unforeseen delay in the start date of 
this officer which has impacted on activities planned. The booklet has been 
uploaded to the local authority’s website. There has been a restructure within 
Mudiad Meithrin Bridgend now comes under the Mid and West Wales region. 
The focus in the first instance will be to build relationships and to share 
information to further strengthen collaboration. 
 

Page 218



Appendix 3  

 
 

• The childcare team undertook a parental consultation and are looking into 
setting up forums during summer 2023. 

 
• Cymraeg i Blant is one of Mudiad Meithrin's schemes which supports parents 

to choose childcare and Welsh-medium education. This is mainly done by 
providing free baby support groups for parents in Bridgend. 

 

• The Cymraeg i Blant local officer provides information, support, and 
resources to parents in Bridgend when choosing the bilingual journey for their 
child. 

 

• Cymraeg i Blant sponsor the maternity folder, the scan card and the personal 
record of a child's health and share resources with the new parents when 
leaving hospital. This arrangement is in place with Cwm Taf Health Board.  
Cymraeg i Blant are in constant contact with the Midwives and Health Visitor 
teams in terms of what messages should be shared with new families. 

 

• A series of termly groups such as baby massage, baby yoga, story, sing and 
sign sessions were held in Maesteg, Y Sarn, Bridgend Town, Pyle and 
Bettws. 
 

Cymraeg i Blant group numbers in Bridgend between 2022-23 

Story, Song and 
Signing 

Number of groups  65 

Number of parents  548 

Massage Number of groups  90 

Number of parents  754 

Sensory Groups Number of groups  3 

Number of parents  25 

 

• In addition, events such as fun mornings and sensory groups were held 
jointly with Menter Bro Ogwr throughout 2022-2023. 
 

• All partners of the Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) have access to the 
shared Welsh events calendar which the local authority’s Communication 
Team also accesses to promote activities on social media platforms. 
 

• The Childcare Adequacy Assessment action plan details the plans over the 
next five years. The annual review is in progress and stakeholder focus 
groups and questionnaires will help us to better understand the demand for 
Welsh-medium childcare and the barriers to access. We will continue to 
monitor the numbers and percentage of children accessing Early Years 
childcare through the medium of Welsh and take action to satisfy parental 
demand. 

 

• The local authority provides free home-to-school transport for non-statutory 

nursery aged pupils who live 1.5 miles or more away from their nearest 

suitable school (including Welsh-medium schools).  Furthermore, the local 

authority supports free home-to-school transport to the nearest Welsh-

medium primary schools and to the Welsh-medium secondary school, where 

Page 219



Appendix 3  

 
 

the distance is more than two miles (primary) and three miles (secondary) 

respectively. The local authority also supports Post-16 learners attend their 

nearest Welsh-medium sixth form with free home-to-school transport, where 

the distance, is greater than three miles. 

 
 
The members of the WEF work proactively to support the WESP.  Each member of 
the WEF works as part of the sub-group for Outcome One.  As part of the work of 
this sub-group an annual development plan has been created, and activities have 
been developed with partners. The annual development plan has been monitored 
and evaluated by members of this sub-group. The activities were evaluated three 
times a year using the Education and Family Support Directorate’s red, amber, 
yellow, and green (RAYG) system.  

 
The actions outlined in the sub-group development plan are as follows: 

 

• The booklet ‘Why choose Welsh-medium education?’ has been published 
with 10k copies printed. A poster has also been created with QR codes taking 
the reader to an electronic copy. Hundreds of booklets have been distributed 
to schools, Flying Start centres, private nurseries, libraries, local community 
centres, and other community hubs. The booklet has been shared with 
partners and is regularly promoted by the Communications team across 
different platforms. Mudiad Meithrin has arranged for Cymraeg i Blant to 
design and deliver training for health visitors and midwife teams to promote 
Welsh-medium education from a young age. 

• In July 2023, Cymraeg i Blant held craft activities in Y Nyth at Gŵyl Ogi Ogi 
Ogwr.  

• Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr is in the design stage and there will be 90 spaces 
for three-year olds.  

• Ysgol Y Ferch o’r Sgêr will increase in capacity to 60 spaces for three-year 
olds.  

• Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr’s new build is in the planning stage and will have 
90 spaces for three-year olds. 

• Plans for the seedling school in Porthcawl are progressing which will give an 
additional 30 spaces for three-year olds.  

• Two childcare hubs have been purposefully designed and built to a very high 
standard. The setting in Bettws was handed over to the local authority in 
November 2022 and Blackmill was handed over in March 2023. There have 
been challenges in identifying a suitable provider which has necessitated 
high-level liaison with colleagues in Mudiad Meithrin, Welsh Government and 
the local authority to improve the level of incentive on offer. The opportunity 
to operate from the Betws hub will be going out to a tender, with a much-
improved financial offer, in the autumn term to secure a Welsh-medium 
provider. At the time of writing, a suitable provider has expressed a firm 
interest. The same options have been explored in relation to the Blackmill 
setting, but due to its location the set up and succeed team at Mudiad 
Meithrin has advised that it is currently unviable, even with the improved 
financial incentives on offer. With the agreement of Welsh Government, the 
local authority is currently exploring the possibility of utilising the building as a 
late-immersion centre for primary-aged Welsh medium learners. 

Page 220



Appendix 3  

 
 

• All partners have promoted Welsh-medium education by sharing Mudiad 
Meithrin’s videos. All Welsh-medium primary schools have uploaded the 
videos to their websites and shared on their communication platforms.  

• All partners have been active in sharing information such as dewis.cymru and 
Learn Welsh courses. It is positive to see a large uptake of Welsh lessons 
this year.  

Cwrs Blasu = 44  
Cwrs Mynediad = 144  
Cwrs Sylfaen = 56  
Cwrs Canolradd = 52  
Cwrs Uwch = 71  
Total = 367  
 

• In June 2023, the WEF gave formal recommendation that the local authority 
pursue catchment areas for Welsh-medium schools. To progress this, it is 
proposed that a report will be presented to Cabinet during autumn 2023 to 
recommend that the local authority progresses a public consultation on this 
matter. Following consideration of the outcome of the consultation, if Cabinet 
is minded, to approve the implementation of Welsh-medium school 
catchment areas, the earliest this could take place would be for the 2026-
2027 school admission round. 

 

IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING 

The implementation and monitoring of the WESP in undertaken in the following 

ways: 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Cabinet/Corporate Management 

Board (CCMB) on 13 December 2022. 

• A WESP report will be reported to CCMB on 30 August 2023 following its first 

year of implementation. 

• A WESP Cabinet report will be reported to Cabinet on 19 September 2023 

following its first year of implementation. 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Scrutiny on 1 December 2022. 

• WESP is reported to the Education and Family Support Directorate (EFSD) 

monthly senior management team (SMT), which involves the Director/Head of 

Service and Group Managers. 

• The WESP is contained within Education and Family Support (EFS) Strategic 

Business Plan (2023-2026). This is monitored and reported on a quarterly 

basis. 

• The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) chaired by Group Manager (Learner 

Support) receives updates from the chairs of the sub-groups who have been 

approved by WEF. The WESP co-ordinator presents on the work of the sub-

groups. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator regularly meet 

to discuss and plan the implementation and monitoring of the WESP. 

Page 221



Appendix 3  

 
 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator meet with 

Welsh Government throughout the course of a year. 

• The WESP co-ordinator meets with chairs of sub-groups prior to a sub-group 

meeting. 

• Workshops have taken place to write the five-year WESP and the sub-group 

development plan. 

• Each sub-group has developed an annual development plan taken from the 

five-year WESP which has focussed the work of the sub-group.  

• During the termly sub-group meeting, the sub-group development plan is 

updated and then each action is RAYG rated.  

• The Bridgend Association Secondary Headteachers (BASH) and the Primary 

Federation discuss the work of the WESP and have representatives who 

sit on the WEF. 

• Team Bridgend which is attended by local authority officers within the 

Education and Family Support Directorate and across the Council and 

headteachers receive WESP updates. 

 

OUTCOME LEVEL RISKS 

 

• Both newly build childcare hubs remain unoccupied. 

• Mudiad Meithrin has restructured their teams. The Mid and West-Wales 

region is now supporting Bridgend.  

• Some pupils from Cylchoedd Meithrin do not transfer to Welsh-medium 

education. This is significantly higher for some Cylchoedd Meithrin than 

others. 

 

ASSURANCE / MITIGATION ACTION 

 

• Securing improved financial packages and regular, ongoing liaison with 

potential suitable Welsh-medium providers. Potential interim change of use of 

the Blackmill childcare setting 

• It is foreseen that it will take time to build relationships with the new Mudiad 

Meithrin region, but this change should not be detrimental to the WESP. 

• Mudiad Meithrin to support Cylchoedd Meithrin to better understand the 

destinations of leavers and to explore with parents the reasons why they did 

or did not choose Welsh-medium primary education. 

Page 222



Appendix 3  

 
 

Outcome 2 

Outcome 2 

More reception class children/ five-year olds receive their 

education through the medium of Welsh 

KEY ANNUAL DATA  

  

Total Number of pupils in Reception Class (Welsh-medium) - PLASC 
Data 

Year 

Welsh-
medium 
schools 

English-
medium 
schools 

% of pupils 
in Welsh-
medium 
schools 

Total number 
of pupils 

2021-2022 133 1398 8.69 1531 

2022-2023 
(Provisional 

data) 
135 1356 9.05 1491 

 

• The proposed target outlined in the WESP is for 140 and 8.94% of five-year 

olds to receive their education through the medium of Welsh. In 2022-2023, 

9.05% of five-year olds were in Welsh-medium education which is higher than 

the proposed target.  

• In 2021-2022, 133 five-year olds received their education through the medium 

of Welsh, compared to 2022-2023, where there were 135 pupils. 

• There is also an increase in the percentage between 2021-2022 and 2022-

2023. 

PLASC 2022-2023 
The number and percentage of Black, Asian and minority ethnic 
background learners who are taught through the medium of Welsh 

  

White - 
British 

Black, Asian 
and Minority 

Ethnic 

Gypsy Travellers Total 

No. % No. % No. % No. % 

Ysgol Gynradd 
Gymraeg Cynwyd 
Sant 

271 97.13 8 2.87 0 0.00 0 0.00 279 

Ysgol Gyfun 
Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd 

700 97.77 16 2.23 0 0.00 0 0.00 716 

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro 
Ogwr 

376 97.66 9 2.34 0 0.00 0 0.00 385 

Ysgol Gynradd 
Gymraeg Calon y 
Cymoedd 

207 99.52 1 0.48 0 0.00 0 0.00 208 

Ysgol Y Ferch o'r 
Sgêr 

86 96.63 3 3.37 0 0.00 0 0.00 89 

Grand Total 1640 97.79 37 2.21 0 0.00 0 0.00 1677 

 

 

Page 223



Appendix 3  

 
 

OUTCOME SUMMARY 

 

• The consultation has concluded for Porthcawl seedling school and childcare 

provision. 

 

• Cabinet approval has been received to proceed with the schemes. 

 

• Planning has been submitted for Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr mobile classroom 

and is expected to be fitted in February 2024. 

 

• The replacement of Ysgol Y Ferch o’r Sgȇr and Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr will 

transition to the nine-year programme (these schemes are currently in 

design). 

 

• The priorities identified in the WESP will also transition to the nine-year 

programme.  

 

• We are in the process of reviewing our school organisation proposals and will 

endeavour to ensure that we deliver on the WESP targets which is a priority 

of the local authority. 

 

• The local authority is reviewing the pupil place requirement to serve new 

housing development proposed in the Replacement Local Development Plan 

(LDP). 

 

• Opportunities to increase Welsh-medium provision in English-medium schools 

or schools looking to transition to a different category will be reviewed as part 

of the school organisation proposals to inform the nine-year rolling 

programme. 

 

• One teacher and one Learning Support Officer (LSO) has been appointed to 

the late immersion provision. The model we have had in place since 

November 2022 is for the staff to travel between schools and to support within 

the mainstream class and to withdraw from class for late immersion sessions. 

The WESP Coordinator line manages the staff and has visited late immersion 

centres within the Central South Consortium and is working in conjunction 

with Central South’s Consortium’s late immersion network to further develop 

the provision. Currently, 10 pupils being supported with two having 

successfully returned to mainstream. 

Schools supported by the late 
immersion provision 

Numbers of pupils 
supported by the late 
immersion provision 

Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg   
Cynwyd Sant 

2 

Page 224



Appendix 3  

 
 

Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg        
Calon y Cymoedd 

6 

Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd 

2 

 

• The WESP Coordinator is in regular contact with the headteachers and have 
worked in partnership with members to create an action plan for the late 
immersion provision. 
 
Feedback has been received from pupils, staff and parents which will 
continue to be used to inform how we provide late immersion provision. 
 
The feedback is as follows: 
 

• During summer term 2023, the late immersion teacher undertook a 
pupil voice activity. Pupils reported that overall, they enjoyed the 
themes of the units of work, the investigative activities, treasure hunts, 
working on the Chromebooks and the emojis used to designate duties 
for the session. They all favoured visual resources and kinaesthetic 
activities. One pupil reported that the work can be challenging. Two 
pupils reported that they would like more creative activities. One pupil 
asked for more free time in the session and one pupil asked for a 
designated classroom. 

• Staff reported that the pupils enjoyed the sessions although when 
English is taught in the morning, it is difficult to immerse the pupils in 
the language for an afternoon. Increased progress in Welsh language 
skills was noted since beginning the provision and the pupils are 
becoming more confident when speaking with staff although the pupils 
are slower to start a conversation in the Welsh language with their 
peers.  

 

• £3700 has been spent on teaching and learning resources which has ensured 
that there are a variety of high quality and interactive resources to support the 
teaching of the late immersion teaching programme. 
 

• Since April 2023 to July 2023, pupils have made on average 23.5% progress 
when re-assessed using the Cardiff’s late immersion assessment. One pupil 
made 34.8% progress. 
 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Coordinator has had an 
initial meeting with the Regional Welsh-medium Education Promotion 
Champion and will meet again in autumn term 2023. The steps taken to 
engage with families from Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic backgrounds 
about opportunities to access Welsh-medium education will be a priority for 
the second year of the WESP and written into the sub-group development 
plans. 

 
The members of the WEF work proactively to support the WESP.  Each member of 
the WEF works as part of the sub-group for Outcome Two.  As part of the work of 
this sub-group an annual development plan has been created, and activities have 

Page 225



Appendix 3  

 
 

been developed with partners. The annual development plan has been monitored 
and evaluated by members of this sub-group. The activities were evaluated three 
times a year using the Education and Family Support Directorate’s red, amber, 
yellow, and green (RAYG) system.  

 
The actions outlined in the sub-group development plan are as follows: 

 

• Late immersion support visits from Central South Consortium to support the 
delivery of the late immersion programme have been held. 

• There have been valuable late immersion network meetings which have 
supported the development of the late immersion provision. The network 
covers strategic themes such as policy writing, sharing of good practice and 
resources.  

• Immersion resources have been created and shared by Central South 
Consortium with Welsh-medium schools along with linked professional 
development opportunities. The primary schools have received the ‘Pecyn 
Trochi’ boxes and were grateful of the additional information.  

• The WESP Coordinator and a representative from Central South Consortium 
joined the Welsh-medium cluster meeting to present resources and 
professional development opportunities available. 

• The WESP Coordinator has attended Welsh Government’s regional late 
immersion network which also shares a strategic overview to the provision by 
inviting guest speakers, sharing of other local authority’s practice, and 
networking of officers. This has supported the local authority to approach 
other local authorities to work together on elements of the late immersion 
provision. 

• Members of the Outcome Two sub-group have revised the format and 
information on the website. The website team are working on the 
recommendations to the ‘Welsh-medium education’ webpage on the local 
authority’s website which will now include information on late immersion, ‘Why 
choose Welsh-medium education?’ booklet, links to the Welsh-medium 
schools’ websites as well as the other information already included in the 
area.  

• Ysgol Y Ferch o’r Sgêr will increase its capacity to 420, plus nursery (that is, 
60 places for Reception aged pupils) and will receive a new build. Cabinet 
approval was received in June 2023 to progress the design through Stage 2 
of the design process, The scheme will be funded through revenue (that is, 
Mutual Investment Model) Client engagement meetings are underway. 

• Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr will increase its Pupil Admission Number (PAN) to 
75 from 54. The school will move to a new site and will be provided with a 
purpose-built school and the design of the building is underway. In the 
interim, a temporary additional classroom will be installed in March 2024 until 
they move to their new site.  

• A seedling school provision for the Porthcawl area is in the design stage 
following Cabinet approval in June 2023.  

• Site options appraisals are being progressed for Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd. 

• The area reviews for Porthcawl and the south-east area of Bridgend have 
been concluded and will inform the nine-year rolling programme.  

Page 226



Appendix 3  

 
 

• A sub-group for promotion, marketing and celebrating was established and 
have worked in partnership to promote Welsh-medium education. A 
promotion video has been developed and is currently being approved. The 
video encapsulates Bridgend’s Welsh-medium journey and will be launched in 
autumn 2023. 

• The local authority and Welsh-medium schools were in attendance at Gŵyl 
Ogi Ogi Ogwr to promote Welsh-medium education in Bridgend. This was a 
good opportunity to share information on late immersion.  

• Central South Consortium has shared their ‘supporting your child to use the 
Welsh language at home’ resources with partners and Welsh-medium 
schools. 

• Grant opportunities have been maximised by securing funding for a 
temporary mobile classroom for Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr and the Welsh-
medium Porthcawl seedling school. 

 

IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING 

 

The implementation and monitoring of the WESP in undertaken in the following 

ways: 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Cabinet/Corporate Management 

Board (CCMB) on 13 December 2022. 

• A WESP report will be reported to CCMB on 30 August 2023 following its first 

year of implementation. 

• A WESP Cabinet report will be reported to Cabinet on 19 September 2023 

following its first year of implementation. 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Scrutiny on 1 December 2022. 

• WESP is reported to the Education and Family Support Directorate (EFSD) 

monthly senior management team (SMT) which involves the Director/Head of 

Service and Group Managers. 

• The WESP is contained within Education and Family Support (EFS) Strategic 

Business Plan 2023-2026. This is monitored and reported on a quarterly 

basis. 

• The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) chaired by Group Manager (Learner 

Support) receives updates from the chairs of the sub-groups who have been 

approved by WEF. The WESP co-ordinator presents on the work of the sub-

groups. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator regularly meet 

to discuss and plan the implementation and monitoring of the WESP. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator meet with 

Welsh Government throughout the course of a year. 

• The WESP co-ordinator meets with chairs of sub-groups prior to a sub-group 

meeting. 

• Workshops have taken place to write the five-year WESP and the sub-group 

development plan. 

Page 227



Appendix 3  

 
 

 

• Each sub-group has developed an annual development plan taken from the 

five-year WESP which has focussed the work of the sub-group.  

• During the termly sub-group meeting, the sub-group development plan is 

updated and then each action is RAYG rated.  

• The Bridgend Association Secondary Headteachers (BASH) and the Primary 

Federation discuss the work of the WESP and have representatives who sit 

on the WEF. 

• Team Bridgend which is attended by local authority officers within the 

Education and Family Support Directorate and across the Council and 

headteachers receive WESP updates. 

 

OUTCOME LEVEL RISKS 

 

• Funding, objections to statutory proposals and land availability. 

• Some of the proposals are generated around the Replacement Local 
Development Plan (LDP) and there will be a reliance on housing developers 
bringing forward their sites in a timely fashion to align with the targets in the 
WESP. 

• Sustainability of late immersion provision depends on the continuity of Welsh 
Government grant funding. Without the continuation of this funding, the offer of 
our provision would be currently unsustainable.  

• After an evaluation of current model of staff travelling between schools to 
deliver late immersion provision, a base for the late immersion would be 
preferred.  

 

ASSURANCE / MITIGATION ACTION 

 

• Ensure that the buildings are designed and are aligned to Welsh Government 

cost and size standards. Site abnormals and constraints are identified early 

and are detailed in Welsh Government business cases. 

• Work with Finance, Strategic Asset Management and Infrastructure Team, and 

planning colleagues to support the identification of match funding opportunities 

for example, section 106 and capital receipts). 

• Consider council owned sites for school developments in the first instance. 

• Ensure robust consultation processes and meaningful stakeholder 

engagement.  

• Funding from Welsh Government for provision of late immersion after the 

three-year grant has passed.  

• Short-term and long-term (based within one of the new-build schools) options 

for a base for the late immersion is being considered.  

 

Page 228



Appendix 3  

 
 

Outcome 3 

More children continue to improve their Welsh language skills 

when transferring from one stage of their statutory education to 

another 

KEY ANNUAL DATA  

 

Number of pupils Welsh-medium pupils transferring from one 

stage to another 

PLASC 2022 PLASC 2023 Difference 

Nursery 2 

131 

Reception 

135 

 + 4 pupils 

Year 2 

119 

Year 3 

120 

+ 1 pupil 

Year 6 

156 

Year 7 

147 

-9 pupils 

Year 9 

120 

Year 10 

118 

- 2 pupils 

 

• From 2021-2022, there was an increase from 131 in Nursery 2 class to 135 in 

Reception class in 2022-2023. 

• In 2021-2022, in Year 2, there were 7.49% of pupils in Welsh-medium 

education.  In Year 3, this increased to 7.51% in 2022-2023.  

• In 2021-2022, there were 156 pupils in Year 6. The following year in Year 7, 

147 pupils transferred to Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd within Bridgend.  

• In 2021-2022, 6.89% of Year 11 learners were in Welsh-medium education 

which increased to 8.26% for Year 12 the following year. 

• The projected number in the WESP for Year 7 in 2022-2023 is 141. The 

actual number of pupils in Year 7 in 2022-2023 is 147 which is an increase of 

six pupils. 

 

OUTCOME SUMMARY 

 

• In 2022-2023, 94% of pupils transitioned from Welsh-medium primary schools 
in Year 6 to the Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd in Bridgend.  
 

• Given the high percentage of pupils progressing from primary to secondary 
Welsh-medium education, the data is not considered to be of concern but will 
be closely monitored.   

 

• The extremely positive inspection at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd and 
the close working relationships between the cluster schools ensures that 

Page 229



Appendix 3  

 
 

there is strong collaborative working, effective communication, strong 
continuum of learning and a developing shared understanding of progression. 
 

• The local authority has supported schools to produce transition arrangements 
and provided a suggested template for a transition plan. All schools in 
Bridgend have produced a transition plan detailing arrangements for transition 
between primary and secondary schools.  

 

• The networking offer has developed in the local authority with networks for 
curriculum leaders and primary deputy headteachers in place. Cluster 
working is a strength in Bridgend. Transition is an important focus of this 
work. 
 

• Secondary schools communicate with feeder schools with regards to 
presentations, transition days and activities. Most schools have created a web 
page or Google-site solely for transition information, good examples of these 
sites include welcome videos and tours. Welsh is included in the Language, 
Literacy and Communication themed days. 
 

• Where the local authority transports pupils to Welsh-medium schools in other 
local authorities, this will continue until pupils end their current phase of 
education (primary or secondary). 

 
 
The members of the WEF work proactively to support the WESP.  Each member of 
the WEF works as part of the sub-group for Outcome Three, Four and Five.  As part 
of the work of this sub-group an annual development plan has been created, and 
activities have been developed with partners. The annual development plan has 
been monitored and evaluated by members of this sub-group. The activities were 
evaluated three times a year using the Education and Family Support Directorate’s 
red, amber, yellow, and green (RAYG) system.  

 
The actions outlined in the sub-group development plan are as follows: 

  

• A task and finish group as part of the sub-group to monitor pupil numbers at 
transition stages was held. The data noted in ‘key data’ was analysed within 
the data analysis activity.  It is pleasing to note that the number of pupils from 
Nursery 2 in 2021-2022 has increased by four pupils and that an additional 
pupil joined Welsh-medium education from Year 2 to Year 3 in the same 
period. 94% of pupils attending Welsh-medium primary schools transferred to 
the Welsh-medium secondary school within Bridgend.  

• Central South Consortium has held primary and secondary networking 
sessions and Bridgend schools attended the networks. Two schools have 
attended Central South Consortium’s Siarter Iaith network meetings and 
seven have attended the Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus network meetings. 
Professional development sessions have also been facilitated and the 
schools that are not currently engaged were invited to attend. One school has 
since engaged in Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus since September 2022. 

• Central South Consortium has shared Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus data 
and facilitated an awards ceremony for all the schools who have received 

Page 230



Appendix 3  

 
 

awards since March 2020. It was a pleasure for the Group Manager (Learner 
Support) and the WESP Coordinator to watch the schools receive their 
awards. A total of 19 Bridgend schools were invited to the ceremony. 
Following the award ceremony, a three-page article was published to 
celebrate schools’ achievements which has been shared in Yr Hogwr, 
Bridgenders and the communication forum in the Education and Family 
Support Directorate’s Monday Mailshot and social media platforms. 

• Since September 2022, nine English-medium primary schools have the 
received bronze award, one English-medium secondary has received the 
silver award and one English-medium primary school received the gold 
award. Improvement partners encourage schools to engage with Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg Campus in meetings.   

• In autumn term 2023, Central South Consortium will present at Team 
Bridgend to raise awareness of the Language Competency Framework, 
strategically planning Welsh language professional learning for practitioners 
and the importance of engaging with the Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus 
framework. 

• Central South Consortium share ‘snippets of success’ and the information 
captured is celebrated on social media by the Communication team every half 
term. 

• Schools use #ClodCymraeg to celebrate their achievements and activities 
related to Welsh on social media posts which is then be retweeted by the 
Communication Team.  

• The Urdd has presented its apprenticeship courses offered at Team Bridgend 
and has also presented at the Deputy Headteacher Network meeting sharing 
the extra-curricular activities it offers and ‘Chwarae yn Gymraeg’. Following 
the presentation, 10 primary schools have taken part in ‘Chwarae yn 
Gymraeg’. 

• Dysgu Cymraeg/Learn Welsh have shared their offer of Welsh courses 
available with schools and on other platforms. A total of 367 students have 
completed the courses below: 

 

Blasu = 44 
Mynediad = 144 
Sylfaen = 56 
Canolradd = 52 
Uwch = 71 
Total = 367 

 

• The sub-group from promotion, marketing and celebrating created a shared 
calendar for Welsh language themed events and activities. The calendar has 
been shared with all partners and Welsh-medium schools. All partners are 
encouraged to upload events to the calendar for the Communication team 
and partners to promote Welsh activities on social media platforms.  

• Central South Consortium has developed, piloted, and published a 
standardised reading test for pupils from Years 1 to 11. Linked professional 
development is available regularly throughout the school year. 

• Central South Consortium has also facilitated ‘No More Marking’ which is a 
comparative judgement programme for Welsh-medium schools. One Welsh-
medium primary school from the local authority attended the professional 
development sessions.  

Page 231



Appendix 3  

 
 

• Central South Consortium facilitated ‘Cwis Llyfrau’ as the Welsh Book Council 
did not facilitate ‘Darllen Dros Gymru’ this year. This event was marketed in 
the local authority network meetings. One English-medium primary school 
entered but was not able to proceed with the competition.   

• Throughout the year, Central South Consortium offered asynchronous, face-
to-face, and bespoke Welsh across the curriculum professional learning.  
 

IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING 

 

The implementation and monitoring of the WESP in undertaken in the following 

ways: 

• The WESP five-year plan was taken to Cabinet/Corporate Management 

Board (CCMB) on 13 December 2022. 

• A WESP report will be reported to CCMB on 30 August 2023 following its first 

year of implementation. 

• A WESP Cabinet report will be reported to Cabinet on 19 September 2023 

following its first year of implementation. 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Scrutiny on 1 December 2022. 

• WESP is reported to the Education and Family Support Directorate (EFSD) 

monthly senior management team (SMT) which involves the Director/Head of 

Service and Group Managers. 

• The WESP is contained within Education and Family Support (EFS) Strategic 

Business Plan 2023-2026. This is monitored and reported on a quarterly 

basis. 

• The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) chaired by Group Manager (Learner 

Support) receives updates from the chairs of the sub-groups who have been 

approved by WEF. The WESP co-ordinator presents on the work of the sub-

groups. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator regularly meet 

to discuss and plan the implementation and monitoring of the WESP. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator meet with 

Welsh Government throughout the course of a year. 

• The WESP co-ordinator meets with chairs of sub-groups prior to a sub-group 

meeting. 

• Workshops have taken place to write the five-year WESP and the sub-group 

development plan. 

• Each sub-group has developed an annual development plan taken from the 

five-year WESP which has focussed the work of the sub-group.  

• During the termly sub-group meeting, the sub-group development plan is 

updated and then each action is RAYG rated.  

• The Bridgend Association Secondary Headteachers (BASH) and the Primary 

Federation discuss the work of the WESP and have representatives who sit 

on the WEF. 

Page 232



Appendix 3  

 
 

• Team Bridgend which is attended by local authority officers within the 

Education and Family Support Directorate and across the Council and 

headteachers receive WESP updates. 

 

OUTCOME LEVEL RISK  

 

• The increase in numbers in Year three expected does not happen. 

• The possibility of pupils in Year 6 in Welsh-medium schools not transitioning 

to Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd for Year 7.  

• Not all partners use the calendar effectively could restrict the amount of 

communicating the local authority and partners can undertake. 

• The uptake of the professional learning to ensure linguistic progression 

offered by Central South Consortium is low, however the uptake from Dysgu 

Cymraeg for education professionals is higher. 

 

ASSURANCE / MITIGATION ACTION 

 

• Monitor data closely and understanding pupils’ destinations by tracking where 

pupils have transitioned to. The local authority will work closely with Central 

South Consortium and targeted schools where transition rates may be a 

cause of concern and publish resources to support and reassure 

parents/carers regarding transition between phases. 

• In the individual partner calendared meetings for September 2023, the 

calendar and its importance will be discussed.  

• Monitor attendance rates of Central South Consortium’s Welsh language 

professional learning opportunities for practitioners. The local authority will 

support Central South Consortium to promote Welsh language professional 

learning for practitioners by sharing information regarding professional 

learning opportunities in network meetings. Central South Consortium to 

continue to promote Welsh language professional learning through all 

communication channels and via Improvement Partner meetings with school 

leaders. 

 

 

Outcome 4 

More learners study for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a 

subject) and subjects through the medium of Welsh  

KEY ANNUAL DATA  

 

Page 233



Appendix 3  

 
 

Total Number of pupils as at PLASC 2021-2022  

Year 
Groups 

Welsh-
medium 
schools 

English-
medium 
schools   

% of pupils in 
Welsh-medium 

schools 

Total number 
of pupils 

10 105 1421 6.88 1526 

11 101 1492 6.34 1593 

12 66 713 8.47 779 

13 48 679 6.60 727 

Total Number of pupils as at PLASC 2022-2023 (Provisional data) 

Year 
Groups 

Welsh-
medium 
schools 

English-
medium 
schools   

% of pupils in 
Welsh-medium 

schools 

Total number 
of pupils 

10 118 1517 7.22 1635 

11 108 1523 6.62 1631 

12 63 700 8.26 763 

13 48 683 6.57 731 

 
 

• Between Year 10 and Year 11 in 2021-2022 and 2022-2023, there was in 
increase in three pupils in Welsh-medium education. 

• Between Year 11 and Year 12 in 2021-2022 and 2022-2023, there was an 
increase of 1.92% of learners continuing their education through the medium of 
Welsh. 
 

Number of learners registered for Welsh GCSE 2022-2023 

GCSE Welsh First 
Language 

108 108 pupils are also registered for 
GCSE Welsh language literature 

GCSE Welsh Second 
Language 

1270  

Not registered for either 86 Many of these pupils are dual 
registered, 

 

• In the WESP, it noted that in 2020-2021, 99 pupils studied Welsh GCSE first 
language which increased to 108 in 2022-2023. 

• In the WESP, it noted that in 2020-2021, 1189 pupils studies Welsh GSCE 
second language which increased to 1270 in 2022-2023. 

 
 

Number and percentage of enrolled learners who are 
assessed for A Level 2022-23 

A-level Welsh First Language 10 

A-level Welsh Second Language 29 

Welsh-medium learners at Post-16* 

Number of learners studying through 
the medium of Welsh at Ysgol Gyfun 
Gymraeg Llangynwyd 

142 

Page 234



Appendix 3  

 
 

*Bridgend College offer students the 
opportunity to study bilingually 
however, this data is not currently 
collected by the College. 

 

 

• There has been an increase in the number of learners for both first and second 
language A-level. 

• In the WESP, it noted that in 2020-2021, there were nine learners studying first 
language Welsh A-level which increased to 10 learners in 2022-2023. 

• In the WESP, it noted that in 2020-2021, there were 19 learners studying for 
second language Welsh A-level which has increased to 29 learners in 2022-
2023.  

• Although there has been an increase in the numbers studying Welsh Post-16, we 
aim to continue to increase by ensuring that encouraging take up of Welsh 
language A-level by sharing the benefits of being bilingual.  

 

E-sgol / Blended learning offer 

School partnership Number 
of 

subjects 
delivered 

Subjects delivered Number of 
Bridgend 
learners 

Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd and Ysgol 
Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llanhari 

9 Physics 
Physical Education 
Sports  
Public Services 
Sociology 
Health and social care 
Further Mathematics 
ICT 
Product Design 

11 

Pencoed 
Comprehensive 
School and Maesteg 
Comprehensive 
School. 

1 Welsh AS-level 4 

 

• Three schools are currently delivering subjects through the e-sgol programme 
within the local authority Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd, Pencoed 
Comprehensive School and Maesteg Comprehensive School.  

• An established ten-year blended learning collaboration between Ysgol Gyfun 
Gymraeg Llangynwyd and Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llanhari in Rhondda Cynon Taf 
affords learners the opportunity to study A/S and A-level qualification(s) that they 
are not able to do in their ‘home school’. Between the schools, nine subjects are 
delivered to 11 learners from Llangynwyd and 24 learners from Llanhari.  

• Maesteg Comprehensive School and Pencoed Comprehensive School are 
delivering Welsh AS-Level to four learners.  

 

OUTCOME SUMMARY 

 

Page 235



Appendix 3  

 
 

• School Support work closely with schools to encorage the number of learners 
studying Welsh at Post-16. Two schools have created a partnership namely, 
Pencoed Comprehensive School and Maesteg Comprehensive School to deliver 
Welsh A-level. The Digital Lead from School Support has been involved in 
supporting the set-up of delivery of blended learning along with e-sgol and Ysgol 
Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd.  
 

• Resources from Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol have been shared with all 
secondary schools and Central South Consortium have also shared this resource 
in their bulletins and directly to all headteachers and heads of Welsh. Currently, 
two schools are interested in exploring the potential of delivering Welsh A-level 
second language through the e-sgol programme in 2023-2024.  The resources 
have also been shared on the local authority’s social media platforms. 
 

• School Support provide advice and support to schools to deliver Welsh as an A-
level. School Support and Central South Consortium have shared information on 
the grants available from Coleg Cenedlaethol Cymru with secondary schools, but 
it was felt that the small grant would not be enough to cover the costs. Those 
schools who are interested in delivery Welsh A-level are now considering offering 
Welsh A-level through e-sgol.  
 

• Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd are currently offering nine subjects through 
blended learning. In 2023-2024, the partnership will offer three further courses as 
part of the blended learning offer: Drama, Music and Criminology. A total of three 
schools out of nine schools are providing subjects through e-sgol. 
 

• Two English-medium secondary schools are offering Welsh A-level through the 
e-sgol. The course is delivered to four learners from Pencoed Comprehensive 
School and Maesteg Comprehensive School. 

 

• A video has been created by learners studying at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd noting the benefits to prospective learners to promote blended 
learning and encouraging them to continue their education through the medium 
of Welsh. This film was shown at the e-sgol conference in July 2023 which was 
held at the school. 
 

• The local authority’s website has a section for Welsh-medium education. As part 

of the work of the WESP, the webpage is in the process of being re-designed and 

having a prominent place on the website.  

 

• All Welsh-medium primary schools use their social media and internal 
communications to promote their school and Welsh-medium education. Open 
days are held on a regular basis with visits to schools encouraged. The local 
authority promotes Welsh-medium education on their communication platforms 
and regularly posts the ‘Why choose Welsh-medium education?’ booklet on 
social media platforms. The local authority held a stall at Gŵyl Ogi Ogi Ogwr in 
July 2023 with Welsh-medium primary school to promote the late immersion 
provision and Welsh-medium education. An officer from the local authority also 
attended Ras yr Iaith organised by Menter Bro Ogwr. 

  

Page 236



Appendix 3  

 
 

• The local authority’s CommunicationTeam sent 45 posts relating to Welsh-
medium education and learning the Welsh language on social media, resulting in 
40,645 impressions, 55 retweets and 147 likes.  
 

• Monitoring of the number of courses offered and uptake through the medium of 
Welsh is discussed through the Curriculum Leaders Network, where the number 
of Post-16 learners studying Welsh at A-level are analysed. 
 

The members of the WEF work proactively to support the WESP.  Each member of the 
WEF works as part of the sub-group for Outcome One.  As part of the work of this sub-
group an annual development plan has been created, and activities have been 
developed with partners. The annual development plan has been monitored and 
evaluated by members of this sub-group. The activities were evaluated three times a 
year using the Education and Family Support Directorate’s red, amber, yellow, and 
green (RAYG) system.  

 
The actions outlined in the sub-group development plan are as follows: 

 

• Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd celebrated their 10-year partnership with 

Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llanhari by hosting the e-sgol annual conference at Ysgol 

Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd in July 2023 with guest speakers. 

• Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd and Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llanhari have 

worked closely and effectively to enhance the development of learners continuing 

in a Welsh-medium school. Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd and Ysgol Gyfun 

Gymraeg Llanhari, Rhondda Cynon Taf have an existing collaboration to deliver 

Post-16 subjects as part of their blended learning offer.  

• Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd enrolled with e-sgol this year to further 
develop their offer of blended learning. e-sgol have sent officers to visit the 
school where leaders were able to share good practice. The school has also 
supported other schools in Bridgend along with the Digital Lead within School 
Support in sharing their experiences of blended learning. 

• An evaluation of the blended learning at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd 
through a pupil focus group in January 2023 noted that they were happy overall 
with the provision. Initially, pupils travelled twice a week between schools for the 
first half term to build relationships. Pupils reported that travel time was 
burdensome, and the hybrid model is less tiring. From time-to-time, some 
technical issues arise but overall, the set up works well.  Learners prefer having 
one central camera as a class set up as opposed to joining on individual devices 
as it is less intimidating and more likely to contribute. Very little drop out from 
Year 12 to Year 13, but a handful of learners dropped subjects with the 
partnership during the three-week trial period in September 2022. This was 
mainly due to it being the fifth subject after the Skills Challenge Certificate (SCC) 
or as they found the travel too much.  

• In May 2023, the same learners reported to continue to prefer travelling one day 
only a week as it reduces strain and allows them to socialise with peers during 
lunchtime/break which would usually be missed due to travel. They also reported 
that the new set up of ‘chats’ on Teams with teaching staff from Ysgol Gyfun 
Gymraeg Llanhari has been beneficial. 

• An analysis transfer retention and transfer rates has been undertaken for Year 11 
to Year 12. 77% of learners responded to a questionnaire sent to Year 11. 72% 

Page 237



Appendix 3  

 
 

plan to return for Year 12. 28% of learners indicated they don’t wish to return to 
Year 12, with all except one has listed Bridgend College as their next step in 
education. The individual who has listed another sixth form wants to study 
Computing which Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd do not currently offer 
although this is being explored as part of the blended learning partnership. 

• At Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd, three pupils this year have completed the 
childcare course with Welsh-medium placements. For 2023-2024, four pupils 
have expressed interest in Level 3 Childcare course. The school is currently 
exploring alternatives to this course for September 2023 due to low retention rate 
over the last two years. 

• Partners have been working closely with Qualifications Wales to discuss the 

‘Wider Offer / Full Offer’ and the current offer of GSCEs. All secondary schools in 

Bridgend were invited to WJEC meetings in June 2023. 

• All schools are regularly encouraged to attend Central South Consortium network 

meetings. Two schools attended the Siarter Iaith network and seven school 

attended the Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus network.  

• Central South Consortium published a ‘Welsh Special Bulletin’ which included 
references to resources available to support the learning and teaching of 
Welsh. This was shared with all schools, and everyone registered for their 
bulletin. 

• Regular discussions are held in networks abut delivering Welsh as a subject in 
secondary schools. Below is a table of the proportion of the timetable that is 
allocated to teaching Welsh.  

 
 

 

Proportion of Welsh on timetable across  
English-medium schools:  

Year 7:  3.4% - 8% 

Year 8:  3.4% - 8% 

Year 9:  5.2% - 8% 

Year 10:  5.2% - 8% 

Year 11:  5.2% - 8% 

Proportion of Welsh on timetable at  
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd:  

Blwyddyn 7: 11.5% 

Blwyddyn 8: 11.5% 

Blwyddyn 9: 11.5% 

Blwyddyn 10: 13.8% 

Blwyddyn 11: 13.8% 

IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING 

 

The implementation and monitoring of the WESP in undertaken in the following ways: 

• The WESP five-year plan was taken to Cabinet/Corporate Management Board 

(CCMB) on 13 December 2022. 

• A WESP report will be reported to CCMB on 30 August 2023 following its first 

year of implementation. 

• A WESP Cabinet report will be reported to Cabinet on 19 September 2023 

following its first year of implementation. 

Page 238



Appendix 3  

 
 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Scrutiny on 1 December 2022. 

• WESP is reported to the Education and Family Support Directorate (EFSD) 

monthly senior management team (SMT) which involves the Director/Head of 

Service and Group Managers. 

• The WESP is contained within Education and Family Support (EFS) Strategic 

Business Plan 2023-2026. This is monitored and reported on a quarterly basis. 

• The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) chaired by Group Manager (Learner 

Support) receives updates from the chairs of the sub-groups who have been 

approved by WEF. The WESP co-ordinator presents on the work of the sub-

groups. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator regularly meet to 

discuss and plan the implementation and monitoring of the WESP. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator meet with Welsh 

Government throughout the course of a year. 

• The WESP co-ordinator meets with chairs of sub-groups prior to a sub-group 

meeting. 

• Workshops have taken place to write the five-year WESP and the sub-group 

development plan. 

• Each sub-group has developed an annual development plan taken from the five-

year WESP which has focussed the work of the sub-group.  

• During the termly sub-group meeting, the sub-group development plan is updated 

and then each action is RAYG rated.  

• The Bridgend Association Secondary Headteachers (BASH) and the Primary 

Federation discuss the work of the WESP and have representatives who sit on 

the WEF. 

• Team Bridgend which is attended by local authority officers within the Education 

and Family Support Directorate and across the Council and headteachers 

receive WESP updates. 

 

OUTCOME LEVEL RISKS 

 

• The viability of numbers studying Welsh at Post-16. 

• Funding to support the running of small classes studying Welsh and through the 

medium of Welsh at Post-16.  

• E-sgol do not always provide the support schools are looking for in terms of 

‘teaching support’ this may deter some Welsh teachers who may not be confident 

teaching online. 

• Limited uptake of childcare courses at Post-16 through the medium of Welsh 

which is needed to support the workforce childcare crisis. 

 

ASSURANCE / MITIGATION ACTION 

 

Page 239



Appendix 3  

 
 

• Continuation to support schools in developing a blended learning approach so 

that learners are attracted to choose Welsh as a subject as Post-16 without travel 

constraints. 

• Welsh Government could provide a higher level of funding to schools that wish to 

keep an AS/A2 class so that schools can afford to run the class. For schools with 

a very low number, discuss the potential of running a class with e-sgol. 

• Continuation around discussions of potential Welsh classes with the curriculum 

leaders.  

• Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd and Bridgend College are exploring course 

options that suit the needs of the learners to gain the qualifications needed to 

work and lead within the childcare sector. 

 
 

Outcome 5 

More opportunities for learners to use Welsh in different contexts 

in school 

KEY ANNUAL DATA  

The tables below show the Siarter Iaith / Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus data for 

2022-2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

School Type Number of 
Schools 

Number who are 
following the 
framework 

Welsh-medium primary 
schools 

4 4 

Welsh-medium 
secondary schools 

1 1 

English-medium primary 
schools 

44 42 

English-medium 
secondary schools 

8 4 

Special schools/PRUs 3 1 

Page 240



Appendix 3  

 
 

 

School type Award 2022-2023 Running Total 

Welsh-medium 

primary schools 

Bronze - - 

Silver 0 4 

Gold 0 0 

Welsh-medium 

secondary schools 

Bronze 0 1 

Silver 0 0 

Gold 0 0 

English-medium 

primary schools 

Bronze 9  21 

Silver 0 0 

Gold 1 3 

English-medium 

secondary schools 

Bronze 0 0 

Silver 1 1 

Gold 0 0 

Special schools Bronze 0 1 

Silver 0 0 

Gold 0 0 

Total  11 31 

OUTCOME SUMMARY 

 

• To ensure a rich programme of Welsh-medium activities for pupils in both the 
primary and secondary sector, the local authority work closely with the Urdd 
and Menter Bro Ogwr. The Urdd presented their offer of ‘Chwarae yn 
Gymraeg’ at a primary deputy headteachers network with 10 schools enlisted 
for the programme. The Urdd deliver 11 clubs in three English-medium 
schools, delivering sessions to over 150 pupils. Menter Bro Ogwr offer clubs 
during the term-time and during the school holidays.  
 

• The offer of clubs, events and activities are added to the shared events 
calendar that the promotion, marketing and celebrating sub-group created. 

Page 241



Appendix 3  

 
 

The local authority’s Communication Team has access to the calendar and 
promotes the events on social media platforms. 
 

• Central South Consortium provides professional learning, support, resources, 

and networking opportunities for all sectors. During 2022-23, most schools 

are engaged in the Siarter Iaith / Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus framework. 

Since September 2022, 11 schools have made increased levels of progress 

with Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus awards. Schools have reported the 

positive impact that the Siarter Iaith/Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus framework 

is having on provision of Welsh language heritage and culture across their 

schools and increased opportunities for pupils to engage with Welsh in social 

settings.  

 

• Central South Consortium provides a range of professional learning and 

programmes for Languages, Literacy and Communication (Welsh) for both 

Welsh and English-medium schools. This includes programmes for oracy, 

reading and writing such as Tric a Chlic phonics, Llwyfan Llafar, Voice 21, 

Reading Reconsidered, Siarad Sionc ac Ysgrifennu Slic and Group Guided 

Reading. Central South Consortium will launch a new Welsh language 

patterns continuum for pupils in English-medium schools in September 2023 

along with associated professional learning. An officer from Central South 

Consortium joined a Welsh-medium headteacher cluster in June 2023 which 

covered immersion activities, professional learning available. 

 

The members of the WEF work proactively to support the WESP.  Each member of 
the WEF works as part of the sub-group for Outcome Three, Four and Five.  As part 
of the work of this sub-group an annual development plan has been created, and 
activities have been developed with partners. The annual development plan has 
been monitored and evaluated by members of this sub-group. The activities were 
evaluated three times a year using the Education and Family Support Directorate’s 
red, amber, yellow, and green (RAYG) system.  
 

The actions outlined in the sub-group development plan are as follows: 
 

• The sub-group created a questionnaire to capture how Welsh is used 
informally in English-medium schools. However, there was a limited response 
of 22% to the questionnaires which could be as a result of a union’s Action 
Short of Strike (ASOS). However, the results show that greetings, instructions 
and simple phrases, signage, prayers, hymns and songs, Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg Campus, Welsh language yard games, Helpwr Heddiw, telephone 
welcome and close and incidental Welsh is used throughout the school day.  

• Another questionnaire was created by the sub-group and sent to all schools 
to collect data on how many minutes per fortnight was dedicated to formal 
learning of Welsh in English-medium schools. Again, there was a limited 
response of 18% to the questionnaires which could be as a result of a union’s 
ASOS. The results of the questionnaire have been shared with Central South 
Consortium and School Support for them to offer support to schools. The data 
will be discussed within the autumn sub-group meeting, and we will discuss a 

Page 242



Appendix 3  

 
 

plan on ways to encourage primary schools to increase the amount of time 
allocated to teaching Welsh.  
 

• The result of the questionnaire is as follows:  
 

Class Number of formal 
lessons (range) 

Number of minutes 
to formally learn 

Welsh (range) 

Nursery 0 - 7 70 - 320 

Year 1 1 -8 80 – 320 

Year 2 1 - 8 90 - 420 

Year 3 2 - 9 120 - 420 

Year 4 2 - 10 120 - 420 

Year 5 2 - 10 120 - 420 

Year 6 2 - 10 120 - 420 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• An online careers event was held by Brynteg Comprehensive School for Year 
10 pupils in English-medium secondary schools to highlight the importance of 
the Welsh language in various careers and to encourage pupils to study 
Welsh at Post-16. There were eight guest speakers from a variety of 
industries with an officer from the local authority also participating.  

• The termly late immersion network facilitated by Central South Consortium 
covers strategic themes such as policy writing, sharing of good practice and 
resources. The late immersion teacher attends and reported that it supports 
the development of the late immersion provision. 

• Immersion resources created by Central South Consortium has been shared 
by with Welsh-medium schools along with linked professional development 
opportunities. All the Welsh-medium primary schools have received the 
‘Pecyn Trochi’ resource box.  

• The WESP Coordinator and a representative from Central South Consortium 
joined the Welsh-medium cluster meeting to present resources and 
professional development opportunities available. Headteachers were grateful 
of the additional information.  

Proportion of Welsh on timetable across  
English-medium schools:  

Year 7:  3.4% - 8% 

Year 8:  3.4% - 8% 

Year 9:  5.2% - 8% 

Year 10:  5.2% - 8% 

Year 11:  5.2% - 8% 

Proportion of Welsh on timetable at  
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd:  

Blwyddyn 7: 11.5% 

Blwyddyn 8: 11.5% 

Blwyddyn 9: 11.5% 

Blwyddyn 10: 13.8% 

Blwyddyn 11: 13.8% 

Page 243



Appendix 3  

 
 

• The WESP Coordinator attended Welsh Government’s regional late 
immersion network sessions which also shares a strategic overview to the 
provision by inviting guest speakers, sharing of other local authority’s 
practice, and networking of officers. This has supported the local authority to 
approach other local authorities to work together on elements of the late 
immersion provision. 

• The late immersion teacher has attended training facilitated by Central South 
Consortium on the methodology of teaching language. 

• Central South Consortium published secondary Welsh language resources 
and associated professional learning and has shared a link to the digital 
resource with all secondary schools. 

• Central South Consortium has shated Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus data on 
a termly basis within the ‘snippets of success’ document which is used to 
celebrate success of the schools who have received awards.  

• Central South Consortium has shared Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus data 
and facilitated an awards ceremony for all the schools who have received 
awards since March 2020. It was a pleasure for the Group Manager (Learner 
Support) and the WESP Coordinator to watch the schools receive their 
awards. A total of 19 Bridgend schools were invited to the ceremony. 
Following the award ceremony, a three-page article was published to 
celebrate schools’ achievements which has been shared in Yr Hogwr, 
Bridgenders, the communication forum in the Education and Family Support 
Directorare, namely Monday mailshot and social media platforms. 

• Central South Consortium has implemented and developed the Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg Campus framework, produced resources and case studies to 
support schools to make progress with Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus. It has 
also facilitated networks for Siarter Iaith and Cymraeg Campus leads as well 
as undertaken verification visits. 

• Improvement Partners and School Support have encouraged and support 
schools who have not started their Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus journey to 
do so. Those schools have also been invited to introductions to the 
framework. Since September 2022, one of the secondary schools have 
engaged in Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus. 

• Most primary schools in Bridgend joined in the Urdd’s national Jambori. 

• There has been a rise in second language competitors at the Urdd Eisteddfod 

with over 300 children and young people from Bridgend competing in 2023’s 

Urdd Eisteddfod. 

• The Urdd arranged residential trips and shared this information with schools. 

It also held a ‘Llais Ieuenctid’ for the youth forum across Wales where three 

young people from Bridgend attended. The Urdd also held a performing arts 

course where 30 children took part from Bridgend. 

• To promote the re-launch of ‘Chwarae yn Gymraeg’, the Urdd joined the 

deputy headteachers network and 10 schools have enrolled on the 

programme.  

• The sub-group compiled a list of various fora and platforms that partners offer 

to parents. This will be shared with schools to add to their websites.  

• The sub-group for promotion, marketing and celebrating have created a 

shared calendar for all partners to upload details of events, activities, and 

Page 244



Appendix 3  

 
 

lessons.  Events, clubs, and workshops that have been uploaded to the 

calendar have been promoted by the Communication Team on the local 

authority’s social media platforms.  

• Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd has provided support to English-medium 
primary and secondary schools. Working with Cynffig Comprehensive as part 
of collaboration project funded by Central South Consortium with the aim for 
pupils to provide opportunities for learners to use Welsh socially. Both sets of 
learners that are part of the project went to watch the school’s production of 
Grease. This was celebrated in the Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus article 
published in June 2023. A long-established connection with Llangynwyd 
Primary School saw Year 10 pupils deliver Welsh themed lessons on Barti 
Ddu and Seithennyn in the medium of Welsh to pupils in Year 3 to Year 6. 
Year 10 also delivered lessons to Year 5 in the Welsh-medium primary 
schools. 

• Five secondary schools worked with Huw Williams from Cardiff University to 

develop a resource for Curriculum for Wales to Dr Richard Price tricentennial. 

Schools worked together to create resource and was translated into Welsh. A 

series of lessons was delivered to Year 12 in exploring philosophy and politics 

which is being used as inspiration for a mural at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 

Llangynwyd. Huw Williams held sessions for Year 5 and Year 6 pupils at the 

cluster primary schools. 

• Brynteg Comprehensive School offered Eisteddfod support to the cluster 

primary schools. 

• Resources to support the teaching of Welsh second language have been 

shared with English-medium secondary schools. 

• Menter Bro Ogwr created and shared themed celebratory days activity 
resource packs based on themes such as Dydd Santes Dwynwen which also 
supports schools in achieving Siarter Iaith status. Menter Bro Ogwr has also 
attended schools to deliver sessions when requested.  

• Menter Bro Ogwr offered free school holidays Welsh-medium play sessions, 

Bwrlwm. Uptake was low this year and it is exploring how to adapt sessions to 

increase numbers attending.  

• Opportunities to build students’ confidence in using the Welsh language 
outside of school to use in the workplace were offered by volunteering for 
Menter Bro Ogwr. There are further opportunities to work towards 
qualifications through the medium of Welsh. Courses are offered to pupils 
from 14 years old at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd.  

• In June 2023, pupils in Years 11 to 13 at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd, 
undertook a ‘Hyder/Rhuglder’ course with the aim to boost confidence and to 
recognise their ability to use Welsh in the workplace. 

• The five-year Welsh Language Promotion Strategy was reviewed in 

November 2022 in partnership with the lead officer in the Communication 

Team. 

• Schools use #ClodCymraeg to celebrate their achievements and activities 
related to Welsh on social media posts which will them be retweeted.  

• The local authority’s Communication Team sent 45 posts relating to Welsh-
medium education and learning the Welsh language on social media, 
resulting in 40,645 impressions, 55 retweets and 147 likes.  

Page 245



Appendix 3  

 
 

• Welsh-medium apprenticeships held a presentation at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 

Llangynwyd for Years 11 to 13 in February 2023. 47 pupils attended sessions 

with Aspire following the presentation.  

• Throughout 2022-2023, Central South Consortium offered asynchronous, 
face-to-face, and bespoke Welsh across the curriculum professional learning.  
  

IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING 

 

The implementation and monitoring of the WESP in undertaken in the following 

ways: 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Cabinet/Corporate Management 

Board (CCMB) on 13 December 2022. 

• A WESP report will be reported to CCMB on 30 August 2023 following its first 

year of implementation. 

• A WESP Cabinet report will be reported to Cabinet on 19 September 2023 

following its first year of implementation. 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Scrutiny on 1 December 2022. 

• WESP is reported to the Education and Family Support Directorate (EFSD) 

monthly senior management team (SMT) which involves the Director/Head of 

Service and Group Managers. 

• The WESP is contained within Education and Family Support (EFS) Strategic 

Business Plan 2023-2026. This is monitored and reported on a quarterly 

basis. 

• The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) chaired by Group Manager (Learner 

Support) receives updates from the chairs of the sub-groups who have been 

approved by WEF. The WESP co-ordinator presents on the work of the sub-

groups. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator regularly meet 

to discuss and plan the implementation and monitoring of the WESP. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator meet with 

Welsh Government throughout the course of a year. 

• The WESP co-ordinator meets with chairs of sub-groups prior to a sub-group 

meeting. 

• Workshops have taken place to write the five-year WESP and the sub-group 

development plan. 

• Each sub-group has developed an annual development plan taken from the 

five-year WESP which has focussed the work of the sub-group.  

• During the termly sub-group meeting, the sub-group development plan is 

updated and then each action is RAYG rated.  

• The Bridgend Association Secondary Headteachers (BASH) and the Primary 

Federation discuss the work of the WESP and have representatives who sit 

on the WEF. 

Page 246



Appendix 3  

 
 

• Team Bridgend which is attended by local authority officers within the 

Education and Family Support Directorate and across the Council and 

headteachers receive WESP updates. 

 

OUTCOME LEVEL RISKS 

• School engagement with Siarter Iaith and Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus. 

• Not all partners are using the calendar effectively could restrict the amount of 

communicating the local authority and partners can undertake. 

 

ASSURANCE / MITIGATION ACTION 

• Improvement Partners to discuss engagement and progress with Siarter Iaith 

and Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus. Central South Consortium will invite 

schools who have not started their Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus journey to 

introductory session in autumn 2023. Promotion of the successes of Siarter 

Iaith. School Support to encourage all schools to engage with Siarter Iaith / 

Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus frameworks. 

• In the individual partner welcome meetings held at the beginning of next year, 

stress the importance of the calendar. 

 

  

Page 247



Appendix 3  

 
 

Outcome 6 

An increase in the provision of Welsh-medium education for 

pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) in accordance with 

the duties imposed by the Additional Learning Needs and 

Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 

KEY ANNUAL DATA  

 

PLASC 2022-2023  
ALN data by school sector 

School 
Type 

Total 
number 

of 
pupils 

 

School 
Action 

or 
Early 
Years 
Action 

School 
Action 
Plus or 
Early 
Years 
Action 
Plus 

School 
Maintained 
Individual 

Development 
Plan 

Local 
Authority 

Maintained 
Individual 

Development 
Plan 

Statemented 

TOTAL 
PUPILS 
WITH 
ALN 

Welsh-
medium 
primary 
schools 

1013 

No. 4 7 28 0 3 41 

% 0.39% 0.69% 2.78% 0 0.30% 4.05% 

Welsh-
medium 

secondary 
school 

717 

No. 4 9 4 2 0 19 

% 0.56% 1.26% 0.56% 0.28% 0 2.64% 

English-
medium 
primary 
schools 

11853 

No. 169 290 281 8 41 789 

% 1.42% 2.44% 2.37% 0.06% 0.35% 6.66% 

English-
medium 

secondary 
schools 

9109 

No. 221 119 270 12 75 697 

% 2.43% 1.31% 2.96 0.13% 0.82% 7.65% 

Special 
Schools 

428 

No. 10 93 42 93 190 428 

% 2.34% 21.72% 9.81% 21.72% 44.39% 100% 

 

• The local authority has three Welsh-medium learning resources centres 

(LRCs) across two Welsh-medium primary schools and Ysgol Gyfun 

Gymraeg Llangynwyd. 

• The moderate learning difficulties (MLD) LRC is located at Ysgol Gynradd 

Gymraeg Cynwyd Sant and has a capacity for 15 spaces, eight spaces are 

currently occupied.  

• The autistic spectrum disorder (ASD) LRC is located at Ysgol Gynradd 

Gymraeg Calon y Cymoedd. The LRC has a capacity for eight pupils, six 

spaces are currently occupied. 

Page 248



Appendix 3  

 
 

• The secondary ASD LRC is located at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd 

and has a capacity for twelve spaces, four spaces are currently occupied. 

OUTCOME SUMMARY 

 
The members of the WEF work proactively to support the WESP.  Each member 
of the WEF works as part of the sub-group for Outcome Six and Seven.  As part of 
the work of this sub-group an annual development plan has been created, and 
activities have been developed with partners. The annual development plan has 
been monitored and evaluated by members of this sub-group. The activities were 
evaluated three times a year using the Education and Family Support Directorate’s 
red, amber, yellow, and green (RAYG) system.  

 

The actions outlined in the sub-group development plan are as follows: 
 

• The ALN Strategic Planning Provision Review Board continues to meet. 
This is included in the Education and Family Support Directorate Business 
Plan and is reported on a quarterly basis. 

• A Welsh-medium learning resource centre (LRC) for pupils with moderate 
learning difficulties (MLD) opened at Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Cynwyd Sant 
in November 2022. There are currently eight pupils in the LRC with capacity 
for 15 pupils. 

• In-line with the statutory process, consultation meetings were held to open 
the Welsh-medium MLD LRC.  

• A sub-group of the ALN Strategic Planning Provision Review Board is 
currently reviewing the provision for secondary Welsh-medium MLD. 

• An ALN Welsh-medium marketing strategy has been drafted which notes 
the information to be shared with schools and prospective parents.  

• A review of the ALN webpage on the local authority’s website has been 
undertaken and the changes are in the process of being updated. The 
changes have made the information that was already on the webpage 
clearer with the format more streamlined which gives the reader an easily 
navigated webpage. The webpage is monitored and kept under review. 

• The School Modernisation Team have included an observation and 
assessment class in their design for Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr which will 
create eight spaces for pupils.  

• The Access to Education Panel analyses the need for specialist provision 
for pupils. Agendas and panel notes are circulated prior to every panel. The 
panel meets six times a year, with extraordinary decisions able to be made 
outside of panel if required. 

• The links between special schools and the Welsh-medium secondary sector 
is being further developed. This includes Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd 
and Bridgend College.  

• Welsh-medium ALN professional development opportunities with partners 
and other agencies have been explored. Further work on this will be carried 
out into the second year of the WESP. 

• Central South Consortium has developed, piloted, and published a 
standardised Welsh reading test for Years 1 to 11 in Welsh-medium schools 
and professional development related to the test is available. 

Page 249



Appendix 3  

 
 

• Work to create a list of Welsh-medium resources that are used within ALN 
Learner Support is underway and will be continued into the second year of 
the WESP. This will be shared with the Welsh-medium LRCs and Welsh-
medium schools. Further work needs to be undertaken at a national level. It 
is pleasing to hear about the work of ‘Adnodd’, established by Welsh 
Government to ensure a strategic approach to commissioning educational 
resources.  

• A review is underway of the current ALN additional learning provision (ALP) 
at Post-16.  

• A video to market Welsh-medium education which shows the journey 
children can take from Cymraeg i Blant, Cylchoedd Meithrin, primary and 
secondary schools. The video refers to the ALN LRCs at both primary and 
secondary schools. We are exploring the possibility of creating a case study 
video using parental experiences of the LRCs to market the provision. 

• Consultation meetings have been held in-line with the process of opening a 
Welsh-medium MLD LRC.  

• An audit of ALN staff who are not based in schools was undertaken and this 
has been recorded in Outcome Seven. The high number of staff able to 
deliver their service in Welsh ensures that pupils and parents have access 
to Welsh speaking specialist professionals.  
 

IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING 

The implementation and monitoring of the WESP in undertaken in the following 

ways: 

• The WESP five-year plan was taken to Cabinet/Corporate Management 

Board (CCMB) on 13 December 2022. 

• A WESP report will be reported to CCMB on 30 August 2023 following its 

first year of implementation. 

• A WESP Cabinet report will be reported to Cabinet on 19 September 2023 

following its first year of implementation. 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Scrutiny on 1 December 2022. 

• WESP is reported to the Education and Family Support Directorate (EFSD) 

monthly senior management team (SMT) which involves the Director/Head 

of Service and Group Managers. 

• The WESP is contained within Education and Family Support (EFS) 

Strategic Business Plan 2023-2026. This is monitored and reported on a 

quarterly basis. 

• The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF), chaired by Group Manager (Learner 

Support) receives updates from the chairs of the sub-groups who have 

been approved by WEF. The WESP co-ordinator presents on the work of 

the sub-groups. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator regularly 

meet to discuss and plan the implementation and monitoring of the WESP. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator meet with 

Welsh Government throughout the course of a year. 

Page 250



Appendix 3  

 
 

• The WESP co-ordinator meets with chairs of sub-groups prior to a sub-

group meeting. 

• Workshops have taken place to write the five-year WESP and the sub-

group development plan. 

• Each sub-group has developed an annual development plan taken from the 

five-year WESP which has focussed the work of the sub-group.  

• During the termly sub-group meeting, the sub-group development plan is 

updated and then each action is RAYG rated.  

• The Bridgend Association Secondary Headteachers (BASH) and the 

Primary Federation discuss the work of the WESP and have 

representatives who sit on the WEF. 

• Team Bridgend which is attended by local authority officers within the 

Education and Family Support Directorate and across the Council and 

headteachers receive WESP updates. 

 

OUTCOME LEVEL RISKS 

 

• Financial approval from Cabinet to open any additional resource. 

• Lack of resources for ALN through the medium of Welsh. 

 

ASSURANCE / MITIGATION ACTION 

• Seek to support children and young people in alternative ways to ensure 

that they can continue their education through the medium of Welsh. 

• The local authority will support the work of the Adnodd resource. 

 

 

  

Page 251



Appendix 3  

 
 

Outcome 7 

Increase the number of teaching staff able to teach Welsh (as a subject) 

and teach through the medium of Welsh    

KEY ANNUAL DATA  

 

Total Number of pupils as at PLASC 2022- 2023 (Provisional Data) 

Year 
Groups 

Welsh-
medium 
schools 

English-
medium 
schools   

% of pupils in 
Welsh-medium 

schools 

Total 
number of 

pupils 

N1 17 244 6.51 261 

N2 123 1296 8.67 1419 

R 135 1356 9.05 1491 

1 133 1421 8.56 1554 

2 125 1469 7.84 1594 

3 120 1477 7.51 1597 

4 112 1464 7.11 1576 

5 120 1556 7.16 1676 

6 128 1570 7.54 1698 

7 147 1613 8.35 1760 

8 128 1564 7.57 1692 

9 105 1509 6.51 1614 

10 118 1517 7.22 1635 

11 108 1523 6.62 1631 

12 63 700 8.26 763 

13 48 683 6.57 731 

TOTAL 1730 20962 7.62 22692 

 
 

School Workforce Annual Census (SWAC) Data 

Progress of all teachers (including leadership roles) Welsh language ability over time – 
number moving up (or down) the Welsh Language Competency Framework  

672 

2022 

No 
skills 

Entry Foundation Intermediate Advanced Proficiency 
No 

information 

W1 W2 W3 W4 W5 W6 W7 

2
0
2
1

 

W1 437 7 1 - - - 2 

W2 6 335 1 - - - - 

W3 - 4 214 1 - 1 - 

W4 - 1 2 54 - - - 

W5 - - - - 39 1 - 

Page 252



Appendix 3  

 
 

W6 - - - - - 115 - 

 

• 437 teachers in the local authority were reported as having “no skills” on the Welsh 

Language Competency Framework in both 2021 and 2022. 

• Across the whole local authority, 1194 teachers have the same Welsh language 

ability reported in both 2021 and 2022.  

• 12 teachers have increased their Welsh language ability between 2021 and 2022, 

with one increasing from W3 (Foundation) to W6 (Proficiency). 

• 13 teachers have seen a decrease in their Welsh language ability between 2021 and 

2022. 

 

Progress of all Support staff and teaching assistants (includes HLTAs, TAs, ALN 
support staff and ALN coordinators) Welsh language ability over time – number 
moving up (or down) the Welsh Language Competency Framework Support staff 
and teaching assistants (includes HLTAs, TAs, ALN support staff and ALN co-
ordinators) 

672 

2022 
No 

skills 
Entry Foundation Intermediate Advanced Proficiency 

No 
information 

W1 W2 W3 W4 W5 W6 W7 

2
0
2
1
 

W1 238 8 - - - - - 

W2 10 203 3 - - - - 

W3 3 4 118 - - - - 

W4 - - 2 30 1 - - 

W5 - - - - 19 1 - 

W6 - - - - - 58 - 

W7 - - - - - - 6 

 

• 238 support staff, including ALN coordinators (ALNCOs) in the local authority were 

reported as having “no skills” on the Welsh Language Competency Framework in 

both 2021 and 2022. 

• Across the whole local authority, 666 support staff including ALN coordinators have 

the same Welsh language ability reported in both 2021 and 2022.  

• 13 support staff including ALN coordinators have increased their Welsh language 

ability between 2021 and 2022, with one increasing from W3 (Foundation) to W6 

(Proficiency). 

• 19 support staff including ALN coordinators have seen a decrease in their Welsh 

language ability between 2021 and 2022. 

 

 

Welsh Sabbatical Data 2022-2023 

Welsh in a Year: 1 1 

Page 253



Appendix 3  

 
 

Foundation /Intermediate 
level: 3 

3 

Intermediate level: 1 

 
1 

2023-2024: 2 
Foundation /Intermediate level: 2 

 

• Further data below on the uptake of Welsh language courses from other providers. 
 

OUTCOME SUMMARY 

 

• The local authority’s human resources system does not currently report vacancies 

and recruitment data easily. However, developments are ongoing regarding the 

collection of data to improve the information available, to inform the workforce plan 

in the future. 

 

• We have identified the number of new spaces available as set out in the WESP five-

year work plan. A workforce plan for the increase in published admission number 

(PAN) in existing schools and new schools opening will be written into the sub-group 

annual development plan for 2023-2024.  

 

• During 2022-2023, an audit of ALN staff was undertaken to determine the number of 

staff that can deliver their service through the medium Welsh.  

 

ALN Roles 
in Learner Support 

Number of Welsh speaking 
staff in Learner Support  

Specialist Teacher 
(Visual Impairment)  

1 

Specialist Teacher 
(Cognition and Learning) 

1 

Teacher Moderate Learning 
Difficulties 

1 

Special Needs Support Assistants  
 

4 

Senior Support Officer  
 

1 

Mobility Officer  
 

1 

Educational Psychology Service  
 

3 

 

 

 

Number of Welsh 
speaking Additional 
Learning Needs 

Number of Welsh 
speaking ALN 
support staff in 
schools 

Number of Welsh 
speaking staff in 
LRCs 

Page 254



Appendix 3  

 
 

Coordinators 
(ALNCOs) 

Proficient: 10 
Advanced: 4 
Intermediate: 6 
Foundation: 38 

Proficient: 6 
Advanced: 3 
Intermediate: 5 
Foundation: 18 

Proficient: 7 
 

 

• The SWAC data has identified that out of 60 schools, 10 ALNCOs have identified 

their level of Welsh competency as proficient and four have identified as being 

advanced.  

• 138 teachers are currently working in Welsh-speaking posts. There are a further 70 

Welsh-speaking teachers not working in Welsh-speaking posts. There are 362 

teachers teaching Welsh as a subject only.  

 

• Bridgend College have the following number of Welsh speaking staff specialising in 

the areas below: 

Vocational Area Number of staff 

Agriculture 1 

Animal Care 2 

Art and Design 1 

Childcare 2 

Commercial 1 

ESOL / Education 1 

Hair and Beauty 5 

HE Care and Childhood Studies 1 

HE Partnerships and Schools 1 

Health and Social Care 3 

Mechanical Engineering 1 

Music 1 

Painting and Decorating 1 

Photography 2 

Science and Engineering 2 

Skills 5 

Tourism and Hospitality 1 

 TOTAL 31 

 

• Three Welsh-speaking practitioners within Bridgend are undertaking the Aspiring 

Headteacher professional development. This is the first time Welsh-speaking 

practitioners have undertaken the professional development in more than three 

years. School leaders are encouraged to monitor the National Academy of 

Educational Leadership.  

Page 255



Appendix 3  

 
 

 

• Central South Consortium and Learn Welsh offer a range of professional 
development opportunities for staff within schools to improve their Welsh language 
skills. Opportunities for lessons to be delivered in person, online and at various times 
of the day. Improvement Partners discuss school developmental needs and 
signposts schools to access professional development for their staff.  

 

• The SWAC Welsh language data has been analysed and reported in the key data 
area of this report. We have recognised that some of the SWAC data is inconsistent 
and therefore have invited Central South Consortium to present at Team Bridgend in 
autumn 2023, to highlight the importance of using the Welsh Competency 
Framework to input data for the SWAC collection. Using the framework effectively 
will ensure that the data collection is an accurate reflection of the staff’s Welsh 
language ability which will enable the local authority to plan effectively for the 
workforce needed and for professional development. The revised guidance on 
SWAC data will be shared with all schools. 

 
 

Central South Consortium: In-person Welsh lessons for 
school staff (summer term 2023) 

Entry / Mynediad level 1 2 

Entry / Mynediad level 2 1 

Foundation / Sylfaen 1 
 

Coety Primary School: In-person Welsh lessons for all school staff  

Number of teachers 18 

Number of LSOs 6 

Number of additional staff:                         2  
(Office staff) 

• LSOs receive a two-hour entry one lesson weekly.  

• Teachers who are competent in Welsh receive lessons during lunchtime 
to boost confidence. 

• Teachers on the entry level or foundation level received one lesson after 
school every three weeks. 

 

 

Welsh Sabbatical Data 2022-2023 

Welsh in a Year: 1 

Foundation /Intermediate 
level: 

3 

Intermediate level: 1 

2023-24: 
Foundation /Intermediate level: 2 

 
 
 

• The National Centre for learning Welsh has also provided Welsh language courses 
for staff across the local authority.  

 

Page 256



Appendix 3  

 
 

Bridgend 10-hour Taster 

Course 

(teachers and 

headteachers) 

120-hour 

Self Study 

Courses 

(Education) 

Mainstream 

– 

Education* 

Total 

number of 

learning 

activities 

Bridgend County 

Borough Council 
10 3 2 15 

Coety Primary 

School 
1 - - 1 

 

 
The members of the WEF work proactively to support the WESP.  Each member of the 
WEF works as part of the sub-group for Outcome Six and Seven.  As part of the work of 
this sub-group an annual development plan has been created, and activities have been 
developed with partners. The annual development plan has been monitored and evaluated 
by members of this sub-group. The activities were evaluated three times a year using the 
Education and Family Support Directorate’s red, amber, yellow, and green (RAYG) system.  

 

The actions outlined in the sub-group development plan are as follows: 
 

• Schools have access to the Welsh Competency Framework, but this is not being 
used consistently across the local authority to accurately reflect staff’s Welsh 
language ability. Central South Consortium’s Improvement Partners discuss the 
framework during school meetings. 

• To improve the quality of SWAC data, Central South Consortium will present at 
Team Bridgend in autumn 2023 to remind headteachers of the importance of the 
inputting data correctly. The framework will then be reshared with headteachers in 
the weekly communication bulletin, which is sent out to all schools, namely the 
Monday mailshot. 

• The SWAC data was analysed by members of the sub-group. The findings are 
recorded in the key data section above.  

• The sub-group has identified schools that have a high number of Welsh-speaking 
staff. This information has been shared with Central South Consortium. 
Improvement Partners will discuss further professional development courses to 
increase the amount of Welsh that is used within those schools. 

• An audit of Learn Welsh courses and the number of delegates who have attended 
Welsh language courses in Bridgend has been undertaken and the data is 
recorded above. 

• Central South Consortium has delivered asynchronous, face-to-face, and bespoke 
Welsh language development professional learning linked to the Welsh Language 
Competency Framework. Five delegates have undertaken the Welsh sabbatical 
courses. Some schools have sent more than one member of staff on the courses 
which shows a strategic determination to develop Welsh within their school. 

• Central South Consortium has delivered post-sabbatical support to three members 
of staff within two schools who undertook the course last year. Headteachers 
attended a conference in September 2022 to hear about what new skills staff have 
developed and what they can offer to support Welsh strategically. 

  

Page 257



Appendix 3  

 
 

Funding to each school to release staff to attend network meetings and allows 
staff to:  

• lead and deliver a project within their own school; 

• present to another school or cluster; 

• attend a day programme of Welsh; 

• work with development officers within Central South Consortium to support 
them in their role to develop Welsh strategically; 

• have opportunities to practice Welsh in social situations; 

• develop a video to promote the course to headteachers. 
 

• The sub-group for promotion, marketing and celebrating have created a shared 

calendar for all partners to upload details of events, activities, and lessons.  All 

courses by Learn Welsh have been uploaded to the calendar and the 

Communication Team has marketed these on the local authority’s social media 

platforms. The Welsh courses are also a regular feature in the staff bulletin. 

• All staff members at Coety Primary School receive lessons in conjunction with 

Learn Welsh. The LSOs have a two-hour Entry level one lesson on a weekly 

basis. The teachers who speak Welsh regularly receive lessons over lunchtime to 

build their confidence. The remaining teachers receive one lesson every three 

weeks. There are three cohorts Entry level one, Entry level two and Foundation 

level one. Each cohort receives one lesson after school every three weeks. 

Courses were also offered to parents of the school. The school has used the Welsh 

Competency Framework to determine the staff’s language acquisition. 

• Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd offer Childcare courses and Welsh-medium 
placements in Cylchoedd Meithrin for learners in partnership with Mudiad Meithrin. 
Three learners undertook the course this year. Bridgend College offers a bilingual 
Childcare course with two students undertaking the course bilingually.  

• Mudiad Meithrin has approached nurseries to offer and market the ‘Croesi’r Bont – 
Cynllun Clebran’ scheme. 

• An exit interview has been created by Human Resources and has been shared with 
headteachers. Nine support staff and eight of teachers have left Welsh-medium 
education a 7% turnover which is lower than the English-medium sector of 8.8% 
turnover.  

• Newly Qualified Teachers (NQT) have attended Central South Consortium’s Aspire 
programme and induction through the medium of Welsh. 15% of the external 
verifiers for NQTs are Welsh within the local authority.  

• For the first time in over three years, there are three Welsh-speaking practitioners 
are undertaking the Aspiring Headteacher programme within the local authority. 
This will increase schools’ ability to plan for succession effectively.  Central South 
Consortium’s Improvement Partners regularly discuss professional development 
with headteachers. 

• Findings from the SWAC analysis activity found that there were some schools 
within the local authority that had a high number of Welsh speaking staff. This 
information has been passed to Central South Consortium and School Support to 
further support these schools to increase the amount of time dedicated to Welsh on 
the timetable.  

 

IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING 

Page 258



Appendix 3  

 
 

 

The implementation and monitoring of the WESP in undertaken in the following ways: 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Cabinet/Corporate Management Board 

(CCMB) on 13 December 2022. 

• A WESP report will be reported to CCMB on 30 August 2023, following its first year 

of implementation. 

• A WESP Cabinet report will be reported to Cabinet on 19 September 2023 following 

its first year of implementation. 

• The WESP five-year plan was presented to Scrutiny on 1 December 2022. 

• WESP is reported to the Education and Family Support Directorate (EFSD) monthly 

senior management team (SMT) which involves the Director/Head of Service and 

Group Managers. 

• The WESP is contained within Education and Family Support (EFS) Strategic 

Business Plan 2023-2026. This is monitored and reported on a quarterly basis. 

• The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) chaired by Group Manager (Learner Support) 

receives updates from the chairs of the sub-groups who have been approved by 

WEF. The WESP co-ordinator presents on the work of the sub-groups. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator regularly meet to 

discuss and plan the implementation and monitoring of the WESP. 

• Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator meet with Welsh 

Government throughout the course of a year. 

• The WESP co-ordinator meets with chairs of sub-groups prior to a sub-group 

meeting. 

• Workshops have taken place to write the five-year WESP and the sub-group 

development plan. 

• Each sub-group has developed an annual development plan taken from the five-year 

WESP which has focussed the work of the sub-group.  

• During the termly sub-group meeting, the sub-group development plan is updated 

and then each action is RAYG rated.  

• The Bridgend Association Secondary Headteachers (BASH) and the Primary 

Federation discuss the work of the WESP and have representatives who sit on the 

WEF. 

• Team Bridgend which is attended by local authority officers within the Education and 

Family Support Directorate and across the Council and headteachers receive WESP 

updates. 

 

 

OUTCOME LEVEL RISKS 

 

• Inconsistent use of the Welsh Competency Framework with a risk that the data will 

not truly reflect the ability of the workforce. 

• Recruitment issue – not having experienced staff to fill the vacancies arising. 

Page 259



Appendix 3  

 
 

 

ASSURANCE / MITIGATION ACTION 

• Central South Consortium to present at Team Bridgend to highlight the importance 

of using the Welsh Language Competency Framework. School Support / Human 

Resources to remind schools to use the framework with new starters and for it to be 

used annually. 

• Childcare team, Mudiad Meithrin and Post-16 providers to work closely to facilitate 

courses to meet the demand of the childcare workforce. 

 

 

 

Page 260



  Appendix 4 

 

 

 
Meeting of:  

CABINET 

Date of Meeting:  19 SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
Report Title:  

WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN 
(2022-2032) 
 

Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 

Responsible 
Officer:  

MICHELLE HATCHER 
GROUP MANAGER LEARNER SUPPORT 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

 
THERE IS NO EFFECT UPON THE POLICY FRAMEWORK OR 
PROCEDURE RULES. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

 
THIS REPORT PROVIDES CABINET WITH AN UPDATE ON 
THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE WELSH IN EDUCATION 
STRATEGIC PLAN (WESP) 2022-2032. 
 
THE REPORT PROVIDES BACKGROUND INFORMATION, 
OUTLINING THE STRATEGIC RESPONSIBILITIES AND 
PROGRESS TO DATE. 
 
THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE FIRST YEAR OF THE WESP 
WAS REPORTED TO WELSH GOVERNMENT IN JULY 2023. 
 

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet on the implementation and the 

progress of the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2022-2032. 
 

2. Background  
 
2.1 Section 84 of The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 (“the 2013 

Act“) requires a local authority to prepare a Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (“the 
Plan”) and outlines that a plan must contain:  

 
a. A local authority’s proposals on how it will carry out its education functions to: 
 

i. improve the planning of the provision of education through the medium of 
Welsh (“Welsh-medium education”) in its area; and 
 

ii. improve the standards of Welsh-medium education and of the teaching of 
Welsh in its area.  

 
b. The local authority’s targets for improving the planning of the provision of 

Welsh-medium education in its area and for improving the standards of that 
education and of the teaching of Welsh in its area;  
 

Page 261



  Appendix 4 

 

c. Report on the progress made to meet the targets contained in the previous 
Plan or previous revised Plan.  

 
2.2 Cabinet first approved the Bridgend Local Authority Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 

(WESP) in March 2014, and it was subsequently approved by Welsh Government’s 
Department for Education and Skills (DfES) in June 2014. The plan has been 
reviewed and updated annually prior to seeking approval from Welsh Government. 

 
2.3  Following the rapid review commissioned by Welsh Government the timescales for 

publication of the WESP documents have been reviewed, as reported in the Cabinet 
report dated 5 September 2017. 

 
2.4 The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 2019 ("The 2019 

Regulations") make provision for a local authority to prepare a ten-year plan, the 
first to have effect from 1 September 2022, subject to the Welsh Ministers’ approval.  

 
2.5 The purpose of these regulations is to improve opportunities for local authorities to 

plan Welsh-medium education provision in order to support the current and future 
expectation for growth in Welsh-medium education. Improving the planning of Welsh-
medium education will also support Welsh Government’s long-term national ambition 
for the Welsh language as set out in Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050: A Million 
Welsh speakers’ strategy, your strategy for promoting the Welsh language in 
accordance with the Promotion Standards under the Welsh Language Standards (No. 
1) Regulations 2015 and also the introduction of a new curriculum for Wales. 

   
2.6 In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, amendments were made to the 2019 

Regulations,  which made changes to the start date of the next WESP cycle being 
moved from 1 September 2021 to a year later (to September 2022). The plan was 
required to be submitted to Welsh Government for approval by the 31 January 2022. 

 
2.7 The first ten-year plan commenced on 1 September 2022 and expires on 31 August 

2032. Each further plan will commence on 1 September in the year during which the  
previous ten-year plan will come to an end (that is, 1 September 2032 to 31 August 
2042). The Plan must include a target outlining the expected increase in the number 
of Year 1 learners taught through the medium of Welsh in the local authority area 
during the lifespan of the plan. 
 

2.8 On 14 September 2021, Cabinet gave permission to consult upon the draft WESP. A 
consultation exercise with stakeholders on the draft WESP was undertaken between 
27 September and 19 December 2021. 

 
2.9 The outcome of the consultation process for the draft WESP (2023-2032) was 

reported to Cabinet on 18 January 2022. Cabinet gave approval for the WESP to be 
submitted to Welsh Government. 

 
2.10 Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) WESP (2022-2032) was submitted to 

Welsh Government by the stipulated deadline of 31 January 2022 (see Appendix 1).  
 

2.11 Following the submission of the WESP, Welsh Government requested that the local 
authority submit a five-year WESP. The WESP five-year plan was presented to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 on 1 December 2022. 

 

Page 262



  Appendix 4 

 

2.12 BCBC’s five-year WESP was submitted to Welsh Government by the stipulated 
deadline of 16 December 2022 (see Appendix 2).  

 

2.13  The WESP Annual Review Report for 2022-2023 was submitted to Welsh 
Government by the stipulated deadline of 31 July 2023 (see Appendix 3). 

  
2.14 Bridgend’s Local Government Education Services (LGES) were inspected by Estyn 

in March 2019. Recommendation 4 of the post-inspection action plan (PIAP) was to 
strengthen the role of the Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) to ensure timely progress 
in delivering the priorities identified in the WESP. 

 
3. Current situation/proposal  
 
3.1 The Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) has been strengthened. Membership of the 

WEF has been reviewed and the terms of reference adopted. Five sub-groups for 
the seven outcomes have been established, with chairs from the WEF appointed 
and terms of reference adopted for each sub-group (see Appendix 4). 

 
3.2 The WESP is monitored and evaluated in the following ways: 
 

• The WESP is reported, on a monthly basis, to the Education and Family 
Support Directorate (EFS) Senior Management Team (SMT), which involves 
the Corporate Director, Head of Service and Group Managers. 

• The WESP is contained within EFS Strategic Business Plan (2023-2026). 
This is monitored and reported on a quarterly basis. 

• The WEF is chaired by the Group Manager (Learner Support) who receives 
updates from the chairs of the sub-groups who have been approved by WEF. 
The WESP Co-ordinator presents on the work of the sub-groups. 

• The Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator regularly 
meet to discuss and plan the implementation and monitoring of the WESP. 

• The Group Manager (Learner Support) and the WESP Co-ordinator meet 
with Welsh Government throughout the course of a year. 

• The WESP Co-ordinator meets with chairs of sub-groups prior to a sub-group 
meeting. 

• Workshops have taken place to write the five-year WESP and the sub-group 
development plan. 

• Each sub-group has developed an annual development plan taken from the 
five-year WESP which has focussed the work of the sub-group.  

• During the termly sub-group meeting, the sub-group development plan is 
updated and then each action is RAYG rated.   

 
3.3 Bridgend’s Strategic Lead for WESP is the Group Manager (Learner Support).  The 

current postholder is a former senior leader in a local English-medium secondary 
school. Prior to becoming a deputy headteacher, the postholder was the former 
Head of a Welsh Department within a secondary school.  The WESP Co-ordinator 
is an experienced senior leader from a Welsh-medium primary school in Cardiff. 
The WESP Co-ordinator reports to the Group Manager (Learner Support) and was 
appointed to work with stakeholders and delivery partners to drive forward BCBC’s 
WESP with a view to promoting the Welsh language and supporting Welsh-medium 
education throughout the county borough. With the combined experience, BCBC is 
well placed to drive the implementation of the WESP forward. 

 

Page 263



  Appendix 4 

 

3.4 The golden thread throughout the five-year WESP (2022-2027) is our commitment 
to promote, market and celebrate progress, opportunities, and our dedication to 
increase our Welsh-medium offer across a variety of platforms using a dedicated 
sub-group to drive this forward. Activities and actions align with the Welsh 
Language Strategy (2021-2026). To promote and celebrate Bridgend’s Welsh-
medium education journey, a video has been developed with partners and will be 
launched in autumn 2023. The link to the video is as follows: 
https://tinyurl.com/4yc69b7w  

 
3.5 The booklet ‘Why choose Welsh-medium education?’ has been published with 

10,000 copies printed (see Appendix 5). A poster has also been created with QR 
codes taking the reader to an electronic copy. Hundreds of booklets have been 
distributed to schools, Flying Start centres, private nurseries, libraries, local 
community centres, and other community hubs. The booklet has been shared with 
partners and is regularly promoted by the Council’s Communication and Marketing 
Team across different platforms. Mudiad Meithrin has arranged for Cymraeg i Blant 
to design and deliver training for health visitors and midwife teams to promote 
Welsh-medium education from a young age.  

 
3.6 Late immersion provision has been established. Late immersion is where pupils 

who haven’t been through Welsh-medium education are able to access additional 
support that immersers the newcomers into the Welsh language. The local authority 
has utilised the late immersion grant from Welsh Government and has employed 
one teacher and one learning support officer (LSO). The model we have had in 
place since November 2022 is for the staff to travel between schools and to support 
within the mainstream class and to withdraw from class for late immersion sessions. 
The WESP Co-ordinator line-manages the staff and has visited late immersion 
centres within the Central South Consortium and is working in conjunction with 
Central South’s Consortium’s late immersion network to further develop the 
provision. Currently, 10 pupils are being supported with two having successfully 
returned to mainstream. £3.7k has been spent on teaching and learning resources 
which has ensured that there are a variety of high-quality and interactive resources 
to support the teaching of the late-immersion teaching programme. 
 

3.7 Feedback has been received from pupils, staff and parents which will be continued 
to be used to inform how we provide late immersion provision. Pupils reported that 
overall, they enjoyed the various aspects of the work and provided feedback on how 
things could be improved upon. Staff noted increased progress in Welsh language 
skills since the beginning of provision. The assessment and scheme of work is 
promoted and endorsed by Central South Consortium. Since April 2023 to July 
2023, pupils have made on average 23.5% progress when re-assessed using the 
late immersion assessment, one pupil made 34.8% progress. 
 

3.8 BCBC is keen to provide pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) with support in 
their language of choice. Provision for pupils with ALN has increased. A Welsh-
medium learning resource centre (LRC) for pupils with moderate learning difficulties 
(MLD) opened in autumn 2022 at Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Cynwyd Sant with a 
capacity of 15 pupils. A sub-group of the ALN Strategic Planning Provision Review 
Board is currently reviewing the provision for secondary Welsh-medium MLD. The 
School Modernisation Team have included an observation and assessment class in 
their design for Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr which will create a capacity for eight 
spaces. 

Page 264

https://tinyurl.com/4yc69b7w


  Appendix 4 

 

 

3.9 The local authority has three Welsh-medium LRCs across two Welsh-medium 
primary schools and Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd. The LRC for pupils with 
MLD is located at Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Cynwyd Sant and has capacity for 15 
spaces, 8 spaces are currently occupied. The LRC for pupils with autistic spectrum 
disorder (ASD) is located at Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon y Cymoedd. The LRC 
has capacity for eight pupils, six spaces are currently occupied. The secondary LRC 
for pupils with ASD  is located at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd and has 
capacity for 12 spaces, 4 spaces are currently occupied.  

 
3.10 Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd has become the first Welsh-medium secondary 

school to receive no formal recommendations following an exceptional Estyn 
inspection which has led to the school being asked to produce two case studies of 
effective practice to share with others in the sector. The inspection was held in 
March 2023 and Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd now joins only a small group of 
schools in Wales to have achieved a report of this quality. 

 
3.11 The report highlights that the quality of teaching is consistently high across the 

school while also praising the close and supportive working relationships between 
pupils and teachers. Another positive was the school’s leadership team having very 
high expectations of staff and pupils. The report noted that this helped to create a 
strong Welsh language culture throughout the school as a whole. The inspectors 
were also impressed with the wide range of courses available at Key Stage 4 and in 
the school’s sixth form which provide many opportunities for pupils to take part in 
cultural and physical activities. The school was also praised for the excellent 
support it provides for pupils with ALN.  The report states that staff know their pupils 
very well and tailor their provision carefully to ensure that they achieve to the best of 
their ability. 

 
3.12 The school’s headteacher was named ‘Headteacher of the Year’ at the most recent 

Welsh Teaching Awards and also received the silver award at the Pearson UK 
Teaching Awards. Estyn inspectors described the headteacher as an “inspiring and 
modest leader who is very well respected among the staff and wider school 
community.” 

 
3.13 A key part of our WESP is the work we are doing to increase the number of pupil 

places available in Welsh-medium settings in Bridgend. We are aiming to achieve 
this goal by building excellent 21st century school buildings, investing in our current 
school stock and developing state-of-the-art Welsh-medium childcare settings.  

 
3.14 To support Cymraeg 2050: A million Welsh speakers’ strategy, Welsh Government 

has set Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) a target to increase the 
percentage of learners taught through the medium of Welsh from around 8% to 
between 14% to 18% by 2032 (based on PLASC data of Year 1 learners 2019-
2020).  There are currently four Welsh-medium primary schools and one Welsh-
medium secondary school in the local authority. Two of the four Welsh-medium 
primary schools are in the north of the county borough, one in the west and one in 
the south. The Welsh-medium secondary school is based in the north of the County 
Borough. 

 
3.15 In 2021, Bridgend’s Welsh-medium schools had 162 pupil places available for 

Reception-age learners. The local authority has set a target of 300 Reception 

 

Page 265



  Appendix 4 

 

places being available for Welsh-medium learners by the end of the plan period, 
which is an additional 138 additional pupil places. The 300 Reception places equate 
to ten forms of entry, and the aim is to ensure those places are filled. The number of 
Reception age places would only increase once the new schools are open. 

 
3.16 We are aiming to achieve this goal by building excellent 21st century school 

buildings, investing in our current school stock and developing state-of-the-art 
Welsh-medium childcare settings. From a school modernisation perspective, the 
update is as follows: 

 

• The consultation has concluded for Porthcawl Welsh-medium seedling school 
and childcare  

      provision. Cabinet approval has been received to proceed with the schemes. 

• An application for planning approval has been submitted for Ysgol Gymraeg Bro 
Ogwr mobile classroom and is expected to be fitted in February 2024. 

• The replacement of Ysgol Y Ferch o’r Sgȇr and Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr will 
transition to the nine-year programme (these schemes are currently in design). 
Ysgol Y Ferch o’r Sgêr will increase its capacity to 420, plus nursery (that is, 60 
places for Reception aged pupils) and will receive a new build. The scheme will 
be funded through revenue (that is, via the Mutual Investment Model). Ysgol 
Gymraeg Bro Ogwr will increase its pupil admission number (PAN) to 75 from 
54. The school will move to a new site and will be provided with a purpose-built 
school  

• The priorities identified in the WESP will also transition to the nine-year 
programme.  

• We are in the process of reviewing our school organisation proposals and will 
endeavour to ensure that we deliver on the WESP targets which is a priority of 
the local authority. 

• The local authority is reviewing the pupil place requirement to serve new 
housing development proposed in the Replacement Local Development Plan 
(LDP). 

• Opportunities to increase Welsh-medium provision in English-medium schools 
or schools looking to transition to a different category will be reviewed as part of 
the school organisation proposals to inform the nine-year rolling programme. 

 
3.17 BCBC’s Childcare Team is continuing to work with local partners and providers to 

maintain and expand the offer of Welsh-medium childcare across the local 
authority. Two childcare hubs have been purposefully designed and built to a very 
high standard. The setting in Bettws was handed over to the local authority in 
November 2022 and Blackmill was handed over in March 2023. There have been 
challenges in identifying a suitable provider which has necessitated high-level 
liaison with colleagues in Mudiad Meithrin, Welsh Government and the local 
authority to improve the level of incentive on offer. The opportunity to operate from 
the Bettws hub will be going out to tender, in autumn term 2023, to secure a 
Welsh-medium provider. At the time of writing, a suitable provider has expressed a 
firm interest. The same options have been explored in relation to the Blackmill 
setting, but due to its location the ‘set up and succeed’ team at Mudiad Meithrin 
has advised that it is currently unviable. With the agreement of Welsh 
Government, the local authority is currently exploring the possibility of utilising the 
building as a late-immersion centre for primary-aged Welsh medium learners. 

 

Page 266



  Appendix 4 

 

3.18 The projection for the number and percentage of three-year-olds receiving their 
education through the medium of Welsh for 2022-2023 was 150 pupils and 9.58%. 

 

• In 2022-2023, 123 children and 8.67% attended nursery classes in Welsh-
medium schools. A further 23 children and 9% received their education through 
the medium of Welsh in funded non-maintained Early Years settings. 

• In summer term 2023 for Flying Start, 10 children attended Cylch Meithrin Sgêr, 
five attended Cylch Meithrin Plant Bach, one attended Cylch Meithrin Cynwyd 
Sant, one attended Cylch Meithrin Gwdihŵ and three attended Cylch Meithrin 
Pencoed. This represents 4.8% of all children accessing Flying Start Childcare 
in the summer term. 

• In 2022-2023, the local authority funded 20 Flying Start childcare places 
compared to 10 places in 2021-2022.  

• There are currently 13 children accessing Welsh-medium childcare provision in 
the original Flying Start areas, which represents approximately 4% of the total 
number of children accessing the childcare provision. The percentage in the 
phase two expansion areas is higher at 7%, which represents seven children. 

 
3.19 The plan to increase the number of Welsh-medium Flying Start childcare places for 

the current expansion areas and for subsequent phases, includes implementing the 
model that has been developed in one of the existing Flying Start settings in 
Bridgend.  The two new Flying Start childcare settings in Ogmore Vale and 
Nantymoel will offer both Welsh and English-medium sessions. 

 
3.20 In June 2023, the WEF recommended that the local authority pursue catchment 

areas for Welsh-medium schools. To progress this, it is proposed that a report will 
be presented to Cabinet during autumn 2023 to recommend that the local authority 
progresses a public consultation on this matter. Following consideration of the 
outcome of the consultation, if Cabinet is minded, to approve the implementation of 
Welsh-medium school catchment areas, the earliest this could take place would be 
for the 2026-2027 school admission round. 

 
3.21 BCBC continues to work closely with Central South Consortium to ensure Welsh-

medium education in Bridgend benefits from regional support. Central South 
Consortium has held primary and secondary networking sessions and Bridgend 
schools attended the networks. Two schools have attended Central South 
Consortium’s Siarter Iaith network meetings and seven have attended the Siarter 
Iaith Cymraeg Campus network meetings. Professional development sessions have 
also been facilitated and the schools that are not currently engaged were invited to 
attend. One school has since engaged in Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus since 
September 2022. 

 
3.22 Central South Consortium has shared Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus data and 

facilitated an awards ceremony for all the schools who have received awards since 
March 2020. It was a pleasure for the Group Manager (Learner Support) and the 
WESP Coordinator to watch the schools receive their awards. A total of 19 Bridgend 
schools were invited to the ceremony. Following the award ceremony, a three-page 
article was published to celebrate schools’ achievements which has been shared in 
Yr Hogwr, Bridgenders and the communication forum in the Education and Family 
Support Directorate’s Monday Mailshot and social media platforms. Since 
September 2022, nine English-medium primary schools have the received the 
bronze award, one English-medium secondary has received the silver award and 

Page 267



  Appendix 4 

 

one English-medium primary school received the gold award.  Central South 
Consortium improvement partners encourage schools to engage with Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg Campus in meetings. 
 

3.23 The Council’s Communication and Marketing Team promotes and proactively raises 
awareness of the Welsh language and Welsh Culture. Between 1 April and 31 
March 2023, they published 45 posts relating to Welsh-medium education and 
learning the Welsh language on social media, resulting in 40,645 impressions, 55 
retweets and 147 likes. The detail of the promotional activities is documented as 
part of the reporting process for Bridgend’s Welsh Language Strategy. The Council 
promoted the following events and activities between 1 April and 31 March 2023: 
 

• Construction started Welsh-medium childcare hub Garw Valley. 

• Welsh Language Rights Day. 

• Shwmae Shwmae. 

• Mudiad Meithrin and Cymraeg i Blant. 

• Welsh Language Standards Annual Report. 

• Welsh Language Strategy / Consultation. 

• St David’s Day. 

• St Dwynwen’s Day. 

• Clwb Coffi. 

• Welsh-Medium playgroup or school. 

• Childcare Offer Wales. 

• Dydd Miwsig Cymru. 

• Recruitment of Welsh-speaking childcare providers. 

• Recruitment of Welsh-speaking roles. 

• Welsh Language Twitter. 

• Clwb Cinio. 

• Dylan Thomas Day. 

• Welsh campaign run on twitter throughout the month of September. 

• Building lit up red to mark Welsh awareness days. 

• Dydd Miwsig Cymru. 

• Attended the Siarter Cymraeg Awards. 

• Celebrated the success of our local Welsh-medium and English-medium 
schools with the achievements they received from the Siarter Iaith awards. 

• Râs yr Iaith (Menter Bro Ogwr). 

• Gŵyl Ogi Ogwr (Menter Bro Ogwr). 

• Eisteddfod yr Urdd. 
 
3.24 The local authority’s website has a section for Welsh-medium education. As part of 

the work of the WESP, the webpage is in the process of being re-designed and will 

have a prominent place on the website. All Welsh-medium primary schools use their 

social media and internal communications to promote their school and Welsh-

medium education. Open days are held on a regular basis with visits to schools 

encouraged. The local authority promotes Welsh-medium education on its 

communication platforms and regularly posts the ‘Why choose Welsh-medium 

education?’ booklet on social media platforms. The local authority held a stall at 

Gŵyl Ogi Ogi Ogwr in July 2023 with Welsh-medium primary school to promote the 

Page 268



  Appendix 4 

 

late immersion provision and Welsh-medium education. An officer from the local 

authority also attended Râs yr Iaith organised by Menter Bro Ogwr. 

 
3.25 Central South Consortium and Learn Welsh offer a range of professional 

development opportunities for staff within schools to improve their Welsh language 
skills. Opportunities for lessons to be delivered in person, online and at various 
times of the day. Central South Consortium improvement partners discuss school 
developmental needs and signposts schools to access professional development 
for their staff. 

 
3.26 Dysgu Cymraeg/Learn Welsh have shared their offer of Welsh courses available 

with schools and on other platforms. An audit of Learn Welsh courses and the 
number of delegates who have attended Welsh language courses in Bridgend has 
been undertaken, with 367 students having completed the courses below: 
 

Blasu 44 

Mynediad 144 

Sylfaen 56 

Canolradd 52 

Uwch 71 

Total 367 

 
 

3.27 The WEF monitors the numbers of learners studying for assessed qualifications in 
Welsh. Between Year 10 and Year 11 in 2021-2022 and 2022-2023, there was an 
increase in three pupils in Welsh-medium education. Between Year 11 and Year 
2021-2022 and 2022-2023, there was an increase of 1.92% of learners continuing 
their education through the medium of Welsh. In the WESP, it noted that in 2020-
2021, 99 pupils studied Welsh GCSE first language which increased to 108 in 2022-
2023. It is also noted that in 2020-2021, 1189 pupils studies Welsh GSCE second 
language which increased to 1270 in 2022-2023. 
 

3.28 There has been an increase in the number of learners for both first and second 
language A-level. In the WESP, it noted that in 2020-2021, there were nine learners 
studying first language Welsh A level which increased to 10 learners in 2022-2023. 
In the WESP, it noted that in 2020-2021, there were 19 learners studying for second 
language Welsh A-level which has increased to 29 learners in 2022-2023. Although 
there has been an increase in the numbers studying Welsh Post-16, we aim to 
continue to increase by ensuring that encouraging take up of Welsh language A 
level by sharing the benefits of being bilingual.  
 

3.29 Three schools are currently delivering subjects through the e-sgol programme within 
the local authority, namely Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd, Pencoed 
Comprehensive School and Maesteg School. An established ten-year blended 
learning collaboration between Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd and Ysgol 
Llanhari in Rhondda Cynon Taf affords learners the opportunity to study AS and A 
level qualification(s) that they are not able to do in their ‘home school’. Between the 
schools, nine subjects are delivered to 11 learners from Llangynwyd and 24 
learners from Ysgol Llanhari. Monitoring of the number of courses offered and 
uptake through the medium of Welsh is discussed through the Curriculum Leaders 
Network, where the number of Post-16 learners studying Welsh at A-level are 
analysed. 

Page 269



  Appendix 4 

 

 
3.30 Resources from Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol have been shared with all secondary 

schools and Central South Consortium have also shared this resource in their 
bulletins and directly to all headteachers and heads of Welsh. Currently, two 
schools are interested in exploring the potential of delivering Welsh A-level second 
language through the e-sgol programme in 2023-2024.  The resources have also 
been shared on the local authority’s social media platforms. 

 
3.31 Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd is currently offering nine subjects through 

blended learning. In 2023-2024, the partnership will offer three further courses as 
part of the blended learning offer: Drama, Music, and Criminology. A total of three 
schools out of nine schools are providing subjects through e-sgol. Two English-
medium secondary schools are offering Welsh A-level through the e-sgol. The 
course is delivered to four learners from Pencoed Comprehensive School and 
Maesteg School. A video has been created by learners studying at Ysgol Gyfun 
Gymraeg Llangynwyd noting the benefits to prospective learners to promote 
blended learning and encouraging them to continue their education through the 
medium of Welsh. This film was shown at the e-sgol conference in July 2023 which 
was held at the school. 

 
3.32 The most recent School Workforce Annual Census (SWAC) data identified the 

following: 
 

• 437 teachers in the local authority were reported as having “no skills” on the 
Welsh Language Competency Framework in both 2021 and 2022. 

• Across the whole local authority, 1194 teachers have the same Welsh 
language ability as reported in both 2021 and 2022.  

• 12 teachers have increased their Welsh language ability between 2021 and 
2022, with one increasing from W3 (Foundation) to W6 (Proficiency). 

• 13 teachers have seen a decrease in their Welsh language ability between 
2021 and 2022. 

• 238 support staff, including ALN coordinators (ALNCos) in the local authority 
were reported as having “no skills” on the Welsh Language Competency 
Framework in both 2021 and 2022. 

• Across the whole local authority, 666 support staff including ALNCos have the 
same Welsh language ability as reported in both 2021 and 2022.  

• 13 support staff including ALNCos have increased their Welsh language ability 
between 2021 and 2022, with one increasing from W3 (Foundation) to W6 
(Proficiency). 

• 19 support staff including ALNCos have seen a decrease in their Welsh 
language ability between 2021 and 2022. 

 
3.33 During 2022-2023, an audit of ALN staff was undertaken to determine the number 

of staff that can deliver their service through the medium of Welsh.  
 

ALN roles in the Learner Support Group 
Number of Welsh-speaking 
staff in the Learner Support 
Group 

Specialist Teacher (Visual Impairment)  1 

Specialist Teacher (Cognition and Learning) 1 

Teacher Moderate Learning Difficulties 1 

Special Needs Support Assistants 4 

Page 270



  Appendix 4 

 

Senior Support Officer  1 

Mobility Officer  1 

Educational Psychology Service  3 

 

Number of Welsh 
speaking Additional 
Learning Needs 
Coordinators (ALNCos) 

Number of Welsh 
speaking ALN support 
staff in schools 

Number of Welsh 
speaking staff in LRCs 

Proficient: 10 
Advanced: 4 
Intermediate: 6 
Foundation: 38 

Proficient: 6 
Advanced: 3 
Intermediate: 5 
Foundation: 18 

Proficient: 7 
 

 
3.34 The SWAC data has identified that out of 60 schools, 10 ALNCos have identified 

their level of Welsh competency as proficient and four have identified as being 
advanced. 138 teachers are currently working in Welsh-speaking posts. There are a 
further 70 Welsh-speaking teachers not working in Welsh-speaking posts. There are 
362 teachers teaching Welsh as a subject only.  

 
3.35 Three Welsh-speaking practitioners within Bridgend are undertaking the Aspiring 

Headteacher professional development. This is the first time Welsh speaking 
practitioners have undertaken the professional development in more than three 
years. School leaders are encouraged to monitor the National Academy of 
Educational Leadership.  

 
3.36 The sabbatical scheme for Welsh language training offers language courses to 

primary and secondary school teachers, classroom assistants and lecturers. The 
aim of the courses, which are funded by Welsh Government, is to increase the 
number of practitioners who can educate through the medium of Welsh or 
bilingually.  

 

Welsh Sabbatical Data 2022-2023 

Welsh in a Year: 1 1 

Foundation /Intermediate 
level: 3 

3 

Intermediate level: 1 

 
1 

2023-2024: 2 
Foundation /Intermediate level: 2 

 
3.37 In March 2022, a Post-16 Steering Group was established to facilitate strategic 

discussions between Bridgend College and BCBC. The promotion of the Welsh 
language has been determined as one of the main elements of this group’s activity 
moving forward. A key part of the group’s discussion involves the promotion of 
vocational/training opportunities for young people who would like to secure 
employment in Welsh language settings. This activity is further supported by 
BCBC’s Human Resources (HR) Department by promoting apprenticeships to retain 
Welsh-medium school leavers within the county borough. 

 
3.38 To ensure a rich programme of Welsh-medium activities for pupils in both the 

primary and secondary sector, the local authority works closely with the Urdd and 
Menter Bro Ogwr. The Urdd presented their offer of ‘Chwarae yn Gymraeg’ at a 

Page 271



  Appendix 4 

 

primary deputy headteachers’ network, with 10 schools enlisted for the programme.  
The Urdd deliver 11 clubs in three English-medium schools, delivering sessions to 
over 150 pupils. Most primary schools in Bridgend joined in the Urdd’s national 
Jambori. There has been a rise in second language competitors at the Urdd 
Eisteddfod, with over 300 children and young people from Bridgend competing in 
the Urdd Eisteddfod 2023. The Urdd Eisteddfod was supported with the Corporate 
Director Education and Family Support and the Cabinet Member for Education in 
attendance and the National Eisteddfod 2022 and 2023 was attended by the Group 
Manager (Learner Support). The Urdd arranged residential trips and shared this 
information with schools. It also held a ‘Llais Ieuenctid’ for the youth forum across 
Wales where three young people from Bridgend attended. The Urdd also held a 
performing arts course where 30 children took part from Bridgend.  

 
3.39 Menter Bro Ogwr offer clubs during the term-time and during the school holidays. 

The offer of clubs, events and activities are added to the shared events calendar 

that the promotion, marketing and celebrating sub-group created. The local 

authority’s Communication and Marketing Team has access to the calendar and 

promotes the events on social media platforms. 

 
3.40 In 2021, BCBC used the Welsh Government Hwb Infrastructure Grant, to ensure all 

pupils attending Welsh-medium schools in Bridgend benefit from the individual use 
of a Chromebook device. In June 2021, Welsh-medium schools in Bridgend 
received the following number of Chromebook devices: 

 

School  Number of Chromebook devices 

Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd  544 

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr 128 

Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr 160 

Ysgol Cynwyd Sant 192 

Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon y 
Cymoedd 

96 

 
3.42 The Welsh Government Hwb Infrastructure Programme has also been completed at 

all of the above schools, so they are benefitting from new Aruba switches and 
improved WiFi access points. 

 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty, and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services, and functions. This is an information report. Therefore, it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this 

Page 272



  Appendix 4 

 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 
impacts as a result of this report.  

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The report contributes to the following goals within the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
  

• a prosperous Wales; 

• a resilient Wales; 

• a Wales of cohesive communities; and 

• a globally responsive Wales. 
 

Long term   Supports the statutory duty to provide sufficient pupil places 
and support the Welsh language. 
 

Prevention The Council has a statutory duty to promote the Welsh 
language.  The plan will ensure that children and young 
people will be able to follow a Welsh-medium education. 
 

Integration The plan supports the promotion of Welsh education in the 
communities in which the children and young people live. 

Collaboration The local authority will continue to work in collaboration to 
ensure that it achieves its vision as set out in the WESP 
(2022-2032). 
 

Involvement Key stakeholders are involved in implementing and 
monitoring the progress of the WESP (2022-2032). 

 

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this information report.   

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report.   
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 The following funding is used to support Welsh-medium education. 
 

Amount of 
Funding 

Source of Funding Purpose of Funding 

£21, 281 
Schools’ Delegated 
Budgets 

Support Welsh-medium education at Ysgol 
Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd. 

£5,189 
Schools’ Delegated 
Budgets 

Support Welsh-medium education in the 
Welsh-medium primary schools. 

£89,156 
Welsh Government 
Post-16 grant 

Support Welsh-medium education at Ysgol 
Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd. 

£81,992 
Schools’ Delegated 
Budgets 

Support pupils with ASD attending the LRC 
at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd. 

Page 273



  Appendix 4 

 

£92,170 
Schools’ Delegated 
Budgets 

Support pupils with ASD attending the LRC 
at Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon Y 
Cymoedd. 

£65,505 
Schools’ Delegated 
Budgets 

Support pupils with MLD attending the LRC 
at Ysgol Cynwyd Sant. 

£252,395 

Welsh Government 
Immersion Funding 
Grant (September 
2002 to March 2025). 

Support late immersion provision. 

 
8.2 Local authorities are expected to work with their regional consortia to demonstrate 

how the Education Improvement Grant (EIG) administered by Central South 
Consortium will support the implementation of the WESP. 

 
8.3 The secondment for the WESP Co-ordinator began on 1 September 2022 for a period 

of 18 months until 31 March 2024 and is funded by an established earmarked 
reserve. There is no identified finance for the WESP Co-ordinator beyond this period 
of time. If there is no further funding the local authority would not be in a position to 
employ a specific WESP Co-ordinator from 31 March 2024 to co-ordinate the 
implementation of the WESP (2022-2032), which is a statutory function. 

 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet notes the progress made and provides any 

feedback as necessary. 
 
Background documents 
 
None 
 
 

Page 274



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
18 MARCH 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
ANNUAL LOCAL AUTHORITY SCRUTINY REPORT 

CENTRAL SOUTH CONSORTIUM 2022-2023 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR – EDUCATION AND FAMILY 

SUPPORT 

Responsible 
Officer:  

 
SUE ROBERTS 

GROUP MANAGER – SCHOOL SUPPORT 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

 
There is no impact on the Council’s policy framework or 

procedure rules. 
 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

The purpose of the report is to provide an overview of the 
work of the Central South Consortium, working in 
partnership with the local authority to raise standards in 
schools across Bridgend.  The report details the work of the 
consortium for the academic year 2022-2023 and the 
financial year April 2022 to April 2023.   
 
Within the report there is information summarising the 
school inspections that took place in the academic year 
2022-2023, and the progress schools made in a follow up 
category or enhanced support. 
 
There is information on the work of improvement partners, 
how they are deployed and examples provided of how 
improvement partners have worked with school leaders, 
governors and the wider staff team.   
 
Section 6 of Appendix 1 records the professional learning 
provided for schools, and the engagement of practioners at 
all levels in the different professional learning programmes 
available, including the range of collaborations that are 
supported across the region.  There is also information on 
the bespoke support received by schools to support their 
strategic priorities.   
 
Developing the Welsh language continues as a key priority 
for the Central South Consortium and in supporting the 
Local Authority Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 

Page 275

Agenda Item 5



 

for 2022-2032 with information of how support is provided 
included within the report. 
 
Central South Consortium continues to work in partnership 
with local authorities and other stakeholders to support 
equity in all schools across the region, with high standards 
and aspirations for all, to support schools work on areas 
including attendance, exclusions, looked after children and 
well-being. 
 
As part of Central South Consortium’s business planning 
process, Bridgend provides Central South Consortium with 
their priorities and these are built into Central South 
Consortium’s business plan.  An update on progress of 
Central South Consortium in supporting Bridgend’s 
priorities is provided as part of the report.  The report also 
provides a summary of the funding of Central South 
Consortium, including additional grant funding and how 
this is used.   
 

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to: 

 

• provide an overview of the work of Central South Consortium; and to  

 

• update elected members on the contribution of Central South Consortium, 

working in partnership with the local authority, to raise standards in schools 

across Bridgend. 

 
1.2 This report attached at Appendix 1 details the work of the consortium for the 

academic year 2022-2023 and the financial year 2022-2023. 
 

2. Background  
 
2.1 Since 2012, Central South Consortium has delivered aspects of school 

improvement services on behalf of five local authorities: Bridgend, Cardiff, Merthyr 
Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and Vale of Glamorgan. This covers 381 schools and 
32% of school pupils in Wales. It is a growing region with a rapidly changing 
demographic, encompassing increasingly diverse communities across the 
economic sub region. It remains the region with the highest number of children 
living in poverty, with approximately 25% of pupils eligible for free school meals. 
 

2.2 The service delivers challenge and support to schools on behalf of the five local 
authorities within the Central South region, governed through a Joint Committee of 
Cabinet Members from each local authority. The Joint Committee meets regularly 
and formally approves the annual business plan and budget for the service, holding 
the service to account in terms of performance and budgetary control. 

 

Page 276



 

2.3 Scrutiny Committees in each of the five authorities invite Central South Consortium 
to report and present on the work of Central South Consortium in supporting 
schools aligned to the Evaluation, Improvement and Accountability Framework 
(Welsh Government, 2022). An annual report from the consortium relating to 
progress in the previous academic year and priorities for the year ahead is 
provided. 

 
2.4 The core focus of all school improvement activity is providing support, challenge 

and professional learning to schools to ensure learners across the local authority 
have the right educational experiences to allow them to make progress and be 
successful in the next phase of learning or employment. 
 

3. Current situation/proposal  
 
3.1 The Annual Bridgend Local Authority Scrutiny Report for the Central South 

Consortium for 2022-2023 is attached at Appendix 1. The purpose of the report is 
to provide an overview of the work of the Central South Consortium and to update 
Members with the contribution of the Central South Consortium, working in 
partnership with the local authority to raising standards in schools across Bridgend.  
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty, and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services, and functions. This is an information report; therefore, it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 
impacts as a result of this report.  

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The well-being goals and principles prescribed for within the Well-being of Future 

Generations Act 2015 connect directly to the approach to supporting schools. The 
approach to supporting schools is consistent with the five ways of working as 
defined within the sustainable development principle and more specifically as 
follows: 

 
Long term - The approach to school improvement focuses on meeting the needs of 
children and young people from the age of 0 to 25. 
 
Prevention - The focus of the school improvement is upon early identification of 
need and ensuring that there is appropriate learning provision in place to meet 
individual needs. 
 
Integration - The approach to school improvement addresses the need for a 
coherent delivery of economic, social, environmental, and cultural outcomes. 
 
Collaboration - A fundamental principle of the approach to school improvement 
focuses on improving collaboration and creating a unified system. 

Page 277



 

 
Involvement - Ensuring that children and young people, parents and carers are at 
the heart of the system and that needs are discussed in a person-centred way. 

 
6. Climate change implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this information report. 
 
7. Safeguarding and corporate parent implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding or corporate parent implications arising from this report. 
 

8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 The cost of Central South Consortium’s service to Bridgend County Borough Council 

was £554,243 for the 2022-2023 financial year.  This was met from the Education 
and Family Support Directorate revenue budget. 

 
9. Recommendations 

 
9.1 The committee is requested to: 
 

• consider the contents of this report; and 

• provide feedback. 

 
 
Background documents 
  
None 

Page 278



1 
 

 
 

Annual Bridgend Local 

Authority Scrutiny Report 

Central South Consortium 

  

2022-23 

 
(Presentation in Spring Term 2024) 

  

Page 279



2 
 

1.0 Purpose of the Report  3 

2.0 Background  3 

3.0 

Overview of Performance  

• National Data Collections and Published Information 

• Estyn Inspections 

• Supporting School Development Planning with 

Performance Data Discussions 

• Alps Analysis 

4 

4.0 

Support and Challenge  

• Improvement Partner Deployment 

• Work Programme of Improvement Partners 

• Framework for School Improvement 

9 

5.0 

Support for Schools 

• Schools Receiving Enhanced Support 

• Intervention Strategy for Schools Causing Concern 

14 

6.0 Professional Learning & Support  16 

7.0 Equity (Vulnerable Learners) 42 

8.0 
CSC Contribution to Supporting LA Priorities (April 2022 – 

October 2022) 
46 

9.0 Value for Money 47 

10.0 Sharing of Practice 57 

11.0 Conclusions 58 

12.0 Next Steps 61 

 Appendices A-B 64 

 

  

Page 280



3 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

The purpose of the report is to provide an overview of the work of the Central South 

Consortium (CSC) and to update Members with the contribution of the CSC, working in 

partnerships with the local authority (LA) to raising standards in schools across Bridgend.  This 

report details the work of the consortium for the academic year September 2022/2023 and 

the financial year April 2022 to April 2023.   

 

2.0 BACKGROUND 

Since 2012, CSC has delivered aspects of school improvement services on behalf of the five 

local authorities: Bridgend, Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of 

Glamorgan. This covers 380 schools, around 32% of Wales’s children. It is a growing region 

with rapidly changing demographic, encompassing increasingly diverse communities across 

the economic sub region. It remains the region with the highest number of children living in 

poverty, with around 25% claiming free school meals. 

The service delivers challenge and support on behalf of the five local authorities, governed 

through a Joint Committee of Cabinet Members from each authority.  The Joint Committee 

meets regularly and formally approves the annual business plan and budget for the service, 

holding the service to account in terms of performance and budgetary control. 

In May 2022, the current business plan was launched for a three-year period and has been 

developed in conjunction with local authorities to ensure that appropriate local authority 

priorities are embedded in our work.  The business plan is to run from 1st April 2022 to 31st 

March 2025 following the approval of the Joint committee.  Annual amendments are made 

to integrate changing priorities across the five local authorities.  The business plan for 2022/25 

has the following areas of priority: 

1. Curriculum, Teaching & Assessment  

2. Leadership  

3. Equity & Wellbeing  

4. School Improvement  

5. Effectiveness and efficiency of Central South Consortium 

 

For each of the priorities, there is a detailed operational plan that outlines how and when the 

aspects of each priority will be delivered. Our intention remains to support schools to meet 

the needs of their learners to enable them to make progress. The business plan sets out how 

CSC aims to deliver these priorities through effective school self-evaluation and improvement 

Page 281



4 
 

planning, underpinned by building capacity in schools to support other schools through the 

continued development of the ‘Central South Wales Challenge1’.   

Drive Teams comprising senior leaders from across the consortium ensured that the 

operational plans for each priority were implemented and that impact was measured.  Half-

termly reviews, including an impact review with the Managing Director of CSC, and LA 

Directors of Education, were held at the end of each term, and ensured that monitoring was 

robust.   

A report on the progress and impact of the Business Plan 2022 - 23 is presented to the CSC 

Management Board and Joint Committee. 

The consortium Business Plan for April 2022 to March 2025 can be found here.  

 

3.0 OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

3.1 National Data Collections and Published Information 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, Welsh Government (WG) has cancelled most of the statutory 

data collections for 2020, 2021 and 2022. The collections suspended include: 

• Attendance: Primary 2020, 2021 and 2022 data collections 

• Attendance: Secondary 2020, 2021 and 2022 data collections  

• National Data Collections (NDC): All 2020 and 2021 data collections, and FP and KS2 
for 2022 

For 2023 however, the following collections have now been resumed: 

• Attendance: Primary data collections 

• Attendance: Secondary data collections  

• National Data Collections (NDC) : KS3 only 

The majority of national publications were suspended from Summer 2020 reporting, but 

performance measures for Summer 2023 results will be reintroduced during Autumn Term 

2023. At the time of publication of this report no performance measures are available for the 

final 2023 results, with the provisional information only being made available at national 

level. 

National examination results released in August 2023 were brought back to be around 

halfway between the 2019 and 2022 results. Comparison of the results for CSC in 2023 to 

Wales results showed that CSC either matched or exceeded the national proportions for GCSE 

%A*-A, %A*-C and %A*-G. For A Level results, CSC exceeded the national proportions for the 

three measures of %A*-A, %A*-C and %A*-E, with CSC also being above the national 

proportions for AS Levels (%A, %A-C, %A-E). 

 

 
1 Central South Wales Challenge information can be found here 

Page 282

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s43375/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery/resource/3fe01976-bb3b-48aa-b2d4-d48a35e03016/en?sort=recent&categories=a50ba81e-71f5-4cfc-9e7e-bf903f271f41&strict=0
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/self-improving-system


5 
 

3.2 Estyn Inspections 

All Estyn inspections were suspended in March 20202; however, a new pilot framework3 was 

introduced in early spring term 2022. The new inspection framework no longer provides 

judgements for inspection areas as available in previous inspection frameworks. However, 

information on ‘Interesting or Innovative Practice Case Studies’ is still identified in the new 

reports, alongside the recording of any statutory and non-statutory follow-up inspection 

categories.  
 

In Bridgend, between February 2022 and the end of the 2022/23 academic year, 14 schools 

were inspected, with one school being placed in a statutory follow up category of Special 

Measures and two schools requiring Estyn Review.  From the schools that have been 

inspected since the resumption of inspections, three schools have been asked to provide case 

studies on ‘interesting or innovative practice’ identified as part of the school inspection.   

 

Table 1:  Interesting or innovative practice case studies in Bridgend Schools 

Date School Case study 

 
January 2023 

 
Corneli Primary School 

 
Supporting pupils and families to develop 
positive financial literacy skills. Read here. 

 

 
October 2023 

 
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd 

 
Planning for improvement to ensure the best 
learning experiences for pupils.  Read here. 

 

 
October 2023 

 
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd 

 
The way in which the school ignites a sense of 
belonging to the school and how this influences 
the high levels of well-being and attendance.  
Read here. 

 

 

In Central South Consortium, 68 schools were inspected between September 2022 and July 

2023.  Twenty-two schools were placed in Estyn follow-up categories: thirteen in Estyn 

Review (19.1%), two in significant improvement (2.9%) and seven in special measures 

(10.3%).  

 

Table 2: Number of schools inspected 2021/22 and 2022/23 

 Primary Secondary Middle Special Pupil Referral 
Units 

21/22 22/23 21/22 22/23 21/22 22/23 21/22 22/23 21/22 22/23 

Bridgend 2 11 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
2 https://www.estyn.gov.wales/news/estyn-will-not-inspect-maintained-schools-next-academic-year-
statement-meilyr-rowlands-hmci  
3 https://www.estyn.gov.wales/news/owen-evans-her-majestys-chief-inspectors-speech-17-february-2022  

Page 283

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/effective-practice/supporting-pupils-and-families-develop-positive-financial-literacy-skills
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/effective-practice/planning-improvement-ensure-best-learning-experiences-pupils-0
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/effective-practice/way-which-school-ignites-sense-belonging-school-and-how-influences-high-levels
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/news/estyn-will-not-inspect-maintained-schools-next-academic-year-statement-meilyr-rowlands-hmci
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/news/estyn-will-not-inspect-maintained-schools-next-academic-year-statement-meilyr-rowlands-hmci
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/news/owen-evans-her-majestys-chief-inspectors-speech-17-february-2022


6 
 

The Vale of 
Glamorgan 

5 8 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rhondda 
Cynon Taf 

8 14 0 1 1 2 0 1 0 0 

Merthyr 
Tydfil 

1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Cardiff 8 18 2 3 0 0 0 4 1 0 

CSC 24 54 4 6 1 2 0 5 1 1 

 
Estyn resumed their monitoring of schools and Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) in a statutory 

category (special measures or significant improvement) from autumn 2021. During the 

academic year 2022/23, across CSC, one school was removed from Estyn Review, with a 

further three schools remaining in a follow-up category from previous academic years. The 

follow-up categories for these schools are: one in Estyn Review, one in Significant 

Improvement and one in Special Measures. 

 

Table 3: Progress of schools in a follow up Estyn category in Bridgend 2022/23 

School Estyn Category 
Current position  

Archbishop 
McGrath 
Catholic School 
 

 
Estyn Review 

 
The school has made sufficient progress and is no 
longer in Estyn Review (Nov 2022). 

 
 
Croesty Primary 
School 

 
 

Estyn Review 

Estyn Review since the publication of their 
inspection report (February 2023). 
 
The school is addressing the recommendations 
and the progress is regularly monitored through 
meetings with local authority and CSC. 

 
 
Nantymoel 
Primary School 

 
 

Estyn Review 

Estyn Review since the publication of their 
inspection report (April 2023). 
 
The school is addressing the recommendations 
and the progress is regularly monitored through 
meetings with local authority and CSC. 

 
 
 
Caerau Primary 
School 

 
 
 

Special Measures 

Special Measures since the publication of their 
inspection report (June 2023).   
 
The post inspection action plan developed to 
address the recommendations has been 
approved.  Progress in addressing the 
recommendations is regularly monitored through 
meetings with the local authority and CSC.   

 

Page 284



7 
 

3.3 Supporting School Development Planning with Performance Data Discussions 

The Improvement Partners (IP) support schools through appropriate challenge to identify 

clear, manageable improvement priorities as a consequence of effective self-evaluation. The 

IP works with school leaders to review first-hand evidence, ensuring that this is rigorous and 

accurate. In supporting schools in the review of their self-evaluation cycle, IPs work with 

school leaders to ensure there is coverage of the three overarching areas as referenced in the 

new framework for school improvement. These are: 

• Vision and Leadership 

• Curriculum, Learning, and Teaching  

• Wellbeing, Equity, and Inclusion 

This approach works in conjunction with school systems and will not generate additional work 

for school leaders. This is in line with the Welsh Government School Improvement Guidance: 

A Framework for Evaluation, Improvement and Accountability, where it is the intention that 

these priorities will, in part, replace target setting. 

Each school has a unique set of priorities, based on their own context, self-evaluation 

including the analysis of performance data, needs and improvement journey, ultimately 

seeking to improve learner outcomes. Therefore, priorities need to ensure a focus on pupil 

progress. Furthermore, the IP will also support schools in ensuring that improvement 

priorities are drawn together in a single, strategic school development plan, helping to reduce 

workload, streamline schools’ strategic planning processes and avoid unnecessary duplication 

and bureaucracy. 

In 2023-24, key common focus areas that have been identified by schools include: 

• Oracy, Reading, and Writing including Welsh language skills 

• Numeracy 

• Digital Competence Skills and learning 

• Planning for the development of skills across the curriculum 

• Whole School Approach to Mental and Emotional Well-being 

• Early Years (Physical Development in Particular) 

• Reducing gaps in progress of key groups (EAL, eFSM, MAT learning) 

• Attendance and Exclusions 

• Engagement and Readiness to Learn 

• Dealing with challenging behaviour 

• Complex needs and additional learning needs provision 

• Independence at age-appropriate levels 

• Transition 

• Impact of teaching on learning 

• Assessment and progression including baseline and mapping pre progression step 1 

• Religion, Values and Ethics 

• Accuracy of self-evaluation linked to improvement planning 

• Leadership Development 

Page 285



8 
 

• Curriculum Design and Development 

 

3.4 Alps Analysis 

Alps value added performance analysis measures progress against national and ALPS client, 

aspirational benchmarks for each individual student. For 2023, the analysis identified the 

following key points: 

A Level 

• There were 1660 entries at A level across the local authority.  This is higher than the 

number of entries in 2019, which was the previous highest number of entries (from 

the non-covid years). 

• Overall, the value added in 2023 was lower than in 2022 as part of the realignment of 

results to pre-covid levels.  It is currently planned that the national results in 2024 will 

return and be set in line with 2019 results.   

• Prior attainment (Centre Determined Grades) was on average slightly higher for the 

2023 cohort than for previous cohorts in the years 2020-2022. 

• Across the local authority, the following subjects had strong value-added outcomes in 

2023, Film Studies, Drama & Theatre Studies, Art (Craft & Photography), Computer 

Science, Biology, Business Studies, Chemistry, Economics, English Literature, History 

and Maths (Further).   

• In 2023, at A-level, girls made stronger value-added progress than boys overall, 

although the difference is marginal.  The gap is narrower than the previous two years.   

• There was little difference between the value added for eFSM and non-eFSM students 

(for those students where eFSM information was uploaded).  

 

 
AS Level  

• The number of students taking at least one AS level within the local authority was in 
line with the 2022 figure and is above the average number of AS entries in the years 
preceding covid.  

• Prior attainment (Examinations with advanced information for some subjects) was 
higher for the 2023 cohort than for cohorts in 2020 and 2021 but lower than the 2022 
cohort. 

• Nationally the results were midpoint between 2019 and 2022, as move back to pre-
pandemic levels for 2024. 

• In 2023, value-added outcomes at AS-level ranked in the top 60% of the dataset. 

• Girls made stronger value-added progress at AS level than boys.    

• The cohort achieved higher grades in 2023 AS examinations than cohorts in 2018 and 
2019 (counting 40% towards A Level). 

• eFSM students made stronger progress at AS-level than non-eFSM students.   

 
Level 3 Vocational Qualifications  

Page 286



9 
 

• Nationally, the results in 2023 are down from 2022, but above 2019 in line with 
national move to return results to pre-pandemic levels in 2024.   

• Fewer pupils took vocational qualifications in 2023 than in 2019. 

• In 2023 eFSM students made stronger value-added progress than non-eFSM students 
in 2016 BTEC qualifications (based on a relatively small number of entries).  Boys made 
slightly more VA progress than girls. 
 

Key Stage 4  

• KS4 Results were higher nationally in 2023 than in 2018 or 2019.  Results were broadly 
awarded midpoint between 2019 and 2022 in line with national strategy.    

• In 2023, as a local authority, value-added outcomes at KS4 matched providers in the 
top 40% of the National dataset. 

• In 2023, Girls made stronger value-added progress at KS4 than boys. Girls’ outcomes 
matched the top 25% of providers in the dataset, boys matched the middle 50% of 
providers in the dataset.   

• In 2023, eFSM students made less value-added progress at KS4 than non-eFSM 
students.  The gap was slightly more than in 2021/22.   
 
 

3.5 Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETs) 

The latest available “Pupil destinations” figures from Careers Wales, show that over the last 

couple of years, the percentage of pupils in the CSC region “Known to not to be in Education, 

Training or Employment” has fluctuated from 1.8% in 2019 and 2020, to 1.5% in 2021 and up 

to 2.0% in 2022. Similar patterns are seen nationally for this data, and CSC has been slightly 

below the national figure for five of the last seven academic years. 

 
 

4.0        SUPPORT AND CHALLENGE 

With the significant reform agenda that is in progress across Wales, it is important CSC 
continues to ensure the support provided by Improvement Partners (IPs) is holistic, efficient, 
and effective in line with the national principles and guidance from Welsh Government. 
 
4.1 Improvement Partner Deployment 

In 2022/23, Bridgend local authority contributed £554,243 (15%) towards the core functions 
of the consortium.  In addition to the core costs of the consortium this has provided funding 
for IPs (3.7 FTE) and a Principal Improvement Partner (PIP) (1 FTE). 
 
IPs continue to have a relevant educational background and level of experience and provide 
good quality support and challenge to schools.  Many IPs are accredited or are working 
towards accreditation by Association of Education Advisers (AOEA).  They have continued to 
work well and in partnership with the local authority to provide effective monitoring, 
challenge, support and intervention where needed. Improvement partners have continued to 
commission bespoke support and intervention from the wider support teams within the CSC. 
 

Page 287



10 
 

In September 2022, the School improvement guidance: framework for evaluation, 
improvement and accountability was implemented.  This revised national guidance is 
scheduled to become statutory from September 2024.  This guidance sets out the roles and 
responsibilities for stakeholders in the Welsh education system with regards school 
improvement and accountability.   
 
4.2 Work Programme of Improvement Partners 

During the autumn term, IPs worked together with schools to agree appropriate 
improvement priorities, construct the school development plan (SDP) and broker support. All 
IPs gathered authentic first-hand evidence to support the school self-evaluation process in 
partnership with school leaders. IPs joined school meetings and participated in self-evaluation 
activities as appropriate. The full schedule of activities is contained in the Framework for 
School Improvement5.  These are not a ‘tick list’ but provided a reminder as to key dates when 
activity should be completed.  IPs built an individual work plan with each school to ensure 
that these activities were built into the school improvement conversations.  There were 
ongoing themes which were a focus of all visits, these included progress of learners, 
curriculum, learning and teaching, leadership, well-being, equity and inclusion, effectiveness 
of self-evaluation and improvement planning. 
 
For example, two particular areas of leadership support are listed below: 
 
Improvement Partner Support for Governance 
 

• Attend at least one Governing Body meeting per year. 
• Encourage Governors to attend mandatory trainings as appropriate. 
• Promote and support Governing Bodies to use the self-evaluation tool. 
• Support for Governors as identified. 
• Support the Governing Body Panel Headteachers Performance Management process for 

review, objective setting and mid-year review where appropriate. 
 
Improvement Partner Support for Self -evaluation in partnership with school leaders 
 

• Partnered learning walks. 
• Involved in Listening to learners’ activities. 
• Support school improvement planning/documentation. 
• Partner with school leaders to triangulate and validate reviews of teaching and learning. 
• Support Senior/middle leaders/teachers to prepare for Estyn inspections. 

 

Page 288



11 
 

 

Case Study: Primary Improvement Partner working with a school Senior Leadership 

Team and Governing Body  

 

• The improvement partner worked with headteacher on school planning to ensure 

priorities and associated success criteria have a positive impact on outcomes for 

pupils. The school adapted their strategic planning documents to reflect aspects of the 

regional school development plan toolkit, including the improved use of milestones.  

Impact - Sharply focussed school improvement priorities and clear measurable 

milestones to evaluate progress and impact of improvement priorities. 

 

• The improvement partner brokered support for the school to support a subject leader 

in the development of the provision and practice for an area of learning following the 

previous self-evaluation activity.  This development was within the school 

development plan. The IP completed monitoring activity in partnership with the 

subject leader to monitor the impact on provision and practice following receipt of the 

support. 

Impact - Provision and classroom practice is responsive to pupils' needs and has a 

positive impact on outcomes for pupils. 

 

• Over the course of the academic year, the improvement partner and headteacher 

completed listening to learner monitoring activities with pupil books to explore their 

views and progress in the development of the provision for independent learning. 

Each time taking note of their responses and acting on them when and where 

appropriate.  

Impact - Provision and classroom practice is responsive to pupils' needs and has a 

positive impact on outcomes for pupils. 

 

• The improvement partner completed a learning walk with a group of governors 

supporting governors in the evidence they collected and the questions they asked. 

Impact – Governors were better equipped to gather evidence and then ask pertinent 

questions of the headteacher. 

 

• The improvement partner undertook joint monitoring activities with senior and 

middle leaders to evaluate the quality of provision and practice in the school and the 

progress made by pupils.  

Impact - Quality assurance of leaders within the school and their effectiveness in the 

role; Provision and practice is responsive to pupils' needs and has a positive impact on 

outcomes for pupils. 

 

Page 289



12 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Case Study: Special School Improvement Partner working with Special Schools/Settings. 

• The Improvement Partner worked with the senior leadership team and middle leaders 

from all areas of the school to support and develop their understanding of their roles 

within the self-evaluation of the school. Leaders at all levels were mentored and 

coached on their individual roles within self-evaluation and how these conversations 

can be shared across departments to develop an holistic picture of strengths and areas 

for development for the school. 

Impact - Sharply focussed school improvement priorities are identified through 

comprehensive self-evaluation activities and empowerment of middle leaders. 

 

• The Improvement Partner has worked closely with the school’s middle leadership 

team to support the review of the systems for planning and monitoring for the 

development of skills.  The review ensured that the planning for skills allowed pupils 

to make effective progress, but also ensured appropriate coverage of skills within their 

new curriculum offer.   The work has taken the form of professional discussion, sign 

posting to good practice and quality assurance of the monitoring processes 

implemented by the school. The Improvement Partner has also worked with the 

deputy head to develop professional learning designed to promote collaboration and a 

culture where staff are able to develop their practice through peer observation and 

informal ‘learning walks’. 

Impact – Effective provision developed to support the development of skills and 

practice shared across the school to develop practitioners. 

 

The Improvement Partner has worked with the setting to identify its curriculum 

development needs ahead of this academic year.   As a result of this work, support 

was brokered by the improvement partner for the school from the CSC Curriculum and 

professional learning team who developed a series of bespoke whole staff 

professional learning days to develop a curriculum offer that meets the mandatory 

requirements of the Curriculum for Wales but also meets the needs of all learners.  

The Improvement partner continues to monitor how these developments are planned, 

delivered and evaluated in partnership with the leadership team. 

Impact - Provision and classroom practice is responsive to pupils' needs and has a 

positive impact on outcomes for pupils. 

 

Case Study: Special School Improvement Partner working with Special Schools/Settings. 

• The Improvement Partner worked with the senior leadership team and middle leaders 

from all areas of the school to support and develop their understanding of their roles 

within the self-evaluation of the school. Leaders at all levels were mentored and 

coached on their individual roles within self-evaluation and how these conversations 

can be shared across departments to develop an holistic picture of strengths and areas 

for development for the school. 

Impact - Sharply focussed school improvement priorities are identified through 

comprehensive self-evaluation activities and empowerment of middle leaders. 

 

• The Improvement Partner has worked closely with the school’s middle leadership 

team to support the review of the systems for planning and monitoring for the 

development of skills.  The review ensured that the planning for skills allowed pupils 

to make effective progress, but also ensured appropriate coverage of skills within their 

new curriculum offer.   The work has taken the form of professional discussion, sign 

posting to good practice and quality assurance of the monitoring processes 

implemented by the school. The Improvement Partner has also worked with the 

deputy head to develop professional learning designed to promote collaboration and a 

culture where staff are able to develop their practice through peer observation and 

informal ‘learning walks’. 

Impact – Effective provision developed to support the development of skills and 

practice shared across the school to develop practitioners. 

 

The Improvement Partner has worked with the setting to identify its curriculum 

development needs ahead of this academic year.   As a result of this work, support 

was brokered by the improvement partner for the school from the CSC Curriculum and 

professional learning team who developed a series of bespoke whole staff 

professional learning days to develop a curriculum offer that meets the mandatory 

requirements of the Curriculum for Wales but also meets the needs of all learners.  

The Improvement partner continues to monitor how these developments are planned, 

delivered and evaluated in partnership with the leadership team. 

Impact - Provision and classroom practice is responsive to pupils' needs and has a 

positive impact on outcomes for pupils. 

 

Page 290



13 
 

 

 

4.3 Framework for School Improvement 

Support for schools will take the form of core or enhanced support that is provided in a fair 
way that is inversely proportional to needs of the school. All schools will receive a basic 
minimum allocation of days and further time will be allocated based on the support needs 
identified.  
 
This minimum is:  

• Primary/Nursery - 7 days  

• Special/PRU - 10 days  

• Secondary – 10 days  

• 3-16/19 - 16 days  
 

Enhanced support schools will receive additional time to reflect the development needs and 
monitoring requirements. All support will be agreed between the school and IP and shared 
with the LA when the school improvement priorities are agreed.  Specified days might not all 
be from the same IP but might include work of others more specialists in certain areas. The 
impact of this support will be monitored half termly and will be shared with LAs in the termly 
review meetings.  
 
The IP supports schools through appropriate challenge to identify clear, manageable 
improvement priorities as a consequence of effective self-evaluation.  The IP works with 
school leaders to review first-hand evidence and ensures processes are rigorous and accurate.  
In supporting schools in the review of their self-evaluation cycle, IPs work with leaders to 
monitor and evaluate progress against school development plan priorities.  
 

Case Study: Secondary School Improvement Partner working with Secondary Schools. 

• The Improvement Partner has worked over a period of time with a middle leader in a 

coaching/mentoring role to support their development.  The support has included 

professional discussions, joint monitoring activities, quality assurance of report and 

planning documents and analysis of data. 

Impact -Supports the development of leadership capacity and the effectiveness of 

middle leaders to carry out effective self-evaluation. 

 

• The Improvement Partner and senior leaders identified an area for development 

following analysis of school data and self-evaluation evidence.  The Improvement 

Partner brokered bespoke support for the school to address the area identified for 

improvement.  The Improvement Partner worked alongside members of the 

Curriculum and Professional Learning team to monitor the impact of the support and 

identify further actions and support.   

Impact – Effective provision developed to and significant impact on school data. 

Page 291



14 
 

If schools are not demonstrating appropriate rates of progress towards achieving their 

improvement priorities, this information is discussed with the school, governors, LA and CSC 

and a decision will then be made as to whether the school may need enhanced monitoring. 

IPs will then provide a detailed evaluation of progress with a judgement on the rate of 

progress. If the school, governors, LA, and CSC agree that progress is appropriate, a discussion 

can then take place about moving the school to enhanced monitoring.  The same process 

exists if a school is making sufficient progress to move from enhanced monitoring to core 

support. 

Key improvement objectives are identified, and regular progress meetings held for all 

enhanced monitoring schools to judge the impact of the support in enabling the school to 

meet its objectives.  A judgement is made on the extent of the progress the schools have 

made in meeting each objective.  This information is provided to Directors in termly progress 

reports. 

Each term CSC prepares a detailed report for Directors.  This report contains a detailed 
breakdown of the support provided within the previous term. 
 
 
5.0 SUPPORT FOR SCHOOLS  

5.1  Schools Receiving Enhanced Support 

During 2022 -23 academic year 6 schools received enhanced support during the year.  There 
were five schools receiving enhanced support at the beginning of the year with another school 
identified for enhanced support during the course of the year.   
 
All schools that were in enhanced support, were also in receipt of bespoke support from the 
CSC Curriculum and Professional Learning team to support the school address areas identified 
for development.  In some cases, a school may be receiving bespoke support for a number of 
strategic priorities.  In this case, where a school is receiving a range of support, it is carefully 
planned to ensure the school has the capacity to engage effectively with the support 
provided. 
 
The focus of the support will be carefully considered and will be subject to a range of different 
factors individual to the school including leadership capacity, systems and processes, 
expertise across the school and teaching capacity.  Support offered to school includes 
engaging in the professional learning programme, school to school support, Curriculum and 
Professional Learning team working with the school directly, regional networks and sharing 
of resources. 
 
Schools who receive enhanced support will have regular progress meetings to review the 
progress and impact of actions for the development of the agreed improvement priorities.  
The meetings are attended by school leaders/governors, local authority officers, 
improvement partner and the principal improvement partner.  The meeting agrees a 
judgement with regard progress against the priorities, next steps and consideration is given 
to the level and focus of support the school is receiving.    
 

Page 292



15 
 

 
  
As a result of the support, challenge and regular monitoring, all schools make good progress 

over time against a very challenging context.  The schools are well-supported, and schools 

make strong or better progress against most of the strategic priorities or recommendations 

over time. 

5.2 Intervention Strategy for Schools Causing Concern 

The Intervention Strategy for schools has been reviewed, agreed with all Directors and shared 
with schools. This has led to clear processes for intervention being understood and utilised by 
the local authorities and forms the basis of enhanced support work for all settings in the 
region.   
 
Within Bridgend in 2022/23 there were no schools in receipt of a LA Statutory Warning Notice 

and no schools had received a pre warning notice. 

 

 

 

Enhanced Support Case study: 

In partnership with the Improvement Partner, a school reviewed their self-evaluation 

evidence and clear strategic priorities were identified for development reflecting the school, 

local authority and national priorities.   

Writing was identified as a priority and the literacy lead engaged in a CSC professional 

learning programme for writing.  The literacy lead was new to the role and received support 

from a member of the Curriculum and Professional Learning team to develop their 

understanding of the role and their effectiveness in carrying out their role across the school 

including monitoring activities and a range of resources to support the development of 

writing.  As the literacy lead became more confident in their role over time, the support 

focused on quality assuring the judgements of the literacy lead in their monitoring activities.   

For mathematics, the focus was ensuring the appropriate coverage and structured 

progression of learning in mathematics.  Appropriate resources were shared with the 

numeracy leader to support school planning and for maths.  The numeracy leader was 

provided with opportunities to visit schools where good practice has been identified and 

joined the regional network where resources and practice were shared.   

Support for the development of assessment for learning was programmed later in the school 

year.  The school received two days of bespoke support for all classroom practitioners to 

support the development.  Practitioners were then provided with opportunities to carry out 

action research using different strategies before a review of effectiveness and the co-

construction of a new agreed policy. 

Page 293



16 
 

6.0 PROFESSIONAL LEARNING & SUPPORT 

Professional learning (PL) is a change process to improve and develop professional 
knowledge, skills and understanding.  PL should focus on changes that impact on learners 
through a practitioner’s own learning, leading to increased understanding, and changes in 
their behaviours, i.e., policies, provision, and practice.  

In line with the National Professional Learning Entitlement, CSC is committed to equity of 
access to high quality PL for all school leaders, including governors, and practitioners in our 
region. CSC PL opportunities are guided by the eight hallmarks for well-led professional 
learning as defined by the National Academy for Education Leadership Wales (NAEL).  

The CSC Curriculum and Professional Learning (C&PL) team continue to provide a 
comprehensive range of high quality, evidence-informed PL opportunities to all schools in the 
region to support local, regional, and national improvement priorities.   

PL opportunities are continually considered, planned and published. They include:  

 
• Live or synchronous PL – includes events, programmes, networks and conferences – live 

focused on a specific area; 
• On-demand or asynchronous PL– includes assignments and on- demand recordings of PL 

focused on a specific area; 
• Resources – includes guidance documents, toolkits, poster packs, blogs, vlogs, podcasts, 

etc; and 
• Regional collaboration projects – funded opportunities for school practitioners from 

across the CSC region to collaborate on a particular project focus.  

 

A wide variety of data and intelligence is analysed, and research undertaken to identify and 
inform PL needs in the region. This includes:  

• Analysis of improvement priorities of all schools in the region; 

• Analysis of the business plan priorities from the 5 local authorities; 

• Welsh Government policy, guidance and relevant grant terms and conditions; 

• Regional recommendations from external reports, e.g., Welsh Government, OECD, Estyn, 
Children’s Commissioner, etc; 

• Analysis of CSC PL engagement data and PL evaluations; 

• Other relevant internal information, e.g., regional reports, SIPLs, all school risk meetings, 
etc; 

• Analysis of other relevant external information, e.g., schools’ Estyn reports, etc; and 

• Other educational and relevant research. 
 

All CSC PL and support is available at no charge to schools in the region.  Most PL opportunities 
are developed and facilitated in partnership with schools within the regional self-improving 
system, the Central South Wales Challenge (CSWC).  C&PL officers also work in partnership 
with LAs, other regional consortia and partnerships, Welsh Government (WG) and where 
appropriate, external consultants in the development and facilitation of PL. 
  

Page 294

https://hwb.gov.wales/professional-learning/leading-professional-learning/national-professional-learning-entitlement/
https://nael.cymru/en/leading-professional-learning
https://nael.cymru/en/leading-professional-learning


17 
 

6.1  Central South Wales Challenge  

The CSWC is the partnership of all schools and settings across the CSC region working together 
to develop a self-improving system. The CSWC is evaluated annually to ensure it meets the 
current and evolving needs of schools and the wider system.   

The CSWC includes of a number of components that support the self-improving school 
system. Each component plays a key role in ensuring that all schools and settings in the region 
can access appropriate PL and support.  Schools and settings should engage with the 
components and PL activities that best support their school improvement priorities.  The 
CSWC components are categorised broadly into two areas, namely ‘professional learning 
collaborations’ and ‘professional learning opportunities’, (see appendix A - CSWC model 
2022-2023).  

Practitioners and school leaders, including governors, can contribute to the CSWC in key roles 
to support other schools across the region, working in partnership with the CSC school 
improvement team to provide professional learning and/or bespoke support to schools across 
the region.  

Practitioners and school leaders, including governors, can contribute to the CSWC in key roles 
to support other schools across the region, working in partnership with the CSC school 
improvement team to provide professional learning and/or bespoke support to schools across 
the region. Roles include lead practitioners (LPs), leadership pathway programme 
mentors/coaches, cluster convenors, system leaders (SLs) and regional leaders of governance 
(RLGs).   

During 2022-2023 the following CSWC contributors were from Bridgend schools:  

• Lead Practitioners = 5 

• Leadership pathways programme mentors/coaches = 2 

• Cluster convenors = 9 

• System Leader = 1  

• Regional Leaders of Governance = 0  

 

6.2 Regional Professional Learning Collaborations 

All schools in the CSC region receive collaboration funding to support school leaders and 
practitioners to participate in collaborative school improvement activities, building capacity 
both within their school, across their cluster and networks, and within the wider system. 
These collaborative activities must be focused on the curriculum and wider reforms, and the 
desired outcome of high standards and aspiration aspirations for all.  

During 2022-2023, the total collaboration funding to schools in the region was £5.018m. Each 
school in the region received a £7,000 lump sum plus £300 per FTE teacher. The total 
collaboration funded for schools in Bridgend was £786,211. 

Headteachers in all schools were requested to complete a short multi-choice survey related 
to collaboration funding activities.  This information is used effectively for knowledge, 
development and evaluation within the region, for example:  

• To evaluate the impact of professional learning and support for schools; 

• To inform the development of further professional learning opportunities; 

Page 295



18 
 

• To target bespoke support to individual school, clusters and groups of schools as required; 

• To report to Welsh Government, local authorities and CSC governance groups; and 

• To inform CSC self-evaluation and business planning.  

 

During autumn 2022, 99% schools in the region submitted the survey. However, the 
undertaking of the survey in the summer term 2023 was significantly affected by action short 
of strike (ASOS) and the further non-engagement of headteachers across the region due the 
ongoing discussions regarding managing workload and bureaucracy. Only 40% (151/380) of 
headteachers in the region completed the summer term survey, 28/60 (47%) from schools in 
Bridgend. Therefore, the following information cannot be read as a full or accurate summary 
of progress of the majority of schools in Bridgend, but only of those 28 schools where 
headteachers completed the survey.  

 

6.21 Clusters  

Supporting collaboration across clusters continues to be a priority. Cluster collaboration is an 
expectation from Welsh Government and the Curriculum for Wales framework places a 
strong emphasis on cluster collaborations. Leaders need to create the time and space for staff 
to work alongside others within their school and with those across cluster schools to develop 
a shared understanding of progression and to ensure high aspirations for al learners. A wide 
range of support is provided to enable school leaders and teachers to engage in regular 
professional dialogue and to identify common priorities for the learners within their locality. 
This includes bespoke PL and support available to all clusters from the CSC curriculum and PL 
team to meet their specific improvement needs.   

There are 9 clusters in Bridgend, excluding special schools and the pupil referral unit. Clusters 
are recommended to identify a named convenor, usually a senior leader from a school within 
the cluster, who receives £1500 to undertake this role.  Cluster convenors are required to 
complete an SLA at the start of the year stating the focus of the cluster work, and an end of 
year evaluation of the work. They also facilitate the cluster in their collaborative work. During 
2022-2023, all clusters in Bridgend identified a cluster convenor.  

Of the Bridgend schools who returned the summer term collaboration survey, all who were 
collaborating with their cluster stated this included work on Curriculum for Wales.  Of these, 
nearly all were focusing on developing a shared understanding of progression to support 
their curriculum design, planning and development along the 3-16 continuum. A majority 
were collaborating on the Areas of Learning and Experience (Areas) and teaching, whilst half 
of Bridgend clusters stated they have further work to do in developing approaches to 
incorporating the cross-cutting themes across their respective curricula. A very few stated 
that they needed to further develop relationships and understanding between secondary 
and primary practitioners in relation to the 3-16 learning continuum.  

Across the region, primary colleagues continued to report the challenge of secondary schools 
not being able to release subject specialists to support cluster working due to their need to 
prioritise current examination classes. Expertise to support all disciplines, subjects and Areas 
is available through the CSC curriculum and PL team and/or school-based lead practitioners.  

 

Page 296



19 
 

Examples of effective cluster working in Bridgend:  

All cluster work links to SDP priorities and work is ongoing in each of the schools.  A variety 
of staff are involved in the different actions and work is disseminated and shared in schools 
through staff meetings and discussions with senior leaders. External support accessed 
includes CSC curriculum team and Perform and Grow (emotional health and wellbeing 
project).  Skills, knowledge and confidence are being developed across all identified 
priorities.  The approach to emotional health and wellbeing had a strong focus on staff 
wellbeing, with schools  carrying out action research in their own schools and implementing 
actions specific to their schools.  The cluster working this year has been effective across all 
actions as there has been strong collaboration and buy in from colleagues. The work 
undertaken with CSC colleagues has been effective in developing the shared knowledge and 
supporting colleagues to develop shared progression maps in 2 of the AOLEs and RSE.  

 

All schools in the cluster have worked in partnership on curriculum design and developing a 
shared understanding of progression. They have collaborated on developing a cluster 
continuum and a focus on high-quality teaching, prioritising professional learning and 
dialogue involving all staff as key. The CSC curriculum team have supported the cluster in 
this.  

 

6.2.2 School Improvement Groups (SIGs) 

A majority of schools across the region are also collaborating on Curriculum for Wales (CfW) 
with schools from their sector across local authority areas. These self-facilitating school 
improvement groups (SIGs) predominately focus on progression, teaching, leadership and 
well-being. 

During 2022-2023, 39 SIGs continued as cross LA school collaborations. Staff from the 
participating schools worked collaboratively on shared areas of school improvement.   

Of the schools who submitted the summer term collaboration survey, 58% of schools in the 
region stated that they are working within a SIG. This included 12/28 (43%) of schools in 
Bridgend.  

As with clusters, SIGs are required to identify a convenor who receives £1500 to undertake 
this role.  SIG convenors are required to complete an SLA at the start of the year stating the 
focus of the group’s work, and an end of year evaluation of the work. They also facilitate the 
group in their collaborative work. 4 SIG convenors were from schools in Bridgend.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 297



20 
 

Table 4:  SIG Focus Areas 2022-2023 

SIG focus area No of primary 
SIGs 

No of secondary/ 
all age school 

SIGs 

Total no of SIGs 

Leadership 16 1 17 

Teaching 13 3 16 

Progression 12 4 16 

Expressive Arts 3 0 3 

Health & Well-being  5 0 5 

Humanities 3 0 3 

LLC: English 1 0 1 

LLC: Cymraeg 2 0 2 

Maths and Numeracy 3 0 3 

Science & Technology 3 0 3 

CCS: Literacy 3 1 4 

CCS: Numeracy 4 1 5 

CCS: Digital Competence 1 1 2 

Whole school approach to mental 
health and well-being  

12 1 13 

Other, e.g. RSE, ALN, Diversity, RVE 10 4 14 

 

Examples of effective SIG working: 

Sharing best practice and processes related to ALN reform. Working together to establish and 
refine documentation and communication with stakeholders. SIG working has focussed on an 
important area for all schools due to new legislation. It is a small SIG but extremely useful to 
those involved as the schools represent different local authorities who have all provided 
different support and information for their schools. Therefore all schools in the group were 
able to benefit from the support given. The work is linked to current priorities in all schools. 
Many ALNCos work in isolation within their schools so being able to discuss their role and 
difficulties with a wider group outside of their cluster / LA is very useful and highly valued. 
Learners and families are better supported within the new ALN system. ALNCos feel more 
knowledgeable and supported in their role.  

 

To develop standards in the Learning and Teaching of Welsh Second Language.  Both teachers 
and pupils worked together on this project.  The most successful part of the project was the 
Criw Cymraeg from each school working together. The SIG has five schools that have been 
committed to working together. The meetings of this small group were well attended, the 
group worked well together and were happy to share resources with each other.  The work 
was linked to the school's priorities, which for some are still ongoing .  All staff disseminated 
practice back at their own school and the Criw Cymraeg taught other pupils in their school the 

Page 298



21 
 

Welsh playground games. The schools are using what they have learned to develop provision 
of Welsh Second Language throughout their schools, particularly the work of the Criw 
Cymraeg.  The Criw Cymraeg were certainly more enthused in their role and aware of their 
responsibilities.  The teachers involved all felt the sharing of practice was worthwhile and 
helpful. 

 

6.2.3 School Leader and Practitioner Networks  

Networks focus on school improvement related to specific or specific roles. These include 
regional networks that are facilitated by the CSC curriculum and PL team and/or lead 
practitioners, National Networks, and self-facilitated networks.  

 

Table 5: Participation in networks 2022-2023 

 CSC Bridgend 

No of 
delegates 

No of schools No of delegates No of schools 

Regional networks* 1752 325 213 52 

National Networks* 220 152 42 33 

Self-facilitated networks**  n/a 93 n/a 16 

*figures from attendance registers.  ** figures from summer term collaboration survey. 

CSC provides additional funding to support three focused self-facilitated networks for Welsh 
medium schools, and special schools and PRUs. During 2022-2023, each of these networks 
received £30k funding to plan and facilitate PL where their specific needs were not fully met 
through the CSC PL offer. Most Welsh medium primary schools participated in ‘Y Ffed’ and all 
Welsh medium secondary schools participated in ‘Gyda’n Gilydd’. All special schools and PRUs 
participate in their network.   

 

6.3 Regional and Cross-Regional Professional Learning Opportunities  

Engagement in professional learning (PL) events, networks, programmes, assignments, and 
conferences continues remains high, with school leaders and/or practitioners from nearly all 
schools in the region participating.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 299



22 
 

Table 6:  Engagement in CSC and Cross-regional Professional Learning 

 CSC Bridgend 

Year No of delegates % of schools No of delegates % of schools 

2020-2021 12,117  99.7% 1975 97% 

2021-2022 12,190 100% 1840 100% 

2022-2023  10,298 99.7% 1634 100% 

 

Summary of evaluations completed by delegates following participation in PL during 2022-
2023: 

• 94% stated that there would be a change to practice and that the learning would have 
an impact on pupils in their settings. 

• 97% stated that they were confident in the knowledge of the topic following the PL. 

• 98% stated that the PL would change their practice, with 95% planning to use what 
they have learned. 

• 75% stated that the PL was linked to their school improvement priorities. 

• 94% stated that the PL would impact on learners in their setting. 

 

6.3.1  Bespoke support  

Bespoke support is offered to all schools and groups/clusters/SIGs in the region to support 
priorities that are not fully met by the published PL opportunities. Requests for bespoke 
support are monitored, tracked and evaluated.  

During 2022-2023, CSC received 171 requests for bespoke support. 270 (71%) of schools in 
the region received bespoke support, either individually, or as part of a group/cluster/SIG. 
This includes 49 schools in Bridgend. Bespoke support is facilitated by the CSC curriculum and 
PL team and/or lead practitioners. Two schools from Bridgend provided bespoke support to 
other school in the region. Schools are funded for providing this school-to-school support.  In 
all bespoke support there is evidence of impact on the provision at either practitioner or 
leadership level in the receiving school. 

 

6.3.2 Regional and National Funded Collaboration Projects   

During 2022-2023, 65 regional funded collaboration projects were available to all CSC schools 
to focus on local, regional and national priorities. These included projects relating to 
curriculum, teaching and assessment. 

 

 

 

Page 300



23 
 

Table 7: Regional Collaboration Projects 2022-2023 

CSC Bridgend 

No of 
delegates 

No of 
schools 

% of schools Funding to 
schools 

No. 
delegates 

No of 
schools 

% of schools Funding to 
schools 

607 237 62% £723,020 101 35 58% £122,560 

During 2022-2023, five national funded projects were available to all schools across the region 
focused on national priorities. These included projects related to curriculum design, cross-
cutting themes, teaching and all Areas of Learning and Experience. 

 

Table 8 - National Funded Projects 2022-2023 

CSC Bridgend 

No of 
delegates 

No of 
schools 

% of schools Funding to 
schools 

No. 
delegates 

No of 
schools 

% of schools Funding to 
schools 

48 38 10% £261,500 8 7 12% £57,600 

 

6.3.3  School-led professional learning, enquiry, and research; and professional learning 
for developing practice and reflection. 

During 2022-2023, the focus of this area continued to promote enquiry, research and 
reflective practice as an integral aspect of school improvement. This supports the 
development of Schools as Learning Organisations (SLO) and builds capacity in the education 
system.   

Regional resources continue to be available to all schools to support the development and 
embedding of enquiry approaches. Promoting and developing practitioners’ experience, 
knowledge and skills in research and enquiry is also embedded within regional PL 
programmes, networks and projects, as appropriate to the specific PL opportunity.  Funding 
is provided to support schools’ engagement in the WG-led research and enquiry projects.  

During 2022-2023, 6 schools from Bridgend were engaged in the National Professional 
Enquiry Project (NPEP): 

 

• Heronsbridge Special School 

• Oldcastle Primary School 

• Porthcawl Comprehensive School 

• Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon Y Cymoedd 
 

The schools worked with HEI partners to develop enquiry skills and conduct enquiries by 
selecting a specific enquiry focus relating to their school improvement priorities.  All NPEP 
enquiries are published on Hwb.   

Page 301

https://hwb.gov.wales/professional-learning/leading-professional-learning/research-and-enquiry/national-professional-enquiry-project-npep/


24 
 

Coety Primary School was part of the Embedding Research & Enquiry in Schools where they 
worked with HEI partners to share the enquiry model in their school and generate learning 
around an identified focus area to support the system to understand developing sustainable 
whole school models to engage with research and enquiry. 

The expertise and support from Higher Education Institutions (HEIs) within these projects are 
valuable to the participating schools. In evaluations, teachers highlighted that HEIs support 
them with refining research questions, directing them to relevant literature and articles, 
methodology, data collection and analysis. However, teachers also raised concerns that 
without enough time that might not be possible, as some schools had not fully embedded 
their approaches. 

During 2022-2023, three school leaders in the region were appointed as regional SLO 
champions. During 2023/24 the SLO champions will be funded to support participants from 
the leadership pathway programmes to further develop their schools as learning 
organisations.  

 

6.4 Professional Pathways  

The Professional Pathways suite of PL and support seeks to equip practitioners at all levels, 
from teaching assistants through to senior leaders and governors across the region with the 
knowledge, experiences, skills and confidence to be effective in their roles. 

 

6.4.1 Leadership Development  

Developing strong and effective school leadership continues as a key priority for CSC and is 
essential in realising Our national mission.  

 

Leadership Pathway Programmes 

A comprehensive programme of leadership development continues to be offered to all school 
leaders across the region, aligning to Welsh Government’s Leadership Development Pathway.  

 

These programmes are national programmes that are coordinated and delivered through the 
region. All programmes have acquired official endorsement from the National Academy for 
Educational Leadership (NAEL). Middle Leadership Development and Senior Leader 
Development Programmes have an accreditation option through ILM. They seek to develop 
the knowledge, skills, experiences and confidence of school leaders, empowering them to 
maximise their impact on the progress and well-being of all learners.  

 

Table 9: Engagement in Leadership Pathway Programmes 2022-2023 (CSC) 

CSC Middle leaders Senior leaders 
Aspiring 

Headteacher 
New/Acting 

Headteachers 

No of practitioners 128 59 41 33 

Page 302

https://hwb.gov.wales/news/articles/4b920a0e-a6bf-4cc5-ba4d-4b1eb5f55435


25 
 

No of schools 69 53 40 33 

 

 

Table 10: Engagement in Leadership Pathway Programmes 2022-2023 (Bridgend) 

Bridgend 
Middle leaders Senior leaders 

Aspiring 
Headteacher 

New/Acting 
Headteachers 

No of practitioners 15 7 7 5 

No of schools 10 6 7 5 

 

All participants in the programmes were supported by an identified mentor/coach. For the 
middle leadership programme, this is a coach from within their own school. Over 40 
headteachers and deputy headteachers from across the region act as coaches to support 
participants in the other leadership pathway programmes.  During 2022-2023, school leaders 
from two schools in Bridgend undertook this funded role. 

Regional networks are established to support middle and senior leaders who are registered 
on these programmes. Networks for both mentors/coaches and school leaders who facilitate 
these programmes take place at least termly and ensure consistency in the quality and 
support for all participants.  

The national Experienced Headteacher Programme is aimed at headteachers with five years 
or more experience in the role to support them to reflect on their leadership journey to date, 
whilst developing a clear insight into the leadership skills required to create the conditions 
for change. This programme was due to be piloted during 2020/21 but was postponed due to 
Covid-19. During 2022-2023 a condensed version of this programme was delivered as a 2-day 
residential. No headteachers from Bridgend attended. It provided a valuable opportunity for 
CSC headteachers to engage with colleagues from across Wales. This programme will be 
evaluated in March 2024 and will inform the future PL offer for experienced headteachers 
across Wales. 

 

National Professional Qualification for Headship 

During 2022-2023, CSC continued to facilitate assessment for the National Professional 
Qualification for Headship (NPQH).  All candidates were supported by a CSC leadership 
mentor/coach, a serving headteacher within the region.  These guide candidates through 
their leadership standards review and leadership experience task, and act as a valuable 
sounding board in preparation for their assessment centre interviews.  

30 of the 44 candidates from schools across the region met the criteria and were awarded 
NPQH.  One of the four candidates from schools in Bridgend schools met the criteria and were 
awarded the NPQH.  

 

 

 

Page 303



26 
 

System Leaders  

This programme has been developed by CSC to extend the leadership pathway.  Developing 
system leadership is critical to support schools in curriculum and wider education reform and 
achieve equity and excellence for all. The CSC System Leader programme is aimed at 
experienced headteachers who wish to further develop and support other schools and the 
wider education system.  

A total of 14 headteachers have participated in this pilot programme, including one 
headteacher from a Bridgend school.  Upon successful completion of a comprehensive PL 
programme, the system leaders were made available for deployment across the region to 
support schools requiring improvement. Improvement Partners work closely with the system 
leader to plan, monitor and evaluate the impact of this leadership support.  In 2022-2023, no 
system leaders were deployed to support leadership in three Bridgend schools. 

A formal evaluation to analyse the impact of this pilot programme will be completed in Spring 
2024.  

 

Other Professional Learning and Support for School Leaders 

During 2022-2023, CSC continued to provide high-quality support for school leaders, including 
governors, via a wide variety of PL events, conferences, assignments, programmes, and 
networking and collaboration opportunities.  This includes providing access to the national 
coaching and mentoring programme delivered by Results Driven Group, as well as the 
regional programme of coaching and mentoring (see section 6.4.6).   

 

6.4.2 School Governors 

Governors are a crucial part of the leadership of schools. They have an essential role in 
supporting school improvement and promoting the highest standards and aspirations for all 
learners. To undertake their strategic role in the school effectively, governors need to ensure 
they have the relevant up-to-date knowledge and skills.  

In partnership with Local Authority Governor Support Services, CSC continues to provide a 
range of high-quality, evidence-informed PL opportunities, and support and guidance for 
school governors. CSC facilitates the delivery of mandatory PL for governors. All new 
governors must attend the understanding data, and new to governors sessions.  New chairs 
of governors must also attend the new chair of governors session.  

In addition to the mandatory training, CSC also provides PL sessions for governors in relation 
to key areas. During 2022-2023, 76 regional PL sessions, 1251 governors engaged with these 
sessions, including  governors from 48 (80%) schools in Bridgend.  

Topics covered included:  

 

• Enabling Equity & Excellence – 3 sessions 

• Curriculum for Wales (CfW) – 6 sessions 

• Headteacher Performance Management – 2 sessions  

• Introduction to Coaching Skills – 6 sessions 

• School as Learning Organisations – 3 sessions  

Page 304

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/resource/4bad6294-5a56-462d-9686-7de13ef86e05/en
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=bb157cfe-b353-4766-8b4a-2a14a5c9c918&categories2=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0


27 
 

• Developing Welsh in Education – 2 sessions  

• Introduction to the Self-Evaluation Toolkit – 4 sessions  

• Religion, Values and Ethics (RVE) – 2 sessions  

• The School Evaluation, Improvement Accountability Framework – 1 session  

• Supporting Schools Through Inspection – 2 sessions 

• Well-being – 6 sessions 

 

Bespoke support is also available to governing bodies from the CSC Regional Leaders of 
Governance (RLG). Requests for bespoke support from an RLG must be discussed with the 
Headteacher, Chair of Governors and Improvement Partner.  

The CSC governor self-evaluation toolkit continues to be available to support governing 
bodies across the region.  

 

Regional Leaders of Governance (RLGs)  

Where governance works well, it strengthens school leadership and creates a culture of high 
ambition where all children and young people are expected to thrive. The best governing 
bodies have an in-depth knowledge of their schools and provide insightful challenge and 
support to help drive school performance and ensure that there is robust financial 
accountability and oversight. Where governance is ineffective, it is important that governing 
bodies access high quality support and guidance so that they can develop and improve. 

CSC RLGs are highly effective governors with extensive experience from schools within the 
region.  RLGs provide strategic and operational support for schools where governance is 
identified as an area for improvement.   

During 2022-2023, 13 RLGs continued to support school improvement across the region.  No 
RLGs are serving governors from schools in Bridgend.   

CSC LA Principal Improvement Partners, in collaboration with the headteacher, the school’s 
Governing Body and the LA, are responsible for identifying and brokering support by an RLG 
for a school.  In 2022-2023, no governing bodies of schools in Bridgend were supported by an 
RLG.   

RLGs also support the facilitation of PL for school governors and other regional school 
improvement activities related to governors, as appropriate. 

A formal evaluation analysing the impact of RLGs will be completed in spring 2024.  

 

6.4.3 Teaching Assistant Learning Pathway (TALP)  

CSC continues to offer the three national TALP programmes, providing a learning pathway to 
support teaching assistants (TAs) throughout their career. This includes TAs who wish to gain 
Higher Level Teaching Assistant (HTLA) status. Each programme builds on the knowledge, 
understanding and skills of the TA. All programmes are offered in Welsh and English to all TAs 
across the region.  

During 2022-2023, 139 practitioners engaged in the regional TALP programmes, including 48 
TAs from schools in Bridgend. Of the 64 practitioners from across the region who completed 

Page 305



28 
 

the Aspiring HLTA programme, 50 (78%) were assessed and awarded HLTA status, four of 
these TAs were from schools in Bridgend. 

Bespoke support for TAs was made available to all schools and clusters across the region from 
summer term 2023. This support is provided by two HLTAs seconded to CSC from schools in 
the region.   

During 2022, CSC launched a TALP online community which is updated regularly with 
resources to support TAs in their role. To date 92 TAs have joined the community.  

Experienced TAs and HLTAs also have the opportunity to become trained HLTA assessors, PL 
facilitators, and TA coaches, supporting other TAs within their own school and in other schools 
in the region. There are currently 19 trained assessors, three from schools in Bridgend. 

 

6.4.4 Initial Teacher Education (ITE)  

During 2022-2023, 272 schools across the region, including 41 schools in Bridgend, supported 
student teachers in partnership with five ITE providers to deliver a range of ITE programmes 
and routes.  

Of these schools, 12 are Lead Schools across the partnerships and six have employer status 
with the Open University (with salaried students). The remainder are placement schools. 

The total number of students across Wales awarded Qualified Teacher Status (QTS) in 2023 
was 1,054.  Of those, 501 graduates were enrolled with Cardiff Metropolitan University.  

Between February and June 2023, a presentation on Newly Qualified Teacher (NQT) Induction 
was given by the cross-regional team to ITE students in all Welsh universities. To bridge the 
transition into employment, all QTS graduates were invited to sign up to a region for support 
and communications over the summer period. By August 2023, 319 QTS graduates joined the 
CSC QTS team increasing from 223 in 2021-22, and 150 in 2020-21.  89 QTS graduates 
attended a CSC 'Welcome to the region' session in August 2023.  

 

6.4.5  Newly Qualified Teacher Induction  

Induction is a statutory requirement for all NQTs in Wales who have gained QTS. Schools have 
a statutory obligation to provide NQTs with induction support. CSC acts as the Appropriate 
Body (AB) for all NQTs in the region.  

CSC works in partnership with schools in the region to ensure that every NQT in the region 
has the necessary support during their induction period. NQTs work with induction mentors 
(IMs), external mentors (EMs), external verifiers (EVs) and the CSC team to undertake 
induction.  CSC, as the AB, leads the necessary verification and administrative processes with 
regards to induction.  

During 2022-2023, there were 570 NQTs in the region. The professional learning offer for 
induction included: 

• National events and programmes, facilitated by regional consortia and other 
partnerships; 

• The CSC NQT Aspire programme, developed and facilitated by the 22 Aspire schools 
across the region; 

Page 306



29 
 

• Networking opportunities; and 

• Coaching and mentoring PL for IMs, EMs and EVs. 

The national induction PL programme was offered between September and December 2022. 

 

 

Table 11: Engagement in the National Induction PL 2022-2023 

CSC Bridgend 

EVs IMs/EMs NQTs EVs IMs/EMs NQTs 

100% 81% 94% 100% 90% 77% 

 

The CSC ‘Aspire’ programme is facilitated by trained tutors in 22 host schools from across the 
region, including all phases and sectors. Five schools in Bridgend facilitate the Aspire 
programme:  

• Coleg Cymunedol Y Dderwen 

• Pencoed Primary School 

• Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon y Cymoedd 

• Oldcastle Primary School 

• Nottage Primary School  

The programme consists of high-quality PL, combining discussion, research, sharing, 
observation, learning walks and time for reflection. During 2022-2023, 363 NQTs, including 
supply NQTs (88% of all new NQTs), engaged with the programme, including 43 (83%) NQTs 
from schools Bridgend.  

Over the 5-day programme, between 93-97% of NQTs evaluated that the sessions enhanced 
their knowledge and were relevant and appropriate for their needs. 85% of NQT profiles that 
passed assessment in July 2023 specifically referenced regional PL in their evidence and the 
positive impact the PL had on their practice (an increase from 70% the previous year).  

With the exception of the leadership pathway programmes, NQTs can also engage with all 
other CSC PL opportunities, support and resources.  

A number of regional PL and support activities were made available for all IMs, EMs and EVs 
throughout 2023-23. These included:  

• Monthly updates posted in the CSC online community; 

• A coaching and mentoring programme – spring 2023; 

• LA cluster meetings – 20 attended Bridgend cluster meeting; and 

• A ‘Mentoring Matters’ conference held in 2023 July. 12 Bridgend mentors attended. 

All evaluations provided positive feedback and mentors welcomed the continuation of these 
opportunities to meet and support each other to effectively undertake their role next year.   

In July 2023, 325 NQTs passed induction: 316 on contracts and 9 short term supply (STS). 
These included 57 Welsh Medium and 268 English Medium practitioners, 44 of whom were 
working in schools in Bridgend. There were no fails processed.   

Page 307



30 
 

6.4.6 Coaching and Mentoring 

CSC continues to embed its strategy for coaching and mentoring. The strategy aims to build a 
sustainable culture of coaching and mentoring across the region to support school 
improvement.  During 2022-2023, CSC provided a range of opportunities for schools to access 
PL in coaching and mentoring.  

Table 12: Engagement in Coaching and Mentoring PL 2022-2023 

CSC Bridgend 

Regional 
programme 

National 
Programme 

ILM Awards Regional 
programme 

National 
Programme 

ILM Awards 

50 48 17 12 3 1 

 

The regional PL coaching and mentoring programme is aimed at practitioners and school 
leaders, including governors, who want to develop their knowledge and skills in effective 
coaching and mentoring. The programme is facilitated regionally by 6 lead practitioners who 
have attended the national programme.  

The national coaching and mentoring programme continues to be facilitated by Results Driven 
Group. This a train the trainer programme and participants can then deliver the training to 
others in their school and clusters across CSC.  

Following the national programme, participants continue to have the opportunity to 
participate in an ILM L3, 5 or 7 Award in Coaching and Mentoring.  

Nine clusters in Bridgend now have a trained facilitator in coaching and mentoring PL.   

 

6.5 Professional Learning and Support for Curriculum, Teaching and Assessment   

There are wide-ranging PL opportunities available to all schools focused on curriculum, 
teaching and assessment.  This includes regional, cross-regional and WG-led PL events, 
programmes, conferences, networks, projects, guidance and resource. 

In line with Welsh Government guidance, CSC has defined a school’s curriculum as ‘everything 
a learner experiences in pursuit of the four purposes. It is not simply what we teach, but how 
we teach and crucially, why we teach it’.  Therefore, CSC curriculum PL and support includes: 

• ‘the what’ - curriculum design and progression;  

• ‘the how’ - pedagogy/teaching;  

• ‘the how do you know’ – assessment; and 

• underpinned by ‘the why’ - Our national mission and the four purposes.  

As such, support for teaching and assessment is embedded throughout CSC’s curriculum PL 
and support, as well as through dedicated PL opportunities.   

 

 

 

Page 308

https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/resource/8ff00882-01d5-483f-9aad-fc1e0d7d927c/en/overview


31 
 

 

 

 

 

Table 13: Engagement in regional PL focused on curriculum, teaching assessment 2022-2023 

 CSC Bridgend 

Regional PL 
(excl. 

networks) 

Regional 
networks  

Regional 
funded 

collaboration 
projects  

Regional PL 
(excl. 

networks) 

Regional 
networks  

Regional 
funded 

collaboration 
projects  

No of 
delegates 

5416 1868 573 636 301 96 

No of 
schools 

370 324 235 58 52 35 

% of 
schools 

97% 85% 62% 97% 87% 58% 

 

Over 80 focused regional curriculum networks were available to all schools across the region. 
These provide opportunities for practitioners and leaders to reflect, share processes and 
approaches, and critically self-evaluate and improve practice related to all areas of curriculum 
reform. These included 24 secondary subject discipline networks active across the CSC region 
to support the development of the level 2 and level 3 qualifications. 67 practitioners across 
all secondary schools in Bridgend participated in these networks.  

In July 2023, the CSC Curriculum Conference focused on the ‘What, How and How Do We 
Know’. Nearly 200 practitioners from over a third of schools across the region attended this 
in-person event, including 36 school leaders from 27 (45%) schools in Bridgend. Eight schools 
and clusters from across the region led high-quality workshops, sharing their practice. The 
workshops focused on progression, teaching, assessment, cluster working, Welsh and the 
cross-curricular skills. Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwd led a workshop on ‘A sharded 
underatdning of proression – working along the 3-16 continuum’ and Afon-Y-Felin Primary 
School led a workshop on ‘Welsh as a living language in an English medium primary school’. 
Recordings of all sessions are also available to all schools on the CSC website.  

CSC has also developed a CSC Design Thinking Model that provides a scaffold for schools in 
curriculum design and refinement. Schools and clusters can engage with this model 
independently or with bespoke support from the CSC team.  

Bespoke support for is available to all schools and clusters/groups of schools, tailored to meet 
the needs of school leaders and practitioners to support school improvement priorities 
related to curriculum, teaching and assessment. During 20222-2023, CSC received 171 
requests for bespoke support related to these areas.  48 were related to schools in Bridgend. 

 

Page 309

https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/search?query=networks&sort=relevance&categories=26799779-fb9f-45fb-a863-59e7149763f3&strict=0&categories2=1e6961c1-dda9-4da5-9c2d-21784cadd7e3
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/articles/fc88c340-092a-4f81-b009-02ad2711d0f3
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/resource/3edeccc1-a5ea-4996-a7e5-7363eee83385/en/overview


32 
 

6.5.1  Curriculum for Wales (CFW)  

Improvement Partners (IPs) continue to support all schools in school improvement related to 
curriculum and the wider educational reforms.  This includes supporting improvement 
planning and self-evaluation activities related to CfW, signposting relevant CSC PL 
opportunities, and brokering bespoke support from the CSC curriculum and PL team.   

For all primary schools (all year groups), and special schools, the implementation of CfW 
commenced in September 2022.  Mandatory roll-out for secondary schools and PRUs 
commences with Year 7 and Year 8 in September 2023.  However, secondary schools and 
PRUs were given the option of rolling out to Year 7 in September 2022. Three of the secondary 
schools in Bridgend implemented CfW in Year 7 from September 2022. 

During 2022-2023, CSC provided detailed reports for each LA related to the school’s 
implementation, PL and support.  

 

Roll-out September 2022 

All nursery, primary and all-age schools across have designed, developed and implemented a 
curriculum considering the CfW framework and the needs of all learners. The curriculum in 
all these schools will be kept under review and further developed and refined through a range 
of activities within the school’s self-evaluation cycle. All these schools have published their 
curriculum summaries and nearly all have developed transition plans with their cluster.  

Six secondary schools in Bridgend designed, developed, and implemented a curriculum for 
Year 7 considering the CfW framework and the needs of all learners. They also designed, 
planned and triallied a curriculum for Year 8, with a view to year-on-year roll-out.  

These schools continue to further develop their approaches to curriculum, teaching and 
assessment as appropriate to their school vision, ensuring they are meeting the needs of their 
pupils in supporting learner progress.  

 

Roll-out September 2023  

During the 2022-2023 academic year, one PRU and three secondary schools in Bridgend 
designed, developed and trialled a curriculum for Years 7 and 8 for implementation in 
September 2023. During the summer term of 2023 each of the governing bodies 
(management committee in the case of the PRU) formally adopted their respective curricula, 
and curriculum summaries were published.  

The PRU and two of the non-roll-out secondary schools stated they were fully compliant with 
the mandatory elements of CfW for Years 7 and 8, whilst one secondary school acknowledged 
that they had further work to do in ensuring compliance with all mandatory elements. Two 
secondary schools stated they have minor work to do in further developing, trialling and 
finalising transition planning with their cluster. One school was further supported by their 
improvement partner and the CSC curriculum and PL team to achieve full legal compliance of 
their curriculum for autumn term 2023.  

 

 

Page 310



33 
 

6.5.2 Literacy / Languages, Literacy and Communications: English 

The CSC professional learning offer for Literacy/LLC: English continues to be strong. It 
supports schools to provide a curriculum that enables learners to be confident and critical 
receivers of language, through listening and reading, and effective producers of language, in 
speech and writing, which they can apply across all areas. 747 delegates from 224 (59%) 
schools in the region engaged in LLC PL programmes, events, conferences, assignments, and 
networks.  This included 118 delegates from 34 (57%) schools in Bridgend. 

 Table 14: Engagement in CSC LLC PL opportunities 2022-2023 

Bridgend  
Regional PL (excl. 

networks) 
Regional networks  

Regional funded 
collaboration projects  

No of practitioners 78 40 19 

No of schools 28 22 17 

% of schools 47% 37% 28% 

Bespoke support for Literacy/LLC: English is available to all schools and clusters/groups of 
schools. During 2022-2023, CSC received  requests for bespoke support from 31 schools in 
Bridgend related to this area.   

 

Whole school approach to oracy and reading 

Engagement with the Welsh Government whole school approach to oracy and reading is 
strong. Networks and online communities provide the vehicle for sharing the national toolkit 
and effective practice. In 2018 CSC has developed strategic and comprehensive plan to 
systematically improve provision for oracy. Since 2018 CSC has funded over 200 teachers to 
engage in professional learning facilitated by Voice 21. This has meant that each cluster has 
at least one ‘oracy champion’ to support oracy development. In addition to this currently CSC 
is funding 28 schools to work towards becoming an accredited centre of excellence with Voice 
21. This includes Pencoed, Coychurch and Oldcastle Primary Schools. In line with CSC’s ethos 
of a self-improving system these schools will support and develop oracy across the region.  

Support for reading has always been central to the CSC professional learning offer. The PL 
offer has breadth and depth drawing together the different strands that make for effective 
reading. It not only targets the teaching of reading from early reading through to text 
comprehension, but also addresses how building progression into a reading curriculum is vital 
to develop reading fluency, confidence, and resilience. Central to CSC reading support are a 
number of PL learning programmes: 

• Effective Teaching of Early Reading Skills - this PL programme supports foundation 
phase practitioners to strengthen their understanding of how to teach early reading 
skills in nursery and reception classes.  

• An Introduction to Guided Group Reading - this PL programme focuses on supporting 
the teaching of guided group reading.  

• Reading Reconsidered - this intensive PL programme comprises three full days of 

instructional and collaborative sessions to develop rigour, insight and precision in 

reading. The programme takes practitioners through evidence-informed actionable 

strategies to develop pedagogy and practice for reading. 

Page 311

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?categories=1fc1884a-1a2c-4b65-9f8f-758a34bce3b8&categories2=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&sort=recent&strict=0
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/resource/47e85d20-d538-4109-8645-b34c037d5dd5
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/resource/78914082-5b7f-4a00-8d88-33065a366f92
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/events/ac4948a8-d273-4f13-accb-e907ee044e8b


34 
 

• Developing a Rigorous Reading Curriculum - this PL programme supports practitioners 
to develop research informed strategies for curriculum planning and the teaching of 
reading. 

• Words Matter: Supporting the Teaching of Vocabulary - this PL programme includes 
demonstration of how explicit vocabulary instruction can become part of a repertoire 
of teaching practice which produces, enhances and accelerates the learning of the 
lesson. 

Table 15: Practitioner Engagement in CSC Oracy and Reading PL Programmes 2022-2023 
Synchronous 

 oracy PL 
Asynchronous 

oracy PL 
Synchronous 
 reading PL 

Asynchronous 
 reading PL 

7 5 8 13 

N.B. Synchronous PL is live and may be in-person or online. Asynchronous PL is online and on-
demand, which maybe pre-recorded sessions or assignments. 

 

In evaluations completed by practitioners upon completion of the programmes, the following 
was stated:  

• As a result of engaging with PL focused on LLC, nearly all (97%) participants considered 
that their knowledge had improved in some way.   

• 98% of practitioners intended to use learning from the programme, and over three 
quarters (79%) of practitioners reported that the learning from the programmes will result 
in a more fundamental change to practice.  (79%). 

• Most participants (96%) anticipated the PL would have an impact on learners in their 
setting, while many participants (79%) felt the PL would have a significant impact on 
learners in their setting.   

 

6.5.3  Mathematics and Numeracy 

During 2022-2023, CSC continued to offer a wide range of PL for mathematics & numeracy 
for schools to engage to meet their improvement needs in this area.  PL focused on the 
developing strategies to enhance the teaching of the Area of mathematics and numeracy, and 
the cross-curricular skill of numeracy, specifically:  

• Developing numeracy through the five proficiencies; 

• Using manipulatives to support mathematical understanding; 

• Teaching strategies to enhance reasoning and problem solving.  

• Strengthening numeracy across the curriculum; 

• Enhancing whole school strategic development of numeracy; and 

• Providing opportunities to share effective practice across the region. 

171 delegates from 26.8% (102) schools in the region engaged in PL programmes, events, 
conferences, assignments, and networks.  This included 25 delegates from 15 (25%) schools 
in Bridgend.  

 

 

Page 312

https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/resource/101493e8-dae3-4d5d-b42a-f49cfbc4c318
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/resource/a4d05560-8f44-488f-b172-69bc96f8852e
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=377034d2-b1df-4ed1-9310-8f6fca99d882&categories2=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0


35 
 

Table 16: Engagement in CSC Mathematics and Numeracy PL opportunities 2022-2023 

Bridgend  
Regional PL (excl. 

networks) 
Regional networks  

Regional funded 
collaboration projects  

No of practitioners 2 23 13 

No of schools 2 15 8 

% of schools 3.3% 25% 13.3% 

 
In evaluations completed by practitioners upon completion of the PL, the following was 
stated:  

• All delegates reported that PL event improved their knowledge of mathematics and 
numeracy. 

• Many delegates (88%) reported that engagement with mathematics and numeracy PL 
enhanced their knowledge and skills and agreed that it was appropriate to their needs 
and skill level.   

• Many participants (79%) anticipated the PL would have an impact on learners in their 
setting, and over half (58%) plan to meet with senior leaders to discuss the 
professional learning. 

 

Bespoke support for mathematics and numeracy is available to all schools and clusters/groups 
of schools. During 2022-2023, CSC received requests for bespoke support from 26 schools in 
Bridgend related to this Area.   

A dedicated online community for mathematics and numeracy continues to provide the 
opportunity for practitioners from across the CSC region to meet and share their practice and 
to develop their understanding of local, region and national priorities related to mathematics 
and numeracy.  

Cross regional working with the mathematics and numeracy teams from across Wales 
develops widescale shared understanding of progression and the five proficiencies within 
mathematics and numeracy and informs the creation of the regional PL offer.  

 

6.5.4  Digital Learning 

CSC continues to offer a comprehensive range of PL opportunities to all schools in enabling 
learners to be confident users of a range of technologies, from which they can apply and 
develop digital competence and proficiencies across all Areas.  

PL opportunities also supported practitioners to develop the effective use of technology to 
enhance learning and teaching.   

441 delegates from 143 (37%) schools in the region engaged in digital learning PL 
programmes, events, conferences, assignments, and networks.  This included 59 delegates 
from 23 (38%) of schools in Bridgend.  

 

 

Page 313

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=ccaa08e4-b54d-4ee2-a1da-4aeca3b0a71b&categories2=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=7a5abe46-dcea-49ef-ac8c-be582c951b2a&categories2=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0


36 
 

Table 17: Engagement in CSC Digital Learning PL opportunities 2022-2023 

Bridgend  
Regional PL (excl. 

networks) 
Regional networks  

Regional funded 
collaboration projects  

No of practitioners 36 23 3 

No of schools 16 13 3 

% of schools 26.7% 21.7% 5% 

 

In evaluations completed by practitioners upon completion of the PL, the following was 
stated:  

• Many practitioners (88%) intend to share their PL with colleagues, and many (84%) 
also state their intention to discuss PL with senior leaders in their schools.  

• Most participants (93%) reported the PL enhanced their knowledge of the subject 
matter. Many (86%) reported that the PL was appropriate to needs and skill level, and 
that it was relevant to their daily role.   

• Many practitioners (77%) planned to use what they had learned in their roles and most 
(93%) reported that the PL would lead to at least some change in their practice. 

 

Bespoke support for digital learning is available to all schools and clusters/groups of schools. 
During 2022-2023, CSC received requests for bespoke support from 15 schools in Bridgend 
related to this area.   

There are two dedicated PL areas on the CSC website for schools to access a wide variety of 
high-quality PL opportunities, networks, resources and support in Digital Competence and 
Digital Learning.   

Leaders and practitioners are encouraged to work together through networks and funded 
projects, leading to peer-to-peer learning, sharing of best practices, resources, and innovative 
ideas for incorporating cross-curricular digital skills across the curriculum.  

Partnerships with external organisations and industry professionals provide valuable 
opportunities for real-world application of digital skills and the promotion of the Hwb 
platform.  

CSC actively supports the cross-regional digital learning team who have developed collectively 
a national resource to further support schools plan for progression in cross-curricular digital 
skills. This strengthens the regional PL offer and promotion of the Hwb platform.  

 

6.5.5  Cymraeg - Welsh in Education  

Developing Welsh continues as a key priority for CSC and is essential in realising Our national 
mission: High standards and aspirations for all; Cymraeg 2050: A Million Welsh Speakers and 
the ambitious individual Local Authority Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (WESP) for 2022-
2032.  

Page 314

https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=ccaa08e4-b54d-4ee2-a1da-4aeca3b0a71b&strict=0
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=7a5abe46-dcea-49ef-ac8c-be582c951b2a&strict=0


37 
 

Since September 2022, high-quality PL and support for Welsh at CSC is provided within 3 
areas: 

• Welsh Development - Leadership of Welsh to include Welsh ethos, heritage and 
culture in both Welsh and English Medium schools, and special schools/PRUs. 
Developing the use of informal Welsh through the Siarter Iaith framework and Welsh 
across the curriculum in English medium schools.  

• Welsh Language Professional Learning – Supporting schools to plan Welsh language 
PL for practitioners strategically, and to report on practitioner Welsh language 
competence in the School Workforce Annual Census (SWAC) accurately. Developing 
the Welsh language skills of all practitioners and providing post-sabbatical support. 

• Language, Literacy and Communication (LLC): Cymraeg - PL and support for the 
teaching and learning of oracy, reading, writing along with curriculum development in 
Welsh and English medium schools. The cross-curricular skill of literacy (Welsh) in 
Welsh medium schools.  
 

All Cymraeg PL, support and resources from CSC can be found in this playlist.  

 

Welsh Development 

The leadership of Cymraeg is central to the CSC vision which is anchored in the progressive 
implementation of Siarter Iaith / Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus across all schools. A variety of 
PL programmes, networks and resources were provided to support schools to implement the 
Siarter Iaith Framework in all sectors, including special schools.  Collaboration is key and 
effective practice is recognised and shared. CSC works in partnership with practitioners to 
enrich the PL opportunities, e.g., creation of resources, sharing schools’ practice, etc. 

All schools have access to bespoke support to make progress along the Siarter Iaith 
Framework. Schools work towards progressive bronze, silver and gold awards and there is a 
clear verification process which is led by CSC officers and/or trained peer verifiers. There are 
clear guidelines for the verification process and successes are celebrated in a Regional Awards 
Ceremony.   

A successful Dragons’ Den project was funded with the aim of engaging Criw Cymraeg. An 
example of the impact of the project can be seen here. 

 

Table 18: Siarter Iaith / Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus Awards 2022-2023 

 Bronze Silver Gold 

CSC 47 28 8 

Bridgend 7 1 1 

 

During 2022-2023, 257 delegates from 155 (41%) schools in the region engaged in Welsh 
development PL programmes, events, conferences, assignments, and networks.  This 
included 43 delegates from 27 (45%) schools in Bridgend.  

 

Page 315

https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/resource/5455b827-645f-4fac-ba92-a0a5674bfdd1
https://hwb.gov.wales/siarter-iaith
https://hwb.gov.wales/api/storage/075c1fa4-4f3b-452f-9656-70abe3779804/48543_siarter_e_merged.pdf
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/playlists/view/4e222af3-225b-4ce7-b24e-f8f4d3ba5195/en/9?options=zO5PCQ7dFQsdcwS6OSKv6VeP%252FVjdQvC9xdYESFhC6MDr00us1dXy7ZEzKby6LmdKyXys6n5VrXBs6ioyWgZiWA%253D%253D
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/repository/resource/21b5332c-f24b-494d-a6fe-948a83af46a1
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/articles/b5ed57bc-dd7e-420b-8cb9-d3c5f521ef58
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/articles/b5ed57bc-dd7e-420b-8cb9-d3c5f521ef58
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/articles/2df66805-8972-4995-8811-7c86bae82b5a


38 
 

 

Table 19: Engagement in CSC Welsh development PL opportunities in 2022-2023 

Bridgend  
Regional PL (excl. 

networks) 
Regional networks  

Regional funded 
collaboration projects  

No of practitioners 13 30 9 

No of schools 9 22 7 

% of schools 15% 36.7% 11.7% 

 

Bespoke support for Welsh development is available to all schools and clusters/groups of 
schools. During 2022-2023, CSC received requests for bespoke support from 11 (18%) schools 
in Bridgend related to this area.  In addition to this specific bespoke support, CSC provides 
regular guidance and support for schools to implement and make progress with Siarter Iaith 
/ Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus.  

The Leadership of Welsh Programme continued to be offered during 2022-2023. It is designed 
to support senior leaders to develop the Welsh language and culture on a whole school 
strategic level.  16 schools across the region participated in this programme, two from 
Bridgend.  

In the programme evaluations:  

• Most stated that they have a clear pathway for developing the Welsh Language, 
heritage and culture appropriate to their context. 

• Most graded the degree to which the programme extended their skills and knowledge 
as 5/5. 

• Most rated the professional learning as 5/5.  

• Most stated that they have a robust understanding to lead Welsh successfully across 
their school and report that it will impact upon practice and behaviour. 

CSC funds a collaboration project between Welsh and English medium schools focused on the 
development of pupil’s oracy skills and use of incidental and informal Welsh.  During 2022-
2023, 17 schools in the region participated in this project, including four from Bridgend. 
Nearly all schools that participated in the project stated that it supported their PL positively 
as practitioners and is beginning to improve pupils’ Welsh oracy skills. Many schools report 
that they plan to continue collaborating beyond this funded project.  

 

Welsh language professional learning  

During 2022-2023, CSC continued to provide a range of Welsh language PL for practitioners 
in line with the Welsh Language Competency Framework. This included PL programmes, 
events and assignments.  

783 delegates from 186 (49%) schools in the region engaged in Welsh language PL. This 
included 124 delegates from 39 (65%) schools in Bridgend.  

In programme evaluations, most practitioners state that Welsh language PL will improve their 
Welsh language competence and skills and will change their behaviours and classroom 
practice. 

Page 316

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?categories=5701ee78-ee41-4abc-aa37-2c4d28aa0111&categories1=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&sort=recent&strict=0


39 
 

 

Table 20: Engagement in CSC Welsh language PL opportunities 2022-2023 

Bridgend  
Regional PL (excl. 

networks) 
Regional networks  

Regional funded 
collaboration projects  

No of practitioners 124 

n/a 

2 

No of schools 39 2 

% of schools 65% 3% 

 

Bespoke support for Welsh language PL is available to all schools and clusters/groups of 
schools. During 2022-2023, CSC received requests for bespoke support from 4 (7%) of schools 
in Bridgend related to this area.  

CSC works in partnership with the Sabbatical Scheme and Welsh Government to recruit 
practitioners strategically. During 2022-2023, 22 teachers from the CSC region participated in 
various sabbatical scheme courses, including six from schools in Bridgend. Post sabbatical 
support is provided by CSC to maximise the impact of practitioners upon their return to school 
e.g., introduction for headteachers, network meetings, one-to-one sessions, leadership of 
Welsh programme and collaboration opportunities.   

Nearly all practitioners state that the sabbatical scheme has significantly developed their 
Welsh language competence along with their pedagogical knowledge of effective language 
teaching. 

 

Languages, Literacy and Communication (LLC): Cymraeg 
CSC PL intends to ensure that all learners in English medium schools develop their language 
skills with a view to speaking Welsh with confidence on completing statutory education.  For 
Welsh medium schools, the intention is to support schools with the provision of Welsh 
literacy, ensuring that all learners develop their listening, reading, speaking, and writing skills 
in Welsh to access the breadth of a school’s curriculum, and develop communication skills 
that enable them to adapt and thrive in a modern Wales. 

• 39 practitioners from 26 English medium schools in the region engaged in LLC: 
Cymraeg PL for English medium schools. This included 3 practitioners from 2 schools 
in Bridgend. Additionally, 18 schools requested  bespoke support.  

• 85 practitioners from 31 Welsh medium schools in the region engaged in LLC: Cymraeg 
PL for Welsh medium schools. This included 11 practitioners from 3 schools in 
Bridgend. Additionally, 5 schools requested  bespoke support. 

• 11 practitioners from 3 schools in the region engaged in LLC: Cymraeg PL for dual 
language schools. 

The CSC Continuum of Welsh Language Patterns has been developed in accordance with CfW 
guidance and offers schools a linguistic foundation for designing their school level curriculum 
for Welsh in English medium schools. This continuum is a series of progressive and 
developmental language patterns. It has been divided into Progression Steps 1 to 3 in line 
with the Curriculum for Wales. Language patterns develop within each progression step as 
well as from one step to the next. 

Page 317

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/resource/f9c95586-92e5-49dc-bb57-91f829263c6f/en/overview


40 
 

The continuum was piloted with six schools across the region during 2022-2023. Afon-Y-Felin 
and Pencoed Primary Schools participated in this pilot. Feedback on the continuum was very 
positive, for example: 

“ We found it so easy to use. The hyperlinks are genius, and the appendices are so useful for 
both staff and pupil knowledge. It's going to make teaching & learning Welsh more accessible 
and improve teacher confidence. Diolch yn fawr”. 

“ Although we only used the document for a short period of time towards the end of the year, 
all staff in PS2 and PS3 were very positive about it and expressed relief, to see a layout and 
structure that worked for everyday classroom practise with more scaffold for not only children 
but staff too. A very positive initial response”. 

From September 2023, the continuum will be available to support all schools in the region 
and beyond. 

Network meetings for practitioners operate at a regional and cross regional level, designed in 
partnership with school-based lead practitioners where appropriate. In addition, CSC 
facilitates support for each local authority’s immersion centre through termly network 
meetings.  

Funded regional collaboration projects enabled schools to engage with co-construction of PL, 
which in turn forms part of the asynchronous offer to all schools in the region. A range of 
schools from CSC, including Maes yr Haul Primary School,  collaborated to produce 
exemplified support and guidance for the teaching of Welsh in an English medium school. 
Participating schools, indicated that they developed an improved understanding of effective 
curriculum design for pedagogy and language learning. Schools also fed back that the project 
impacted positively on both standards and engagement, for example:   

“The children have developed a much greater passion for learning Welsh, our culture and our 
country. The children use Welsh naturally around the school and enjoy listening to Welsh 
music artists. The whole school environment has become passionate about and promotes the 
development of the Welsh language”. 

“Confidence of teachers has grown in using the games and any barriers to playing the yard 
games have been removed, opportunities to play the games are regularly provided. Noticeable 
enjoyment of children engaging with the Welsh language through games. Criw Cymraeg 
enjoyed giving responsibility for the project and then seeing the positive impact on their peers’ 
enjoyment and Welsh language skills”. 

6.5.6 Other Curriculum Areas  

During 2022-2023, PL and bespoke support continued to be available from CSC to schools in 
all other areas of the curriculum, including: 

• Expressive arts 

• Humanities 

• Health and well-being 

• Science and technology 

• Relationships and sexuality education 

• Religion, values, and ethics 

• Careers and work-related experiences 
 

Page 318



41 
 

 

6.5.7 Qualifications and Post-16 Education 

Secondary schools are supported to develop their curriculum for current GCSE/level 2 and A-
Level/level 3 qualifications through regional networks.  Many networks are facilitated by Lead 
practitioners from across the region and encourage the sharing of practice.  Bespoke support 
is also available to all schools in the region where qualifications improvement priorities are 
not fully met by the available networks. Qualifications reform updates, opportunities for 
school participation and consultation communications from Qualifications Wales and WJEC 
were shared to all schools and cascaded through network conversations.  CSC area leads and 
representatives from schools across the region participated in stakeholder groups to support 
the development of the new Made-For-Wales GCSEs.  This work will continue into the next 
academic year as specifications are developed. In collaboration with WJEC, CSC will support 
ongoing PL requirements for leaders and practitioners for the revised specifications. 

PL and bespoke support continued to be available to all schools with sixth forms across the 
region. During 2022-2023, CSC PL focused on a culture of enquiry and collaboration to drive 
self-improvement in post-16 settings. Key areas included curriculum offer, self-evaluation, 
transition, retention, well-being, and learner progress.  

 

Table 21: Engagement in Post-16 PL 2022-2023 

Bridgend  
Regional PL Post 

16 
Regional PL 
Welsh Bacc. 

Regional funded 
collaboration 

projects  

National 
PL/Projects    

Post-16 

No of practitioners 11 12 5 1 

No of schools 5 6 5 1 

 

Through the funded project work, collaborating schools reported successful improvements in 
relation to the implementation of VESPA (Vision, Effort, Systems, Practice, Attitude) 
approaches to improve self-regulation and metacognition strategies and support learner 
progress and attainment. Bilingual resources were also developed via the project work to 
support all schools across Wales accessing the VESPA platform. Planning for learner well-
being has been supported through the inclusion of the Mental Health UK Bloom project.  

The Post-16 leaders network continues to be well-attended and supports schools’ broader 
awareness of national and regional priorities in the sector. Schools are encouraged to share 
approaches and effective practice during the sessions. 51 delegates from 19 schools in the 
region engaged in this network. This included 10 delegates from five schools in Bridgend.  

The Welsh Baccalaureate/Skills Challenge Certificate network meetings were available for all 
qualification levels. 27 delegates from 13 schools in the region engaged in this network. This 
included 12 delegates from six schools in Bridgend.  WJEC regional support officers attended 
CSC meetings to share updates and resources, and support qualification reform. Bespoke 
support was available in this area through the appointed CSC Welsh Baccalaureate/Skills 
Challenge Certificate lead practitioner. 

Page 319

https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/events/b3985e33-ab95-4d71-ba72-5216d96fc854
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/events/42a7eb09-395d-4b71-a36e-3c900b6c6d6c


42 
 

The Post-16 Education: Newly Qualified Teacher Module (NQT) has been created cross 
regionally as an optional module for the National NQT induction programme. The module 
highlights how post-16 education differs from other phases of education, the key priorities 
for this phase of education and the importance of effective transition (post-16 and post-18) 
to support learner aspiration and destinations. This is hosted on the Welsh Consortia website. 

CSC takes a lead role in the cross-regional PL programme. The National Post-16 Leadership 
Development Programme attracts aspiring, new and established post-16 leaders from across 
Wales, where 12 CSC school leaders have enrolled for 2023-24 to date. A joint Post-16 PL 
programme has also been developed to reflect national priorities and collaboration across 
Wales which will begin in the 2023-24 academic year. 

 

 

7.0  Equity and Vulnerable Learners  

Central South Consortium continues to work in partnership with local authorities and other 
stakeholders to support equity in all schools across the region, with high standards and 
aspirations for all. A key driver to this work is the fostering of effective partnership with key 
stakeholders across the local authorities to support schools work on areas including 
attendance, exclusions, looked after children and well-being.  

CSC has also worked effectively with the Implementation Lead for the Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Health Board on supporting schools in their work on the ‘Framework on embedding a whole-
school approach to emotional and mental wellbeing’. CSC have also delivered professional 
learning sessions for  governors to support the understanding of the requirements for the 
schools in adopting the statutory framework. 6 governors from Bridgend attended these 
sessions.  

CSC has facilitated PL sessions focused on equity and vulnerable learners. This included within 
the professional pathway’s programmes, including Aspiring Headteacher and Aspiring Higher 
Level Teaching Assistant Development programmes.  

The Lead for Well-being and Vulnerable Groups continues to provide bespoke support to 
individual schools and clusters focused on equity and vulnerable learners.   

The Lead for Well-being and Vulnerable Groups continues to provide bespoke support to 
individual schools and clusters focused on equity and vulnerable learners.    

CSC receives PDG Grant funding for the following areas:   
• Looked after Children aged 3- 15     
• PDG Adviser   
• Consortia Led Funding   

Previously, CSC has provided regional PL opportunities specifically aimed to support Looked 
After Children.  However, since 2022, this funding has been allocated to the individual LAs to 
provide bespoke professional learning for schools focusing specifically on the needs of that 
LA.  This ensures local knowledge of the needs of schools in LAs is provided and removes any 
duplication of support.  

 

 

Page 320

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/welsh-education-consortia-eng/post-16-learning/post-16-education-newly-qualified-teacher-module?authuser=0
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/welsh-education-consortia-eng/post-16-learning/post-16-leadership-development-programme?authuser=0
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/welsh-education-consortia-eng/post-16-learning/post-16-leadership-development-programme?authuser=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk%2Frepository%2Fresource%2F5022f9af-4aca-4e03-a4e2-1d9943600de5%2Fen%2Foverview&data=05%7C01%7CEmma.Lloyd%40cscjes.org.uk%7C1b3315f1dc6f4f41102d08dbc00b4c81%7C4f3f0e52b734416494091b601d147993%7C0%7C0%7C638314927014734140%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fLhwj%2BsS4qcwSsdMPNhlfRlp2iOwXjZQgVFc4NmAgX8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk%2Frepository%2Fresource%2F5022f9af-4aca-4e03-a4e2-1d9943600de5%2Fen%2Foverview&data=05%7C01%7CEmma.Lloyd%40cscjes.org.uk%7C1b3315f1dc6f4f41102d08dbc00b4c81%7C4f3f0e52b734416494091b601d147993%7C0%7C0%7C638314927014734140%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fLhwj%2BsS4qcwSsdMPNhlfRlp2iOwXjZQgVFc4NmAgX8%3D&reserved=0


43 
 

7.1  Enabling Equity and Excellence  

The CSC ‘Enabling Equity and Excellence’ document aims to promote thought and discussion 
amongst a school community, to ask pertinent questions as to how equitable the organisation 
is, and how effective it is in transforming policy into practice to ensure excellence for all 
learners.  
All schools must ask:  
• Do we know every learner well?  
• How do we know about them?  
• What experiences, knowledge and skills do they bring? 

Over 70% of school in the region have reported engagement with the document to support 
their school improvement.  

During 2022-2023, CSC led a collaboration project involving 11 schools from across the five 
local authorities focusing on an element of enabling equity and excellence linked to their 
school improvement priorities. The Bridge Alternative Provision and Coety Primary School 
participated in this structured programme which included face-to-face PL sessions, 
intersessional tasks and some peer reviews. The pilot supported schools to manage change 
according to their individual contexts, draw on the expertise and support of CSC and the LAs, 
and learn from the experiences of other schools in the mission to achieve equity and 
excellence for all learners.  The work of the pilot group was also instrumental in supporting 
and informing the work of CSC in supporting equity in schools and driving transformational 
change across the organisation.  

 

7.2  Pupil Development Grant (PDG) 

April 2022 – March 2023, the PDG was allocated to schools at a rate of £1,150 per learner to 
support: 

• Learners who are eligible for free school meals (e-FSM) and who are educated in 
maintained schools. 

• Eligible learners aged 3 and 4 years old educated in maintained schools.   

• Eligible learners who are singly registered in pupil referral units (PRUs) and education 
other than at school (EOTAS). 

• Eligible learners in early years settings where the Foundation Phase is delivered. 

• Looked after children, and former looked after children who have been adopted from 
care or who are subject to a special guardianship or residence order aged 3-15. 

The allocations were based on Pupil Level Annual School Census (PLASC) 2021.  

 

All schools continue to be supported by their Improvement Partner (IP) to ensure that the 
PDG plan/strategy is appropriate and meets the bespoke needs of their eFSM learners and in 
accordance with the eight focus areas stated in the Welsh Government Guidance:  

• High quality learning and teaching - with a particular focus on the pedagogy used by 
teachers, the role of support staff and the professional learning provided for 
practitioners. 

Page 321



44 
 

• Community schools - with a particular emphasis on the role of Family Engagement 
Officers, the role of the school within the wider community and work with other 
children’s and family agencies. 

• Early childhood education and care, developing the long-term vision to ensure equity 
and quality for our youngest learners wherever they access education or care which 
supports their learning and development.  

• The health and well-being of children and young people - in line with the Framework 
on Embedding a Whole-School Approach to Emotional and Mental Well-being. 

• Developing high aspirations through strong relationships - aligned to the role of the 
Careers Service, the Youth Engagement and Progression Framework, the Young 
Person’s Guarantee, and the Seren Network. 

• The Curriculum for Wales and qualifications - focusing on the importance of language 
development, meta-cognition and self-regulation as being key enablers of success 
within the new curriculum and offering learners a wide range of qualification routes. 

• Leadership - focusing on its importance in overcoming the impact of poverty on 
attainment and the leadership of community schools. 

• Post-16 progression- through forging strong partnerships with further education 
institutions, work-based learning providers and other post-16 providers. 

 
Summary of the analysis PDG plans/strategies of schools in Bridgend for 2022/23 (not 
including schools who do not engage with their IP due to action short of strike.  

• Most schools (94%) have an appropriate PDG plan / strategy that meets the needs 
of eFSM learners across the school.  In a minority of schools (6%), the plans are 
deemed as developing.  

 

• The PDG plan has resulted in change in practice or provision in many schools (88%).  
The grant has not result in any changes in practice of provision in a few schools 
(12%).   

• PDG funding has been effective in improving learner well-being in most of the 
schools in Bridgend (92%).  In very few schools in Bridgend (8%), this aspect is 
developing.  

• In many of the schools (76%), the PDG funding has been effective in improving 
achievement of eFSM pupils.  In a minority of schools (24%), this aspect is 
developing.   

• In many of the schools (80%), their self-evaluation and MER activities support 
vulnerable learner progress.  In a few schools (20%) this aspect is developing.   

• In a many of the schools (84%), the teaching and learning of vulnerable pupils is 
effective.  In a minority of schools (16%) this area is developing.  

• Many schools (72%) are effective in being poverty aware. A minority of schools (28%) 
are developing this area.  

• Many schools (78%) are effective in addressing the attendance and exclusion needs 
of eFSM pupils.  In a minority (22%) of schools, this aspect is developing.   

 

Page 322



45 
 

Strong practice noted included:  

• Effective use of Family Liaison Officers to work with targeted families; 

• Graduated systems in place when attendance is below average; 

• Bespoke programmes and intervention to avoid excluding vulnerable groups; 

• Careful monitoring of pupil attendance; and 

• Staff accessing professional learning.  
 

CSC continues to work with the LA leads for looked after children (LAC), including the virtual 
headteachers and the LAC Coordinators, to support the planning and evaluation of the PDG 
LAC grant. Looked After Children in Education (LACE) meetings have taken place regularly.  In 
response to feedback from cluster leads, amendments have been made to LAC cluster plans 
and evaluations. 

CSC facilitated LA cluster leads meetings within each LA to identify PL needs. As part of the 
quality assurance processes the CSC Lead ensured that all cluster plans had been received and 
approved. This process will continue in 2023-24.  

 

7.3  Raising the Attainment of Disadvantaged Youngsters (RADY)  

A significant number of disadvantaged learners in the region are not realising their potential 
outcomes. In 2021/22, following discussions with the local authority, CSC engaged 
Challenging Education to facilitate the RADY Programme in targeted schools. Coleg 
Cymunedol Y Dderwen and Ysgol Maesteg have participated in this programme. 

RADY is a support programme for schools to mitigate the impact of poverty and disadvantage 
for identified learners through an equity approach. The principles of RADY support the 
regional approach to achieving equity as set out in CSC’s Enabling Equity and Excellence 
document, and links to the Equity and Well-being priority area of CSC’s business plan.  The 
RADY programme has also supported Bridgend’s improvement priority, ‘to ensure all 
vulnerable children and young people receive the right support and are able to maximise their 
potential in schools in Bridgend’.  

 

RADY is a long-term school improvement strategy. It facilitates cultural change, a hearts and 
minds approach. It focuses on supporting schools to become equitable in all aspects of the 
education they provide, ensuring that those learners who need it most get the extra support 
required to succeed.  

RADY consists of a range of strategies which focus on disadvantage and disadvantaged pupils 
in schools. These start with what Challenging Education term the ‘uplift’, a mechanism for 
raising the targets, and subsequently the aspirations, set for pupils from disadvantaged 
backgrounds. This catalyst is applied at the start of a phase of education, supporting long-
term strategies to ensure the ‘extra’ makes life-changing differences to these pupils.   

After applying the catalyst, schools on their RADY journey integrate the RADY principles as a 
‘golden thread’ through their school development plan. This is to ensure that equity is 
embedded in all aspects of school life, ensuring every member of staff has an understanding 
and commitment to an equitable approach.  

Page 323



46 
 

All participating schools have received visits from RADY consultants. The consultants work 
with senior leaders in each school to develop the conditions required for effective cultural, 
policy and practice change to affect equitable provision and outcomes for all learners.  

All schools in the RADY programme also have access to an online suite of practical resources, 
‘Thinking Differently’. These resources on the areas of pedagogy, metacognition, and family 
and community engagement aimed specifically at eFSM learners. These resources are also 
available to all schools across the authority.  

To date, impact has been recognised in the participating schools where the school leadership 
is strong and stable. In these schools, leaders have the demonstrated the vision, drive, 
commitment, and capacity to engage purposefully with RADY, and enact the RADY principles 
to provide equitable experiences for disadvantaged learners. It is reported that as a result, 
the culture and ethos of the school has been affected powerfully by the RADY programme. 
 

8.0 CSC CONTRIBUTION TO SUPPORTING LA PRIORITIES (APRIL 2023 – OCTOBER 2023) 

As part of CSC’s business planning process, Bridgend provides CSC with their priorities in the 
Spring Term 2022, and these were built into CSC’s business plan for 2022/23.  As agreed by 
CSC’s Joint Committee, CSC provide an update on progress supporting Bridgend’s priorities 
on a twice-yearly basis.  
 

[See Appendix B for a detailed evaluation of the progress that has been made as well as an 

update on how CSC are supporting Bridgend’s priorities].  

Page 324



47 
 

9.0 VALUE FOR MONEY 

The consortium’s funding is made up of two principal sources:  

• Core Local Authority funding with individual Local Authority contributions.  

• Dedicated funding for schools and school improvement activities routed through 

consortia by Welsh Government. Major Welsh Government grants, such as the Regional 

Consortia School Improvement grant (RCSIG), are administered by consortia and 

delegated to schools via Local Authorities.  Consortia retain elements of the grants 

(amounts set in the terms and conditions of each grant) on a regional basis to support 

local and national school improvement priorities. 

9.1  Efficient Use of Core Contributions 

In line with the legal agreement between the five local authorities making up Central South 

Consortium, Local Authorities commission CSC to provide a school improvement service 

predominantly funding Improvement Partners to work with schools. 

In 2022-23, the consortium received £3,624,875 contributions from the five Local Authorities 

across the region. The funding was used to support the core function of school improvement. 

The budget provided to CSC by Bridgend represents 0.4 % of Bridgend’s total education  

budget in 2022/23 and 2.4 % of the budget retained by the LA. 

During 2022/23 Bridgend contributed £554,243 core funding to CSC. This core funding is 

determined using the Indicator Based Assessment for education (IBA) and agreed by Joint 

Committee.  In 2022/23, Bridgend contributed 15% of CSC’s core budget. 

For every £1 of core budget received from Local Authorities, 71 pence is spent on front line 

delivery. 

To realise our joint ambitions for the region’s learners, the core funding provided by LAs is 

used to provide: 

• Principal Improvement Partners (LA) 

• Improvement Partners 

• Business Intelligence Unit (BIU) 

• Information Management 

• Communications Team 

• Governor Support 

• Finance Team 

• Outdoor Education 

• SACRE (Standing Advisory Councils for Religious Education) 

• Project Management 
 
Summaries of the work provided in the areas listed above to support Bridgend and Bridgend 
schools, can be found here. 
 

Page 325

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/resource/8dd66ad8-daf0-4bb0-87e6-d2b074096f39/en/overview


48 
 

9.2 Local Authority Annex 

During the 2022-23 financial year, the Bridgend LA Annex Total Budget of £19,265 was used 
for the following priorities: 
 
Support the implementation of the local authority’s post-inspection action plan and its 
three strategic education priorities (i.e. safety, wellbeing and literacy) 
 

• The local authority makes effective progress in meeting its strategic priorities as identified 
in the Education & Family Support Directorate's business plan.  Progress is subject to 
regular monitoring of impact. 

• Schools review the literacy progress of learners using a range of evidence and have 
identified appropriate areas for literacy priorities within their strategic plans.  

• Bespoke support has been brokered for schools as identified through their self-evaluation 
and monitoring processes.  

• Schools access professional learning to support their improvement planning. 

• The progress and impact of the literacy strategic priorities are monitored regularly with 
levels of support refined appropriately. 

• A safeguarding Board has been established within the directorate to support safeguarding 
activity including a programme of review of policies.  

• Safeguarding audits and reviews held with all schools to identify issues and focus for 
support. 

• Schools have been supported in their self-evaluation and strategic planning processes to 
identify appropriate pupil and staff wellbeing priorities for development that are 
monitored for impact regularly. 

• The whole school approach to emotional and mental wellbeing is being developed as 
appropriate within schools and in line with the Welsh Government Framework.   

 
Support the implementation of the Expressive Arts area of Curriculum for Wales in 
alignment with the National Music Plan.  Offer targeted training to school-based staff. 
 

• Training programmes for practitioners were developed and delivered to support the 
teaching of expressive arts.  

• A 'new expressive arts experience' programme for all year 3 pupils in the local authority 
was piloted with positive feedback.  

• A recruitment exercise took place to increase capacity within the team to deliver on the 
musical instrument ‘First experiences’ programme. 

• New instruments were purchased and asset tracked to support the delivery of the music 
programmes.   

 
 
For the 2023-24 financial year, the Bridgend LA Annex Total Budget of £14,916 is targeted for 
the following priorities: 
 
LA Priority from SER/PIAP 2023 - 2024 
To support the implementation of the Education and Family Support Directorate’s Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 with a focus on Themes 5, 6 and 7. 

Page 326



49 
 

• Co-ordination of the Team Bridgend networking groups to support the development 
of distributed leadership. 

• Support communication between local authority, schools and Central South 
Consortium (for example, professional learning offer). 

• Support the sharing of effective practice across the local authority and region. 
 
Outcome Measure 
The local authority makes effective progress in meeting its strategic priorities (as identified in 
the Education and Family Support Directorate Strategic Plan 2023-2026). 
 
 
9.3 Added Value: Grant Funding 

LAs fund the core budget for CSC and this represents less than 4% of the total budget available 

to CSC in 2022-2023.  Additional funding is received from Welsh Government via specific grant 

funding streams. With the launch of the national strategy, ‘Education for Wales: Our National 

Mission’, WG streamlined the grant funding processes. During 2022-2023, only three grants 

were received by consortia: Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant (RCSIG), Pupil 

Development Grant (PDG), and Siarter Iaith.  

CSC adds value to the school improvement service commissioned by LAs by using elements of 

the above grants to fund CSC’s delivery strategy of the Central South Wales Challenge as well 

as commission work and support packages for schools across the region. These funds are 

allocated according to the needs of individual schools, LAs, the region and nationally (as 

outlined in section 6.0 above) and are provided by the curriculum and professional learning 

team. 

In 2022-23, the following funding was received: 

Table 22: WG Grant Funding 

Grant Total Delegated to 
LAs/schools 

Centrally 
retained 

£ £ £ 

RCSIG  48,891 43,687 5,204 

Siarter Iaith 43,484 43,174 310 

PDG 78 0 78 

Total 92,453 86,861 5,592 

 

Elements of the above grants were used to commission work and support packages for 
schools across the region. These funds were allocated according to the needs of individual 
schools, LAs, the region and nationally. Initiatives have been split below across the key 
enabling objectives included in the WG ‘Education in Wales: Our National Mission’ report: 

Page 327



50 
 

 

Table 23: Expenditure of the Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant by LA in 2022-23 

Cost Category Outturn 
2022-23 

 City & 
County 
of Cardiff 

Bridgend 
CBC 

Vale of 
Glam CBC 

Merthyr 
CBC 

RCT  
CBC 

£ £ £ £ £ 

36.59 15.29 14.83 6.33 26.96 

 

Curriculum & 
assessment 

0  0 0 0 0 0 

Developing a high-
quality education 
profession 

38,301 12,917 4,827 5,914 4,829 9,815 

Leadership 172 27 36 39 22 48 

Strong and inclusive 
schools committed to 
excellence equity & 
wellbeing 

43,174  19,795 5,889 3,350 2,071 12,069 

Supporting a self-
improving system 

5,214  1,784 826 788 344 1,471 

Total 86,861  24,524 11,578 10,090 7,266 23,403 

% spend received   39.75 13.33 11.62 8.37 26.94 

 
Bespoke Support Budget 
 
In addition to the above funding, CSC has also developed a process for supporting vulnerable 
schools which are identified within the financial year. IPs are able to coordinate support for 
schools that are most in need, examples of support may include a Regional Leader for 
Governance or a System Leader for a specific number of days, supply cover to release staff 
for professional learning or funding for a lead practitioner. 
 
During 2022/2023 a budget of just over £145k was available to support schools across the 

region.  Schools within Bridgend LA received £2,200 of the available budgets representing 

1.5% of the total budget available.   

The impact of the activities funded by this budget is evaluated by the school and the individual 

Improvement Partner, and, where appropriate, included within local authority information 

reports. 

Page 328



51 
 

Case Study:  Bespoke Support Funding Example 
 
School A 
All foundation phase staff engaged with regional professional learning to develop their 
knowledge and understanding of effective outdoor learning in the foundation phase.  The 
school foundation phase lead received in school support from the CSC foundation phase 
lead to support their leadership role and develop an improvement plan for the school on 
effective learning environments and outdoor learning.  The school also received support 
from an enhanced lead practitioner to monitor improvements and ensure the planned 
progress and impact was achieved.   
Impact 

• Professional learning for all staff provided a shared understanding and guidance 
materials shared with all staff supported their ongoing developments. 

• School leaders have a clear vision for improvement and a purposeful plan to achieve 
this. 

• A consistent and progressive approach was developed across the foundation phase 
and was consistently monitored. 

• A more effective learning provision across the foundation phase enabled learner 
engagement and pupil independence to be developed.   
 

 

Curriculum Reform and Development 
 

CSC supports schools in all areas of curriculum reform with the aim of realising our National 
Mission of ‘strong and inclusive schools committed to excellence equity and wellbeing’.  This 
includes working with the other regional consortia and partnerships, local authorities, 
external agencies, and schools to develop national and regional events, programmes, support 
and guidance for practitioners and school, leaders, including governors.  

The PL opportunities are wide ranging and comprehensive, with Curriculum for Wales 
embedded throughout. The CSC team provide and broker specialist bespoke support to 
clusters, groups of schools and individual schools to meet their specific improvement needs. 

9.4 Collaborative Advantage 

This can be defined as the additional benefits of working as a region when compared to 

working at either local authority or individual school level.  By working collectively, schools 

have been able to build capacity within the system by training staff and sharing practice. 

The Central South Wales Challenge (CSWC) is a partnership of all schools in the region working 

together to develop a self-improving system. This is based on improvement being driven for 

schools by schools. It provides delivery structures and networks through which most regional 

professional learning opportunities are offered. 

Collaborative working underpins the CSWC. Cluster working has formed a significant 

workstream for all area this year in line with the requirements of the Curriculum for Wales. 

This has facilitated collaborations between schools and built significant capacity within 

those clusters that have engaged. There are multiple examples of where lead practitioners 

Page 329

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/self-improving-system


52 
 

have been used effectively to support the system and provide additional capacity. In nearly 

all cases, projects have led to improvements for at least the practitioners/schools involved, 

and in the best cases, offered resource to the region overall. 

However, significant budgetary pressures and capacity of schools are becoming an 

increasing barrier to collaborative working.  

Specific details regarding the engagement of Bridgend schools with the CSWC can be found 

in section 6.0. 

9.5 Additional Examples of Value for Money 

In addition to how CSC provides evidence of the efficient use of resources as well as how 

added value and collaborative advantage are supported, CSC is also able to provide evidence 

of value for money in several other areas. 

Equity 

CSC provides a universal service to all schools which includes: 

• A named Improvement Partner who monitors and reviews the progress of each 
individual school against their agreed evidence-based improvement criteria. 

• All schools will be identified as needing core or enhance support. Enhanced support 
offers additional monitoring and review for schools that have specific challenges. 

• IPs broker and monitor any additional support ensuring that all schools have the right 
support to address their needs as well and prevent any potential issues from impacting 
on learners. 

• Support for governors to carry out HT performance management in line with national 
guidance.  

• Governors have access to all mandatory training, and this is supported by additional 
training and support. The role of Governors across CSC has been enhanced with the 
reestablishment of the Governors Steering Group on our governance structure and 
the establishment of Regional Leaders of Governance. 

• Additional support and training is provided to IPs to ensure they can reach the 
internationally recognised AOEA standards, demonstrating that our staff have the 
skills, knowledge, and experience to support schools. 

• In addition, where further support is required (either identified by CSC, the LA or 
Estyn, a tiered package of further improvement challenge and monitoring will be 
provided depending on the level of concern registered.  This additional intervention 
will be focused on schools in most need of support irrespective of in which authority 
they reside. 

• IPs coordinate and broker the support going into schools ensuring that it is appropriate 
to need and that it is addressing a key school/departmental priority. 

• School progress is monitored termly in all schools and half termly in schools with 
additional concerns. 

 

 

 

Page 330



53 
 

Economy 

The national model of regional working was published in 2015 and recommended CSC receive 

£5.4m to fund the school improvement serviced on behalf of the five LAs.  In 2022/23 CSC 

budget was £3.6m 

CSC have worked to ensure that costs are minimised without reducing the quality of service 

provided.  Over the period since the inception of CSC, further efficiency savings have been 

identified, enabling core contributions to CSC to be reduced without affecting the quality of 

service provided. 

All curriculum & professional learning areas can offer assurance of their financial spend and 

a clear rationale for decisions. These spends are carefully monitored through CSC area 

operational plans and robust financial processes. All area leads carefully manage their 

resources to balance the needs of the system, to be as strategic and proactive as possible 

whilst ensuring the ability to be agile to respond to PL and support needs as they arise. 

Some recurrent bespoke support has been shaped into programmes demonstrating that 

evaluation is being used to shape future work and best manage human resource to create 

greater economy. 

  

There are many examples where regional collaboration projects have offered highly 

effective professional learning and provided learning and resource for the system suggesting 

effective spend of resource to provide greater economy. 

 

However, significant budgetary pressures may become a barrier to delivery of a 

comprehensive offer and funding for regional collaborative activities.    

Sustainability 

The definition of sustainable is something that can be continued or a practice that can be 

maintained over time once the resource from CSC (whether financial or leadership) is 

removed. CSC has developed a sustainable strategy for collaboration in the Central South 

Wales Challenge (CSWC).   

There is a significant amount of high-quality PL and support at the point of delivery, both in 

intensive and less intensive forms. All areas can detail strong examples of intensive forms of 

PL and support that have developed capacity of practitioners and groups of practitioners 

within a school or cluster.  In the bespoke support, coaching or mentoring ensures that 

action is taken as a result of the professional learning, though this is either less developed in 

the less intensive forms or less known about. When practitioners are supported to apply 

their learning, the feedback is consistently positive. 

Leadership is often the main development need and relies upon middle leaders operating in 

a wider learning organisation for changes to be realised. To ensure sustainability, a further 

focus on the development of knowledge and skills of middle leaders is required to lead 

change following their engagement in PL and support.  

Page 331



54 
 

Efficiency 

As a region, CSC is able to take advantage of economies of scale and can therefore provide a 

full and comprehensive professional learning offer across all areas of school improvement.  In 

addition, CSC is provided with Welsh Government grant funding to ensure full coverage of 

support across all AoLEs within the new curriculum. 

The website developed by CSC ensures schools have access to resources and a comprehensive 

professional learning offer in one site.  This is complemented by the website specifically for 

Curriculum for Wales which can be accesses from the main CSC website.   

A comprehensive communication strategy is also in place to ensure schools receive timely 

and appropriate communications aligned to need. 

A strength of the PL offered to schools is the wide range of PL and support opportunities - 

programmes, projects, networks and bespoke support - available to all practitioners and 

school leaders across the region. In addition, the breadth of topics on offer receives positive 

feedback. Practitioners report that they value the range and breadth of PL that they can 

engage with which implies efficiency in terms of scope and scale. A summary of the support 

provided to the region can also be found in the professional learning compendium. 

  

All CSC areas can clearly articulate their approach to PL, and why they have selected each 

aspect they have included in the offer. Strong examples of CSC self-evaluation shaping the 

PL offer are evident. In nearly all areas, there is clear thought about how the PL is designed 

to be taken to scale, either by a practitioner within a school or regionally.  

Effectiveness 

Within the 2022-23 Annual Financial Year Report, CSC provided evidence to support the 

achievement of outcomes and the impact of the work.  During recent LA inspections of LAs, 

Estyn reported that  

“The local authority has established strong working relationships with principal improvement 

partners from the regional consortium and there are robust processes for the support and 

challenge to schools causing concern.”  

 
“…improvement partners provide a sound evaluation of progress based on first-hand evidence 
of provision and leadership in these schools…”  
 

In addition, during 2022/23 there were 278 priorities within schools in Bridgend LA. By the 

end of the academic year 273 priorities were deemed to be on track with 5 not on track.  

 

The CSC professional learning opportunities available to all schools across the region is 
comprehensive and is consistently of good quality according to the National Academy for 
Educational Leadership (NAEL) hallmarks for professional learning. This demonstrates that 
the component parts of the PL offer are effective.  
 

Page 332

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/csc-design-thinking/home?pli=1
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/resource/8ff00882-01d5-483f-9aad-fc1e0d7d927c/en/overview


55 
 

Evaluation from a wide variety of feedback confirms strongly that the PL opportunities 
provide significant school improvement opportunities through a structured and 
comprehensive approach. Many PL resources developed by the team across all areas well 
received by schools and used to good effect, promoting efficient sharing of learning. There is 
more evidence of impact in the more intensive programmes of PL and bespoke support than 
in some of the less intensive PL opportunities (e.g. one-off events etc.). This is attributable 
to the proportional approach to support and evaluation in each activity. Overall, the quality 
of the cluster bespoke support is reported to have a significant impact on curriculum 
development. 
 
CSC offers high quality PL and support, however, for this to effect school improvement, the 
conditions of the school need to allow this learning to be implemented by practitioners.  
Also, where appropriate, the learning taken to scale across departments, phases and the 
whole school.  There is an appetite from practitioners for less intensive episodes of PL which 
are more time efficient to engage with but may lack depth of knowledge and skill 
development. This does not align to the indicators of effective professional learning. 
 

Quality 

All CSC school improvement colleagues have a depth of knowledge and expertise which is 

supplemented with extensive professional learning to ensure the highest quality of support 

to schools. 

In addition, all IPs are working towards an internationally recognised AoEA standard 

demonstrating that CSC staff have the skills, knowledge, and experience to support schools. 

To ensure the ongoing quality of this service, a comprehensive professional learning offer is 

in place to ensure school improvement professionals are well trained (as well as experienced) 

and able to support schools across the region.  This is supported by an extensive quality 

assurance programme which feeds into the performance development or probation 

arrangements for individual IPs.  

All PL and support is of high quality according to the NAEL hallmarks. All areas are able to 

demonstrate how the PL and support in their area aligns to the professional standards for 

teaching and leadership. Also, how the PL and support promotes and enables schools to 

develop as learning organisations. Academic research, coupled with organisational 

experience and expertise, underpins all decisions, aligned to national policy in their plans. 

Learning from activities is shared with practitioners who are interested and engaged in the 

focus areas. 

The Bridgend IP Team (primary and secondary IPs) meet regularly in a school setting to share 

effective practice that has been identified in the school, to enhance the understanding of how 

different schools in the local authority are approaching educational reform and meeting the 

needs of their learners.  The meetings also provide opportunities to share information and 

strategies to support the local authority education priorities.   

 

Page 333



56 
 

Added Value 

Curriculum areas enact their work as part of a longer-term strategic plan which may span 

multiple years as part of a coherent theory of change. For any new or innovative activity 

that has been developed, leads can explain how these fit within their vision and priorities 

for improvement. In the majority of cases there are clear examples of new strategies being 

used to accelerate school improvement. 

However, the pressures to demonstrate significant impact on school improvement within 

one year can influence the planned activities. One year is often not enough time of a 

measure of value if work is sitting in a longer-term strategic plan.  

 

 

Page 334



57 
 

10.0 SHARING OF PRACTICE 

 

  

P
age 335



58 
 

11.0 CONCLUSIONS 

CSC has developed a framework for self-evaluation based upon the guidance provided by 

Estyn on the Inspection of Local Authorities.  

As a result of extensive self-evaluation activity, strengths and areas of development are 

identified.  From this analysis, a series of focus areas are identified for inclusion within the 

planning for 2023-24. 

Self-evaluation activity has continued across the organisation to ensure any areas of 

development identified because of evaluation activity, is incorporated into the planning 

cycles. 

11.1 Leadership and Safeguarding within CSC as an organisation. 

Strengths include: 

• Leaders / Managers have established a clear vision involving all stakeholders over time, 

which encompasses partnership working. 

• Local Authority strategic priorities embedded into the CSC Business Plan. 

• Strong strategic partnerships with stakeholders. 

• Leaders incorporate feedback to improve quality of provision and processes. 

• Effective induction programme results in staff being well placed to work effectively with 

schools. 

• High expectations to engage in Professional Learning developed to support individual and 

regional priorities. 

• Transparent robust financial management (as confirmed by Audit Wales). 

• Maximisation of grant funding to schools / Regional formula for distribution of grant 

funding to schools. 

Areas to develop include: 

• Further developing professional relationships with elected members / officers in local 

authorities. 

• Embedding the evaluation framework. 

• Continue to rationalise the reporting to stakeholders to ensure information shared is 

effective in meeting their needs. 

• Embedding risk management processes. 

• Promotion of equality diversity & inclusion. 

• Continue to develop processes to support staff wellbeing & healthy cultures. 

• Embedding working practices and quality assurance programmes. 

• Evaluation, outcome and impact of internal Professional Learning and Performance 

Development. 

• Safer recruitment practices. 

 

 

Page 336



59 
 

11.2 Professional Learning 

Strengths include: 

• A wide variety of quality professional learning opportunities aligned to local, regional 
and national needs and along all milestones of the professional pathway from newly 
qualified teacher to experienced headteacher.  

• Equity of access to high-quality professional learning for all practitioners and school 
leaders, including governors.   

• Bespoke support available for all schools in the region to supplement the professional 
learning programme and meet the needs of school strategic and developmental 
priorities.  

• Robust quality assurance of professional learning and bespoke support. 

• The Enabling Equity and Excellence document provides supports the regional 
approach with strong positive feedback from school leaders (75% in survey), reporting 
the document has increased their understanding of equity and excellence in the school 
and that it was being used to support school improvement conversations. 

• Work with Higher Education Institution partners ensures learning from the wider 
system adds academic rigour to systems and processes, including the Enabling Equity 
and Excellence approach. 

• Since April 2022, over 98% of schools in the region have engaged in the professional 
learning programme for curriculum including the wider reforms.   

• Curriculum for Wales bespoke support for schools, clusters and individual drop-in 
sessions offers a menu of options of support for schools to support their curriculum 
development. 

• The evaluation of professional learning is strong, with 95% of delegates already using 
or planning to use the learning in their current role.  

• Evaluations from all leadership programmes demonstrates the positive impact on 
developing the leadership skills of participants and the impact on learners through the 
practical leadership experience tasks undertaken. 

• Engagement with Welsh language development professional learning has increased 
by 20% on the previous year.  

• Since April 2022, 101 schools have progressed on the level achieved for Siarter Iaith 
and Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus awards, an increase of 15% from the previous year.  
Since April 2020 there has been 301 bronze, silver or gold awards awarded to schools 
across the region. 

• CSC provides strong support to local authorities as a key partner in delivering Welsh 
in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) targets. 
 
 

Areas to develop include: 

• Analysing the volume of professional learning available for schools and ensuring 

effective communication of the CSC offer. 

• Ensuring coherence of the professional learning offer in curriculum design, teaching 

and assessment to ensure it continues to meet the needs of all schools. 

Page 337



60 
 

• Developing the cluster convenor role within to further support the 3 – 16 curriculum 

and developing a shared understanding of progression. 

• Improving participation of delegates in the evaluation of professional learning 

programmes and events. 

• Redeveloping professional learning programme and support for Teaching Assistants 

across the region. 

• Further development of higher-level Welsh language professional learning (gloywi 

iaith). 

• Ensure professional learning opportunities are available to support all elements of the 

Enabling Equity and Excellence document. 

• Further develop professional learning and support for leadership beyond the national 

pathway programmes. 

• Develop and implement a tiered approach to governor professional learning that 

builds on knowledge, experiences and skills. 

• Further develop the regional approach for coaching and mentoring. 

• Continue to develop the reporting on the outcomes of professional learning in school 

improvement. 

 

11.3 Support for School Improvement 

Strengths include: 

• The range and depth of skills, expertise and knowledge of CSC team. 

• Improvement partners develop strong relationships with schools to support and 

challenge, in partnership with local authorities.  

• First-hand evidence gathering is aligned with school monitoring and self-evaluation 

processes. 

• Strong systems and processes to monitor ‘schools causing concern’ through the 

enhanced strategy. 

• Sharing of school level intelligence and information with local authority partners 

identifying significant risks, concerns by exception and agreeing actions for challenge 

and support as appropriate. 

• An agile and bespoke approach is used to support the needs of individual schools.  

• CSC have a clear regional approach for equity and excellence. 

• Nearly all schools have engaged in collaborations and/or professional learning for the 

Curriculum for Wales. 

• CSC staff engagement with schools supported schools’ readiness and implementation 

of the Curriculum for Wales. 

• Quality of the Central South Wales Challenge strategy supports a self-improving 

system across the region. 

 

 

Page 338



61 
 

Areas to develop include: 

• Continue to evaluate and refine reporting arrangements. 

• Continued roll-out of the agreed EEE implementation plan. 

• Continue to support schools to develop effective cluster working arrangements.  

• Follow up aspects arising from quality assurance processes. 

• Widen the profile of CPAG to reduce the impact of poverty across more schools.  

• Further embed Welsh as part of school improvement conversations. 

 

12.0 NEXT STEPS 

As a result of all self-evaluation activity across the organisation the following areas were 

identified for inclusion within the Business Plan for 2023/24: 

12.1 Leadership and Safeguarding within CSC as an organisation 

• Further develop professional relationships with elected members / officers in local 

authorities. 

• Embed the CSC evaluation framework. 

• Rationalisation of reporting to ensure it meets the needs of stakeholders. 

• Embedding risk management processes. 

• Promotion of equality diversity & inclusion.  

• Staff wellbeing & healthy cultures. 

• Embedding working practices and quality assurance programmes. 

• Evaluate the outcome and impact of internal professional learning and performance 

development programmes. 

• Further develop safe recruitment practices. 

 

12.2 Professional Learning 

• Analyse the volume of professional learning available for schools and ensure effective 
communication of the offer. 

• Ensure coherence of professional learning for curriculum design, teaching and 
assessment and that it meets the needs of all schools. 

• Develop the cluster convenor role to further support the 3 – 16 curriculum and 
developing a shared understanding of progression.  

• Improve participation of delegates in evaluation of professional learning programmes 
and events. 

• Redevelop professional learning and support for Teaching Assistants across the region. 

• Further development of higher-level Welsh language professional learning (gloywi 
iaith). 

• Ensure professional learning opportunities are available to support all elements of the 
Enabling Equity and Excellence document. 

Page 339



62 
 

• Further develop professional learning and support for leadership beyond the national 
pathway programmes. 

• Develop and implement a tiered approach to Governor professional learning that 
builds on knowledge, experiences, and skills. 

• Further develop the regional approach for coaching and mentoring. 

• Continue to develop reporting on the outcomes of professional learning in school 
improvement. 

 

12.3 Support for School Improvement 

• Continue to evaluate and refine reporting arrangements. 

• Continued roll-out of the agreed EEE implementation plan. 

• Continue to support schools to develop effective cluster working arrangements.  

• Follow up aspects arising from quality assurance processes. 

• Widen the profile of CPAG to reduce the impact of poverty across more schools.  

• Further embed Welsh as part of school improvement conversations. 
 

  

Page 340



63 
 

 

Page 341



64 
 

Appendix A  

Central South Wales Challenge 2022-2023 

  

P
age 342



65 
 

 

Appendix B 
Bridgend Strategic Priorities 2023-24 CSC Progress Updates 

 

  

Area  
Expected Outcomes (as 

provided by the LA)  
Delivery requirements 
(Proposed by the LA)  

Evaluation of Progress of CSC activity to 
support LA Priorities (April 2023 – October 

2023)  
Extracts taken from CSC operational plans 

following impact review meetings in October 
2023  

Next Steps  

T1   
Pupil and staff 
wellbeing:  
  
 
To support 
the wellbeing 
of pupils and 
staff in all 
schools across 
the local 
authority.  

 
Pupil attendance rates 
improve.  

 
Staff absence rates 
decrease.  
 
Our ability to recruit and 
retain staff, especially in 
targeted areas, 
improves.  

Ensure wellbeing remains a 
high priority for all staff, 
promote work-life balance 
and reduce external 
pressures on staff.   

Regular regional meetings continue to take 
place involving LA Attendance, Exclusion and 
Well-being leads with the CSC Lead for Well-
being and Vulnerable Groups.  Strong focus 
on sharing common challenges and 
identifying common solutions.    

 
CSC lead for Well-being and Vulnerable 
Groups taking an active role in the Bridgend 
task and finish group looking at 
attendance.  This has led to the development 
of a attendance campaign in Bridgend LA.    

Discuss the way 
forward with Lead 
Director and LAs.  

Provide effective 
professional learning for all 
school-based staff to 
support them in their 
professional development.   

Strong progress has been made in the 
development of professional learning and 
networking opportunities to develop the 
Health & Well-being curriculum.  Bespoke 
support is available to schools on request.  

 
A comprehensive offer informed by 
partnership working with schools and wider 

Continue to support 
schools as required and 
develop ongoing PL 
opportunities in 
response to emerging 
needs.  

P
age 343

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=7f9cb66a-53c2-4b30-87f3-1145d35b4081&categories1=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=7f9cb66a-53c2-4b30-87f3-1145d35b4081&categories1=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=7f9cb66a-53c2-4b30-87f3-1145d35b4081&categories1=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0


66 
 

stakeholders, is available to support schools 
to develop their curriculum in all areas.  

 

 
All PL is evaluated using the Kirkpatrick model 
which informs future planning.  

 
Nearly all schools completing an evaluation 
report that it will develop their 
practice/behaviour.   

Promote the Raising 
Attainment for 
Disadvantaged Youngsters 
(RADY) Programme and 
share practice.   

PDG funding not approved by directors; as a 
result, RADY work will not take place this 
financial year.     

 
Thinking Differently resources continue to be 
available for schools, staff (school / CSC / 
Bridgend LA officers).  

Discuss the way 
forward with Lead 
Director and LAs. 

  
Gather impact of RADY 
programme in targeted 
schools during autumn 
term. 
  

Support an effective 
whole-school support 
model for emotional and 
mental wellbeing.   

Regular regional meetings continue to take 
place involving LA Attendance, Exclusion and 
well-being leads with the CSC Lead for Well-
being and Vulnerable Groups.  Strong focus 
on sharing common challenges and 
identifying common solutions.    

 
CSC Lead for Well-being and Vulnerable 
Groups taking an active role in the Bridgend 
task and finish group looking at 

  

P
age 344



67 
 

attendance.  This has led to the development 
of an attendance campaign in Bridgend LA.  
 

Regional professional learning event held for 
governors on the Whole School Approach; 
two governors from Bridgend in attendance.  
  

Work in partnership with 
the local authority to 
support senior leader 
recruitment and safe 
recruitment practice.   

CSC framework for improvement will be 
published in early Autumn term.  

  

Monitor the progress and 
impact of school wellbeing 
strategic priorities through 
review of evidence.   

Regular regional meetings continue to take 
place involving LA Attendance, Exclusion and 
Well-being Leads with the CSC Lead for Well-
being and Vulnerable Groups.  Strong focus 
on sharing common challenges and 
identifying common solutions.    

 
Improvement Partners continue to have a 
regular focus on well-being, attendance and 
exclusions, regularly supported by LA Principal 
Improvement Partner for Bridgend.     

 

Regional professional learning event held for 
governors on the Whole School Approach; 
two governors from Bridgend in attendance. 
  

Examples of appreciate 
inquiry / good practice 
to be identified and 
shared.  

P
age 345



68 
 

Work in partnership with 
school senior leaders to 
support their wellbeing.   

Where appropriate, Improvement Partners 
have held discussions with senior leaders.  

  

Signpost support for staff 
or pupils as appropriate.  

Regular regional meetings continue to take 
place involving LA Attendance, Exclusion and 
Well-being Leads with the CSC Lead for Well-
being and Vulnerable Groups.  Strong focus 
on sharing common challenges and 
identifying common solutions.   

 
Improvement Partners continue to have a 
regular focus on well-being, attendance and 
exclusions, regularly supported by LA Principal 
Improvement Partner for Bridgend.  
  

  

T2  Support for 
pupil 
behaviour, 
attendance 
and 
exclusions:  
  
The 
development 
of effective 
strategies and 
practice to 
support pupil 
behaviour, 
attendance 

Reduction pupil (fixed-
term and permanent) 
exclusions. 

 
An improvement in pupil 
attendance. 
 
An enhanced strategy to 
support parents and 
families is established  

Continue to provide a high-
quality professional 
learning programme for all 
school-based staff.   

Regular regional meetings continue to take 
place involving LA Attendance, Exclusion and 
well-being Leads with the CSC Lead for Well-
being and Vulnerable Groups.  Strong focus 
on sharing common challenges and 
identifying common solutions.  

 
Improvement Partners continue to have a 
regular focus on well-being, attendance and 
exclusions, regularly supported by LA Principal 
Improvement Partner for Bridgend.  
  

  

Monitor the behaviour of 
pupils in partnership with 
school leaders through the 

During Autumn term visits, Improvement 
Partners will work alongside school leaders to 
plan and stress test self-evaluation activities.  

  

P
age 346



69 
 

and exclusions 
across all 
schools in the 
local 
authority.    

agreed joint monitoring 
activities.  
  
Monitor the progress and 
impact of school strategic 
objectives on behaviour 
and attendance if 
appropriate through 
review of evidence.  
  

During Autumn term visits, Improvement 
Partners will work alongside school leaders to 
plan and stress test self-evaluation activities.  

  

Share effective practice or 
professional learning as 
identified.  

Regular regional meetings continue to take 
place involving LA Attendance, Exclusion and 
well-being Leads with the CSC Lead for Well-
being and Vulnerable Groups.  Strong focus 
on sharing common challenges and 
identifying common solutions.    

 
Improvement Partners continue to have a 
regular focus on well-being, attendance and 
exclusions, regularly supported by LA Principal 
Improvement Partner for Bridgend.  
  

  

T3  Support for 
vulnerable 
children and 
young 
people:  
  

All schools have an 
equity plan in place,  
 
Swifter support is 
provided when schools 
have exhausted all 
options.  

Sharing of best practice in 
schools (for example, social 
worker at Brynteg School 
and family engagement 
staff at Maesteg School) as 
appropriate.  
  

An appreciative inquiry has been undertaken 
during the summer term linked to the Whole 
School Approach for Mental Health and Well-
being.  Findings collated in a report and 
disseminated via school and LA.  

CSC Lead for Well-being 
and Vulnerable Groups 
will work with LAs to 
identify practice worth 
sharing.  

P
age 347



70 
 

To ensure all 
vulnerable 
children and 
young people 
receive the 
right support 
and are able 
to maximise 
their potential 
in schools in 
Bridgend.  

 
Support for parents of 
vulnerable children is 
improved.  
 
Support workers are 
linked to a cluster and 
based in a school.  

Develop participation of 
vulnerable learners.   

Key messages regarding equity project shared 
by Managing Director with all staff during CSC 
Professional Learning and Development 
programme.  As a result, all staff have a 
developing understanding of the importance 
and expectations of this work.    
 
Session on Equity, Pupil Development Grant 
(PDG) and Poverty disseminated to all school 
facing staff during the CSC professional 
learning and development week.    
 
Comprehensive bank of resources shared with 
all school facing staff to support their 
engagement with schools.    

 

Session delivered on Equity and Excellence as 
part of the Governor Accreditation 
Programme to many improvement 
partners.   Consequently, staff are increasingly 
engaging with the fundamentals of Equity and 
Excellence.   

 

Ongoing discussions with stakeholders across 
the organisations to amend programmes and 
to highlight how Equity and Excellence can be 
embedded in all professional learning 
programmes.    

Continue to develop 

this work as part of the 

Equity and excellence 

project brief.  

P
age 348



71 
 

 

Principal Improvement Partner for Bridgend 
contributing to a Headteacher session on the 
requirements of the PDG; this has resulted in 
raising awareness of headteachers of 
requirements.   

Promote the Raising 

Attainment for 

Disadvantaged Youngsters 

(RADY) Programme and 

share effective practice.  

PDG funding approved by directors; as a 
result, support for RADY work will continue 
with four schools receiving support.     

 
Thinking Differently resources continue to be 
available for schools, staff (school / CSC / 
Bridgend LA officers).  

  

Discuss the way 
forward with Lead 
Director and LAs.  

In partnership with school 

leaders monitor the 

progress and standards of 

vulnerable learners.  
 

Findings of discussions between Improvement 
Partners and schools on the use and impact of 
the Pupil Development Grant (PDG) collated 
for 2022-23.  Regional PDG evaluation 
presented to Welsh Government with a visit 
to a CSC school to exemplify effective 
practice.  One LA report developed and 
disseminated with others in draft format.  

 
Professional learning sessions delivered for all 
CSC school facing staff on terms of conditions 
and expectations of PDG grant for 2023-
24.  Comprehensive bank of resources also 
shared to support engagement and 

Finalise and 
disseminate LA PDG 
impact reports.   

 
Continue to support 
the effective use of 
PDG in schools - 
Improvement Partners 
and Lead for Well-being 
and Vulnerable 
Groups.  

P
age 349



72 
 

discussions between Improvement Partners 
and schools.  
 
Bespoke support ongoing by the CSC Lead for 
Well-being and Vulnerable Groups with six 
schools across the region, including Brynteg 
Comprehensive.   
 
Key messages about the PDG and Poverty 
shared at the Aspiring Headteachers 
Conference in July 2023.  Attendance from 
five Bridgend Schools: Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd, Ysgol y Ferch o'r Sger, Brynteg 
School, Heronsbridge Special School and 
Faldau Primary.  
 
Ongoing discussions held between 
Improvement Partners and school leaders on 
progress of vulnerable leaders.   Evaluation of 
progress shared with Bridgend LA in 
September 2023.    

  
Monitor the progress and 
impact of school strategic 
objectives for vulnerable 
children and young people 
if appropriate through 
review of evidence.   

During Autumn term visits, Improvement 
Partners will work alongside school leaders to 
plan and stress test self-evaluation activities.  

 

P
age 350



73 
 

T4  Support for 
pupils with 
ALN:   
  
To ensure all 
pupils with 
ALN receive 
the right 
support and 
are able to 
maximise 
their potential 
in schools in 
Bridgend.  
  
All schools in 
the local 
authority 
successfully 
implement 
the Welsh 
Government 
ALN reforms.  

An effective local 
authority ALN Strategy, 
bespoke to Bridgend, 
which has been co-
constructed, clearly 
communicated and 
understood by all, is in 
place.  

 
Clear evaluative 
processes are present in 
all schools.  

 

A quality assurance 
protocol of ALN practice 
in schools is established.  

 

An improvement in the 
recruitment and 
retention of school 
ALNCo.  

 

Seamless process of 
transition between 
childhood and 
adulthood.   

Work with schools to 
implement the local 
authority vision for ALN, 
ALN strategy and ALN 
behaviour strategy as 
appropriate to individual 
schools.   

 
  

Further share effective 
practice across schools.  
  

 
  

In partnership with school 
leaders monitor the 
progress and standards of 
pupils with ALN as 
appropriate.  
  

During Autumn term visits, Improvement 
Partners will work alongside school leaders to 
plan and stress test self-evaluation activities.  

  

Monitor the progress and 
impact of school strategic 
objectives for pupils with 
ALN if appropriate and the 
development of the 
provision through review 
of evidence.  

During Autumn term visits, Improvement 
Partners will work alongside school leaders to 
plan and stress test self-evaluation activities.  

  

T5  All schools and the local 
authority have a 

Continue to support the 
successful implementation 

A comprehensive offer is available to all 
schools to support the development of 

  

P
age 351



74 
 

Curriculum 
for Wales & 
assessment:  
  
All schools in 
the local 
authority 
successfully 
implement 
the 
Curriculum for 
Wales and 
develop a 
shared 
understanding 
of progression 
across the 
continuum.  

uniform, shared 
understanding of 
progression.  

of the Curriculum for 
Wales in all Bridgend 
schools.  

  
  
  

curriculum, teaching and assessment.  Bespoke 
support is available to schools, clusters and 
groups of schools to develop a shared 
understanding of progression.   

Further develop cluster 
collaboration.  
  

Bespoke support is available to all clusters and 
groups of schools across the authority.  Cluster 
convenors receive funding to support the 
development of the cluster priorities.  All 
schools across the region receive collaboration 
funding to work together on identified 
priorities. 
  

  

Provide more 
opportunities for schools 
and local authorities to 
share effective practice.  
  

Schools to share effective practice through 
cluster and regional networks as practice 
identified.   

  

Provide high-quality 
professional learning for all 
staff.  
  

A comprehensive offer is available to all 
schools to support the development of 
curriculum, teaching and assessment.  Bespoke 
support is available to schools, clusters and 
groups of schools to develop a shared 
understanding of progression.  
  

  

Ensure pupils are prepared 
for new qualifications  

CSC teams support the development of Made 
for Wales GCSEs.  The information is shared via 
regional networks.  CSC works closely with 
Qualifications Wales and WJEC to support 

  

P
age 352

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=26799779-fb9f-45fb-a863-59e7149763f3&categories1=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=26799779-fb9f-45fb-a863-59e7149763f3&categories1=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0


75 
 

qualifications reform and regularly 
communicate updates to all schools through 
the CSC school bulletin.  
  

Ensure school curriculum 
includes local and Welsh 
history and culture and 
Black, Asian and minority 
ethnic history and culture.  
  

PL, support and guidance is available to all 
schools in relation to diversity in the 
curriculum.  
  

  

Implement the Evaluation, 
Improvement and 
Accountability 
Framework.   
  

CSC Framework for improvement will be 
published in early Autumn Term.  

  

Support the establishment 
of ‘Areas of learning and 
experience’ working 
groups to support high- 
quality teaching and 
learning for the delivery of 
the curriculum.  
  

CSC regional networks provide opportunities 
for practitioners within Bridgend to network 
with colleagues from across the region. 44 
Bridgend schools engaged in regional network 
opportunities between April – October 2023.  
  
CSC funded collaboration projects support 
practitioners to focus on the development of 
PL and guidance for specific priority areas.  The 
outcome of the projects is shared with schools 
across the region.  

  

Monitor the progress and 
impact of school strategic 
objectives for curriculum 
for Wales and assessment 

During Autumn term visits, Improvement 
Partners will work alongside school leaders to 
plan and stress test self-evaluation activities.  

  

P
age 353

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/search?query=diversity&sort=relevance&strict=0


76 
 

through review of 
evidence.  

T6  High-quality 
teaching & 
learning: All 
pupils receive 
high quality 
teaching that 
improves 
outcomes for 
all pupils.  

Develop and adopt ‘The 
Bridgend Way’ (a 
document that outlines 
the principles, priorities, 
and expectations of 
effective pedagogy in 
Bridgend schools) across 
all settings and service 
areas.  

Continue to share effective 
practice.  

  

Schools sharing practice is integral to CSC PL 
and networking opportunities   

  

Continue to provide high-
quality professional 
learning opportunities.  
  

Regional PL and networking opportunities are 
summarised in the recent PL compendium 
publication  

  

Support increased 
collaboration involving 
Areas of Learning and 
Experience (AoLE) Leads.  
  

CSC regional networks provide opportunities 
for practitioners within Bridgend to network 
with colleagues from across the region.   
  
CSC funded collaboration projects support 
practitioners to focus on the development of 
PL and guidance for specific priority areas.  The 
outcome of the projects is shared with schools 
across the region.  
  

  

Support the development 
of more effective support 
mechanisms for 
new/acting 
headteachers/deputy 
headteachers.  
  

Senior leaders continue to be supported by an 
allocated leadership coach in SLDP and New 
and Acting programmes.  

  

Provide a development 
programme for learning 
support staff at all levels.  
  

Senior leaders continue to be supported by an 
allocated leadership coach in SLDP and New 
and Acting programmes.  

  

P
age 354

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/resource/8ff00882-01d5-483f-9aad-fc1e0d7d927c/en/overview
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/resource/8ff00882-01d5-483f-9aad-fc1e0d7d927c/en/overview


77 
 

Provide high-quality 
support for self-evaluation 
and school development 
planning.  
  

Autumn term discussions with senior leaders 
will focus on effectiveness of self-evaluation 
processes and will highlight potential support 
needs (curriculum and PL team).  

  

Support a clear approach 
to the development of 
teaching and learning to 
focus on (for example, 
differentiation and 
independence) to avoid 
overload and ‘noise’ in the 
system.  
  

CSC PL, support and guidance for teaching is 
available to all schools. 
  
The Great Teaching Toolkit provides both a 
synthesis of evidence from authoritative 
studies, and the findings of this evidence, that 
teachers can relate to their own experience.  
  

  

Monitor the progress and 
impact of school strategic 
objectives for curriculum 
for Wales and assessment 
through review of 
evidence.  

Improvement Partners are planning initial 
Autumn term workstream with Headteachers 
as highlighted in CSC School Improvement 
Framework.  
 
Improvement Partners held initial discussions 
relating to school improvement priorities 
following self-evaluation processes.  

  

T7  Effective 
leadership & 
governance:  
  
High quality 
support to 
ensure that 
there is 

All school governors 
have completed 
statutory training 
modules.  
 
There is a significant 
reduction in the number 

Provide high-quality 
training opportunities for 
school governors in 
respect of the Evaluation, 
Improvement and 
Accountability 
Framework.  

  

Governor Induction, Data and Equity and 
Excellence modules have been updated taking 
in professional opinions from a range of 
stakeholders.  

  

P
age 355

https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/discovery?sort=recent&categories=ebffaae5-3a77-4e76-8474-6a7302a5f5f4&categories1=c8f9b77d-80c2-4254-8ae6-456d543dae10&strict=0
https://www.cscjes.org.uk/repository/resource/4ee2cc53-c296-4b93-a975-97b7442e6cf6/en/overview


78 
 

effective 
leadership 
and 
governance in 
all schools.  

of vacancies on school 
governing bodies.  
 
We see an improvement 
in the number of schools 
being judged by Estyn as 
having effective 
leadership and 
governance 
arrangements in place.  

Continue to promote 
governor self-evaluation 
tool kit.  
  

Governor Induction, Data and Equity and 
Excellence modules have been updated taking 
in professional opinions from a range of 
stakeholders.   

  

All governing bodies to 
receive a report biannually 
to support the work of the 
governing body and their 
accountability role.  
  

Report to provide the governing body with 
appropriate information to support their 
accountability role.  IPs to support the work of 
the governing  

  

Deliver a development 
programme for learning 
support officers.  
  

RLGs provide vital support for governing 
bodies identified by IPs as having greatest 
need.  

  

Support the recruitment of 
senior leaders and through 
safe recruitment 
practices.  
  

IPs continue to support governors in senior 
recruitment processes.  

  

Support the development 
of more opportunities to 
develop leaders at various 
levels within schools and 
other settings.  
  

Governor Induction, Data and Equity and 
Excellence modules have been updated taking 
in professional opinions from a range of 
stakeholders.  

  

Support the development 
of more effective support 
mechanisms for 
new/acting headteachers.  
  

Governor Induction, Data and Equity and 
Excellence modules have been updated taking 
in professional opinions from a range of 
stakeholders.  

  

P
age 356



79 
 

Provide high-quality 
support for self-evaluation 
and school development 
planning.  
  

IPs work in partnership with school senior 
leaders to take part in self-evaluation activity.  
The regional toolkit for school development 
planning is shared with all schools.  IPs work 
with senior leaders to ensure strategic 
priorities are accurate and reflect school self-
evaluation evidence.   

  

Continue to provide a high 
quality professional 
learning programme to 
support staff as they move 
through the leadership 
pathway.  
  

Governor Induction, Data and Equity and 
Excellence modules have been updated taking. 
in professional opinions from a range of 
stakeholders.  

  

All schools to have an 
improvement partner to 
support school leaders and 
governing bodies, and 
complete strategic 
planning and self-
evaluation in partnership.  
  

During Autumn term visits, Improvement 
Partners will work alongside school leaders to 
plan and stress test self-evaluation activities.  

  

Monitor the progress and 
impact of school strategic 
objectives for curriculum 
for Wales and assessment 
through review of 
evidence.  

Improvement Partners are planning initial 
Autumn term workstream with Headteachers 
as highlighted in CSC School Improvement 
Framework.  
 
Improvement Partners held initial discussions 
relating to school improvement priorities 
following self-evaluation processes.  

  

P
age 357



80 
 

  
  
  

  Estyn 
Recommenda
tions  

Evaluation of Progress  

R1  Raise 
standards of 
literacy in 
primary 
schools  
Where 
appropriate, 
schools work 
with their IP 
to develop 
action plans 
to develop 
literacy 
provision. 
  
• Appropriate 
support is 
identified/bro
kered for 
schools to 
support their 
strategic 
plans for 
literacy. 

CSC PL supports schools to provide a curriculum that enables learners to be confident and critical receivers of language, 
through listening and reading, and effective producers of language, in speech and writing, which they can apply across all 
Areas.     
   
Whole school approach to oracy and reading  
Engagement with the Welsh Government whole school approach to oracy and reading is strong. 50 schools engaged with 
regional asynchronous PL for reading, with an additional 21 attending a synchronous PL programme for reading and 
pedagogy. 16 schools engaged with asynchronous PL offer for oracy, while nine attended oracy and 22 schools participated 
in the regionally funded oracy project.  Networks and online communities provide the vehicle for sharing the national 
toolkit and effective practice.   
   
The summer term 2023 networks focused on reading, and three schools explored how they had used the toolkit to develop 
a whole school bilingual approach to reading. An additional 13 schools shared case studies on areas such as: disciplinary 
reading; reading for pleasure; self-evaluation and improvement planning for reading and whole school shared reading 
approaches. Book Trust Cymru also supported this network and focused on reading for pleasure and developing a reading 
culture across the school community.   
   
Bridgend schools’ engagement in English Literacy PL opportunities April 2023- October 2023 

   
Regional PL   

(excl. networks)   
Regional Networks   Regional Funded Projects   

Bespoke Support Requests  

Practitioners  39  19  20  X  

Schools  22  14  19  6  

   

P
age 358



81 
 

 
• Quality of 
literacy 
provision and 
progress of 
learners is 
monitored in 
partnership 
with IPs. 
 
• A high 
quality 
professional 
learning 
programme 
to be 
provided for 
all schools to 
support the 
development 
of literacy.  

The autumn 2023 networks focused on oracy, with schools sharing case studies on areas such as: integrated approaches to 
oracy and reading, progression in oracy across a cluster and effective oracy provision.   
   
Evaluation data indicates that many participants (81%) intend to share their PL with colleagues, and 59% state their 
intention to discuss PL with senior leaders in their schools. Many participants (89%) anticipated the PL would have an 
impact on learners in their setting, while a majority of participants (63%) felt the PL would have a significant impact on 
learners in their setting.    
  
  
As part of Summer term visits, Improvement Partners have supported the development of draft SDPs and self-evaluation 
processes.  
  
Where need has been identified, brokered support has been planned for, delivered and evaluated.   
  
During Autumn term visits, Improvement Partners will work alongside school leaders to plan and stress test self-evaluation 
activities.  

P
age 359



82 
 

R2  Improve 
outcomes for 
post-16 
learners in 
sixth forms  
  
• LA will 
implement 
the Post-16 
Improvement 
Plan with our 
network 
groups and in 
liaison with 
the CSC Post-
16 Strategic 
Lead.  

PL and bespoke support continue to be available to all schools with sixth forms across the region. Through funded project 
work, collaborating schools have reported successful improvements in relation to the implementation of VESPA approaches 
to improve self-regulation and metacognition strategies and support learner progress and attainment. Bilingual resources 
have been developed via the project work to support all schools across Wales accessing the VESPA platform. Planning for 
learner well-being has been supported through the inclusion of the Mental Health UK Bloom project.   
   
The Post-16 leaders network continues to be well-attended and supports schools’ broader awareness of national and 
regional priorities in the sector. Schools are encouraged to share approaches and effective practice during the sessions.   
   
The Welsh Baccalaureate/Skills Challenge Certificate network meetings were available for all qualification levels. WJEC 
regional support officers attend CSC meetings to share updates and resources, and support qualification reform. Schools 
could access bespoke support as needed through the appointed CSC Welsh Baccalaureate/Skills Challenge Certificate lead 
practitioner.   
  
To support in-year monitoring and tracking processes at post-16, 2 schools from Bridgend engaged with the free Alps 
Connect training for Heads of Sixth Form and Senior Leadership Teams which was delivered in the summer term by Alps 
Consultants. In addition, and in conjunction with the School Support - Lead Officer Strategic Development (Secondary) at 
BCBC, Curriculum and ASBW/SCC Leads received training in October to track student progress and evaluate outcomes at 
post-16. As a result of the first session, a follow up training session will take place at the Bridgend Welsh Baccalaureate 
(SCC/ASBW) Network meeting in December.   
   
The Post-16 Education: Newly Qualified Teacher Module (NQT) has been created cross regionally as an optional module for 
the National NQT induction programme. The module highlights how post-16 education differs from other phases of 
education, the key priorities for this phase of education and the importance of effective transition (post-16 and post-18) to 
support learner aspiration and destinations. This is hosted on the Welsh Consortia website.  
   
CSC takes a lead role in the cross-regional PL programme. The National Post-16 Leadership Development Programme 
attracts aspiring, new and established post-16 leaders from across Wales, where 12 CSC school leaders have enrolled for 
2023-24, which 2 practitioners from Bridgend schools. A joint Post-16 PL programme has also been developed to reflect 
national priorities and collaboration across Wales. The first event, related to learner voice and future inspections attracted 

P
age 360

https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/events/b3985e33-ab95-4d71-ba72-5216d96fc854
https://www.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk/events/42a7eb09-395d-4b71-a36e-3c900b6c6d6c
https://alps.education/alps-connect/
https://alps.education/alps-connect/
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/welsh-education-consortia-eng/post-16-learning/post-16-education-newly-qualified-teacher-module?authuser=0
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/welsh-education-consortia-eng/post-16-learning/post-16-leadership-development-programme?authuser=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cscjes-cronfa.co.uk%2Frepository%2Fresource%2F5022f9af-4aca-4e03-a4e2-1d9943600de5%2Fen%2Foverview&data=05%7C01%7CEmma.Lloyd%40cscjes.org.uk%7C1b3315f1dc6f4f41102d08dbc00b4c81%7C4f3f0e52b734416494091b601d147993%7C0%7C0%7C638314927014734140%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fLhwj%2BsS4qcwSsdMPNhlfRlp2iOwXjZQgVFc4NmAgX8%3D&reserved=0


83 
 

17 CSC schools (2 Bridgend schools), the second event on Welsh Government performance measures attracted 12 CSC 
schools (1 Bridgend school) and the third event on Using Alps Connect to raise attainment at post-16 attracted 8 CSC 
schools (2 Bridgend schools).   
  
Bridgend schools' engagement in Post-16 PL opportunities April 2023- October 2023  

   
Regional Network 

Meetings  
Regional PL   

Post-16  
Regional PL   
Welsh Bacc   

Regional Funded 
Projects    

National PL / 
Projects   

Bespoke Support 
Requests  

Schools  

  
3 Schools  

4 Practitioners  5 Schools  
5 Practitioners  

Tim: 2 schools 
(Autumn 1 
meeting)  

5 schools booked 
onto Autumn 2 in 
person meeting  

6 Schools  
6 Practitioners  

2 Practitioners – 
Leadership 

programme  
3 Practitioners– PL 

Events  

X  

  
  

P
age 361



84 
 

R3  Increase the 
pace of 
improvement 
in schools 
causing 
concern  
 
• Schools in 
enhanced 
monitoring 
receive 
appropriate 
levels of 
support from 
improvement 
partner and 
curriculum 
and 
professional 
learning 
team.  
 
• Where 
appropriate 
bespoke 
support is 
brokered to 
support the 
school. 
  

CSC staff work closely with schools causing concern to identify appropriate focus for support and levels of support, and this 
is integrated into the appropriate school plan.  The progress and impact of the strategic priorities, and the pace of 
improvement is regularly monitored and reported through the School Improvement Partnership Log and detailed Progress 
Reports.    
  
In 2021/22 there were 4 schools in enhanced monitoring for at least part of the year.  As a result of the support and challenge, 
many schools continued to make good progress against a very challenging context.  Schools causing concern are well-
supported and many schools make strong or better progress against many of the strategic priorities or recommendations.  
  
During this academic year 2022/23, Estyn have visited 4 out of the 7 schools in enhanced monitoring.  One school has been 
placed in Estyn Review, and another school that was in Estyn Review deemed to have made sufficient progress.  
  
All schools in need of additional / high level of support have been identified as enhanced support with progress reviews 
taking place.  
  
Schools requiring additional support have been identified with appropriate PL brokered.   
  
Processes have been reviewed and aligned within CSC School Improvement Framework.  

P
age 362



85 
 

• The 
progress of 
schools is 
monitored 
regularly.  
• At least 
termly 
progress 
meeting is 
held to review 
progress of 
the school 
against the 
agreed 
priorities and 
identify next 
steps.  
 
• At least 
termly 
progress 
report is 
compiled in 
conjunction 
with the local 
authority.  

P
age 363



86 
 

  R4 
Strengthen 
the role of 
the Welsh 
Education 
Strategic 
Forum to 
ensure timely 
progress in 
delivering the 
priorities 
identified in 
the Welsh in 
Education 
Strategic 
Plan  

CSC is a key partner in Bridgend’s Welsh in Education Strategic Forum.  

 
 
 

 

P
age 364



87 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 365



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
11 April 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
INFORMATION REPORT FOR NOTING 

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, 

HR AND CORPORATE POLICY 

 
Responsible 
Officer:  
 

                
MERYL LAWRENCE 

 SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER - SCRUTINY 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  
 

 
There is no effect upon the policy framework and procedure 
rules. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

To update the Committee with a report for Members 
information and noting regarding the Adult Community 
Learning Service, including provision planning, 
engagement and the summary of a recent Estyn inspection 
report.   
 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of the Information Report for 

noting that has been published since its last scheduled meeting. 
 
2. Background  
  
2.1 At a meeting of the Council it was resolved to approve a revised procedure for the 

presentation to the Committee of Information Reports for noting. 
 
 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 Information Report 
 
 The following Information Report has been published since the last meeting of the 

Committee: 
 
Title          Date Published 
 

 Adult Community Learning      11 March 2024 
                     
        
 

Page 367

Agenda Item 7



 

                                                        
3.2 Availability of Document 
 
 The document has been circulated to Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1  

Members electronically via email and placed on the Bridgend County Borough 
Council website. The document is available from the above date of publication.  
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 
impacts as a result of this report.   

 

5. Well-being of Future Generations Implications and Connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no Climate Change Implications from this report.   

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications in relation to this report.   
 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 That the Committee acknowledges the publication of the report referred to in 

paragraph 3.1 of this report. 
 
 
Background documents 
 
None 

Page 368



 

 

 

 
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 

 
Date of meeting:  

 
11 April 2024 

 

 
Report title:  

 
INFORMATION REPORT – ADULT COMMUNITY LEARNING  

 

 
Report 
owner/Corporate 
Director:  

 

 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND FAMILY 

SUPPORT 

Responsible officer:          DONNA HOOPER 
     PRINCIPAL OFFICER ADULT COMMUNITY LEARNING 

Policy framework 
and procedure 
rules:  

There is no effect on policy framework or procedure rules. 

Executive 
summary:  
 

This is an information only report on the provision offered 
by Bridgend County Borough Council’s Adult Community 
Learning Service to ensure that a meaningful offer of adult 
learning in the community is delivered. 
 
Key points in provision planning and what contributes to 
this process are included in the report along with some 
data to show that provision is engaging with the target 
learner cohort intended to benefit from provision. 
 
The report includes the summary of a recent Estyn 
inspection report for an inspection carried out on the work 
of Bridgend Learning Partnership and the 
recommendations.  

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to update Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 

(SOSC1) on the provision offered by Adult Community Learning (ACL), linked 
specifically to one of the 15 strategic themes detailed in the Education and Family 
Support Directorate Strategic Plan 2023-2026; specifically Strategic Theme 13 – A 
meaningful adult learning in the community offer.   
 
 

2. Background  
 
2.1 Bridgend County Borough Council’s (BCBC’s) Adult Community Learning (ACL) 

Service works with several delivery partners to ensure that the offer of adult 
learning opportunities offered across the county borough is varied, meets the needs 
of learners and employers, and encompasses all priority areas identified by Welsh 
Government in coherence with the Estyn inspection framework.  
 

Page 369



 

 

2.2 In addition, ACL aims to support the wellbeing and social inclusion of learners and 
aims to offer engagement and learning opportunities that fully support this. To 
further promote the dissemination of wellbeing support and resources, ACL has 
worked with regional partners on developing Wellbeing Champions, a project that 
was recognised as good practice in an Estyn thematic report.  
 

2.3 ACL will continue to recruit staff and engage learners to achieve funding targets, 
and to deliver a wide range of high-quality, multi-curriculum sector learning 
opportunities. ACL will work with delivery partners to ensure that the overall offer 
across the county borough is meaningful and:  
 

• delivers learning opportunities for adults to gain skills - for employment, for 

community involvement and for progression - as well as support and 

information to improve the health and well-being of all residents of Bridgend 

County Borough;  

• raises the literacy and numeracy levels among adults, including those adults 

whose first language is not English;  

• reduces the numbers of adults (16+) who are not in education, employment 

or training (NEET);  

• engages with adults in all parts of Bridgend County Borough, particularly 

those who have benefitted least from education in the past or who are most 

at risk of not benefiting in the future; and  

• provides opportunities for learners to engage in learning through the medium 

of Welsh. 

2.4 BCBC’s ACL Service works with partners within Bridgend Learning Partnership to 
plan and deliver a meaningful offer of community learning opportunities across the 
county borough.   

 
2.5 The Bridgend Learning Partnership is chaired by the Group Manager (Learner 

Support) within the Education and Family Support Directorate and consists of the 
following partners: 

 

• BCBC ACL; 

• BCBC Employability Bridgend; 

• Adult Learning Wales; 

• Bridgend College; and 

• Learn Welsh Glamorgan. 

2.6 Partners work together, in line with the partnership strategy, to plan a 
comprehensive and meaningful adult learning offer in addition to identifying and 
eradicating duplication within the provision offer and identifying any gaps in 
provision.  Any identified gaps in provision are targeted within a partnership Quality 
Improvement Plan (QIP) as part of the self-evaluation reporting process. 

 
2.7 In addition to working with partners to ensure a meaningful offer, ACL must also 

factor in other provision planning requirements.  One of these requirements is 
guided by Welsh Government as part of the Community Learning Grant (CLG) 
priority areas which are identified on the grant remit letter as: 
 

Page 370



 

 

• essential/basic skills; 

• English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL); 

• employability; and 

• Welsh-medium provision. 

2.8 In addition, there is an expectation that provision will also include areas of wellbeing 
and engagement.  Over the past two years, Welsh Government has tasked adult 
community learning providers with carrying out engagement activities to re-engage 
learners into the adult learning sector and there has been an expectation that 
appropriate engagement courses/activities should be offered throughout this time. 
 

2.9 When planning provision across the partnership partners also take account of any 
specific skill sectors and ways of working that should be included in order to align to 
relevant plans/legislation such as: 
 

• Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP); 

• Cymraeg 2050; 

• Regional Economic Development Strategy (REDS);  

• Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015; and 

• Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 

(ALNET). 

 

2.10  ACL also endeavours to offer provision needs as identified by learners through 

learner voice surveys carried out each term.  Provision planning will incorporate 

areas of provision identified by learners through the survey process and courses are 

planned accordingly where appropriate. 

3. Current situation/proposal  
 
3.1 The Bridgend Learning Partnership’s self-evaluation report (SER) 2021-2022 clearly 

identifies areas for improvement within the partnership provision offer; These 
include: 

 
● to monitor opportunities for learners to access Welsh language learning 

and/or Welsh-medium learning opportunities; 
● to increase the number of Welsh-medium learning opportunities across the 

county Borough;  
● to ensure individual partners are aware of attendance trends and data and 

will share with the partnership the strategies and support that is in place to 
help improve attendance; to ensure appropriate continued professional 
development (CPD) for the continued development of teaching and learning 
to promote quality learning experiences for all learners; 

● to ensuring that delivery methodologies are up-to-date and relevant; 
● to develop a progression pathways document for learners for specific 

curriculum areas; 
● to monitor the impact of learning on wellbeing is a strength in BCBC, this will 

be developed across the partnership in the forthcoming academic year; and 
● to review skills delivery model and curriculum analysis for 2021-2022 to 

ensure we are still delivering a suitable curriculum and focusing on 
development in appropriate sectors. 

Page 371



 

 

3.2 In addition, the partnership has identified the need to increase provision within 
numerous sectors on their QIP: 

Action 4 - IA3.2 
and 3.3 

 
Monitor opportunities for learners to access Welsh Language learning 
and/or Welsh-medium learning opportunities.  Increase the number of 
Welsh-medium learning opportunities across the county borough.  

Links to Partnership Strategy - strategic plan refs: 2.5 

 

Action 10 - IA 1 

 
Develop a progression pathways document for learners in a range of 
subject areas 
 
Links to Partnership Strategy - strategic plan refs: 2.1 
 

 
3.2 Partners within Bridgend Learning Partnership are working well together to ensure 

that there is a meaningful offer of adult learning in the community and that data is 
consistently being monitored and reviewed to attain standards set by the 
partnership which aims to deliver quality learning experiences to learners across the 
county borough. 

 
3.3 The partnership was inspected by Estyn in February 2023 and received a positive 

inspection report.   
 
3.4 The Estyn report notes that across the Bridgend Adult Community Learning 

Partnership, many learners make suitable progress in their learning. They learn and 
apply new skills as well as developing confidence and motivation. Many learners 
improve their employment opportunities and benefit from the social interaction in 
their classes. Learners with additional learning needs make solid progress in 
developing life skills and their learning enhances their enjoyment of life. The 
majority of learners have a clear understanding of their goals and targets. Nearly all 
learners show very good attitudes to learning and they are respectful of others and 
their well-being. Providers ask learners about their experiences regularly and they 
respond in a timely way to their suggestions.  

 
3.5 Bridgend Adult Community Learning Partnership offers a useful range of courses 

based on the Welsh Government priorities of literacy, numeracy and digital skills 
and ESOL. The partnership does not offer courses to improve Welsh speakers’ 
literacy or courses through the medium of Welsh. The partnership is keen to offer 

Action 3 - IA3.2 

 

Continue to review and analyse the current curriculum offer across the 

partnership to ensure that we are meeting the needs of the learners 

and the community, to identify gaps and ensure that there is no 

duplication of provision within Bridgend ACL; linked to local, regional, 

and national priorities.   Expand provision offer to promote engagement 

across target cohorts to include more males. 

Links to Partnership Strategy - strategic plan refs: 2.1-2.4 

 

Page 372



 

 

personal interest courses, but challenges in recruiting teachers make this difficult at 
this time.  

 
3.6 Tutors are well qualified and knowledgeable about their subjects. Most tutors plan 

their sessions well. They take their learners’ interests into account, and they use a 
variety of strategies to help individual learners develop their knowledge and skills 
effectively. They use a wide range of assessment, feedback, tracking and 
monitoring systems to ensure that they understand learners’ progress and needs.  

 
3.7 The partnership provides a range of impartial advice, guidance and support to help 

learners stay on track and progress in their learning.  
 
3.8 Partners in the Bridgend Adult Community Learning Partnership work effectively 

together. Their evaluation of the provision is open and honest and there is a clear 
focus on equity of opportunity and experiences. The partnership offers regular 
professional development to its tutors to help them keep up to date in their practice 
through a range of means, including online training. The partnership uses its 
funding streams well to reduce duplication and to support learner aspirations.   

 
There were three recommendations listed on the inspection report: 

 
R1      Strengthen management information systems to ensure that the partnership 

can track, monitor and quality assure learners’ progress effectively across the 
partnership.  

 
R2      Ensure that marketing strategies help potential learners access an overview 

of the partnership’s course offer and progression pathways.  
 
R3      Ensure that Welsh culture and the Welsh language are appropriately 

embedded within the curriculum offer and courses. 
 

Partners will continue to work together to address the recommendations fully going 
forward. 

 
3.9 Along with recommendations from Estyn report above, there should be a continual 

expansion in range and scope of provision offered in order to achieve maximum 
funding through CLG.  In order to do this, additional staff will need to be recruited.   
All additional staff recruited will be funded entirely through CLG as permissible 
spend against grant, the main area for recruitment will be focused on delivery staff – 
Adult Tutors in line with grant terms and conditions.  These will be recruited with a 
contract end of March 2024 which can be extended once grant funding for 2024-
2025 is confirmed by Welsh Government.  This is in line with the processes 
followed for other fixed term posts within the service. 
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 

4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 
Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report. Therefore, it is not 
necessary to carry out an equality impact assessment in the production of this 

Page 373



 

 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 
impacts as a result of this report. 

  
4.2 The management team in ACL is continually monitoring provision and support to 

address any equality implications in relation to learners being able to access 
provision.  Many of the courses (particularly those that fall within the priority areas 
identified by WG) are offered free of charge to ensure that learners from across the 
socio-economic range are able to access provision and participate in learning to 
improve skills for life and work. 
 

4.3 In addition, ACL offers loan equipment (for example, laptops and tablets) to learners 
who may not have access to the equipment that they may need to be able to 
participate in a course.  ACL also offers connectivity where appropriate with the loan 
of mobile internet devices along with data cards to enable learners to access the 
internet to enhance their learning. 
 

4.4 Contextual learner data taken from Welsh Government data indicates that the 
partnership is engaging learners from the target learner cohorts with higher 
percentages of learners engaged from the most deprived domicile.   
 

 
 
4.5 Engagement of learners by gender is typical of engagement in adult learning in the 

community with most learners being female aged 19+.  The percentage of males 
engaged through Employability Bridgend is high at 56.4% overall, which is higher 
than other partners, but the partnership will look to engage more male learners overall 
as the provision develops in the next academic year. 

 
4.6 Engagement by ethnicity is consistent with data included in the 2021 Census where 

learners engaged within each ethnicity category were consistent, displayed in table 
in 4.4. 
 

4.7 As identified within the partnership QIP, and included in the recommendations of the 
inspection report, Welsh-medium provision remains an area for development across 
the partnership.  Partners are working together to identify existing tutors who could 
deliver through the medium of Welsh but also to recruit Welsh-speaking tutors to 
expand this provision.  Vacancy management adverts for all delivery partners indicate 
that the ability to speak Welsh and/or deliver through the medium of Welsh is 
preferred.  In addition, the partnership is seeking to work with other partners such as 
Menter Bro Ogwr to expand the Welsh-medium provision further.  In this instance, 
partners will commission Menter Bro Ogwr to deliver Welsh-speaking staff to deliver 
on behalf of the partnership.  It is intended that this will start with taster sessions but 
progressing to short courses. 

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
  

Page 374



 

 

5.1 The work of the service will align to the 7 well-being goals detailed in the Well-being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 this is as follows: 

 
  A prosperous Wales – provides opportunities for people in Bridgend to access 

community-based provision which enables them to gain skills for everyday life and 
employment, thereby improving skills for participating in daily life and communities 
and enhancing wellbeing. 

 
 A resilient Wales –courses are offered to those who are long-term unemployed or 

those who experienced a previous negative education experience often have a 
positive impact on resilience of learners.  Some learners take time to develop the 
resilience to continue to attend provision when their learning experience proves 
challenging, and it is the attainment of small modules of learning offered by the 
service that enable them to experience a positive learning journey which develops 
resilience along the way. 

 
 A more equal Wales – courses offered by the service are very often free of charge 

(in target curriculum areas) and learners are offered the loan of IT kit to enable 
them to continue learning where they may not have access to this themselves.  
Specific areas of the service aim to engage with learners from lower socioeconomic 
backgrounds to help them to gain accreditation, upskill and increase employability 
options so that they are able to enhance their socioeconomic status; having a 
positive impact on them and their families. 

 
A healthier Wales – statistics from learner voice surveys indicate that learners feel 
that attending courses has a positive impact on their wellbeing with some reporting 
that they feel mentally fitter after attending – 86% of learners attending courses in 
2022-2023 stated that attending courses was beneficial or very beneficial for their 
wellbeing. 

  
 A Wales of cohesive communities – learners often meet people from within their 

own communities for the first time on courses.  In addition, provision is offered in 
community venues across the county borough therefore financially supporting 
community venues which can then be used to provide other services to further 
promote community cohesion. 

 
 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language – all courses offered by 

Adult Community Learning have Welsh dimension incorporated so that learners are 
exposed to examples of Welsh culture, heritage and/or Welsh language.  Adult 
Community Learning are part of Bridgend Learning Partnership alongside Learn 
Welsh Glamorgan so Welsh language courses are also promoted across the 
partnership. 

 
 A globally responsible Wales – all courses have Education for Sustainable 

Development and Global Citizenship (ESDGC) embedded therefore promoting 
issues encompassed within a globally responsible Wales. 

 
  Links to the five ways of working 
 

 The service aims to deliver courses based on a short-term approach which will 
ultimately impact positively on long-term goals of creating a more prosperous, 
resilient, equal and healthier adult learning population who can contribute positively 

Page 375



 

 

to the betterment of their own communities whilst also being aware that they are 
learning in Wales and have increased awareness/knowledge of Welsh heritage, 
culture and language. 

 
 ACL works in partnership with other partners to ensure that a range of stakeholders 

are engaged and involved to support learners to achieve any specific goals 
pertinent to them.  We aim to prevent any widening of skills gaps or digital divides 
by collaborating with partners to offer support and learning in targeted curriculum 
areas. 

 
6. Climate change implications  
 
6.1 All courses have Education for Sustainable Development and Global Citizenship 

(ESDGC) embedded within them.  This ensures that learners are made aware of 
wider implications for decarbonisation and are asked to consider who their own 
choices and decision may impact on wider agendas. 
 

7. Safeguarding and corporate parent implications 
 
7.1 ACL works to the BCBC Safeguarding Policy and has a clear safeguarding 

reporting process for all adult learners.  Safeguarding is also a standing agenda 
item in the partnership Strategic Board meetings, and this is discussed across all 
partners to share information on trends and good practice.   

 
7.2 100% of learners who completed the learner voice survey at the end of courses in 

July 2023 stated that they had all of the learning support they required from their 
tutors.  

 
7.3 All learners interviewed as part of the quality assurance process indicated that they 

felt safe and secure in their learning environment. 
 
8.  Financial implications  
 
8.1 At present funding allocations are as follows: 
  

• £149,300 council net budget; and 

• £288,685 CLG funding 2023-2024. 

8.2 The predicted overspend for the year is estimated at £110k. which is primarily due 
to expenditure on areas which are no longer eligible following Welsh Government 
changing the grant terms and conditions. This is included in the overall projected 
overspend for the Education and Family Support Directorate at quarter 3 of 
£1.139m reported to Cabinet on 16 January 2024. The overspend is one off and will 
not be incurred in 2024-2025.  The draft Medium-Term Financial Strategy, 
considered by Cabinet on 16 January, also included a budget reduction proposal 
(EDFS9) to remove the core funding for the ACL provision from 2024-2025.  The 
final budget will be considered by Cabinet on 20 February and by Council on 28 
February.    
 

8.2 There currently is capacity in the CLG funding to recruit additional members of staff 
which would contribute to service delivery in order to meet the recommendations by 
Estyn.  Additional staff would include hourly paid tutors (Grade 8).  The number of 

Page 376



 

 

tutors will vary depending on availability to deliver (but would utilise uncommitted 
funding that was set aside in the grant for teaching staff); two part-time internal 
Quality Assurers (Grade 9); one part-time data and MIS assistant; one part-time 
engagement and development worker (grade to be confirmed once evaluated).  
These would all be recruited on temporary/fixed-term contracts. 

 
9. Recommendations 

 
9.1 It is recommended that SOSC1 considers the progress made and provides any 

feedback as necessary. 
 
Background documents 
 
None 
 

Page 377



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
11 APRIL 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
INFORMATION REPORT - QUARTER 3  

PERFORMANCE 2023-24 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, 

HR AND CORPORATE POLICY 

 
Responsible 
Officer:  
 

                
MERYL LAWRENCE 

 SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER - SCRUTINY 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  
 

 
There is no effect upon the policy framework and procedure 
rules. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

To provide for information within the remit of this 
Committee:  
 
- the Quarter 3 Performance 2023-24 report to Corporate 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC) on 21 March 

2024 (Appendix A). 

- the Corporate Performance Dashboard for Quarter 3 

2023-24 (Appendix 1). 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide for information within the remit of this 

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Quarter 3 Performance 2023-24 
reported to COSC on 21 March 2024, for Members’ information. 

2. Background  
  
2.1 Following the reporting of the Quarter 3 Performance 2023-24 to COSC for the 

monitoring of the quarterly performance, the report and performance dashboard are 
being reported to the subsequent meeting of each Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, for information on the performance within the respective remit of each 
Committee. 

  
2.2 The report to COSC is attached at Appendix A with the appendix to that report 

attached as Appendix 1. 
 
2.3 The background to this report is set out in Section 2 of Appendix A – the Quarter 3 

Performance 2023-24 report to COSC on 21 March 2024. 
 
 

Page 379

Agenda Item 8



 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 Details of the scale for scoring the Council’s performance, summary of progress on 

Corporate Commitments, comparison with the previous quarter, overall 
performance on Performance Indicators (PIs) by Wellbeing Objective, PI trends and 
measuring performance against the five ways of working are set out in Section 3 of 
Appendix A – the Quarter 3 Performance 2023-24 report to COSC on 21 March 
2024. 

 
3.2 In place of the previous 4 Directorate dashboards, for Quarter 3 a single 

performance dashboard (Appendix 1) has been developed for the Council’s 
performance against its Corporate Plan based upon the 7 Wellbeing Objectives, as 
requested by COSC together with greater detail on the individual commitments and 
PIs along with improved explanatory comments.  
 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 
impacts as a result of this report.  

 

5. Well-being of Future Generations Implications and Connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 
5.1 This is report assists in measuring and monitoring progress made against the 

following corporate well-being objectives under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 that form the Council’s Corporate Plan 2023-28:  
 
1. A County Borough where we protect our most vulnerable  
 
2. A County Borough with fair work, skilled, high-quality jobs and thriving towns  
 
3. A County Borough with thriving valleys communities  
 
4. A County Borough where we help people meet their potential  
 
5. A County Borough that is responding to the climate and nature emergency  
 
6. A County Borough where people feel valued, heard and part of their community  
 
7. A County Borough where we support people to live healthy and happy lives  

 
5.2  The 5 ways of working set out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

have also contributed to the Council developing its own five ways of working. The 
ways of driving and measuring those ways of working is also contained in the 
Corporate Plan Delivery Plan. 

 

Page 380



 

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no Climate Change Implications from this report.  

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications in relation to this report.   
 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 The Committee is requested to note for information, the content of the Quarter 3 

Performance 2023-24 report and the Corporate Performance Dashboard Quarter 3 
2023-24 within the remit of this Committee. 

 
 
Background documents 
 
None 

Page 381



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

 
Meeting of:  

 
CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
21 MARCH 2024  

 

 
Report Title:  

 
QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE 2023-24 

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, 

HR AND CORPORATE POLICY 
 

Responsible 
Officer:  

ALEX RAWLIN 
 POLICY AND PERFORMANCE MANAGER 

 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

Monitoring the Council’s performance against its Corporate 
Plan forms part of the Council’s Performance Management 
Framework. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

This report provides – 
 

• an overview of performance against wellbeing objectives 

in the Corporate Plan 2023-28 for Quarter 3 2023-24.  

• more detailed analysis, as agreed with the Corporate 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, on performance on 

the commitments and performance indicators in the 

Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2023-24.  

 
 

 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with an overview of Council 
performance against the Corporate Plan at quarter 3 of 2023-24. This is the first 
year of the new 5-year Corporate Plan 2023-28, and the 7 new wellbeing objectives 
set out within the plan.  The format of this report has changed significantly this year 
to improve the way the Council monitors, analyses and understands its 
performance to inform effective decision making and allow robust scrutiny.    
 

 

2. Background 
 

2.1 On 1 March 2023 Council agreed the Corporate Plan 2023-28 and the proposal to 
develop a one-year Corporate Plan Delivery Plan (CPDP) to help monitor progress 
against it. On 19 July 2023 Council agreed the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2023-
24 which set out the wellbeing objectives and associated aims, commitments, and 
performance indicators to help measure the Council’s progress on these priorities. 
 

2.2 Each Directorate has produced a business plan, which includes milestones against 
each commitment, targets against each Performance Indicator (PI) and a clear 
rationale for that target. The directorate business plans can be viewed through the 
staff intranet. Data quality and accuracy templates have been completed for each PI 
to clearly define what the PI is measuring, the scope of the data included, the 

Page 383



APPENDIX A 

 

calculation and verification methods to be used, and clearly identify the responsible 
officers. In October 2023 the Corporate Plan PI targets and rationales were 
approved by Council and these are the targets used to judge performance at 
quarter 3 (Q3).   
 

2.3 As part of the Performance Management Framework, monitoring of these 
commitments and PIs is carried out quarterly through 4 separate directorate 
performance dashboards scrutinised by Directorate Management Teams and 
reported quarterly to Corporate Performance Assessment (CPA).  A performance 
overview report is presented to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(COSC) at quarters 2, 3 and 4 to help them scrutinise progress on delivery.  
 

2.4 In October 2023 the performance team held a performance process review session 
with Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, where proposals were discussed 
for improvements to the performance reporting process, where improvements to the 
way the council collates, summarises, analyses, and presents performance 
information were considered.  Some of these changes were implemented when the 
Q2 performance overview report was brought to this Committee in December 2023, 
with further changes implemented in this report, and others that will come into play 
at Q4 and beyond.  
 

2.5 At the meeting of this Committee in December 2023 it was recommended that 
improvements were made to the commentary in the dashboards, to give a clearer 
understanding of progress made, where PIs or commitments are off target, and 
what corrective actions are in place.  This has been taken into account in providing 
commentary for Q3.  

 

3. Current situation / proposal 

3.1 The key improvement for Q3 is the development of a single performance dashboard 
(Appendix 1) for Bridgend County Borough Council’s performance against its 
Corporate Plan this quarter. This gives greater detail on the individual commitments 
and PIs along with improved explanatory comments.   

 
3.2     We have one simple scale for how we score the Council’s performance as set out in 

our performance framework. These are summarised again for members’ 
convenience in each separate table in the analysis below and the full performance 
key is provided within the performance dashboard (Appendix 1).   

 
3.3 Summary of progress on Corporate Commitments 

Table 1 shows the overall performance judgements for commitments at Q3 and 
comparison with the previous quarter (PQ), with Chart 1 breaking this down further 
to show performance for each of the wellbeing objectives.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 384



APPENDIX A 

 

Table 1 

 
Chart 1 
 

 

 
 

Status Meaning of this status 

Performance 

PQ (Q2) Current (Q3) 

Number % Number % 

COMPLETE 
(BLUE) 

Project is completed 8 7.9% 10 9.9% 

EXCELLENT 
(GREEN) 

As planned (within timescales, on 
budget, achieving outcomes) 

49 48.5% 50 49.5% 

GOOD  
(YELLOW) 

Minor issues. One of the following 
applies - deadlines show 
slippage, project is going over 
budget or risk score increases 

12 11.9% 13 12.9% 

ADEQUATE 
(AMBER) 

Issues. More than one of the 
following applies - deadlines 
show slippage, project is going 
over budget or risk score 
increases 

23 22.8% 17 16.8% 

UNSATISFACTORY 
(RED) 

Significant issues – deadlines 
breached, project over budget, 
risk score up to critical or worse 

9 8.9% 11 10.9% 

 Total 101 100% 101 100% 

Page 385



APPENDIX A 

 

 3.4 Summary of Performance Indicators 
 

 

59 Corporate Plan Indicators are reported quarterly, all of which have verified data 

reported for Q3.  6 of these quarterly indicators are currently establishing baseline 

figures. 53 indicators could be compared against their target and awarded a RAYG 

status. It should be noted that this is a decrease in the number of “baseline setting” 

indicators that were reported at Q2.  As suggested at COSC in December 2023, the 

4 new Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) indicators now have the target set for 2023-

24. Table 2 shows overall performance for indicators at Q3 and a comparison with 

the previous quarter, and Chart 2 the performance for each well-being objective.  
 

Table 2 

 

Chart 2 

 

Status Meaning of this status 

Performance 

PQ (Q2) Current (Q3) 

Number % Number % 

EXCELLENT 
(GREEN) 

On target and improved 
or is at maximum 

13 27.65% 11 20.75% 

GOOD  
(YELLOW) 

On target  7 14.9% 11 20.75% 

ADEQUATE 
(AMBER) 

Off target (within 10% of 
target) 

7 14.9% 10 18.9% 

UNSATISFACTORY 
(RED) 

Off target (target missed 
by 10%+) 

20 42.55% 21 39.6% 

 Total 47 100% 53 100% 

Page 386



APPENDIX A 

 

 

3.5 There were 2 indicators which did not have data available at Q2, however these 
indicators are included for Q3.  

 

3.6 Trend data is available for 30 Corporate Plan indicators, comparing current 
performance to the same period last year. Trend analysis is only possible where 
verified quarterly data for the same period last year is available. Trend analysis 
for quarter 3 is set out in Table 3, with a comparison to the previous quarter:   

 

Table 3 

 

Measuring Performance against our Ways of Working 
 

3.7 This is the first year of developing indicators / commitments to demonstrate how the 
Council is performing against the five ways of working in the Corporate Plan. This 
remains a work in progress, but as a first step, in Q2 and Q3 we have reported on a 
number of PIs.  8 of these indicators have been reported on for Q3, 7 of which could 
be compared against target and awarded a RAYG status. This is shown in Table 4. 

 

Table 4 

Performance Indicators Trend Definition 

Trend 

PQ (Q2) Current (Q3) 

Number % Number % 

 
Performance has improved  13 54.2% 19 63.3% 

 
Performance maintained (includes those 

at maximum) 
0 - - - 

 
Declined performance (by less than 10%) 2 8.3% 5 16.7% 

 
Declined performance (by 10% or more) 9 37.5% 6 20% 

 Total 24 100% 30 100% 

Status Meaning of this status 

Performance 

PQ (Q2) Current (Q3)  

Number % Number % 

EXCELLENT 
(GREEN) 

On target and improved or 
is at maximum 

2 28.57% 2 28.57% 

GOOD  
(YELLOW) 

On target  2 28.57% 2 28.57% 

ADEQUATE 
(AMBER) 

Off target (within 10% of 
target) 

2 28.57% 2 28.57% 

UNSATISFACTORY 
(RED) 

Off target (target missed 
by 10%+) 

1 14.29% 1 14.29% 

 Total 7 100% 7 100% 

Page 387



APPENDIX A 

 

 

3.8 Trend data is available for 5 of the 8 ways of working indicators, comparing 
performance with the same period last year. Trend analysis is set out in Table 5:   

 

Table 5 

 

Summary of Sickness Absence 
 

3.9 Sickness absence is included as one of the ways of working PIs under Better and 
More Targeted use of Resources. The focus continues to be on trying to reduce 
sickness across the organisation, therefore no targets were set for the overall staff 
indicator or individual directorates. Staff wellbeing measures are in place and 
sickness continues to be closely monitored by Directorate Management Teams, 
Corporate Management Board, and at CPA.  

 
3.10 At Q3 cumulative days lost per FTE across the organisation is 8.77, showing an 

improved position compared with 9.77days for the same period last year, a 10.24% 
decrease, and a further improvement on the trend seen at Q2.  This improved trend 
is mirrored within the directorate data for both Social Services and Wellbeing and 
Education and Family Support, however a worsening trend compared to last year is 
seen in Chief Executives, Communities Directorate, and Schools.  The proportion of 
absences that are short-term at Q3 is 26%, which is the same as Q3 last year, but 
increased from the 23% reported at quarter 2 2023-24.  

 

  

Performance Indicators Trend Definition 

Trend  

PQ (Q2) Current (Q3) 

Number % Number % 

 
Performance has improved  2 40% 2 40% 

 Performance maintained (includes those at 

maximum) 
2 40% 2 40% 

 
Declined performance (by less than 10%) 1 20% 1 20% 

 
Declined performance (by 10% or more) - - - - 

 Total 5 100% 5 100% 

Page 388



APPENDIX A 

 

4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 

4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 
and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. 
It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 
result of this report. 

 

5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

 

5.1 This is report assists in measuring and monitoring progress made against the 
following corporate well-being objectives under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 that form the Council’s Corporate Plan 2023-28:-    

 

1. A County Borough where we protect our most vulnerable  

2. A County Borough with fair work, skilled, high-quality jobs and thriving towns 

3. A County Borough with thriving valleys communities  

4. A County Borough where we help people meet their potential  

5. A County Borough that is responding to the climate and nature emergency  

6. A County Borough where people feel valued, heard and part of their community 

7. A County Borough where we support people to live healthy and happy lives 

 

5.2 The 5 ways of working set out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
have also contributed to the Council developing its own five ways of working. The 
ways of driving and measuring those ways of working is also contained in the 
Corporate Plan Delivery Plan. 

 

 6. Climate Change Implications  
 

6.1 There are no specific implications of this report on climate change. However, some 
of the measures and projects included within the Corporate Plan 2023-28 and annual 
delivery plan for 2023-24 have been developed to help assess the Council’s 
performance on areas including climate change.   

 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 

7.1 There are no specific implications from this report on safeguarding or corporate 
parenting.  

 

8. Financial Implications 
 

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 

9. Recommendations 
 

9.1 The Committee is recommended to note the Council’s performance at quarter 3 for 
the year 2023-24.   

 

Background documents 
None 

Page 389



This page is intentionally left blank



   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

1 

 

 

Corporate Performance Dashboard  

 Quarter 3 2023-24 

 

 

 

 

P
age 391



   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

2 

KEY: 

 

How will we mark or score ourselves 

 

We have one simple scale for how we mark or score the council’s performance. Because overall 

judgements, commitments and performance indicators are measured differently, the colours or 

judgements have different descriptions depending on which type of performance you are reviewing.  

 

  What does this Status mean? 

 

Overall / self-

assessment 

performance  

Commitments, projects 

or improvement plans 

Performance 

Indicators 

COMPLETE 
(BLUE) 

Not applicable Project is completed Not applicable 

EXCELLENT 
(GREEN) 

Very strong, 

sustained 

performance and 

practice 

As planned - within 

timescales, on budget, 

achieving outcomes 

On target and 

performance has 

improved / is at 

maximum 

GOOD  
(YELLOW) 

Strong features, 

minor aspects may 

need improvement 

Minor issues. One of the 

following applies - 

deadlines show slippage, 

project is going over 

budget or risk score 

increases 

On target 

ADEQUATE 
(AMBER) 

Needs improvement. 

Strengths outweigh 

weaknesses, but 

important aspects 

need improvement 

Issues – More than one of 

the following applies - 

deadlines show slippage, 

project is going over 

budget or risk score 

increases 

Off target (within 10% of 

target) 

UNSATISFACTORY 
(RED) 

Needs urgent 

improvement. Weakn

esses outweigh 

strengths 

Significant issues – 

deadlines breached, 

project over budget, risk 

score up to critical or 

worse 

Off target (target missed 

by 10%+) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For performance indicators, we will also show trends in performance so you can see how we are doing 

compared with the same period last year.  

 

Trend Meaning 

 Improved performance 

 Maintained performance (includes those at maximum) 

 Declined performance (by less than 10%) 
 

 Declined performance (by 10% or more) 
 

 

Trend Performance Indicator types 

CP Corporate Plan Indicator 

WoW Ways of Working Indicator 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 392



   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 393



   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

4 

WBO1: A County Borough where we protect our most vulnerable 

WBO1.1: Providing high-quality children’s and adults social services and early help services to people who need them 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 

period last 
year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CH/026 
WBO1.1 

Safe reduction in the number of children on the 
child protection register (SSWB)  
Lower Preferred 

270 270 214 270 203 299 
 

Performance: On target 

DEFS29 
WBO1.1 

Percentage of completed TAF (Team Around the 
Family) support plans that close with a 
successful outcome (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

75% 72% 85% 72% 82% 75% 

 

 

Performance: There has been a slight decrease in the percentage of 
plans closed with a successful outcome from quarter 2 to quarter 3, 
however, the target of 72% continues to be exceeded. 

SSWB38c 
(AD/011c) 
WBO1.1 

Percentage of reablement packages completed 
that mitigated need for support (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

66.84% 68% 59.67% 68% 62.77% 67.33% 

 

 

Performance: Work is underway to "Reset Reablement" and improve 
access to services. 

SSWB39 
(CH/039) 
WBO1.1 

Safe Reduction in the number of Care 
Experienced Children (SSWB) 
Lower Preferred 

398 371 384 371 383 399 

 

 

Performance: Safely reducing numbers continues to be a challenge, 
mainly due to social worker capacity to prepare for court applications. 
We’ve made good progress with discharge of Care Orders and orders 
discharged at the first hearing. We have plans for ‘Placed with Parents’ 
with timescales for assessments and presentation to Care Order 
Discharge which ensures focus and timely movement of plans. Group 
Manager is currently developing the wider Safe Reduction strategy to 
provide a framework for activity relating to discharge of Care Orders and 
reduce numbers of children becoming looked after. 

SSWB55 
WBO1.1 

Percentage of carers who were offered a carer’s 
assessment (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

80% 100% 80% 100% 
New 

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: This is just children's performance. We are currently 
working with our IT department to resolve the reporting issues with this 
measure. A Carers action plan has been developed and is currently in 
progress. The recruitment of Carers champions in currently underway. 

SSWB57 
WBO1.1 

Percentage of enquiries to the Adult Social Care 
front door which result in information and advice 
only (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

70% 74.74% 70% 73.5% 
New 

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: On target 

SSWB61a 
WBO1.1 

Number of people who access independent 
advocacy to support their rights within:  
a) children’s social care (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred New 

2023-24 
185 20 138 33 

New 
2023-24 

N/A 

Performance: New processes are being developed to improve data and 
help us understand reasons for declined advocacy referrals. Information 
is being shared with Tros Gynnal (TGP) monthly in about children/Young 
People eligible for Active Offer and TGP will send prompts to the Social 
Worker to encourage referrals. The manager for TGP is attending Team 
Manager meetings in February and will go out to teams following this to 
promote. WCCIS forms are being developed to encourage offers and 
provide information on the response (mandatory fields). 

SSWB61b 
WBO1.1 

b) Adult’s social care (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

180 77 135 102 
New 

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Service currently operating at maximum capacity, targets 
to be reviewed 

SSWB76 
WBO1.1 

The total number of packages of reablement 
completed during the year (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

377 370 181 276 274 302 
 

Performance: Slightly under target, with small improvements in referral 
numbers. Efforts continue through the resetting reablement programme to 
increase the numbers accessing reablement prior to commencement of a 
long term package of care 

SSWB78a 
WBO1.1 

Timeliness of visits to a) children who are care 
experienced (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

81.13% 85% 80.99% 85% 82.7% 81.9% 
 

Performance: Team Managers report that the issues primarily relate to 
recording of visits due to social worker capacity. Group Managers and 
Team Managers are supporting social workers with strategies to enable 
them to have opportunities to bring recordings up to date. 

P
age 394

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4761&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4514&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4663&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4663&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4664&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4664&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4732&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4734&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4768&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4777&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4766&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4373&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

5 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 

period last 
year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

SSWB78b 
WBO1.1 

Timeliness of visits to b) children on the child 
protection register (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

82.14% 85% 84.24% 85% 85.17% 82.7% 
 

Performance: On target 

 

Commitments 

Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO1.1.1 Continue to improve early help 
services by increasing the number 
of team around the family (TAF) 
interventions that close with a 
positive outcome (EFS) 

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Between April and December 2023, 83% of Team Around the Family (TAF) interventions 
closed with a successful outcome and are currently on track to surpass the target set for the year. 
Existing terms and conditions of relevant job roles have been reviewed as part of the appraisal and 
job evaluation processes, to improve recruitment and retention of staff across Family Support 
Services. However, further advances in recruitment and restructure have been put on hold pending 
the impact of any wider service restructure linked to Children Social Services. 

 

WBO1.1.2 Help communities become more 
resilient, so more people will find 
help / support they need in their 
community, with the third sector 
(SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Community navigators are based within BAVO and being supported by regional integration 
fund investment. Local community co-ordinator roles are based within BCBC and part supported by 
Welsh Government investment and part via social care budget pressures to de-escalate needs within 
communities. The local community co-ordinators supported 163 individuals and the community 
navigators supported 104 people. There were 208 community connection opportunities identified 
supporting needs to be met in communities.  The recruitment exercise to expand the number of local 
community co-ordinators by 3 to support east and west clusters has progressed during Q3.   

Deploy new roles to support broader 
coverage across the County and develop 
cross sector working. 

WBO1.1.3 Support the wellbeing of unpaid 
carers, including young carers, to 
have a life beyond caring (SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: New Bridgend Carers Wellbeing Service was co-produced with unpaid carers and 
mobilised during quarter 1, expanding delivery in quarters 2 and 3. Services include information, 
advice and assistance, proportionate “what matters” conversations and signposting to support within 
communities. The new service continues to meet needs based on volume of engagement. There is 
additional work taking place with young carers beyond this via Prevention and Wellbeing service with 
380 young carers engaged and 668 individuals in young carers households supported.  At the end of 
Q3 we have already surpassed the annual targets we set for the service. 

The service is using technology to share 
information and advice, effectively backed 
up with face-to-face opportunities in a range 
of community settings. Annual target of 450 
carers supported has been exceeded. 
BCBC to continue to engage with and 
support young carers. 

WBO1.1.4 Improve Children’s Services by 
delivering the actions in our three-
year strategic plan (SSWB) 

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3: A detailed stocktake shows that we are largely on track to deliver the actions and 
outcomes set out for the first 6 months of the 3 year plan. 
  

Working with Bridgend college to encourage 
learners into Social Care careers. Event  
planned for March 2024. We are working 
with the marketing team on a strategy to 
promote working as a SW in BCBC, focused 
on a permanent workforce for IAA and other 
areas with high proportion of agency staff. 

WBO1.1.5 Improve adult social care with a 
new three-year strategic plan to 
tackle physical and mental health 
impacts of Covid-19 on people 
with care and support needs, and 
our workforce (SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Work has started and we are anticipating having the three year strategic plan to present at 
Scrutiny and with Partners in April 2024. 
  

Finalise the plan for consultation and 
engagement 

WBO1.1.6 Change the way our social 
workers work to build on people’s 
strengths and reflect what matters 
to our most vulnerable citizens, 
the relationships they have and 
help them achieve their potential 
(SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Children's- The implementation of the signs of safety approach is progressing well with 
staff commenting positively about the model. There is positive feedback being received from partner 
agencies in respect of the approach and its ability to place emphasis back on families in terms of risk 
and ongoing support. There are some ongoing challenges related to WCCIS and the development of 
forms to compliment implementation. The decision of Welsh Ministers regarding a new community 
care system, means there will be very limited developments to the current system which presents a 
significant risk.  
 

Adults - Practice model has been launched with social care staff across BCBC. A tailored launch 
event for providers has also been completed. The feedback from the providers event has fed into the 
course content of the ASC strength based training for practitioners. A 2 day training on ‘Strengths 

Children's- To develop an ongoing training 
plan in order to step-down consultant 
support  
 
 
 
 
 

Adults – ‘Strengths based, outcome focused 
practice’ training for ASC leaders to be 
delivered on 7th and 14th Feb 24. 

P
age 395

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4757&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1328&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1329&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1330&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1331&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1332&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1333&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

6 

Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

based, outcome focused practice’ specifically aimed at leaders across ASC has been designed and 
will be delivered in February 2024. 

WBO1.1.7 Address the gaps in social care 
services such as care and support 
at home, specialist care homes for 
children and adults and recruiting 
more foster families (SSWB) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: We continue to have a high number of children looked after in independent residential 
units and a smaller number of children supported in accommodation which is operating without 
registration. A number of actions have been identified and are being progressed. There continues to 
be challenges related to foster placements and the number available to meet the needs of children 
coming into the care system. We have a remodelling homecare programme which is underway. 

Commissioning plans to address service 
gaps will be considered by Cabinet in April. 
A plan to address pressures in children’s 
placements has been developed with a 
range of actions that are being monitored. 

 

WBO1.2: Supporting people in poverty to get the support they need / help they are entitled to 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CED43 
WBO1.2 

Percentage of people supported through FASS 
(Financial Assistance and Support Service) where 
support has resulted in increased income through claims 
for additional/increased benefits and allowances (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

60% 88% 60% 90% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Despite fewer citizens presenting to the service, in 
particular due to the Christmas period, the FASS service has continued 
to support clients to increase their income by claiming appropriate 
benefits. A positive upward trend which exceeds target evidences the 
positive impact of the service for the citizens of Bridgend. 

CED44 
WBO1.2 

Percentage of people supported through FASS who 
have received advice and support in managing or 
reducing household debt (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

60% 92% 60% 92% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Target exceeded 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO1.2.1 Support eligible residents to receive financial help 
through the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and to 
pay their energy bills by administering the UK 
Government’s Energy Bill Support Scheme (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The Energy Bill Support Scheme ended earlier in the year and all payments have been 
made. Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) applications are dealt with promptly, and at Q3 the 
average time (days) taken to process council tax reduction (CTR) new claims is 23.18 days, 
exceeding the target of 28 days and showing a trend of improving performance.  

 

WBO1.2.2 Raise awareness of financial support available to 
residents (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) have been successfully providing a 'Drop In' service. Due 
to the success, the service will be extended to 2 days a week to provide a “Debt Drop In” supporting 
those who have emergencies after the Christmas period. CAB are seeing a high number of clients 
applying for Personal Independence Payments (PIP) and challenging decisions with mandatory 
reconsiderations. Benefits are the highest issue clients attend with, followed by fuel debt. 

Milestones for the retendering 
of the FASS service to be 
revised based on funding 
from Welsh Government 
being less than expected. 

 

WBO1.3: Supporting people facing homelessness to find a place to live 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 

period last 
year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

DOPS39 
CP 
WBO1.3 

Percentage of people presenting as 
homeless or potentially homeless, 
for whom the Local Authority has a 
final legal duty to secure suitable 
accommodation (CEX) 
Lower Preferred 

7.6% 10% 23% 10% 30% 8.1% 

 

 

Performance: More households are presenting as homeless that have done in previous 
years. Private rented accommodation is no longer a good option as rents have increased 
beyond the affordability for our clients. Demand far outweighs supple of social housing. 
We have seen increases in larger households and households requiring accessible 
accommodation being made homeless. Again, demand outweighs supply. Changes to the 
priority need definitions in legislation has resulted in almost all presenting as homeless 

P
age 396

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1334&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4726&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4750&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1335&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1336&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4511&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

7 

PAM/012 
(DOPS15) 
WBO1.3 

Percentage of households 
threatened with homelessness 
successfully prevented from 
becoming homeless (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

19% 20% 9% 20% 11% 17.6% 

 

 

being accepted under a final homeless duty where homelessness cannot be prevented. In 
addition, there are additional cases presenting through leaving refugee schemes. There is 
a housing crisis across Wales resulting in the inability to prevent or relieve homelessness. 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO1.3.1 Develop a new homeless strategy with partners to deliver 
new projects to prevent and reduce homelessness (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Cabinet approved the Housing Support Programme Strategy 2022-26 
on the 19th December 2023. The strategy was submitted to Welsh Government. 

Implement the action plan for the Housing 
Support Programme Strategy 2022-26. 

 

WBO1.4: Supporting children with additional learning needs to get the best from their education 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 
RYAG vs 

Target 

Q3 22-
23 

(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DEFS164 
WBO1.4 

Percentage of schools that have 
an ALN policy in place (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-

24 

100% 
No data 
available 

100% 100% 

New  
2023-

24 

N/A 

Performance: As of November 2023, out of the 59 schools in consideration, 3 have a stand-alone ALN 
Policy and the other 56 have incorporated it within their Teaching and Learning policy, in line with the 
ALN code. 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO1.4.1 Provide training to at least 60 school-based 
staff about ALN reform and how to support 
children with Additional Learning Needs 
(ALN) (EFS) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: This commitment was concluded at quarter 2, as Headteachers and Additional Learning Needs Coordinators 
(ALNCos) have received detailed training on ALN reform as all Bridgend schools have progressed towards full 
implementation. Support is also available from the Central South Consortium (CSC), as is training with support material 
available on Hwb. Individual ALNCos monitor training and attendance of school-based staff, which is specific to each school. 

 

 

WBO1.5: Safeguarding and protecting people who are at risk of harm 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction 
vs same 

period last 
year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CH/003 
WBO1.5 

Children’s safeguarding referrals – decision 
making in 24 hours (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

99.53% 100% 99.64% 100% 99.67% 99.62% 

 

 

Performance: Just below target- 8755/8784 screened in compliance 

CORPB1 
WBO1.5 

Percentage of council staff completing 
safeguarding e-learning (including workbook)  
Higher Preferred 

77.33% 100% 78.78% 100% 80.03% 75.15% 

 

 

Performance: Although we're behind target, we are in an improved 
position compared to last quarter and compared to this time last year. 
We continue to flag awareness to managers and staff. 

SSWB62 
WBO1.5 

Percentage of child protection investigations 
completed within required timescales (SSWB) 

New  
2023-24 

Establishing 
Baseline 

Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

SSWB63 
WBO1.5 

Average waiting time on the Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) waiting list (SSWB) 
Lower Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

Establish 
Baseline 

14 
Establish 
Baseline 

20 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: There is no backlog as an agency was employed to 
assist with backlog of referrals.   

SSWB77 
WBO1.5 

Percentage of Adult safeguarding inquiries 
which receive initial response within 7 working 
days (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

84.19% 85% 83.18% 85% 83.66% 83.04% 
 

Performance: Slightly below target but improving. Longest waits are 
due to waiting for information from other partners e.g. Health. There has 
been a 40% increase in safeguarding reports compared to the same 
period in 2022-23. 

P
age 397

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4468&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4468&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1337&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4780&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1338&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4716&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4714&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4751&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4756&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4778&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

8 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO1.5.1 Work as one Council on a strategic 
plan to improve our safeguarding 
arrangements (SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Our Annual Corporate Safeguarding Report was presented to Cabinet in January, this 
reflected the current position in respect of safeguarding arrangements across the council. We also 
continue to hold regular Corporate Safeguarding board meetings to review safeguarding arrangements 
across the council with representation from all directorates analysing specific safeguarding data for 
each area. 

Continue to hold regular Corporate 
Safeguarding board forums to review 
safeguarding arrangements across the 
council with representation from all 
directorates. 

WBO1.5.2 Safeguard children, young people 
and adults at risk of exploitation 
(SSWB) AMBER 

(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: The local authority has implemented an exploitation panel with positive feedback being 
received by social workers and partner agencies in raising awareness and responses to children at risk 
of exploitation. There are 2 workers supporting this agenda. Further work is required to ensure those 
roles are delivered equitably across the local authority. SWP have undertaken some work in respect of 
missing persons. This is an area in the Joint Inspection of Child Protection Arrangements Action plan 
that will continue to be monitored in respect of implementation. 

To review line management 
arrangements of the exploitation workers 
and continue to work with partners in 
respect of missing young people. 

 

WBO1.6: Help people to live safely at home through changes to their homes 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year End 
22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction 
vs same 

period last 
year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CED45(a) 
WBO1.6 

The average number of 
calendar days taken to 
deliver a Disabled 
Facilities Grant (DFG) for 
(CEX): a) low level access 
showers Lower Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Baseline 
Setting 

598 
days 

210 
days 

523  
days 

New  
2023-24 

N/A 

Performance: A significant number of pre 2022 referrals for level access showers (LAS) have 
been completed and certified in the period to December 2023 to date. This is identified by the 
reduction in the average number of days taken to deliver the adaptation since Q2. Although the 
actual remains above target, the position will continue to present a positive position as the DFG 
Team address the referrals for LAS's awaiting allocation. The overall position for the average days 
for all adaptations collectively at the end of Q3 is 346 days. 

CED45(b) 
WBO1.6 

b) Stair lifts 
Lower Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Baseline 
Setting 

283 
days 

210 
days 

276  
days 

New  
2023-24 

N/A 

Performance: A significant number of pre 2022 referrals for stairlifts have been completed and 
certified in the period to December 2023 to date. This is identified by the reduction in the average 
number of days taken to deliver the adaptation since Q2. Although the actual remains above 
target, the position will continue to present a positive position following receipt of a number of 
quotations for stairlifts being received in readiness for works to commence in Q4. The overall 
position for the average days for all adaptations collectively at the end of Q3 is 346 days. 

CED45(c) 
WBO1.6 

c) ramps 
Lower Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Baseline 
Setting 

592 
days 

210 
days 

455  
days 

New  
2023-24 

N/A 

Performance: A number of pre 2022 referrals for ramps have been completed and certified in the 
period to December 2023 to date. This is identified by the reduction in the average number of 
days taken to deliver the adaptation since Q2. The position is expected to further improve during 
the next quarter with a number of referrals currently awaiting allocation. The overall position for 
the average days for all adaptations collectively at the end of Q3 is 346 days.  

CED45(d) 
WBO1.6 

d) extensions 
Lower Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Baseline 
Setting 

0  
days 

210 
days 

796  
days 

New  
2023-24 

N/A 

Performance: One extension has been certified as complete in Q3, where the application was 
received in 2019, resulting in an increase in the average number of days since Q2. The overall 
position for the average days for all adaptations collectively at the end of Q3 is 346 days. 

DOPS41 
WBO1.6 

Percentage of people who 
feel they are able to live 
more independently as a 
result of receiving a DFG 
(CEX) Higher Preferred 

data not 
available 

98% 
data not 
available 

98% 96.15% 
data not 
available 

N/A 

Performance: After implementing a new satisfaction tracking system, we are able to report the 
percentage of people who are able to live independently following implementation of adaptations 
to their home. One client reported that they were neither satisfied nor dissatisfied with the 
implementation of their adaptation, resulting in actual being slightly below target. 

 
  

P
age 398

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1393&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1339&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4752&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4794&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4795&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4797&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4512&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

9 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO1.6.1 Improve the process and 
access to grants for older 
and disabled people who 
need to make changes to 
their home (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) service has been strengthened by the employment of a DFG caseworker, who commenced in 
post in December 2023. The caseworker is a key role which underpins the process of a DFG adaptation, from point of engagement of an 
Occupational Therapist through to completion and certification of adaptations to a client’s home. The caseworker encourages an innovative, 
outcome focused, multi-agency approach to the provision of the DFG service, ensuring initiatives are delivered effectively and efficiently. Both 
the implementation of a new software system and employment of the DFG caseworker has allowed the service to make full use of the capital 
budget available to make adaptations to homes. 

 

 

WBO1.7: Support partners to keep communities safe 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction 
vs same 

period last 
year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CED46 
WBO1.7 

Number of instances where CCTV supports 
South Wales Police in monitoring incidents 
(CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Baseline 
Setting 

516 
Baseline 
Setting 

733 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Currently collecting baseline information. 

CORPB2 
WBO1.7 

Percentage of council staff completing Violence 
Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence (VAWDASV) training (Level 1)  
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

100% 74.3% 100% 75.14% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Although we are behind target, we are in an improved position 
compared to last quarter. We continue to flag awareness to managers and 
staff. 

DEFS161 
WBO1.7 

Percentage of children being released from 
custody who attend a suitable education, 
training and employment (ETE) arrangement 
(EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

100% DATA NOT REPORTED 

Performance: Current children in custody figures are extremely low, 
therefore there are GDPR implications in reporting this data   

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO1.7.1 Invest £750K ‘safer streets’ 
funding into extra CCTV, 
youth activities and 
women’s self-defence 
classes (CED) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: We have implemented additional fixed CCTV cameras in key areas following consultation with officers in BCBC, police and third 
sector, as well as purchasing additional re-deployable CCTV cameras to deter offenders’ behaviour, provide evidential capture and reassure 
communities. New CCTV signage was also produced and installed across the County Borough in these areas.  Women’s self-defence classes 
have been delivered, most recently in August/September 2023 (8 Courses with 108 female delegates). This training for women and young girls 
has improved their quality of life, improved their confidence, and reduced chances of them becoming a victim of violence. There will be ongoing 
benefits/value via DA Advisors who attended the inputs and will be able to pass this advice on to others/victims. 

 

WBO1.7.2 Identify children who are 
more likely to offend and 
provide them with support 
to reduce offending 
behaviour (EFS) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: The multi-agency prevention panel meets regularly and from the end of January 2024, will take place weekly, to incorporate diversion 
cases and to include colleagues from Children Social Care / Early Help. The Trauma Recovery Model is now embedded as part of the Youth 
Endowment Fund ''Relationship Building Together Project'', and is now live and operating across Early Help, Edge of Care, Youth Justice and 
Youth Support Services. Systems are now in place to ensure that a resettlement plan is in place from the initial custody planning meeting to 
include education, training and employment (ETE), and other issues such as accommodation are factored into the intervention plan. 

 

 

  

P
age 399

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1340&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4754&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4722&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4781&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1341&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1342&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

10 

WBO2: A County Borough with fair work, skilled, high-quality jobs and thriving towns 

WBO2.1: Helping our residents get the skills they need for work 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

DEFS82 
WBO2.1 

Number of Employability Bridgend 
programme participants going into 
employment (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

392 350 201 263 288 304 

 

 

Performance: Progress has been slower than we would like due to the significant changes in our 
funded projects this year, transferring from the previous EU funded projects to new UK 
Government and Welsh Government projects from 1st April 2023. This has meant changes to how 
we measure our project outcomes, and a significant impact and staffing levels within the team at 
the beginning of the year due to funding uncertainty as 63 out of 64 posts are not core funded.  

DEFS84 
WBO2.1 

Number of under-employed 
participants leaving Employability 
Bridgend with an improved labour 
market position (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

107 100 7 75 72 48 

 

 

Performance: See progress comments for DEFS82 (above). 

SSWB64 
WBO2.1 

Number of referrals to the 
employment service in ARC 
(SSWB) Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Establish 
Baseline 

92 
Establish 
Baseline 

148 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Currently establishing baseline in order to assess effectiveness of this service, 
following one year's worth of data will be able to benchmark going forward 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO2.1.1 Invest £22m of Shared Prosperity Funding in projects in the 
County Borough by 2025, with third sector partners, 
including in people and skills, supporting local businesses, 
and developing communities and place (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: A number of grant schemes have been launched successfully, and information sessions 
held with third sector and Town and Community Councils. Applications now being received, and 
assessments are underway against funding criteria. Quarterly reporting to funders also being 
undertaken. 

 

WBO2.1.2 Employability Bridgend will work with funders and partners, 
including the Inspire to Work Project to deliver a 
comprehensive employability and skills programme 
(COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: We continue to work in partnership with public and third sector groups to deliver the 
employability programme. This includes, Careers Wales, BAVO, DWP and the members of the 
Bridgend Employability Network. Monthly meetings take place, and we are working on joint events 
such as a creative expo and jobs fairs. 

 

WBO2.1.3 Help people with support needs to overcome barriers to 
work and get jobs (SSWB) 

GREEN 

(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: This work is being progressed as part of the review of day opportunities. Relationships with 
employability need to be strengthened and actions have been progressed to this effect. 

Working group to 
implement the plan. 

 

WBO2.2: Making sure our young people find jobs, or are in education or training 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period Target Actual 

DEFS80 
WBO2.2 

Number of Employability Bridgend programme 
participants supported into education or training (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

387 727 33 545 73 279 

 

 

Performance: See progress comments for DEFS82 
(above). 

PAM/046 
WBO2.2 

The percentage of Year 11 leavers from schools in the 
authority identified as not being in education, employment 
or training (NEET) in the Careers Wales Annual 
Destination Survey Statistics (EFS) 
Lower Preferred 

1.6% 1.5% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

P
age 400

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4599&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4601&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4760&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1343&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1344&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1345&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4597&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4648&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

11 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO2.2.1 Increase employment and training 
opportunities in the County Borough for young 
people aged 16 to 24 years old (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: A comprehensive marketing and promotion campaign aimed at engaging young people has been 
developed including key messages focused at this cohort. We work with other agencies such as Careers Wales to 
provide advice and guidance to young people. 

 

WBO2.2.2 Employ and develop a well-motivated, well 
supported, qualified social care workforce in 
the Council and with partners. Fill vacancies 
in our social care services and reduce 
dependence on agency workers (SSWB) 

GREEN 

(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Good progress is being made to address vacancies, and we have seen a significant reduction in children’s 
social worker vacancies. We have introduced dedicated marketing capacity, a focus on wellbeing – Social Worker and 
OT Charter, a successful grow your own scheme, flexible working and a focus on management & leadership 
development. In children’s social care there is a Memorandum of Cooperation with other Welsh LAs for enhanced 
management of the agency market, an agreed exit plan for managed team in MASH/IAA, good progress with 
international recruitment – 11 offers, 8 appointees in post, social work support workers implemented, a new workforce 
operating model linked to 3 year strategic plan being finalised and a market supplement for hard to recruit to teams. In 
adult social care, a new operating mode has been implemented, social care apprentices appointed and new rota 
arrangements for care and support staff. 

Continue to 
progress the 
actions that are 
impacting 
positively on 
retention and 
recruitment. 

WBO2.2.3 Bridgend Music Service will further develop 
links with universities and conservatoires to 
develop music skills in young people that lead 
to jobs (EFS) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: Links are already in place with the British Army and the Royal Welsh College of Music and Drama, and 
Bridgend Music Service continues to maintain links with the Seren Network. A link has been established with BBC 
National Orchestra of Wales, to provide opportunities for learners to work side by side with professional musicians, 
and to learn about wider job opportunities within the classical music sector. 

 

 

WBO2.3: Improving our town centres, making them safer and more attractive 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO2.3.1 Deliver a further £1.3m of Transforming Towns investment 
across our town centres in partnership with Welsh Government 
over the next three years to improve the economic 
sustainability of our town centres (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: We are continuing to make good progress on this commitment in Q3. 
Placemaking engagement activities for Maesteg have been undertaken and the strategy is 
now being developed. The availability of grant funds for commercial properties in town 
centres is being advertised and officers are engaging with interested parties to assist in the 
process. Existing schemes that have been previously funded are nearing completion, 
including the large mixed-use unit previously known as Family Value in Maesteg Town 
Centre. 

 

WBO2.3.2 Prioritise the replacement of the Penprysg Road Bridge and 
removal of the level crossing in Pencoed and seek funding 
from UK Government for this project (COMM) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: No change from Q2 in that no resources or budget identified to progress project. Continue to investigate 
funding options and 
partnership working with 
UK Government, Welsh 
Government / Transport 
for Wales. 

WBO2.3.3 Redevelop Bridgend Central Station including improving the 
front public area with a transport interchange at the rear, 
providing links between bus services and trains, in partnership 
with Welsh Government and Network Rail (COMM) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: No change from Q2 in that no resources or budget identified to progress project. 

 

WBO2.4: Attracting investment and supporting new and existing local businesses 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target Q3 22-23 

(same period 
last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DCO23.03 
WBO2.4 

Number of businesses receiving support 
through Shared Prosperity Funding (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-

24 

20 0 15 13 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: The figure is lower than predicted due to the programme being 
in the development stage during Q1 and Q2, going live on 13th September 
2023. We have now actively processed applications and awarded 13 grants at 
the end of Q3. We expect to reach the Q4 target given the current demand. 

DCO23.04 
WBO2.4 

Number of business start-ups assisted (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-

24 

52 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

P
age 401

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1346&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1347&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1348&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1349&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1350&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1351&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4730&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4731&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

12 

CED47 
WBO2.4 

Number of local businesses attending 
procurement workshops (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-

24 

Baselin
e 

Setting 

 

Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED48 
WBO2.4 

Percentage local spend on low value purchases 
and contracts under £100,000 (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

2.93% 4% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO2.4.1 Invest in business start-ups in the County Borough by 
providing both professional and grant support, 
supporting key growth sectors like research and 
development, finance and the green economy (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Grant funds launched in Q2 and officers are now in post. The new Shared 
Prosperity Fund business support programme has been launched and the business start-
up support programme is well underway. We also have bi-monthly grant panel meetings 
that will continue throughout 2024. 

 

WBO2.4.2 Helping local businesses to tender for public sector work 
through our Supplier Relation Management (SRM) 
project and external procurement webpage, supporting 
local businesses to be viable post-covid (CEX) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: We continue to work on the SRM project and now have our external 
procurement webpage live. However, we're not yet in a position to start promoting the 
webpage to the supply chain due to staffing and capacity. We are also unable to set up 
any workshops due to these issues. 

Arrange workshops and promote 
the external procurement page to 
the supply chain. 

WBO2.4.3 Work with the Cardiff City Region (CCR) and its 10 local 
authorities to think regionally about planning, transport 
and economic development (COMM) 

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Regional engagement with Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) ongoing to monitor 
developments and disseminate information with officers and members. Continued 
attendance at Welsh Government working group, with key members of local authorities to 
look at the implications of the Corporate Joint Committee (CJC) having strategic 
responsibility for economic development, transport and planning. 

Continue to attend the 
development sessions to inform 
the regional thinking of ahead of 
the formation of the new CJC. 

 

WBO2.5: Making the council an attractive place to work 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CED50 
WBO2.5 

Number of sign up of new subscribers to the staff extranet (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

Baseline 
Setting 

0 
Baseline 
Setting 

0 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Currently in development to 
allow non desktop users to access the staff 
intranet 

CED29(a) 
WBO2.5 

The proportion of staff reporting through survey that they agree or 
strongly agree with the statement (CEX):  
a) I feel every department is working towards the same common goal 
Higher Preferred 

41% 42% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED29(b) 
WBO2.5 

b) I am satisfied with BCBC as an employer 
Higher Preferred 

67% 74% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED29(c) 
WBO2.5 

c) Working here makes me want to perform to the best of my ability 
Higher Preferred 

77% 79% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED29(d) 
WBO2.5 

d) I feel that BCBC values its employees ideas and opinions 
Higher Preferred 

40% 48% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED29(e) 
WBO2.5 

e) Do you think there are opportunities for two-way communication to 
discuss and raise ideas and issues? 
Higher Preferred 

84% 85% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED49(a) 
WBO2.5 

Percentage of staff reporting through survey that they agree or strongly 
agree with the statement (CEX):  
a) I feel supported to manage my personal wellbeing whilst in work 
Higher Preferred 

70% 71% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED49(b) 
WBO2.5 

b) The council is dedicated to taking positive action to support 
employees achieve a positive sense of wellbeing in their working lives. 
Higher Preferred 

53% 54% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

P
age 402

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4755&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4758&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1352&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1353&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1354&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4810&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4586&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4587&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4588&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4589&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4590&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4762&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4763&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

13 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO2.5.1 Improve the Council ’s culture as an employer, offering fair 
work opportunities to current and potential 
employees.  Use the views of our workforce to make 
improvements, develop and motivate employees and 
improve staff retention (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: A new Employee Assistance Programme, provided by Vivup was launched in December 2023. 
Work continues on the menopause and carers protocol. Further positive progress continues with the ''Grow 
your Own'' programme. The corporate investment in apprenticeships continues to make a positive impact 
and a further 3 new apprentices were appointed in Q3. We continue to promote all the savings and benefits 
that come from Brivilege rewards to assist with the Cost of Living crisis. 

 

 

WBO2.6: Ensuring employment is fair, equitable and pays at least the real living wage 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & Aim PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target 
Q3 22-23 (same 
period last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

CED54 
WBO2.6 

Number of real living wage employers identified (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

235 249 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO2.6.1 Encourage our suppliers to become real living 
wage employers (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Our position at Q3 hasn't changed since Q2. We are continuing to work with our supply chain with 
encouraging employers to offer training that is up-to-date and relevant for employees. We are still working with our 
suppliers to become accredited and now ask suppliers to tell us if they are RLW employers. 

 

WBO2.6.2 Encourage employers to offer growth/training 
options to employees (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: We are continuing to work with our suppliers and ask through our tender documentation about training staff 
and keeping this relevant and up-to-date. 

 

 

  

P
age 403

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1355&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4818&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1356&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1357&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

14 

WBO3: A County Borough with thriving valleys communities 

WBO3.1: Investing in town centres, including Maesteg town centre 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & Aim PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period last 

year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DCO23.01 
WBO3.1 

Number of commercial properties assisted through the enhancement grant 
scheme (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

2 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO3.1.1 Complete a Placemaking Strategy for Maesteg town 
centre to improve the environment and support future 
investment bids (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: A draft version of the placemaking strategy is now 
be prepared based on the evidence gathered during the 
engagement sessions with the community in Maesteg. 

 

WBO3.1.2 Develop a commercial property enhancement grant for all 
valley high streets, to make them look better and bring 
properties back into commercial use (COMM) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: This work has still not commenced, as it will be an 
integral part of the Valleys Regeneration Strategy that is being 
developed. 

Engagement sessions have taken place across all valley 
communities and now a draft strategy will be prepared for 
consultation later this year. 

 

WBO3.2: Creating more jobs in the valleys 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO3.2.1 Develop funding bids for our valleys, to enhance the 
economy and stimulate new job opportunities 
(COMM) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: This work has still not commenced, as it will be an integral part 
of the Valleys Regeneration Strategy that is being developed. 

Engagement sessions have taken place across all 
valley communities and now a draft strategy will be 
prepared for consultation later this year. 

WBO3.2.2 Increase the amount of land and premises available 
for businesses, including industrial starter units, in 
the Valleys (COMM) 

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3:  No change to Q2 due to resources available however suitable 
sites have been identified.    

Feasibility work required to cost the proposals, 
including design and build options.  

WBO3.2.3 Provide new facilities for supported training for 
people with learning disabilities at Wood B and B-
Leaf in Bryngarw (SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The focus is a feasibility study on what might be achievable, 
indicative costs and sources of funding.  During Q3 the feasibility tender 
has been issued on Sell2wales by Awen and tenders have been received.    

Work in partnership with Awen to progress 
feasibility study to RIBA 3 and identify options for 
investment 

 

WBO3.3: Improving community facilities and making them more accessible 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period last 

year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DCO23.11 
WBO3.3 

Value of investment with Community Asset 
Transfers (CATs) in Valleys (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

£200,000 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

SSWB65 
WBO3.3 

Number of visits to venues for all purposes (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

Establish 
Baseline 

172,394 
Establish 
Baseline 

249,352 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Establishing baseline 

 

P
age 404

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4728&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1358&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1359&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1360&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1361&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1362&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4742&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4764&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

15 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO3.3.1 Progress with Community Asset Transfers in 
the valleys, including Llangynwyd Playing 
Fields, to protect these valuable community 
assets for future generations (COMM) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: Two transfers have been finalised with ongoing delays due to property issues and staff 
shortages which has impacted upon the number of self-management agreements being agreed which 
need be resolved by the end of 2023-24. Cymru Football Foundation have allocated funding of 
£296,662 to develop the pavilion at Llangynwyd Playing Fields with additional funding also to be 
provided under Community Facilities Programme. 

Continue working with communities 
to transfer assets and complete as 
many CATs by the end of 2023-24. 

WBO3.3.2 Redevelop the Ewenny Road site, including 
new and affordable homes, an enterprise 
hub, open space and green infrastructure, in 
partnership with the adjoining landowner 
(COMM) 

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Good progress in Q3 with outline Planning Consent for a mixed-use development being 
granted by Development Control Committee in January 2024. Discussion with funders CCR on 
timescales and work commencing on tendering for decontamination and remediation of the site. 

 

WBO3.3.3 Deliver additional activities in community 
venues in the Valleys, including digital 
activities (SSWB) AMBER 

(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: We continue to work with key partners and stakeholders to improve and increase access to 
leisure, cultural and community place-based opportunities and continue to increase connections to 
communities.  During Q3 we have secured funding from the Resilient Communities Fund to engage 
and support work with Community Groups to develop digital activities.  A tender has been issued to 
help create and stream content of interest to a number of community venues to test potential for digital 
activities closer to home. Other activities in valleys-based libraries have attracted 3462 visits at Bettws 
and Maesteg via AWEN plus 3544 at Ogmore and Garw Valley via Halo Leisure during Q3. 

This is a planning phase and project 
delivery is intended to take place in 
2024-25 using external funding 
support via shared prosperity fund. 
A development plan has been 
created. Community venues are 
facing a challenging time. 

WBO3.3.4 Increase participation in physical and mental 
wellbeing programmes and leisure activities 
at Maesteg Town Hall, Garw and Ogmore 
Valley Life Centre, Maesteg Swimming Pool 
and Maesteg Sports Centre (SSWB) 

GREEN 

(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The focus remains on developing opportunities that build social connections and mental 
wellbeing. Total visits at halo operated facilities are 76.4k visits in Q3, and over 253k visits for the year 
to date, with growth in 3 of 4 locations. Sport Wales have agreed the completion of investment at 
Maesteg Sports Centre (£200k) and new investment secured for Ogmore Valley Centre (£108k). 
Planning and tender development progressing regarding YBC at Bryncethin for outdoor space. HALO 
Leisure have installed new fitness equipment at Ogmore and Garw in quarter 3.  

Plan for programming and 
increasing usage at identified 
centres. BCBC is proposing reduced 
hours if unproductive at some 
venues going forward. 

 

WBO3.4: Improving education and skills in the Valleys 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO3.4.1 Establish three new Flying Start 
provisions, offering free childcare for 
two-year-olds in Nantymoel, Ogmore 
Vale and Pontycymmer (EFS) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: Flying Start Nurseries at Pontycymmer, Nantymoel and Ogmore Vale 
are now fully registered with Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) and all are operating 
morning and afternoon sessions of 2.5 hours. A total of 51 children are currently in 
attendance across the three settings. 

 

WBO3.4.2 Open Welsh-medium childcare in the 
Ogmore Valley and Bettws, with 32 
full-time-equivalent childcare places 
(EFS) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: The documentation needed to tender the opportunity at Bettws has not 
been completed and no timeframe has been provided for completion. A paper is 
being prepared to consider using Blackmill setting as a late-immersion centre. 

Continue to liaise with Corporate Landlord / Legal around 
completion of the tender documents. Complete the 
required documents for consideration of the use of the 
Blackmill setting as a late-immersion centre. 

 

WBO3.5: Investing in our parks and green spaces and supporting tourism to the valleys 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO3.5.1 Develop a regeneration strategy for the valleys (including 
Ogmore and Garw Valleys) (COMM) 

YELLOW  
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Good progress in Q3 with engagement sessions held with local communities across all 
valleys to assess local needs. This will inform the regeneration strategy moving forward. 

 

WBO3.5.2 Work with the Cwm Taf Nature Network Project to improve 
access to high quality green spaces (COMM) 

YELLOW  
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Good progress in Q3. Project Manager now in place for the new Green Space Enhancement 
Project (Shared Prosperity Fund) and now working with partners to deliver the activities. 

 

 

  

P
age 405

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1363&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1364&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1365&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1366&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1367&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1368&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1369&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1370&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

16 

 

WBO3.6: Encourage the development of new affordable homes in the valleys 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 (same 
period last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

CED55 
WBO3.6 

Number of additional affordable homes provided by 
Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) in the Valleys (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

20 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO3.6.1 Promote and encourage the development of new social 
housing in the valleys (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: We are currently continuing to attend monthly meetings with Registered 
Social Landlords (RSLs) and also meeting quarterly with Welsh Government to 
identify opportunities within the Valley and across Bridgend County Borough. 

 

WBO3.6.2 Encourage the development of self-build homes on infill 
plots, to increase the range of housing available (COMM) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: No change to Q2, in that no resource allocated to start this work. Seek an appropriate resource to 
allow this work to continue. 

 

 

  

P
age 406

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4819&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1371&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1372&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

17 

WBO4: A County Borough where we help people meet their potential 

WBO4.1: Providing safe, supportive schools with high quality teaching 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DEFS155 
WBO4.1 

Percentage of schools that have self-evaluated 
themselves as ‘green’ as part of their annual 
safeguarding audit (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

90% 100% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

DEFS156 
WBO4.1 

Number of schools judged by Estyn to be in 
‘significant improvement’ or ‘special measures’ (EFS) 
Lower Preferred 

0 0 1 0 1 0 
 

Performance: As concluded in the May 2023 Estyn inspection, Caerau 
Primary School is currently in need of ‘special measures’. Caerau 
Primary School’s post-inspection action plan (PIAP) and the local 
authority statement of action have both been approved by Estyn. Central 
South Consortium (CSC) and the local authority continue to work closely 
with Caerau Primary School to support them with their PIAP. 

EDU010a 
WBO4.1 

The percentage of school days lost due to fixed-term 
exclusions during the academic year, in primary 
schools. (EFS) 
Lower Preferred 

0.02% 0.02% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

EDU010b 
WBO4.1 

The percentage of school days lost due to fixed-term 
exclusions during the academic year, in secondary 
schools (EFS). 
Lower Preferred 

0.164% 0.12% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

EDU016a 
(PAM/007) 
WBO4.1 

Percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools 
(EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

N/A 90% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

EDU016b 
(PAM/008) 
WBO4.1 

Percentage of pupil attendance in secondary 
schools(EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

N/A 90% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

PAM032 
WBO4.1 

Average Capped 9 Score for pupils in Year 11 (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

N/A 
Baseline 
setting 

Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.1.1 Help schools achieve their improvement 
plans by analysing needs and offering 
training to address this, ensuring that all 
schools will be judged by Estyn as ‘not 
requiring any follow-up’ (EFS) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Improvement Partners have collated and analysed all school priorities from schools not 
taking ‘Action Short of Strike Action’ (ASOS) to ensure that the professional learning is appropriate. 
An extensive professional learning programme has been devised and has been promoted to 
schools to support strategic priorities. There have been many bespoke support requests received 
from Bridgend Schools this financial year to support the delivery of their strategic priorities. 

 

WBO4.1.2 Ensure all local schools are rated as 
green following their safeguarding audit 
and provide support they need to improve 
(EFS) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: All school safeguarding audits are complete and have been quality assured by the 
Education Engagement Team (EET) coordinators. No school or significant areas of concern have 
been identified. The data is currently being analysed and the outcomes will be available from 
February 2024. 

 

WBO4.1.3 Make additional digital learning training 
available to all school staff to improve 
teaching and learning in our schools 
(EFS) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The Digital Lead Officer for Bridgend has offered schools bespoke professional learning 
including digital competency training, google classroom and digital platform training, Curriculum for 
Wales skills mapping and online safety training (also provided to governors). Professional learning 
and digital update and information presentations have been provided to Bridgend Governors 
Association 2023-2024, Team Bridgend, and schools, through the Digital Leaders Network. Further 

 

P
age 407

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4721&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4786&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4362&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4363&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4358&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4358&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4359&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4359&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4550&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1373&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1374&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1375&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

18 

bespoke packages relating to technology support for Hwb tools and resources have been provided 
to specific schools/clusters. 

WBO4.1.4 Improve the digital offer to young people, 
including youth led interactive website 
(EFS) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: There has been some delay in progress of the website throughout the year, however, 
work is ongoing to create content for a draft website to be created by the end of January 2024. This 
will be taken to the 'young editors' group for discussion and critic, with a view for launch by the end 
of March 2024. The 'young editors' group is established and meet weekly, and work continues to try 
to increase membership with links being formed with local college and school settings. 

Workers to connect with school social 
media / marketing reps at local schools 
for support with advertising and meet 
third sector youth organisations. The 
team to attend all open access provision 
to engage with young people in taster 
sessions 

 

 

WBO4.2: Improving employment opportunities for people with learning disabilities 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.2.1 Give young adults with learning disabilities a chance 
to try activities, gain new skills and fulfil their potential 
working across the Council and partners (SSWB) 

GREEN  
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: This work is being progressed as part of the review of day opportunities. Relationships with 
employability need to be strengthened.  Learning Disability transformation programme has been 
established. One of the key workstreams is the transformation of day time occupation for people. This 
work involves key partners such as Cwmpas, Awen Cultural Trust and Bridgend College.  

Working group to 

meet and implement 

the working plan 

 

WBO4.3: Expanding Welsh medium education opportunities 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 (same 
period last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

DEFS138 
WBO4.3 

Percentage of Year 1 learners taught through the medium of Welsh (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

8.04% 8.7% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

DEFS157 
WBO4.3 

Percentage of learners studying for assessed qualifications through the 
medium of Welsh at the end of Key Stage 4 (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

7.16% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

DEFS158 
WBO4.3 

Number of learners studying for Welsh as a second language (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

1,437 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.3.1 Deliver the actions in the 
Welsh Language Promotion 
Strategy and WESP (EFS) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The Welsh Language Promotion Strategy remains on target. Actions within the strategy align with targets set within the Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan (WESP). We are currently awaiting confirmation of Welsh Government grants for 2024-2025 to ensure staffing can 
be maintained for progress to continue. Progress has been made establishing a late immersion programme as well as the recruitment of a 
teacher and additional support staff. 

 

 

WBO4.4: Modernising our school buildings 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.4.1 Enlarge Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr to a 2.5 form-entry 
new build off Ffordd Cadfan in Brackla (EFS) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: School transport parking areas have now been agreed by the School Transport 
Advisory Group. Although the decision has been received, the delay has impacted on 
progressing the design development as per the programme. 

Conclude the pre-application 
consultation ahead of submitting 
a planning application. 

WBO4.4.2 Provide a new build for Mynydd Cynffig Primary 
School at the junior site in Kenfig Hill (EFS) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: The pre-application consultation for planning concluded in quarter 3. However, 
there is a delay in submitting the planning application. This will also delay the tender process, 
which can only commence following planning approval. 

Submit a planning application. 

P
age 408

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1376&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1377&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4688&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4787&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4788&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1378&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1379&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1380&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

19 

WBO4.4.3 Enlarge Ysgol Ferch o’r Sger to a two form-entry new 
build on the existing school site (EFS) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: The pre-application consultation for planning concluded in quarter 3. However, the 
planning application submission has been delayed in order to allow time for a review of the 
elemental cost plan (supplied by the contractor) to take place. 

Conclude a review of the 
elemental cost plan. 

WBO4.4.4 Provide a new two form entry English-medium school 
at Marlas Estate, Cornelly, to replace the existing 
Afon Y Felin and Corneli Primary Schools (EFS) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: The pre-application consultation for planning concluded in quarter 3. However, 
there has been a delay in submitting the planning application, so that a review of the 
elemental cost plan (supplied by the contractor) is undertaken. 

Conclude a review of the 
elemental cost plan. 

WBO4.4.5 Relocate Heronsbridge School to a new build 300 
place school at Island Farm (EFS) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: The outcome of RIBA Stage 2 (that is, concept design and cost plan) was 
reported to Cabinet and Corporate Management Board (CCMB) in quarter 3. CCMB 
requested further information regarding capital projects to inform decision making, which has 
also been undertaken during this period. Commencement of the tender process and RIBA 
stage 3 can only commence following approval of the Outline Business Case (OBC). 

Once the Outline Business Case 
(OBC) has been approved, the 
tender process can commence 
to appoint a design and build 
contractor. 

 

WBO4.5: Attract and retain young people into BCBC employment 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 (same 
period last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

CED56 
WBO4.5 

Percentage of those concluding apprenticeships and 
obtaining a non-apprentice role (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

70.8% 75% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DOPS36 
WBO4.5 

The number of apprentices employed across the 
organisation (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

36 39 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.5.1 Work with local schools to promote 
the Council as an employer and 
promote apprenticeships (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Learning and Development (L&D) continue to engage regularly with schools via the termly Directors Report to schools. 
During quarter 3 the team have attended options and careers events at Pencoed Comprehensive and Bridgend College (Pencoed 
Campus) promoting the apprenticeship offer including specific roles in engineering.  Plans are in place to attend the Porthcawl Jobs 
Fair and an options event at Coleg Cymunedol Y Dderwen (CCYD) during quarter 4.   

 

 

WBO4.6: Offering youth services and school holiday programmes for our young people 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

SSWB66 
WBO4.6 

Participation in targeted activities for people with additional or diverse needs 
(SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Establish 
Baseline 

177 
Establish 
Baseline 

282 New 2023-24 N/A 

Performance: Establishing 
baseline 

SSWB67 
WBO4.6 

Participation in the national free swimming initiative for 16 and under (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Establish 
Baseline 

Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

SSWB68 
WBO4.6 

Participation in active for life and holiday playworks programmes (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

Establish 
Baseline 

Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4  

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.6.1 Make our leisure and culture 

programmes more accessible 
GREEN 

(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: All schemes have been completed as planned. Active 4 Life schemes operated at 8 locations in 
partnership with town and community councils with demand significantly exceeding previous years. Junior free 
swimming supported 3340 additional visits in quarter 3 with a year to date total of 15725.  Discovery programmes 
continue to support young people with additional needs and families. 22 young people with complex needs were 

Review performance and implications 
for planning for 2024 particularly 
regarding funding. Review future use 
of free swimming subsidy based on 

P
age 409

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1381&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1382&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1383&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4820&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4510&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1384&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4767&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4770&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4771&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1385&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

20 

to children with additional 

needs (SSWB) 

supported by discovery programmes in Q3 with 100 attendances recorded and including vocational training.  As 
part of the prevention and wellbeing “step up and step down” approach for low level social care referrals 41 
families have been referred and 83 individuals have been supported.  Targeted inclusion programmes being 
delivered in partnership with halo and community groups. Membership and group access support arrangements 
have remained in place and supporting leisure usage. Partnership working with 3rd sector groups is developing. 

increasing costs. Continue to work 
with young people and the third 
sector to better understand and 
respond to needs and offer 
opportunities that support wellbeing.   

WBO4.6.2 Extend the food and fun 
programme in Summer 2023 
to at least 80 pupils (EFS) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: This activity was completed at quarter 2. Four schools took part in the Food and Fun programme during 
summer 2023, with a total of 130 children accessing the events. 

 

 

WBO4.7: Work with people to design and develop services 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.7.1 Support communities 
to develop their own 
services (SSWB) 

GREEN 

(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Co-production approaches being applied when support services are being designed or developed and 
review of alignment to other existing support to make best use of resources. Dementia support mapping has 
commenced with CTM regional dementia services and social care commissioning team, however survey response has 
been poor to support mapping/gap identification which is a barrier to further progress.  The Bridgend Carer Wellbeing 
Service has been fully mobilised and also a Young Carers Network developed. At Q3 378 carers wellbeing service 
supported with 117 referrals and 390 instances of signposting to support. 20 referrals for full carers assessment. 

Continue to engage with people with lived 
experience and stakeholders to shape 
services and improve effectiveness. Work 
in partnership with Bridgend Carers 
Wellbeing Service to expand reach of 
information and support for unpaid carers. 

WBO4.7.2 Develop our future 
wellbeing 
programmes with 
people who are going 
to use them (SSWB) 

AMBER 

(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: Engagement planning to make use of lived experience has been progressing with unpaid carers and people 
living with cognitive impairment. We are working with Cwmpas to establish carers panels to inform more innovative 
responses to information / advice issues and awareness and short breaks impact on carer resilience. This work has 
progressed during quarter 3 including building a partners network to support innovative practice.  Halo have delivered 
4 co-production sessions in Q3 (8 in total this year) including carers and people with a cognitive impairment. 

Continue to grow the use of co-productive 
approaches to inform community 
opportunities. This will include autism 
friendly swimming and exercise referral 
linked to dementia. 

 

WBO4.8: Supporting and encouraging lifelong learning 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DEFS159 
WBO4.8 

Percentage of learners 
enrolled in local 
authority community 
learning per 1,000 
adult population (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

1.0% 0.33% 0.75% 0.49% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Enrolments throughout quarter 3 have continued to increase as a result of additional 
engagement and promotion of the service, however, the target percentage of 0.75% has not been reached. 
With the aim to achieve quarter 4 targets, additional taster sessions and workshops are planned for the 
spring term. The service has recently recruited 3 additional staff, which may help to increase enrolments 
further. Recruitment challenges will likely impact on attaining the year-end target as the courses/sessions 
offered, and the corresponding enrolments, are limited to the availability of teaching staff. 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.8.1 Run more sessions that 
communities have 
expressed an interest in – 
provide 20 more in-person 
training sessions (EFS) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: Throughout this school term, Adult Learning Community (ACL) enrolment numbers have increased compared to previous years. 
Engagement and promotion of the service has continued, and more face-to-face courses/sessions have been offered, including accredited 
courses, one-off taster sessions and regular digital drop-ins. A total of 40 face-to-face sessions have been delivered to communities so far. A 
successful partnership is developing with a number of primary schools with opportunities to further increase the number of face-to-face 
sessions available. Recruitment campaigns are ongoing to recruit additional teaching staff to support the delivery of these training sessions. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 410

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1386&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1387&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1388&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4790&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1389&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

21 

WBO4.9: Being the best parents we can to our care experienced children 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

CH/052 
WBO4.9 

Percentage of care leavers who have 
experienced Homelessness during the year 
(SSWB) 
Lower Preferred 

10.20% 10% 4.15% 10% 4.48% 7.79% 

 

 

Performance:  16+ accommodation is full to capacity currently due to unable to 
move on via Housing. We are continuing to develop options for care leavers and 
additionally the supported lodgings scheme. 

SSWB48a 
WBO4.9 

Percentage of care leavers who have 
completed at least 3 consecutive months of 
employment, education or training in the 12 
months since leaving care (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

54.17% 60% 69.23% 60% 71.43% 61.11% 

 

 

Performance: On Target 

SSWB48b 
WBO4.9 

Percentage of care leavers who have 
completed at least 3 consecutive months of 
employment, education or training in the 13-24 
months since leaving care (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

62.07% 65% 54.55% 65% 60% 69.57% 

 

 

Performance: It has been recognised that the introduction of the Basic Income 
Pilot has correlated with the reduction in care leavers accessing education, 
employment and training for young people in the 12 and 24 months post leaving 
care. The 16+ Team have a new multiply worker within the team and are working 
to further develop links with Youth Development Team and Employability. 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO4.9.1 Give care experienced children love, 
care, safe homes to live in and 
opportunities to try new activities, 
gain new skills and fulfil their 
potential working across the Council 
and partners (SSWB) 

YELLOW 

(Good) 

Quarter 3: The delivery of Bridgend Corporate Parenting Strategy is overseen by 
a multi-agency corporate parenting board. In the last quarter member agencies 
have been tasked with signing up to the Welsh Government Corporate Parenting 
Pledge. Each agency has also been developing single agency action plans. 

The Children Services action plan will be presented to Board 
meeting in March alongside other agency plans to form a master 
action plan for the Corporate Parenting Strategy. Data will be 
agreed for regular reporting in the new financial year. All 
agencies have been asked to sign up to the ‘Corporate Parent 
Charter – a promise for Wales’. This is going through Cabinet 
Committee Corporate Parenting for BCBC’s signup. 

WBO4.9.2 Develop a Corporate Parenting 
strategy with care experienced 
children to explain what public 
services will do to help them meet 
their potential and celebrate rights of 
passage (SSWB) 

BLUE 

(Completed) 

Quarter 3: Completed at Q2. The Bridgend Corporate Parenting Strategy was 
published at the end of April 2023 having been ratified by the Cabinet Committee 
Corporate Parenting. The strategy is available online The Corporate Parenting 
Board.  The November 2023 Corporate Parenting Board meeting agreed that all 
Board agencies produce their own action plans for Corporate Parenting from 
workshops facilitated by the Corporate Parenting and Participation Officer.  

The final consolidated action plan encompassing all agency 
actions will be complete. 
 
 
 
  

WBO4.9.2 Develop a Corporate Parenting 
strategy with care experienced 
children to explain what public 
services will do to help them meet 
their potential and celebrate rights of 
passage (EFS) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The Education Engagement Team (EET) continues to work closely 
with Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate as part of The Corporate 
Parenting Strategy. A trial of the new Personal Education Plan (PEP) form has 
been established so that any required improvements can be made. All PEP 
forms can now be attached to pupil records in the Capita One system, to ensure 
completions timescales are adhered to and pupil voice is recorded. 

 

 

 

  

P
age 411

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4718&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4698&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4699&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1390&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1391&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1392&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

22 

WBO5: A County Borough that is responding to the climate and nature emergency 

WBO5.1: Moving towards net zero carbon, and improving our energy efficiency 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this 
period 

Target Actual 

CED57 
WBO5.1 

Levels of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) pollution in the air (micrograms per m3) (CEX SRS) 
Lower Preferred 

47 40 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DCO20.01 
WBO5.1 

Annual Gas Consumption across the Authority – kWh (COMM) 
Lower Preferred 

24,032,495 23,144,515 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DCO20.02 
WBO5.1 

Annual Electricity Consumption across the Authority – kWh (COMM) 
Lower Preferred 

16,542,375 15,130,803 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DCO20.03 
WBO5.1 

Annual CO2 related to gas consumption across the Authority – kWh (COMM) 
Lower Preferred 

4,398 4,235 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DCO20.04 
WBO5.1 

Annual CO2 related to electricity consumption across the Authority – kWh (COMM) 
Lower Preferred 

3,199 2,925 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DCO23.05 
WBO5.1 

Reduction in emissions (across our buildings, fleet & equipment, streetlighting, 
business travel, commuting, homeworking, waste, procured goods and services) 
(COMM)  Higher Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

5% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO5.1.1 Keep reducing our carbon footprint 
by changing our Council vehicles 
to electric and further energy 
efficiency schemes (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Good progress in Q3. The charging facilities that 
were installed across the corporate estate were energised 
by Western Power Distribution (WPD) and are now in use. 
A corporate review of the Ultra Low Emissions Vehicle 
(ULEV) strategy will now be undertaken to reflect the 
Council’s current budget position and the pace at which this 
ambitious commitment can be delivered. 

 

WBO5.1.2 Use feedback from the 
consultation to agree an Air 
Quality Action Plan and start work 
on the measures to improve air 
quality along Park Street (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Shared Regulatory Services (SRS) are working 
with Cabinet member to agree date to bring forward report 
and whether further consultation is required with local 
members and town Councillors. It is hoped that the final 
report will be agreed by end of Q4. 

Agree date with Cabinet member and present report to Cabinet 

WBO5.1.3 Build five new net zero carbon 
schools (EFS) 

RED 

(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: Each of the five schemes are in design 
development and due to delays on each scheme, the 
timescales for the five schemes will be impacted. This 
target will only be achieved following construction of the 
schools. 

• Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr - conclude the pre-application consultation ahead of 
submitting a planning application.  

• Heronsbridge School - gain Cabinet and Corporate Management Board approval 
to submit a revised Outline Business Case to Welsh Government.  

• English-medium primary school - conclude a review of the elemental cost plan.  

• Ysgol y Ferch o’r Sgêr - conclude a review of the elemental cost plan.  

• Mynydd Cynffig Primary School - submit a planning application. 

WBO5.1.4 Deliver more frontline social care 
services with workers using the 
Council’s electric vehicles (SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: We have our full complement of electric vehicles 
in use. Work commenced on Monday 23rd October 2023 
for 6 EV charging points to be installed at Trem Y Mor; in 
the interim vehicles are charged at Ravens Court 

Evaluation of the EV pilot will take place in the next quarter 

WBO5.1.5 Invest in energy efficiency 
improvements to Council buildings 
including schools (COMM) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: Awaiting decision on funding in order to be able 
to continue the project on an invest to save basis. 

Monitor the funding position or look for external grant opportunities. 

 

P
age 412

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4821&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4675&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4676&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4677&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4678&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4735&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1316&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1317&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1318&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1319&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1320&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

23 

WBO5.2: Protecting our landscapes and open spaces and planting more trees 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & Aim PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

DCO23.06 
WBO5.2 

Number of blue flag beaches (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

3 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DCO23.07 
WBO5.2 

Number of green flag parks and green spaces (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

2 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO5.2.1 Deliver projects such as woodland protection, develop and 
protect our natural environment in partnership with our 
communities as part of our Bridgend Biodiversity Plan (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Good progress in Q3 with 2 out of 3 activities now completed and the Local Place for 
Nature Project is now underway and updates on its progress will be available at Q4.  

 

WBO5.2.2 Work with the Cwm Taf Nature Network Project to enhance 
and improve access to high quality green spaces in our County 
Borough (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Good progress in Q3. Project Manager now in place for the new Green Space 
Enhancement Project (Shared Prosperity Fund) and now working with partners to deliver the 
activities. Linked to commitment WB03.5.2 above. 

 

WBO5.2.3 Plant a further 10,000 trees a year and provide a Community 
Planting Scheme to green our County Borough (COMM) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: Awaiting budget decisions and further information regarding the community 
woodland identified as the preferred site option in order to complete tree planting scheme and 
landscape designs. 

Implementation of 
scheme is pending 
budget decisions. 

 

WBO5.3: Improve the quality of the public ream and built environment through good placemaking principles 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period Target Actual 

PAM/018 
WBO5.3 

Percentage of all planning 
applications determined within 8 
weeks (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

64% 80% 65% 80% 68% 66% 

 

 

Performance: There has been a marginal increase in performance 
compared to last quarter. We have been implementing the restructure and 
have employed new members of staff with another due to start in February. 
We are therefore expecting an increase in performance. 

PAM/019 
WBO5.3 

Percentage of planning appeals 
dismissed (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

64% 66% 100% 66% 80% 69% 

 

Performance: On target. 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO5.3.1 Adoption of the Replacement Local 
Development Plan (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Excellent Progress with all further examination sessions conducted and Welsh Government due to signal their 
acceptance of our Replacement Local Development Plan. It is expected to come before full Council in March for formal adoption. 

 

 

WBO5.4: Reducing, reusing or recycling as much of our waste as possible 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DCO20.05 
WBO5.4 

Percentage of Street cleansing waste prepared for 
recycling (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

40.47% 40% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

P
age 413

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4736&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4738&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1321&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1322&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1323&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4529&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4530&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1324&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4682&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

24 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

PAM/010 
WBO5.4 

Percentage of highways land inspected by the Local 
Authority to be found to be of a high / acceptable standard 
of cleanliness (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

98.05% 98% 99.9% 98% 100% 97.7% 

 

 

Performance: On target 

PAM/030 
WBO5.4 

Percentage of municipal waste collected by local authorities 
and prepared for reuse, and/or recycled, including source 
segregated biowastes that are composted or treated 
biologically in any other way (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

71.38% 70% 74.7% 70% 70.45% 70.72% 

 

 

Performance: Whilst a very slight 0.3% decline in the % rate we are 
still above 70% which is our target. Tonnages presented by residents 
overall has fallen potentially due to less purchasing taking place due to 
economic climate.  This has resulted in a slightly lower performance 
compared to same period last year but is still above target.  Less 
tonnage seen at CRCs potentially contributed to by poor weather also. 

PAM/030a) 
WBO5.4 

a) prepared for reuse 
Higher Preferred 0.68% 1% 3.33% 1% 0.59% 0.37% 

 

 

Performance: Some long-term sickness in enforcement and cleansing 
team has meant an increased time to investigate and remove waste. 

PAM/030b) 
WBO5.4 

b) prepared for being recycled 
Higher Preferred 

51.01% 49% 49.5% 49% 50.44% 52.35% 

 

 

Performance: Whilst a very slight 0.3% decline in the % rate we are 
still above 70% which is our target. Tonnages presented by residents 
overall has fallen potentially due to less purchasing taking place due to 
economic climate.  This has resulted in a slightly lower performance 
compared to same period last year but is still above target.  Less 
tonnage seen at CRCs potentially contributed to by poor weather also. 

PAM/030c) 
WBO5.4 

c) as source segregated biowastes that are composted or 
treated biologically in another way 
Higher Preferred 

19.69% 20% 21.9% 20% 19.42% 18.01% 

 

 

Performance: Some long-term sickness in enforcement and cleansing 
team has meant an increased time to investigate and remove waste. 

PAM/043 
WBO5.4 

Residual waste generated per person (COMM) 
Lower Preferred 

120.20  
Kg 

131  
Kg 

60.40  
Kg 

98.25  
Kg 

89.86  
Kg 

90.41  
Kg 

 

 

 
Performance: On target 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO5.4.1 Develop our Future Waste Services Model, improving our 
recycling targets further and converting our vehicles. We will 
consult on the options with residents in 2024 (COMM) 

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Specialist advice has been sought on the delivery options for the future waste 
services and will be presented to Scrutiny SOC3 in March before an expected Cabinet decision 
in April 24. 

Feedback awaited 
from Scrutiny 
session. 

WBO5.4.2 Ensure that the new Community Recycling Centre at Pyle is 
opened (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Excellent progress as the Waste Operators Licence has now been granted to Kier by 
Natural Resources Wales and they are preparing to open the new CRC to the public shortly. 

 

 

WBO5.5: Improving flood defences and schemes to reduce flooding of our homes and businesses 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DCO23.08 
WBO5.5 

Percentage of statutory sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) applications 
processed within 7 weeks from receipt of appropriate scheme drawings. (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

95% 100% 95% 100% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: On target 

 

 

 

P
age 414

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4340&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4341&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4679&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4680&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4681&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4543&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1325&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1326&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4739&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

25 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO5.5.1 Invest in and improve flood mitigation measures in our 
valleys communities to reduce the flood risk (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: New flood prevention and culvert schemes completed in valleys and now monitoring for 
effectiveness over the winter period and inclement weather. Also identifying what will be the next set of 
priority schemes for implementation with the Welsh Government Flood Prevention grant monies. 

 

 

 

  

P
age 415

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1327&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

26 

WBO6: A County Borough where people feel valued, heard and part of their community 

WBO6.1: Celebrating and supporting diversity and inclusion and tackling discrimination 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction 
vs same 

period last 
year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CORPB3 
WBO6.1 

Percentage of council staff completing Introduction to Equality 
and Diversity training (E-Learning or workbook) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

100% 28.91% 100% 40.63% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Although we are behind target, we are in 
an improved position compared to last quarter. We 
continue to flag awareness to managers and staff. 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO6.1.1 Finish work on current strategic equalities plan and work 
with communities to develop a new one, supporting 
Welsh Government on race equality and LGBTQ+ action 
plans (CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Work continues on the existing Strategic Equalities Plan (SEP) and with the corporate equalities 
group now established, focus will be on developing the action plan for the next 4 years, incorporating the All 
Race Wales Action Plan (ARWAP) and a LGBTQIA+ action plan within the main priorities. 

 

WBO6.1.2 Establish new BCBC staff groups for people with 
protected characteristic (CEX) YELLOW 

(Good) 

Quarter 3: Following an analysis of the responses, a number of potential groups have been identified by staff, 
including those that cover menopause, LGBTQ+, autism/social anxiety, Welsh, mental health, lifestyle, ethnic 
minority, new managers, and walking outdoors. Human Resources (HR) have looked at what e-learning 
training we have against each of the groups and work is now underway to move these initiatives forward. 

HR to 
determine 
how best to 
progress. 

 

WBO6.2: Improving the way we engage with local people, including young people, listening to their views and acting on them 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction 
vs same 
period 

last year 

Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CED58 
WBO6.2 

Percentage of consultation participants who answered positively: How effective do you think 
we have been in meeting our aim of being citizen-focused over the last 12 months? (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

46% 50% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED59(a) 
WBO6.2 

Level of engagement (Welsh / English) (CEX) 
a) across consultations 
Higher Preferred 

8,267 8,268 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED59(b) 
WBO6.2 

b) with corporate communications to residents, using the digital communications platform 
Higher Preferred 

795,335 795,336 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED59(c) 
WBO6.2 

c) across all corporate social media accounts 
Higher Preferred 

1,230,698 1,230,699 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO6.2.1 Review how we communicate and engage with 
residents, including children and young people to help 
us become more customer focused and responsive 
(CEX) 

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Content on the corporate website has constantly been updated and created. Work is 
continuing with Youth Services to improve their online presence and the information available 
to young people. The digital communication platform and the engagement platform continues to 
be utilised to provide updates to residents, as well as support the various corporate 
consultations that are being carried out. 

 

WBO6.2.2 Provide new opportunities for the community to engage 
with us on our regeneration plans, holding workshops 
with key stakeholders including town councils, learners 
and community groups (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Continuing consultation and engagement sessions, including the addition LDP 
examination in public sessions, Porthcawl Regeneration Open Space Plans, Maesteg Town 
Centre Placemaking engagement and for the proposed Valleys Regeneration Strategy. 

 

P
age 416

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4723&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1291&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1292&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4822&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4823&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4824&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4825&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1293&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1294&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

27 

Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO6.2.3 Develop the Bridgend County Borough Council Climate 
Citizens Assembly to allow communities to shape our 
2030 Net Zero Carbon Agenda (COMM) 

RED 
(Unsatisfactory) 

Quarter 3: This work is on hold pending budget confirmation. Implementation of Climate 
Citizens Assembly is pending 
budget decisions. 

 

WBO6.3: Offering more information and advice online, and at local level, and making sure you can talk to us and hear from us in Welsh 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year End 
22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

CED5 
WBO6.3 

Percentage of first call resolutions 
(CEX) 
Higher Preferred 75.91% 75.92% 67.3% 75.92% 77.9% 69.3% 

 

 

Performance: The first call resolution fluctuates and depends on the complexity of 
the calls taken by staff within the Contact Centre. The calls are monitored each 
month and whilst there is little that can be done in relation to the complexity of the 
calls, discussions are ongoing with the relevant service areas to look at ways of 
upskilling Advisors to deal with calls at the first point of contact if they can. 

CED51 
WBO6.3 

Number of online transactions using 
the digital platform (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

103,347 103,348 37,422 77,512 53,834 83,593 
 

Performance: Whilst the online channel is the most popular for customers to 
access council services, the number of online transactions vary. Previous year's 
stats were inflated due to the number of online initiatives at the time, for example 
applications in relation to winter fuel payments etc. 

CED52 
WBO6.3 

Number of hits on the corporate 
website (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

1,398,560 1,715,802 1,048,920 2,467,219 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: On target 

CED53 
WBO6.3 

Percentage of staff with Welsh 
language speaking skills (including 
schools) (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

51% 52% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CORPB4 
WBO6.3 

Percentage of council staff 
completing Welsh Language 
Awareness E-Learning. 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

100% 28.38% 100% 40.32% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Although we are behind target, we are in an improved position 
compared to last quarter. We continue to flag awareness to managers and staff. 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO6.3.1 Develop more community hubs in 
libraries and other Council buildings so 
that residents can get more information 
and help without travelling to Civic 
Offices (CEX) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: We continue working with Awen to support residents to access council services within 
their local communities, with regular meetings being held with Awen to review. Following the 12 
week pilot that was undertaken in partnership with Halo in May 2023 to provide a weekly drop-in 
session in both the Garw and Ogmore Valleys to understand demand, no decision has been made 
on whether this service should continue longer term. Since the pilot has stopped though, there have 
been no further issues raised around the lack of support to residents within those two valleys. 

Whilst Cabinet need to decide on whether 
the drop-in sessions should continue 
longer term, a wider review is likely 
needed to explore how best we can 
continue supporting residents within their 
communities across the County Borough. 

 

WBO6.4: Helping clubs and community groups take control of and improve their facilities and protect them for the future 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DCO16.8 
WBO6.4 

Number of council owned assets transferred to the community for running 
(CATs) across the County Borough (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

10 15 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

P
age 417

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1295&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4561&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4811&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4812&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4813&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4724&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1296&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4442&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

28 

DCO23.12 
WBO6.4 

Value of investment with CATs across Bridgend County Borough (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

£400,000 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

SSWB69 
WBO6.4 

Number of people supported to have their needs met in their communities by 
local community co-ordinators and community navigators (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

200 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO6.4.1 Invest a further £400k in 
Community Asset Transfers and 
support clubs and Community 
Groups with equipment grants to 
improve and safeguard the 
facilities (COMM) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: We currently have £604,423 of inward external investment already attributed to CAT related projects. Only 
completed 5 out of 15 transfers at Q3. Although behind on milestones, we are on target with investments. 

Continue to progress 
transfers as expediently as 
possible during Q4 within 
available staff resource 
constraints. 

WBO6.4.2 Develop a more coordinated 
approach with partners to 
helping people find activities and 
groups in their communities 
(SSWB) 

AMBER 

(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: We are establishing community network building approaches to bring partners and stakeholders together who 
support people in communities to connect with what is in place and identify gaps in provision. In partnership with Bavo, a 
number of community networks are operating on a thematic basis to bring partners and stakeholders together. 9 current 
networks operating including Mental Health, Health, Social Care and Wellbeing, Food Security, Children and Families, 
Military Veterans, and Carers. There were 18 network meetings held in Q3. The Resilient Communities approach has 
been reviewed following learning and insight gained during the pandemic. A pathway approach based on differing levels 
of need and complexity and who is best placed to support is developing. This involves cross sector working. 

Continue to build networks 
and grow network meetings 
that are more cross cutting 
as part of an overarching 
prevention and wellbeing 
network in partnership with 
BAVO and third sector. 

 

WBO6.5: Becoming an age friendly council 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO6.5.1 Make Bridgend County Borough a 
great place to grow old, working with 
partners to improve leisure activities, 
accessible housing, care, and support 
as an Age Friendly Council (SSWB) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: Bridgend is participating in the all Wales programme supported by Welsh 
Government and developing its baseline assessment and action plan. This will continue into 
2024-25. There are 8 domains of focus including transport, housing, community support and 
health services, social participation, respect and social inclusion, civic participation and 
employment, communication and information.  The Aging Well in Bridgend survey has been 
conducted to establish metrics on Age Friendly Bridgend and areas for focus. The survey 
attracted 227 responses with 67% being aged 60 or above.   

Continue to be a part of the Welsh Government 
and older persons commissioners network to 
inform local planning and development.  Progress 
the Age Friendly Communities assessment and 
raise internal and external awareness.  Produce 
draft documents to support stakeholder 
engagement. 

 

 

  

P
age 418

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4743&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4773&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1297&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1298&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1299&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

29 

WBO7: A county borough where we support people to be healthy and happy 

WBO7.1: Improving active travel routes and facilities so people can walk and cycle 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & Aim PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target 
Q3 22-23 (same 
period last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

DCO23.17 
WBO7.1 

New active travel routes (length in KM) (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

4 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO7.1.1 Improve sustainable and active travel choices, including 
the Metrolink bus facility in Porthcawl, to increase 
connectivity and greener travel choices (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The Metrolink Project is progressing well and its construction will be complete in April 2024. Welsh 
Government have also confirmed subsidy for bus services in 24/25 to enable two routes to Porthcawl to operate. 
The Ynysawdre Active Travel link is nearing completion, with its final coat of tarmac and signage being installed. 

 

 

WBO7.2: Offering attractive leisure and cultural activities 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

SSWB70 
WBO7.2 

Number of visits by older adults to physical activity opportunities 
supported (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 

2023-24 

Establish 

Baseline Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 
 

SSWB71 
WBO7.2 

Number of individuals who commence programmes and 
complete 16 weeks of activity (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

350 370 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 
 

SSWB72 
WBO7.2 

Percentage of pupils who participate in three or more occasions 
of activity per week (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

44.6% 46% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 
 

SSWB73 
WBO7.2 

Participation in the summer reading challenge in libraries 
(SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

New 

2023-24 
2,378 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

SSWB74 
WBO7.2 

Participation in Childrens events in libraries (SSWB) 
Higher Preferred 

61,855 48,176 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 
 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO7.2.1 Redevelop Porthcawl Grand Pavilion to 
increase the use of the new facilities and 
extend social and leisure facilities, in 
partnership with Awen Cultural Trust (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Good progress with the Grand Pavilion design and planning application submitted for 
determination in April 2024. Procurement advice currently being finalised. The Project Board is 
meeting regularly and AWEN to establish stakeholder reference group in the coming months. 

 

WBO7.2.2 Develop an active leisure offer for older adults 
to improve physical and mental wellbeing 
(SSWB) GREEN 

(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Welsh Government and Sport Wales are supporting this initiative during 23/24 and have 
confirmed it can be continued into 24/25. The focus has been on growing usage of leisure facilities 
or ancillary programmes that benefit older adults. The 60 plus active leisure programme is 
supporting weekly opportunities for people with dementia, cognitive impairment, and loneliness with 
additional support programmes for unpaid carer wellbeing. The Super-Agers programme is 
supporting community-based opportunities to become sustainable at 4 locations. 

Expand the range of opportunities 
within the available budget and 
capture impact required by 
funders. Identify opportunities to 
attract more resources and 
engage older adults. 

P
age 419

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4748&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1300&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4775&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4776&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4774&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4772&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4769&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1301&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1302&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

30 

Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO7.2.3 Increase the use of the exercise referral 
programme by people who may have found it 
hard to participate in the past (SSWB) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: The National Exercise Referral Scheme (NERS) programme is operating beyond 
capacity and with waiting lists in place for support. Referrals are in place from all GP surgeries. 
There were 453 new referrals in Q3 with 476 sessions attended.128 participants had a mid -
programme review. Programmes include cardiac, back care, falls, stroke, mental health and the 
generic pathway. Separate pathways, funded via CTM health board are operating regionally 
alongside the NERS programmes with referrals via CTM. Pathways include pulmonary 
rehabilitation, joint care and cancer pre-habilitation for surgery. 

Public Health Wales are changing 
the model of scheme operation 
which may influence the range of 
conditions supported and the 
types of intervention. The 16 
week completions build as the 
year progresses. 

WBO7.2.4 Complete the refurbishment of Pencoed library 
and provide investment into library services 
(SSWB) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: This has been completed by Awen utilising external investment via Welsh Government 
and Awen resources during Q1. Library related usage is monitored on a quarterly basis as part of 
the cultural partnership and includes a diverse range of areas including events, borrowing, and 
digital resources.  At Q3 there have been 7723 visits (supporting 4405 adult issues, 4736 junior 
issues, 229 ICT sessions, 88 new borrowers).   

  

WBO7.2.5 Develop a long-term Active Bridgend plan and 
leisure strategy (SSWB) 

AMBER 
(Adequate) 

Quarter 3: The Council is responding to the Wales Audit Office (WAO) review of the Active 
Bridgend plan and related Better Health Successful Sport plan that expired during the pandemic to 
create a longer term vision and plan. A report has been presented to CCMB to consider an 
extension of the Healthy Living partnership with Halo, with legal and procurement advice sought on 
considerations and implications, and proposed benefits externally assessed and validated.  A 
procurement exercise has been conducted and completed to identify a development partner to 
support the long term Active Bridgend strategy development process. 

Report to Cabinet in April on 
potential healthy living 
partnership extension. Engage 
support to help take this project 
forward and involve stakeholders. 

 

WBO7.3: Improving children’s play facilities and opportunities 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & Aim PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 
(same period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DCO23.09 
WBO7.3 

Value of investment in play areas (COMM) 
Lower Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

£1,000,000 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DCO23.10 
WBO7.3 

Number of play areas that have been 
refurbished (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

20 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO7.3.1 Improve the quantity and quality of play 
opportunities. We will Invest in all children’s 
play areas and make sure inclusive play 
equipment is provided to allow opportunities 
for all (SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: The need for a play sufficiency network group was approved by cabinet and reviewed at scrutiny 
when considering the play sufficiency assessment and action plan required by Welsh Government. An initial 
meeting has taken place in Dec 23.  We continue to develop the skills of and confidence of our workforce with 
new coaches and activity leaders attending a range of training to support inclusive practice including family 
thrive programme, 1 regulating behaviour, 5 therapeutic activities, 5 safeguarding, 4 wellbeing mentoring and 
10 rebound therapy.  At the end of Q3 there have been 59 training sessions (including 25 new participants).    

Next full play sufficiency 
assessment is due for 
June 2025.The network 
group will need to support 
the assessment and 
action planning process. 

WBO7.3.1 Improve the quantity and quality of play 
opportunities. We will Invest in all children’s 
play areas and make sure inclusive play 
equipment is provided to allow opportunities 
for all (COMM) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Excellent progress with tender now awarded for the refurbishment of the next set of 19 Children’s 
Play Areas across the County. 

 

WBO7.3.2 Roll-out the Dare2Explore project in at least 
1 more school (EFS) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: The ''Dare2Explore'' project was initially rolled out to Coleg Cymunedol Y Dderwen and Cynffig 
Comprehensive School. Following the pilot, all secondary schools in Bridgend have engaged with the project 
leader. 

 

WBO7.3.3 We will increase the range of after school 
music ensembles and activities to ensure 
more pupils benefit from this provision (EFS) 

BLUE 
(Completed) 

Quarter 3: A new training string ensemble has been established for beginner string players of all school ages, 
increasing the number of ensembles further, as part of the recovery after COVID-19. The Bridgend Music 
Service will continue to recruit more members to return to pre-COVID19 membership levels. 

 

 

P
age 420

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1303&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1304&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1305&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4740&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4741&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1306&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1307&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1308&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1309&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

31 

WBO7.4: Providing free school meals and expanding free childcare provision 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 
period 

last year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

DEFS160 
WBO7.4 

Number of two-year-olds 
accessing childcare through the 
Flying Start programme (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

321 500 460 470 472 332 
 

Performance: The expansion of the Flying Start programme has so far created significant 
additional capacity. At the end of December 2023, there were 472 children registered at 
Flying Start settings in Bridgend. This is an increase of 151 on the 2022-202 year-end 
position. An additional intake in January 2024 should realise the target of 500 children. 

DEFS162 
WBO7.4 

Percentage of non-maintained 
settings that are judged by Care 
Inspectorate Wales as at least 
‘good’ (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

100% 71% 100% 76.5% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: The quarter 3 percentage represents 13 of 17 funded non-maintained 
settings that have so far received a joint inspection. This is an improvement from the end of 
the last quarter. A strong professional development offer, generous grants and the ongoing 
support of local authority officers continues to support improvement across the funded non-
maintained sector. This work should officially be recognised when settings are inspected / 
re-inspected as part of Estyn / Care Inspectorate Wales's joint inspection cycle. 

DEFS163 
WBO7.4 

Percentage of eligible learners 
offered a free school meal (EFS) 
Higher Preferred 

New 
2023-24 

100% 100% 100% 100% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: All eligible pupils are currently offered a universal primary free school meal. 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO7.4.1 Provide free school meals to all 
primary school learners by 
September 2024 (EFS) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: There has been no change on the quarter 2 position. The local authority has successfully implemented Universal Primary 
Free School Meals (UPFSM) for Reception and Year 1-3. Nursery implementation is due by the end of January 2024 and Year 4 at the 
start of the 2023-2024 summer term. Years 5 and 6 will follow from September 2024. 

 

WBO7.4.2 Work with childminders, nurseries 
and others to roll-out universal 
childcare for all two-year-olds (EFS) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: There has been a further increase in the children accessing Flying Start funded childcare through the expansion 
programme. There have been 183 additional children accessing childcare up to the end of quarter 3. A further intake will take place in 
January 2024. 

 

 

WBO7.5: Integrating our social care services with health services so people are supported seamlessly 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 (same 
period last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

SSWB75 
WBO7.5 

Number of people recorded as delayed on 
the national pathway of care (SSWB) 
Lower Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

71 93 71 50 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: On target 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO7.5.1 Work even more closely with the 
NHS so all people receive the 
right health or care service at 
the right time (SSWB) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Complete recruitment activity for integrated Regional Integrated Fund (RIF) posts. Embed 
new model following the Social Work Review. The integrated community services continue to work 
closely with NHS colleagues to support their objectives and pressures. Work to implement the new 
model of social work continues.  

Work collaboratively to develop new pathways 
to support the new model, which is in place as 
the result of the Social Work Review. 
Implement new model of social work in Q4 

 
  

P
age 421

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4807&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4806&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4805&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1310&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1311&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4765&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1312&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

32 

 

WBO7.6: Improving the supply of affordable housing 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref & 
Aim 

PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 position 
23-24 & RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs Target Q3 22-23 (same 
period last year) 

Direction vs same 
period last year 

Performance this period 
Target Actual 

CED60 
WBO7.6 

Number of additional affordable homes provided by Registered Social 
Landlords (RSLs) across the County Borough (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

110 110 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

CED61 
WBO7.6 

Total number of empty properties returned to use with local authority 
intervention (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

5 5 Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

 

Commitments 
Code Commitment Status Progress this period Next Steps 

WBO7.6.1 Increase the number of affordable homes in 
Bridgend County Borough in partnership with 
Welsh Government and social landlords 
(CEX) 

GREEN 
(Excellent) 

Quarter 3: Monthly meetings continue to take place with the development teams of all Registered Social Landlords in the area to 
ensure Social Housing Grant is fully utilised and development maximised. We have also worked with the same teams to acquire 
homes through the Transitional Capital Programme Grant. Quarterly Bridgend Housing Partnership meetings continue to take 
place as does meetings with Welsh Government. Monthly meetings take place with Planning colleagues. Work with the private 
sector is progressing to introduce affordable homes through the Welsh Government Leasing Scheme. 

 

WBO7.6.2 Get a better understanding of housing and 
support needs and work with social landlords 
to provide homes to suit those needs (CEX)  

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Housing and support needs assessment was undertaken during the development of the Housing Strategy. Housing 
needs are discussed with Registered Social Landlords in monthly development meetings where general needs housing, 
temporary accommodation and supported housing schemes are discussed. 

 

WBO7.6.3 Improve the way we deal with empty homes 
(CEX) 

YELLOW 
(Good) 

Quarter 3: Work has continued on the Empty Properties Loan Scheme which is nearing completion. The Empty Properties 
Working Group continues to target the Top 20 empty properties in the Borough.  We are working with the Welsh Government 
Industry Expert and in addition to the working group that property specific meetings have been arranged with representation 
across the Council to generate a coordinated approach to remedying their defective condition which has included partnership 
working with an RSL. We also intend to make use of our further powers for Enforced Sale and Compulsory Purchase 

 

 
  

P
age 422

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4826&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4827&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1313&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1314&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1315&read=true


   Appendix 1 – Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2023-24 

33 

 

Ways of Working Performance Indicators not linked to a Wellbeing Objective 
Performance Indicators 

PI Ref PI Description and Preferred Outcome 
Year End 

22-23 
Target 
23-24 

Q2 
position 
23-24 & 
RYAG 

Q3 23-24 RYAG vs 
Target 

Q3 22-23 
(same 

period last 
year) 

Direction vs 
same period 

last year 
Performance this period 

Target Actual 

PAM/001 
  

The number of working days/shifts per full-time 
equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost 
due to sickness absence  
Lower Preferred 

13.20  
days 

No 
target 

5.35 
days 

No 
target 

8.77 days 
9.77  
days 

 

 

Performance: Sickness has improved compared to this time last year. 
Sickness continues to be monitored. 

CORPB5  Percentage of staff that have completed a 
Personal Review/Appraisal (excluding schools)  
Higher Preferred 

58.05% 80% Annual Indicator - To be reported at Q4 

DCO16.9 
  

Realisation of capital receipts targets (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

£3.71 
million 

£0 £0 £0 £0 
£3.5  

million 

Trend not 
applicable 

Performance: A disposals programme for the next five years is being 
developed but there are no disposals planned for Q3/Q4. 

DCO19.02 
  

Percentage of full statutory compliance across 
BCBC operational buildings (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

78.6% 100% 82% 100% 85% 73.5% 
 

Performance: Small improvement in compliance compared to Q2, and 
overall improvement in statutory compliance across the estate since Q3 
last year. 

DCO23.14 
  

Percentage of statutory compliance across 
BCBC operational buildings - Big 5 (COMM) 
Higher Preferred 

New  
2023-24 

100% 92% 100% 94% 
New  

2023-24 
N/A 

Performance: Small improvement in compliance compared to Q2 and 
significantly improved compliance picture overall.  

DOPS34a)  Availability of voice and data network (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

100% 99.99% 100% 99.99% 100% 100% 
 

Performance: On target 

DOPS34b)  Availability of storage area network (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

100% 99.99% 100% 99.99% 100% 100% 
 

Performance: On target 

DOPS34c) Availability of core applications, central printers 
and multi-functional devices and network 
connected devices (CEX) 
Higher Preferred 

99.99% 99.90% 99.94% 99.9% 99.98% 99.99% 
 

Performance: This indicator remains on target.  Performance is down 
very slightly at Q3 due to a “Canon printing failure” which was resolved 
by the supplier. 

DRE6.1.1 
  

Percentage budget reductions achieved 
(Overall) 
Higher Preferred 

72.1% 100% 90.4% 100% 90.4% 72.1% 
Trend not 
applicable 

Performance: Position at Q3 remains the same, of the £2.608 million 
savings target, £2.358 million has been achieved to date. The most 
significant reduction proposals unlikely to be achieved in full are:-  
• EDFS1 Delegation of school transport responsibilities to The Bridge 
Pupil Referral Unit (£40k). Officers are continuing to investigate the 
practicalities and implications of this bespoke transport arrangement.  
• COM1 Closure of each of the Community Recycling Centre sites for 
one weekday per week (£50k). Public Consultation has been undertaken 
with the outcome reported back to Cabinet on 21 November 2023, 
where the proposal was approved.  A marginal saving will be made in 
2023-24, with the full saving being realised in 2024-25. 
• COM 2 Charging Blue Badge Holders for parking (£40k). The traffic 
management team have been engaged in the introduction of the 
national speed limit in built up areas, and therefore the saving proposal 
is unlikely to be achieved in 2023-24 due to the processes required to 
introduce any change.  
• COM5 Commercially let a wing of Ravens Court to a partner 
organisation or business (£120k) Delay in progressing budget reduction 
proposal whilst the Future Service Delivery model is being developed. 
Directors continue to work with their staff to deliver their proposals or 
alternatives and this is reflected in the forecast year end spend. 

 

 

P
age 423

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4396&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4808&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4443&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4637&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4745&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4500&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4501&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4502&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4414&read=true


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
11 April 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL & REGULATORY SERVICES, HR 

& CORPORATE POLICY 
 

 
Responsible 
Officer:  

 
MERYL LAWRENCE 

SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER – SCRUTINY 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to 
the review and development of plans, policy or strategy that 
form part of the Council’s Policy Framework and 
consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the 
power to promote or improve economic, social or 
environmental wellbeing in the County Borough of 
Bridgend. Any changes to the structure of the Scrutiny 
Committees and the procedures relating to them would 
require the Bridgend County Borough Council Constitution 
to be updated. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to develop and implement a 
Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to propose items for the 
Forward Work Programme having regard for the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for 
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have 
oversight and refer any cross-cutting topics to a Committee 
or Research and Evaluation Panel. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider and agree its Forward 
Work Programme, identify any specific information it 
wishes to be included in and any invitees they wish to 
attend for the reports for the next two Committee meetings, 
identify any further items for consideration on the Forward 
Work Programme having regard to the criteria set out in the 
report, consider the Recommendations Monitoring Action 
Sheet and note that the Forward Work Programme and the 
Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for the Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be reported to the 
next meeting of COSC. 

 
  

Page 425

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 
a) Present the Committee with the Forward Work Programme (Appendix A) for 

consideration and approval; 
 

b) Request any specific information the Committee identifies to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Request the Committee to identify whether there are presently any further items 
for consideration on the Forward Work Programme having regard to the 
selection criteria in paragraph 3.5 of this report; 
 

d) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet (Appendix B) to track 
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous meeting; 

 

e) Advise that the Committee’s updated Forward Work Programme, any feedback 
from the Committee and the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be 
reported to the next meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(COSC).  

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

to develop and implement a Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
2.2 The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee to propose items for the Forward Work Programme having regard for 
the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have oversight and refer any cross-
cutting topics to a Committee or Research and Evaluation Panel. 

 
 Best Practice / Guidance 
 
2.3 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s (CfGS) Good Scrutiny Guide recognises 

the importance of the Forward Work Programme. In order to ‘lead and own the 
process’, it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee’s work 
programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good 
Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload 
should be coordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken 
in a timely and well-planned manner.  

 
2.4 Forward Work Programmes need to be manageable to maximize the effective use 

of the limited time and resources of Scrutiny Committees.  It is not possible to 
include every topic proposed.  Successful Scrutiny is about looking at the right topic 
in the right way and Members need to be selective, while also being able to 
demonstrate clear arguments for including or excluding topics.  

 

Page 426



 

2.5    The CfGS’s guide to effective work programming ‘A Cunning Plan?’ makes the 
following reference to the importance of good work programming: 

 
‘Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done 
well it can help lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on issues 
of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can end up 
wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is likely to 
be minimal.’ 
 

 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 

Forward Work Programme 
 
3.1 Following the approval of the schedule of Scrutiny Committee meeting dates at the 

Annual Meeting of Council on 17 May 2023, the standing statutory reports to this 
Scrutiny Committee of: the Corporate Plan, the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and Budget, Performance and Budget Monitoring, etc. have been mapped 
to the appropriate timely meeting dates into a draft Forward Work Programme. 

 
3.2  The draft outline Forward Work Programme for each Scrutiny Committee have been 

prepared using a number of difference sources, including:  
 

• Corporate Risk Assessment;  

• Directorate Business Plans; 

• Previous Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme report topics / minutes; 

• Committee / Member proposed topics; 

• Policy Framework; 

• Cabinet Work Programme; 

• Discussions with Corporate Directors; 

• Performance Team regarding the timing of performance information.  
 

3.3 There are items where there is a statutory duty for Policy Framework documents to 
be considered by Scrutiny, e.g., the MTFS including draft budget proposals 
scheduled for consideration in January 2024, following which COSC will coordinate 
the conclusions and recommendations from each of the Subject Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees in a report on the overall strategic overview of Cabinet’s draft 
Budget proposals to the meeting of Cabinet in February 2024.   
 

3.4  An effective Forward Work Programme will identify the issues that the Committee 
wishes to focus on during the year and provide a clear plan.  However, at each 
meeting the Committee will have an opportunity to review this as the Forward Work 
Programme Update will be a standing item on the Agenda, detailing which items are 
scheduled for future meetings and be requested to clarify any information to be 
included in reports and the list of invitees.  The Forward Work Programme will remain 
flexible and will be revisited at each COSC meeting with input from each Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reported and any updated information gathered 
from Forward Work Programme meetings with Corporate Directors. 

 
 
 
 

Page 427



 

 Identification of Further Items 
 
3.5 The Committee is reminded of the Criteria Form which Members can use to 

propose further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for 
prioritisation at a future meeting.  The Criteria Form emphasises the need to 
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community 
perception when identifying topics for investigation and to maximise the impact 
scrutiny can have on a topic and the outcomes for people.  Criteria which can help 
the Committee come to a decision on whether to include a referred topic, are set out 
below: 

 
 Recommended Criteria for Selecting Scrutiny Topics: 
 
 PUBLIC INTEREST:  The concerns of local people should influence the issues 

chosen for scrutiny;  
 
 ABILITY TO CHANGE:  Priority should be given to issues that the Committee 

can realistically influence, and add value to;  
 
 PERFORMANCE:  Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council 

is not performing well;  
 
 EXTENT:  Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all 

or large parts of the County Borough, or a large number 
of the Authority’s service users or its population; 

 
 REPLICATION:  Work programmes must take account of what else is 

happening in the areas being considered to avoid 
duplication or wasted effort.  

 

 Reasons to Reject Scrutiny Topics: 
 

 • The issue is already being addressed / being examined elsewhere and change is   
              imminent.  

 • The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and can be referred there).  

 • Scrutiny involvement would have limited / no impact upon outcomes. 

 • The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial. 

 • The topic is too broad to make a review realistic and needs refining / scoping. 

 • New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year.  

 • The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone  
    substantial change / reconfiguration. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
 

3.6 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a local 
authority towards care experienced children and young people. This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children 
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘Corporate Parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for care experienced children and young people in Bridgend. 

 

Page 428



 

3.7 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider 
affects care experienced children and young people, and in what way can the 
Committee assist in these areas. 
 

3.8 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Cabinet Committee Corporate Parenting and particularly 
any decisions or changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents. 

 
3.9 The Forward Work Programme for the Committee is attached as Appendix A for 

the Committee’s consideration. 
 
3.10 The Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet to track responses to the 

Committee’s recommendations made at the previous meeting is attached as 
Appendix B. 

 
 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
    
4.1  The Protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales,  

with 5 Ways of Working to guide how public services should work to deliver for 
people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 Ways of Working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this 
report: 

 

• Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the planning of Scrutiny 
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its policies, budget and 
service delivery. 
 

• Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows for 
the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members are provided an 
opportunity to influence and improve decisions before they are made by 
Cabinet. 

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives. 
 

• Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programme 
has taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of Service and 
Elected Members. 

 

• Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures 
that stakeholders can view topics that will be discussed in Committee meetings 
and are provided with the opportunity to engage. 

Page 429



 

 

5.2  When setting its Forward Work Programme, the Committee should consider how 
each item they propose to scrutinise assists in the achievement of the Council’s 7 
Wellbeing Objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 as follows :-   
 
1. A County Borough where we protect our most vulnerable 
2. A County Borough with fair work, skilled, high-quality jobs and thriving towns 
3. A County Borough with thriving valleys communities 
4. A County Borough where we help people meet their potential 
5. A County Borough that is responding to the climate and nature emergency 
6. A County Borough where people feel valued, heard and part of their community 
7. A County Borough where we support people to live healthy and happy lives  

 
 

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects climate 

change, the Council’s Net Zero Carbon 2030 target and how it meets the Council’s 
commitments to protect and sustain the environment over the long term. There are 
no Climate Change Implications arising from this report.    
 
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects care 

experienced children and young people, and in what way the Committee can assist 
in these areas. Safeguarding is everyone’s business and means protecting peoples’ 
health, wellbeing and human rights, and enabling them to live free from harm, abuse 
and neglect. There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications arising 
from this report.    

 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1   The Committee is recommended to: 

a) Consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for the Committee 
attached as Appendix A;  
 

b) Identify any specific information the Committee wishes to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Identify whether there are presently any further items for consideration on the 
Forward Work Programme having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph 
3.5 of this report. 
 

Page 430



 

d) Note the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet for the Committee attached 
as Appendix B to track responses to the Committee’s recommendations made 
at the previous meeting; 
 

e) Note that the Forward Work Programme, any feedback from the Committee and 
the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be reported to the next 
meeting of COSC. 

 

 

Background documents 
 
None.  

Page 431



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A  
 

2023-24 Forward Work Programme  
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 

 
 

Friday 26 May 2023 at 11.00am 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

EFS Strategic Plan  Provide Subject Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 1 (SOSC1) 
members with an opportunity to view 
and comment on the draft Education 
and Family Support Directorate 
(EFS) Strategic Plan 2023-2026.  
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director – Education and 
Family Support  
Group Manager School Support  
Group Manager Inclusion and School 
Improvement  
School Programme Manager 
Group Manager Business Support  
Group Manager Family Support  
 
CSC 
Managing Director  
Assistant Director for Curriculum and 
Professional Learning  
Principle Improvement Manager 
 
Headteacher Nominees 
Headteacher, Nantyffyllon Primary 
School 
Headteacher, Pen-y-Fai Church in 
Wales Primary School 
Headteacher, Bryntirion 
Comprehensive School and Chair of 
BASH  

 
 

Thursday 13 July 2023 at 11.00am – CANCELLED  

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
 

Monday 11 September 2023 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Youth Justice Service 
Update and Operational 
Plan  
 
 

 
T12 within the Education Directorate 
Strategic Plan 

 

 

 
Cabinet Member 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director of Education and 
Family Support  

Page 433



Operational Managers, Youth Justice 
Service  
  
CSC  
N/A 
 
Headteacher Nominees 
N/A  

Draft Outline Forward 
Work Programme 

  

 
 

Thursday 12 October 2024 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Whole School Approach 
to emotional health and 
wellbeing 

 
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing  
Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member for Social Services  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director – Education and 
Family Support; 
Group Manager Learner Support;  
Group Manager Inclusion and School 
Improvement; 
Early Intervention Locality Manager; 
Group Manager (School Support);  
Lead Officer, Strategic Development 
(Primary Sector);  
Principal Educational Psychologist 
(INC);  
 
CSC  
NA 
 
Headteacher Nominees 
Headteacher, Ysgol Maesteg  
Headteacher, Porthcawl 
Comprehensive School; Headteacher, 
Cefn Glas Infants School;  
Headteacher, St Robert’s Primary 
School; 
  
External 
Whole School Approach to Health and 
Well-being Coordinator; CAMHS Senior 
Nurse; and 
Head, The Bridge Alternative Provision  

  

Page 434



 

Monday 4 December 2024 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Universal Primary Free 
School Meals (UPFSM) 
 
 

• Programme delivery, provision of 

free school meals and funding 

• New equipment 

• Challenges of staffing/catering 

services  

• Club settings (youth, breakfast, 

after school)  

• Quality and cost of meals  

 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director – Education and 
Family Support 
Group Manager, Business Support; and 
Team Manager – Catering Services 
 
CSC  
N/A 
 
Headteacher Nominees 
Headteacher, Headteacher, Penybont 
Primary School  
Headteacher, Llangynwyd Primary 
School 

 
 

Thursday 18 January 2024 at 11.00am 
Report Topics Information Required / 

Committee’s Role 
Invitees 

Draft Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2024-
25 to 2027-28 and Budget 
Proposals 
 

 Cabinet Members 
Leader of Council  
Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member for Social Services and Early 
Help 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Legal  
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
Chief Executive  
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change  
Corporate Director Education and 
Family Support  
 
Head of Education and Family Support  
Interim Deputy Head of Finance  
Interim Finance Manager Budget 
Management: Communities, Education 
and Family Support  
 
CSC  
N/A 
 
Headteacher Nominees 
Chair of Schools Budget Form 
Chair of BASH  

Page 435



Thursday, 11 April 2024 at 11am 
Monday 18 March 2024 at 11am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan (WESP)   
 
 
 
 
 
Central South Consortium 
Annual Report  
 
 
 
Information Report - Adult 
Community Learning 
update  
 
 
 
Information Report – 
Quarter 3 Performance 
2023-24 (& Dashboard) 

2 March 23 – Recommendation from 
COSC - The challenges of recruiting 
Welsh speaking teachers into the 
County Borough be included in the 
scope of the report on Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan. 
 

Cabinet Members 
Leader of the Council  
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director Education and 
Family Support  
 
CSC  
Clara Seery  
Andrew Williams  
Darren Jones  
Natalie Gould 
 
Headteacher Nominees 
Meurig Jones, Headteacher Ysgol 
Gyfun Llangynwyd  
Sarah Gwen Richards, Headteacher 
Ysgol Cynwyd Sant 
Neil Davies, Headteacher Mynydd 
Cynffig Primary School  
External 
 

 
 

2024-25 Draft Forward Work Programme 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 

 

Date TBC July 2024 at 11.00am   

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
 
 
Home-to-School/College 
Transport Policy  

 
 
 

Outcome of the HTST policy 
public consultation. 
To include aspects relating to: 

• Safe routes to schools 

• Implications of revised LDP 

•  School catchment areas 

• Pupils’ admission numbers 

• New school builds 

 

 Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director for Education and 
Family Support  
 
CSC 
 
Headteacher Nominees - TBA 
 
External 

 
 
 
  

Page 436



Monday 16th September 2024 at 11.00am –  

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 

 
Annual review of 
Education and Family 
Support Strategic Plan  
 
 
 

 
 
 

To include update on ALN and  
Budget implications from 2024-25 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director for Education and 
Family Support  
 
CSC 
 
Headteacher Nominees - TBA 
 
External  

 
 

Monday 18th November 2024 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 

 

School Modernisation 
Update  
 
 

 
 

Pre-decision Scrutiny 

 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director for Education and 
Family Support  
 
CSC 
 
Headteacher Nominees - TBA 
 
External 

 
 

Thursday 16th January 2025 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 

 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2025-26 to 
2028-29  

 
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director for Education and 
Family Support  
 
CSC 
 
Headteacher Nominees - TBA 
 
External  

  

Page 437



 
 

Monday 3rd March 2025 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 

Upgrading of Older 
School Facilities  
 
 
or 
 
 
School Mergers  

 

Scope to include - an update on 
the Corporate Landlord report in 
order to consider the current 
situation with the whole school 
estate 

 Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
Corporate Director for Education and 
Family Support  
 
CSC 
 
Headteacher Nominees - TBA 
 
External  

 

Thursday 8th May 2025 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
 
 
 

Reduction in Nursery 
Education Provision 

 
 
 
 

 
 Cabinet Members 
 
Officers 
 
CSC 
 
Headteacher Nominees - TBA 
 
External 
 

 
 
 

Members briefing sessions.  
 

• Reporting of exam results - Session to be held to update Members on 

recommencing of reporting exam results. 

• Leadership and Safeguarding – How they are being audited. Secondary 

School meal Provision - Either an information report or a briefing session 

arranged as soon as possible to further explore issues raised by Members on 

this subject.  Members have also requested more visits to schools, focusing 

on secondary school meal provision in this instance, and the capacity of the 

catering service to meet this need.  

• New Estyn Inspection Framework  

• Governing Bodies – Support and funding. Invitation to be extended to 

representatives and the Governors Association  

Page 438



 
Information reports to be provided.  

 

• English Language School’s catchment areas / capacity  
 

• Early Help Service Pressures 
 

• Appointment of Local Education Authority (LEA) governors – Policy and rules 

- Criteria and procedure for the appointment and removal of local authority 

school governors’  

 
Potential Items to be scheduled. 
 

• ALN Provision and Implementation Update 

• Update on UPFSM Rollout (to include pupils’ views and be invited to meeting) 

– possibly taken up by BREP 

• Delegated budgets, monitor the implications of any proposed reduction to 

school delegated budget – on school budgets, staffing structures, 

redundancies, and any resulting impact on pupils – possibly taken up by 

BREP 

• Central South Consortium – How they have provided value for the schools in 

the County Borough 

Page 439



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 2023-2024 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

26 May 23 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members expressed concern regarding 
the retention of school staff and their 
wellbeing. They discussed the importance 
of the support pupils received for their 
wellbeing and felt that staff wellbeing 
should be of equal priority. Members 
recommended that the narrative 
regarding the support for staff in T1 Pupil 
and staff wellbeing be strengthened to 
reflect this.  

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

26 May 23 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

During discussions regarding pupil 
attendance and levels of absence, 
Members requested a breakdown of the 
reasons for and the numbers of absence 
and recommended that these be included 
in the Plan.  

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf  

26 May 23 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members considered the success 
indicators relating to T2 Support for 
pupil behaviour, attendance, and 
exclusions and highlighted that 
assessing progress towards the 
achievement of the objective ‘a reduction 
in fixed term and permanent exclusions’ 
would only be meaningful if all schools 
were following the School Attendance 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

P
age 441

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

Policy to ensure consistency. Members 
recommended there be a standardised 
Exclusion Policy referenced in the Plan to 
ensure assurance in the data provided 
and accurate measurement of the 
improvements.  

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members recommended that there be 
more granular detail in the Plan on how 
the ambition for completion of the 
statutory training modules by School 
Governors could be measured annually 
and that a baseline be provided in the 
Plan to demonstrate the target to be 
achieved.  

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members noted the plan to increase the 
support for parents with vulnerable 
children under T3 Support for 
vulnerable children and young people 
and recommended that there be more 
detail in the Plan to include how this was 
to be achieved, how the current support 
could be measured and how to ensure 
that the support increases in the future.  

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members discussed how a video 
produced by Brynteg Comprehensive 
School in relation to T5 Curriculum for 
Wales and assessment gave a better 
understanding of the new curriculum and 
recommended that this be made available 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

P
age 442

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

to other schools and to the Members 
themselves.  

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members discussed the importance of the 
safeguarding training module for School 
Governors and made a recommendation 
to support the Directorate in advocating 
Welsh Government to consider making it 
a statutory requirement. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members expressed concern regarding 
potential increased utility bills and impact 
on pupils, due to outdated facilities in 
existing older schools. Whilst Members 
noted that refurbishment and 
maintenance of older schools was within 
the remit of the Property Team and not 
the EFS Directorate, it was recommended 
that this should still be referenced in the 
Plan.  

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members discussed T14 Effective Welsh 
in Education Strategic Plan to promote 
the Welsh language and Welsh-
medium education and felt that the 
objective appeared to be tailored towards 
younger learners and improving Welsh 
speakers and recommended the objective 
be expanded to include what was being 
done to promote and improve the use of 
the Welsh language in secondary 
schools.  

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

P
age 443

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members expressed concern that without 
definitions of the three numbered parts in 
each stage of the RAYG (Red 
(unsatisfactory), Amber (adequate), 
Yellow (good) and Green (excellent)) 
statuses, it was difficult to understand the 
criteria for the top, middle and bottom 
score in each RAYG status. Members 
recommended that the RAYG Self-
evaluation guidelines be revisited and 
that a discussion take place with partners 
to ensure that the targets set were 
achievable, for example an ambition to 
achieve a rating of 8 by August 2026 from 
a current rating of 4 in T2 Support for 
pupil behaviour, attendance, and 
exclusions and 9 by August 2026 with 
the current rating of 6 in T5 Curriculum 
for Wales and assessment and other 
examples in the Plan.  
 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 30 
November 2023. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf 

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

A detailed breakdown of the individual 
grants once all grants were consolidated 
and available which was offered by 
Officers, in response to Members 
questions regarding the financial 
implications of the report including what 
external grants and capital funding were 
expected for 2023-24.   

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Central South 
Consortium  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 9 August 
2023.  

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31400/Appendi
xASchoolGrantAlloc
ations20232411Office
rsresponse.pdf  

P
age 444

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31400/AppendixASchoolGrantAllocations20232411Officersresponse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31400/AppendixASchoolGrantAllocations20232411Officersresponse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31400/AppendixASchoolGrantAllocations20232411Officersresponse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31400/AppendixASchoolGrantAllocations20232411Officersresponse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31400/AppendixASchoolGrantAllocations20232411Officersresponse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31400/AppendixASchoolGrantAllocations20232411Officersresponse.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

The anonymised data for the Food for 
Fun Programme collated from the 
previous year and the available data from 
this year, when available, for the 
Members of the Committee to compare, 
which Officers offered to provide to 
Members in response to Members’ 
questions whether records had been kept 
of the participants of the Food and Fun 
programme within the ‘Successes to date’ 
and ‘Improvement objectives’ of T1 Pupil 
and staff wellbeing, and what the plans 
were going forward.   

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
- Family Support 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 9 August 
2023.  

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf  

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Figures and data regarding the length of 
waiting times for school based 
counsellors, that Officers offered to 
provide in response to Members’ 
concerns regarding the length of waiting 
list times for school based counsellors, 
although Officers were not aware of the 
lists being significant. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
- Family Support 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf  

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Recent data from the annual monitoring  
undertaken by the Educational 
Psychology Service that Officers offered 
to provide in response to Members’ 
referring to T1 Pupil and staff wellbeing in 
the report which outlined the well-
established support from the Educational 
Psychology Service and highlighted the 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Inclusion and 
School 
Improvement 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf  
 
https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31399/Appendi

P
age 445

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31399/AppendixBBridgendELSAregister202314Officersrepsonse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31399/AppendixBBridgendELSAregister202314Officersrepsonse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31399/AppendixBBridgendELSAregister202314Officersrepsonse.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

emotional and social wellbeing support 
role of Learning Support Assistants and 
their continued training, asking  whether 
the roles were undertaken by dedicated 
staff and if every school had them 

xBBridgendELSAregi
ster202314Officersre
psonse.pdf  

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Links from Central South Consortium 
regarding the staff wellbeing service 
funded by Welsh Government. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Central South 
Consortium 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 9 August 
2023.  

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf  

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

More information on when Officers 
expected to meet the objective in T4 
Support for children and young people 
with additional learning needs, that 60 
Additional Learning Needs Co-Ordinators 
would receive bespoke training to meet 
the needs of pupils 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Inclusion and 
School 
Improvement 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf  

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

In relation to T11 Effective childcare and 
early years offer, a timeline in relation to 
the Flying Start roll out and which 
childcare providers are included across 
the County Borough. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
- Family Support 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf  

26 May 
2023 

EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

An update on recruitment of staff for 
school breakfast clubs and kitchens. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager, 
Business 
Support 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31403/SOSC12
6May2023Responses
toRecommendations
2.pdf  

P
age 446

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31399/AppendixBBridgendELSAregister202314Officersrepsonse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31399/AppendixBBridgendELSAregister202314Officersrepsonse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31399/AppendixBBridgendELSAregister202314Officersrepsonse.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31403/SOSC126May2023ResponsestoRecommendations2.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

That narrative be included in future 
reports to Scrutiny explaining why the 
budget table with a breakdown of the 
financial and staffing information in the 
Youth Justice Service Plan did not show 
financial support from the Probation and / 
or Health Services.   

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Youth Justice 
Service 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 17 
October 2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31369/SOSC11
1September23Respo
nsestoRecommendat
ions.pdf  

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

That the Committee write a letter to the 
Probation Service highlighting the 
increased demand on the Youth Justice 
Service (YJS) and requesting greater 
support given the statutory duty on the 
YJS to have a minimum of 
representatives from Police, Education, 
Probation, Health, and Children’s Social 
Care. 

Scrutiny  ACTIONED – 
Letter sent.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s32052/SOSC1t
oProbationServicere
support.pdf?LLL=-1 

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

That there be more engagement and 
liaising between schools and the Police 
and with a focus on prevention. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Youth Justice 
Service 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 17 
October 2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31369/SOSC11
1September23Respo
nsestoRecommendat
ions.pdf  

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

That a young person aged 18 plus but 
under 25 who has gone through the YJS 
be invited to sit on the Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service (BYJS) Management 
Board to provide their insight on their 
experience of the YJS and possible 
improvements. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Youth Justice 
Service 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 17 
October 2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31369/SOSC11
1September23Respo
nsestoRecommendat
ions.pdf  

P
age 447

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32052/SOSC1toProbationServiceresupport.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32052/SOSC1toProbationServiceresupport.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32052/SOSC1toProbationServiceresupport.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32052/SOSC1toProbationServiceresupport.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32052/SOSC1toProbationServiceresupport.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

Given that there were recruitment issues 
across the whole of the organisation but 
recognised that there was a need to have 
adequate specialist staffing to conduct 
some of the trauma screening and 
strongly recommended they look to 
establish if what they currently had was 
sufficient, so they were going to be able 
to reach their performance targets and 
ensure young people are safeguarded. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Youth Justice 
Service 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 17 
October 2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31369/SOSC11
1September23Respo
nsestoRecommendat
ions.pdf  

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

A link to the Joint Inspection responses 
made by Care Inspectorate Wales. 

Scrutiny  ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 5 
October 2023.  

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31369/SOSC11
1September23Respo
nsestoRecommendat
ions.pdf  

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

More information regarding the reasons 
why 45% of children were not attending 
school referenced as reported from the 
My Voice questionnaires. 

Youth Justice 
Service 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 17 
October 2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31369/SOSC11
1September23Respo
nsestoRecommendat
ions.pdf  

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

Data regarding the national Key 
Performance Indicators to be circulated to 
members to see the aspirations for each 
part of the service, and for measurement 
and performance monitoring of the Youth 
Justice Service. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Youth Justice 
Service 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 17 
October 2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31369/SOSC11
1September23Respo
nsestoRecommendat
ions.pdf  

P
age 448

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

11 
September 
2023  

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Update  

More data on how many trauma 
screenings using the Trauma Recovery 
Model were outstanding, how often they 
would be reviewed and how the service 
would manage the staffing resource to 
achieve it. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Youth Justice 
Service 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 17 
October 2023.  
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31369/SOSC11
1September23Respo
nsestoRecommendat
ions.pdf  

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

That an audit of schools be undertaken to 
identify the significant level of School 
Governor vacancies along with an audit 
of School Governor skills to assist 
Members in understanding what can be 
done to attract more people with the right 
skills to becoming Community School 
Governors, and the outcome of the audits 
be made available to the Committee for 
information in the first instance. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager, 
School Support  

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting 
response – to be 
provided.  

 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

That the Bridgend Governors’ Association 
be requested to clarify that all School 
Governing Bodies are included on 
distribution lists for their upcoming 
meetings and that all Local Authority and 
Community Governors are circulated with 
the promotion of their upcoming training 
sessions.   

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager, 
School Support 

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting 
response – to be 
provided. 

 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

That the Committee write a letter to 
Welsh Government requesting that more 
be done at a national level to raise the 
profile of / incentivise recruitment and 
retention of school support staff, as these 

Scrutiny / Chair 
actioning 

ACTIONED: A 
letter from the 
Chair of Subject 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s32057/SOSC1t
oWGreSchoolSuppor
tStaff.pdf?LLL=-1 

 

P
age 449

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31369/SOSC111September23ResponsestoRecommendations.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32057/SOSC1toWGreSchoolSupportStaff.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32057/SOSC1toWGreSchoolSupportStaff.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32057/SOSC1toWGreSchoolSupportStaff.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32057/SOSC1toWGreSchoolSupportStaff.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32057/SOSC1toWGreSchoolSupportStaff.pdf?LLL=-1


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

important roles are significant in 
delivering requirements and ensuring 
well-being is at the forefront, however 
support staff are leaving to work in jobs 
outside the sector. 

Committee 1 to the 
Welsh Minster 
(sent on 11 March) 
and 
response(received 
28 March) . 

 
https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s32217/Respons
eltrWGHtST12Oct23.
pdf?LLL=-1 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

That the invaluable practice of requesting 
appropriate Headteacher Invitees to 
attend for the reports being considered by 
this Committee, be continued.   

 Scrutiny actioning   

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

The document being constructed by Cwm 
Taf Morgannwg Public Health Team to 
analyse the Perform and Grow 
Programme linked to their self-evaluation 
tool, for Members to get an understanding 
of mental well-being across the county 
borough. 

Whole School 
Approach to 
Health and 
Well-being 
Coordinator / 
Group Manager 
Learner Support  

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting 
response – to be 
provided. 

 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

A breakdown of the Welsh Government: 
Whole-School Approach to Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing Grant received by the 
Local Authority referred to in the report, to 
include: 
 
a. The reasons for the increase in 

Activity funding during 2022-23 and 
the decrease in 2023-24. 

b. What the funding provides, including 
how many sessions of counselling and 
if this is sufficient. 

Whole School 
Approach to 
Health and 
Well-being 
Coordinator / 
Group Manager 
Learner Support  

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting 
response – to be 
provided. 

 

P
age 450

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32217/ResponseltrWGHtST12Oct23.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32217/ResponseltrWGHtST12Oct23.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32217/ResponseltrWGHtST12Oct23.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32217/ResponseltrWGHtST12Oct23.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32217/ResponseltrWGHtST12Oct23.pdf?LLL=-1


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

c. Whether there are any alternative 

funding streams for the Activities listed 

in the tables and whether they are 

adequately funded.  

d. The Council’s contribution towards the 
Activities listed in the tables.  

 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

The outcomes and evaluation of the 
review of the framework referred to in the 
report which was planned to ensure it 
was fit for purpose during late 2022. 

Whole School 
Approach to 
Health and 
Well-being 
Coordinator / 
Group Manager 
Learner Support  

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting 
response – to be 
provided. 

 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

Information regarding support 
mechanisms and the sickness absence 
procedures for staff and headteachers 
and their role in supporting the 
recruitment and retention of staff. 

Whole School 
Approach to 
Health and 
Well-being 
Coordinator / 
Group Manager 
Learner Support 
/ Group 
Manager School 
Support  

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting 
response – to be 
provided. 

 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

An update on those schools that did not 
have breakfast clubs and the plan going 
forward for their provision to ensure that 
all learners can receive breakfast, 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting 
response – to be 
provided. 

 

P
age 451



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

particularly given the cost of living and the 
colder weather. 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

The Committee requested an update on 
the timescale of the publication of the 
Welsh Government Home to School 
Transport review. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Scrutiny  

ACTIONED: A 
letter from the 
Chair of Corporate 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee to the 
Welsh Minsters 
and response 

https://democratic.br
idgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31981/Appendi
xALettertoDeputyMin
isterforClimateChange
.pdf 
 
https://democratic.br
idgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s31979/Appendi
xBResponsefromWGC
limateChange14Dece
mber2023.pdff 
 
 

12 October 
2023 

Whole-School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Wellbeing 

A copy of the recently published Welsh 
Government Guidance and summary 
relating to elective Home Education, that 
sets out the requirements and how the 
interface with local authorities and 
parents in this area works. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting 
response – to be 
provided. 

 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

The Committee expressed strong concerns 
around the financial situation for Universal 
Free School Meal Provision (UPFSM) given 
the fact that whilst Welsh Government has 
provided Capital investment for new kitchen 
equipment, facilities and upgrades, there 
are the ongoing Revenue cost implications 

Chair / Scrutiny  ACTIONED – 
Letter sent.   
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s32058/SOSC1t
oWGreFullyFunding
UPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1 

P
age 452

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31981/AppendixALettertoDeputyMinisterforClimateChange.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31981/AppendixALettertoDeputyMinisterforClimateChange.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31981/AppendixALettertoDeputyMinisterforClimateChange.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31981/AppendixALettertoDeputyMinisterforClimateChange.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31981/AppendixALettertoDeputyMinisterforClimateChange.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31981/AppendixALettertoDeputyMinisterforClimateChange.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31979/AppendixBResponsefromWGClimateChange14December2023.pdff
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31979/AppendixBResponsefromWGClimateChange14December2023.pdff
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31979/AppendixBResponsefromWGClimateChange14December2023.pdff
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31979/AppendixBResponsefromWGClimateChange14December2023.pdff
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31979/AppendixBResponsefromWGClimateChange14December2023.pdff
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s31979/AppendixBResponsefromWGClimateChange14December2023.pdff
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32058/SOSC1toWGreFullyFundingUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32058/SOSC1toWGreFullyFundingUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32058/SOSC1toWGreFullyFundingUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32058/SOSC1toWGreFullyFundingUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32058/SOSC1toWGreFullyFundingUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

that the Local Authority and Schools will 
struggle to meet. These include the cost of 
subsiding school meals, food inflation rates, 
costs to meet new requirements for food 
waste as well as significant costs required 
for additional staff to deliver UPFSM, both 
in schools and in the Catering Service. o 

Express these concerns and highlight the 
continuing struggle of Local Authorities and 
Schools to respond to new legislation and 
requirements without suitable funding being 
provided to support it; and  

o To call on WG to commit to fully funding 

the revenue and capital costs of 
implementing this national policy 
commitment.  
 
The Committee therefore agreed to write to 
the Minister for Education and Welsh 
Language to: 
  

• Express these concerns and 
highlight the continuing struggle of Local 
Authorities and Schools to respond to new 
legislation and requirements without 
suitable funding being provided to support 
it; and  

• To call on WG to commit to fully funding 
the revenue and capital costs of 

P
age 453



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

implementing this national policy 
commitment. 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Furthermore, the Committee asked that the 
implications of UPFSM on time for learning 
be looked at as a matter of urgency given 
that Headteachers are already highlighting 
this as a concern which will only be 
exacerbated with the further rollout of 
UPFSM to Nursery years and Years 5 – 6. 
The Committee were of the view that this 
could have a significant negative affect on 
primary school pupil’s education.  

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Business 
Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Members expressed concern over school 
meal portion sizes provided for primary 
school pupils in that these are the same for 
those in nursery provision to those in year 
6. It was agreed that portion sizes for this 
age range would likely differ significantly 
and either cause an issue of food waste 
from younger children due to the portion 
size being too big (as well as unnecessary 
associated costs), or the potential opposite 
in portion sizes not being big enough for 
the older children and them remaining 
hungry. The Committee were advised that 
Welsh Government were reviewing healthy 
eating in schools, however, it was unknown 
whether the review would include 
consideration of portion sizes, which was 
set, under the direction of WG, by the 

Chair / Scrutiny  ACTIONED: A 
letter from the 
Chair of Subject 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 1 to the 
Welsh Minsters 
(sent on 11 March) 
and response 
(received 27 
March). 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s32059/SOSC1t
oWGreportionsizeUP
FSM.pdf?LLL=-1 
 
https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s32060/SOSC1t
oWLGAreportionsize
UPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1 
 
https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/docum
ents/s32222/Respons
eltrWGportionsize4D
ec23.pdf?LLL=-1 

P
age 454

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32059/SOSC1toWGreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32059/SOSC1toWGreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32059/SOSC1toWGreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32059/SOSC1toWGreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32059/SOSC1toWGreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32060/SOSC1toWLGAreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32060/SOSC1toWLGAreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32060/SOSC1toWLGAreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32060/SOSC1toWLGAreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32060/SOSC1toWLGAreportionsizeUPFSM.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32222/ResponseltrWGportionsize4Dec23.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32222/ResponseltrWGportionsize4Dec23.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32222/ResponseltrWGportionsize4Dec23.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32222/ResponseltrWGportionsize4Dec23.pdf?LLL=-1
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s32222/ResponseltrWGportionsize4Dec23.pdf?LLL=-1


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

Welsh Local Government Association 
(WLGA). It was therefore agreed that the 
Committee would write to both the Welsh 
Government and the WLGA and request 
that portion sizes be incorporated into the 
review and that this be based on clear 
evidence gathered from schools and pupils, 
the latter to ensure the voice of the child is 
heard.  

 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Concerns were raised over the potential 
impact of UPFSM on those who could 
potentially be entitled to eFSM. 
Headteachers at the meeting reported that 
there had been a drop in eFSM recently 
which could possibly be attributed to the 
introduction of UPFSM. Whilst pupils would 
still receive a meal in both cases, pupils 
could be put at a disadvantage by losing 
out on the extra support they would be 
entitled to under eFSM. This includes a 
School Essentials Grant each year to help 
towards the cost of things like uniform and 
school supplies. It also had an impact on 
the amount of funding schools received to 
support eFSM pupils. The Committee 
therefore recommend that Primary schools 
and the Local Authority ensure parents are 
appropriately informed of the difference 
between the two and that the benefits of 

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Business 
Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

P
age 455

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

eFSM over UPFSM be advertised as widely 
as possible to encourage take-up and 
ensure no child is invertedly 
disadvantaged.  

 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Whilst appreciating that there is a priority to 
rollout UPFSM, the Committee expressed 
strong concerns around the value for 
money provided with free school meals, 
given the menu stipulated for all schools 
and how suited it was to their pupils. 
Information viewed in school visits and 
gathered from Headteachers suggest that 
at times, the menu choices result in a lot of 
food wastage and also, more worryingly, 
instances where children are not being 
appropriately fed as they do not like the 
choices available. Acknowledging that the 
menus have to take account of Healthy 
Eating in Schools regulations, Nutritional 
Food Standards and are devised using the 
Saffron system for nutritional analysis, the 
Committee support the view expressed by 
some Headteachers that the menu choices 
need tweaking to address these concerns 
and take more account of pupil’s views in 
the choices available to them. Members 
recommend that this be looked at as soon 
as possible to reduce wastage, ensure 
pupils are being fed appropriately, and in 

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Business 
Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

P
age 456

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

order that that the new UPFSM provision is 
effective and achieves its overall aim.  

 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Concerns were expressed over the high 
number of vacancies reported relating to 
UPFSM provision and how the Authority 
would fill these. The Committee 
recommend that the Directorate look at 
what other Local Authorities may be doing 
to recruit to this service area to see if there 
are some innovative methods and ways of 
advertising that could be utilised in 
Bridgend, including any incentives that 
could be considered.  

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

The Committee also recommend that the 
Local Authority explore, along with 
Headteachers and the Catering Service, 
how schools in close proximity to one  
another could potentially work together to 
assist with the provision of UPFSM, 
particularly with meeting staffing 
requirements given the high number of 
vacancies reported. Members proposed 
that schools could consider how staff could 
be shared across schools, particularly 
where there are low hour contracts, thereby 
providing more working hours, with the aim 
of attracting people into these positions.  

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 

 Corporate 
Director of 

ACTIONED – 
response and 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N

P
age 457

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

It was further recommended that 
information be sought from HR as to 
whether staff contracts could be combined 
and strengthened for those staff who may 
hold multiple smaller roles in schools, such 
as support, catering, lunchtime cover etc, 
and thereby multiple contracts.  

 

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Chief Officer, 
Legal, HR & 
Regulatory 
Services 

information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 

AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Further information as to whether 
notification from parents at the beginning of 
the week whether children would be taking 
up their free school meal each day of that 
week would assist schools with planning 
and reducing waste. Members recall that 
this used to be the standard method for 
most schools and wondered whether 
reverting back to this would provide 
benefits, even in so much as planning for 
staff cover as well as dining hall space and 
the number of meal sittings required.  

 

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Business 
Support / Team 
Manager 
Catering 
Services  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Clarification on the current projected 
overspend for Catering Services for 2023-
24 as well as a breakdown of this 
overspend.  

 

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support.  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

P
age 458

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

The Committee welcomed the offer from 
Headteacher, Mr Chris Jones of 
Llangynwyd Primary School to receive a 
copy of the information gathered via a short 
survey sent to fellow colleagues in primary 
schools across the County Borough.  

 

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Group Manager 
Business 
Support / 
Headteacher, 
Llangynwyd 
Primary School  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Clarification on whether there would be any 
potential legal or financial penalties levied 
on Local Authorities if they were unable to 
deliver UPFSM in full for whatever reasons, 
whether this be lack of staffing or kitchen 
facilities for example, given the fact that this 
is now a statutory service.  

 

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

4 December 
2023 

Universal Primary 
Free School 
Meals (UPFSM) 
and Operational 
Issues within the 
Catering Service  

Either an information report or a briefing 
session be arranged as soon as possible 
on the subject of Secondary School meal 
provision, given reports by one school that 
they have not got the capacity to feed all 
the pupils that request it and are therefore 
being sent into the local town to buy lunch 
instead. To further explore this issue 
Members have requested more visits to 
schools, focusing on secondary school 
meal provision in this instance, and the 

Corporate 
Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 16 
February 2024. 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ecSDD
isplayClassic.aspx?N
AME=SD837&ID=837
&RPID=6733674&sch
=doc&cat=13514&pat
h=13490%2c13492%2
c13497%2c13514&LL
L=0&LLL=0 

P
age 459

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD837&ID=837&RPID=6733674&sch=doc&cat=13514&path=13490%2c13492%2c13497%2c13514&LLL=0&LLL=0


APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

capacity of the catering service to meet this 
need.  

 

18 January 
2024  

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy 2024-25 
to 2027-28 

The Committee made recommendations 
and requested additional information.  

Scrutiny / Chair 
of COSC  

ACTIONED: 
Recommendations 
formally reported 
to COSC and 
onward to Cabinet 
on 6 February 
2024 for 
consideration and 
response.  
 
Response from 
Cabinet on 20 
February 2024. 
 

https://democratic.bri
dgend.gov.uk/ieListD
ocuments.aspx?CId=
141&MId=4425&Ver=
4&LLL=0 
 
 
 

https://democratic.br
idgend.gov.uk/ieListD
ocuments.aspx?CId=1
41&MId=4426&Ver=4 

 

P
age 460

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4425&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4426&Ver=4
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4426&Ver=4
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4426&Ver=4
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=4426&Ver=4

	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	Minutes , 11/09/2023 Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1
	Minutes , 12/10/2023 Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1
	Minutes , 18/01/2024 Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1

	4 Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (2022-2032)
	4a. Appendix 1 EN BCBC WESP
	4b. Appendix 2 BCBC WESP Five-Year Plan 2022-2027
	4c. Appendix 3 WESP Annual Review Report 2022-2023 BCBC
	4d. Appendix 4 20230919 Cabinet WESP Update

	5 Adroddiad Craffu Blynyddol Awdurdodau Lleol Consortiwm Canolbarth y De 2022-23
	5a. Appendix 1 Bridgend Local Authority CSC Scrutiny Report 2022-23 v1.0

	7 Adroddiad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi - Dysgu Oedolion yn y Gymuned
	7a. Information Report - SOSC1 Adult Community Learning Update 180324 v1.0 (003) - Final

	8 Adroddiad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi - Perfformiad Chwarter 3 2023-24
	8a. Appdx A - COSC 210324 Q3 Performance 23-24
	8b. Appdx 1 - Perf Dashboard Q3 2023-24

	9 Diweddariad ar Raglen Waith
	9a. Appendix A - FWP - SOSC 1
	9b. Appendix B - Action Sheet SOSC 1 - 2023-24


